
 
 

Remote Meeting Instructions for the March 2, 2021, City Council Meeting: 

 

In order to comply with all health orders and State guidelines to stop the spread of 

the COVID-19 Coronavirus, no physical location, including the City Council 

Chambers, will be set up for viewing or participating in this Council Meeting. 

 

You can view this Council Meeting by following the instructions below to watch the 

YouTube live stream. By utilizing this option to view the meeting, you will not be able 

to provide live input during the meeting. To provide live input, see the “In real time” 

instructions near the bottom of this page. 

 

 From your laptop or computer, click the following link or enter it manually into 

your Web Browser: (www.youtube.com/CityofGreeley) 

 Clicking the link above will take you to the City of Greeley’s YouTube 

Channel. 

 Once there, you will be able to view the meeting! 
 

Citizen input and public comment for items appearing on this agenda as public 

hearings/quasi-judicial are valuable and welcome! 
 

Anyone interested in participating and sharing public comments have a few of 

options: 

 

Via email? – Submit to cityclerks@greeleygov.com 

All comments submitted this way will be read into the record at the appropriate 

points during this meeting in real time. Comments can be submitted up to and 

throughout this meeting. 
 

Via traditional Mail? - Address to the Greeley City Clerk’s Office, 1000 10th Street, 

Greeley, CO 80631 

All written comments must be received no later than the day of the meeting. Again, 

written comments received by mail will also be read into the record in real time. 

 

In real time? – https://greeleygov.zoom.us/j/91910136877 

Clicking the link above will give you access to the live meeting where you will become a 

virtual audience member and be able to speak under Citizen Input on items not already 

on the agenda or during a scheduled public hearing. 

 

*** Because we are expecting a high volume of speakers at this meeting, we would 

ask that you sign up to speak prior to the meeting by clicking on the following link and 

providing all of the requested information including which item you will be providing 

commenting on: https://www.signupgenius.com/go/4090d4bacad2aab9-march *** 

 

Please visit the City’s website at https://greeleygov.com/government/council to view and 

download the contents of the March 2, 2021, City Council Meeting. You are also welcome to call 

the City Clerk’s Office at 970-350-9740 with any special needs or questions that you may have. 

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofGreeley
mailto:cityclerks@greeleygov.com
https://greeleygov.zoom.us/j/91910136877
https://www.signupgenius.com/go/4090d4bacad2aab9-march
https://greeleygov.com/government/council


City Council Agenda 
March 02, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

This meeting will be conducted remotely. (See previous 

page for participation instructions and/or to view the 

YouTube live stream.) 

  

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Recognitions and Proclamations 

5. Citizen Input 

6. Approval of the Agenda 

7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

8. Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda is a meeting management tool to allow 

the City Council to handle several routine items with one action. 

Council or staff may request an item be “pulled” off the Consent 

Agenda and considered separately under the next agenda item 

in the order they were listed. 

9. Acceptance of the Report of the February 9, 2021, City 

Council Worksession 

10. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of February 16, 

2021 

11. Consideration of a resolution authorizing the transfer of 

$150,000 in Airport Improvement Funds from the Greeley-

Weld County Airport to Monte Vista Municipal Airport 

12. Consideration of a resolution authorizing the City to enter 

into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the 

City of Greeley and the Cache Metropolitan District Nos. 1-

8. 

13. Consideration of a resolution of the City Council of the City 

of Greeley authorizing City staff to enter into a Settlement 

and Mutual Release Agreement with Ms. Eugenia Lopez 

Flores 

 
 

Mayor 

John Gates 

Councilmembers 

Tommy Butler 

Ward I 

Brett Payton 

Ward II 

Michael Fitzsimmons 

Ward III 

Dale Hall 

Ward IV 

Kristin Zasada 

At-Large 

Ed Clark 

At-Large 

 

A City Achieving 

Community Excellence 
Greeley promotes a 

healthy, diverse economy 

and high quality of life 

responsive to all its 

residents and 

neighborhoods, 

thoughtfully managing its 

human and natural 

resources in a manner 

that creates and sustains 

a safe, unique, vibrant 

and rewarding 

community in which to 

live, work, and play. 

 

Page 1



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

End of Consent Agenda 

14. Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

15. Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance amending Chapter 6, Title 14 of the Code 

of the City of Greeley concerning the dedication of raw water for city water service 

16. Consideration of a resolution of the City Council of Greeley, Colorado authorizing the closing 

of the transaction contemplated by the Amended and Restated Master Purchase, Sale and 

Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch) and taking related actions 

17. COVID-19 Update 

18. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

19. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required resolutions, 

agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this meeting and 

at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all such resolutions, 

agreements and ordinances 

20. Adjournment 

Page 2



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021 

 

Title 

Call to Order 

                                 

Page 3

Item No. 1.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021 

 

Title 

Pledge of Allegiance 

                                 

Page 4

Item No. 2.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021 

 

Title 

Roll Call 

Summary 

Mayor Gates 

Councilmember Butler 

Councilmember Payton 

Councilmember Hall 

Councilmember Fitzsimmons 

Councilmember Clark 

Councilmember Zasada 
                                 

Page 5

Item No. 3.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021  

 

Title 

Recognitions and Proclamations 

Summary 

Councilmember Hall will present the What’s Great about Greeley Report. 

 

Mayor Gates will present a proclamation recognizing March as Youth Art Month 

which urges all citizens to support quality school art programs for our children and 

youth. 

 

Attachments 

What’s Great about Greeley Report 

Youth Art Month Proclamation 
                                 

Page 6

Item No. 4.



Slide 1 

Greeley City Council
March 2, 2021
Councilmember Dale Hall

GreeleyGov.com

 

 

Slide 2 
“If you belittle what you 

have…it becomes less.

If you appreciate what

you have …

it becomes more.”
~Gelene McDonald

 

At each Council Meeting, we 
recognize the people, 
organizations and businesses that 
make Greeley Great. Tonight it’s 
my turn to announce the 
recognitions.  I’ll start with a 
quote, “If you belittle what you 
have, it becomes less.  If you 
appreciate what you have, it 
becomes more.”  With these 
announcements we are 
appreciating the good work of our 
residents, showing support for 
their efforts, and encouraging 
everyone to share the word that 
Greeley is Great. 
 
 

 

Page 7

Item No. 4.



Slide 3 
WalletHub Ranks Greeley 30th

Fastest Growing Cities in the Nation

 

WalletHub has ranked Greeley 30th 
on their “Fastest Growing Cities in 
the Nation” list of mid-sized cities. 
The list compared 256 cities across 
the United States.  
 
 

Slide 4 
Milken Institute Ranks Greeley 43rd

Best-Performing Cities Index

 

The Greeley metropolitan 
statistical area has also been 
ranked 43rd in the nation on the 
Milken Institute’s ‘2021 Best-
Performing Cities' index, which 
tracks the economic performance 
of roughly 400 metropolitan areas 
across the United States. 
 
 

Slide 5 
Weld Food Bank

No Kid Hungry Campaign Grant

 

Weld Food Bank is one of seven 
Colorado organizations selected to 
receive grant money from the No 
Kid Hungry Campaign by Share Our 
Strength. The grant will allow the 
organization to provide 6,000 food 
packages through its weekend 
backpack program.  
 
 

Page 8

Item No. 4.



Slide 6 
University of Northern Colorado

Western Athletic Conference – Swimmer of the Week

 

Northern Colorado swimmer, Anna 
Austin, has earned her second 
Western Athletic Conference 
Swimmer of the Week award this 
season. 
 
 

Slide 7 
Weldwerks “Juicy Bits”

Top Beer in Colorado

 

Popular website Thrillist and their 
team of expert beer writers have 
selected Weldwerks ‘Juicy Bits’ 
New England-style IPA in their top 
3 best beers in Colorado. Congrats! 
 
 

Slide 8 

Greeley City Council - 2021  

GreeleyGov.com

 

And that’s What’s Great about 
Greeley. 
 
 

 

Page 9

Item No. 4.



 
 
 
 
 

YOUTH ART MONTH  
 

WHEREAS, art education gives powerful educational benefits to all students; and  
 
WHEREAS, art education develops creative problem solving and critical thinking; and 
  
WHEREAS, art education teaches sensitivity to beauty and order; and 
 
WHEREAS, art education brings to life what students learn in other subjects; and 
 
WHEREAS, art education gives understanding of world cultures; and 
 
WHEREAS, March is observed throughout the nation as Youth Art Month; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Greeley Arts Legacy, a community organized nonprofit, recognizes 

individuals and organizations from the establishment of the Union Colony through present day for 
their substantial lifetime contributions to the quality of life in Greeley; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Greeley Creative District was established in 2012 and continues to to 

highlight the community’s distinctive creative identity and increase its economic vitality by uplifting, 
encouraging, incubating, promoting, and developing the arts and creative businesses in the Greeley 
community; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Greeley Art Commission also commemorates this month with the 

seventh edition of a custom coloring book with illustrations representing the City’s Public Art 
Collection.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, John D. Gates, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor 

of the City of Greeley, Colorado, do hereby proclaim March, 2021, as Youth Art Month in the City 
of Greeley and urge all citizens to support quality school art programs for our children and our 
youth. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the 

official seal of the City of Greeley, this 2nd day of March, 2021. 
 

    ____________________________ 
     John D. Gates 
     Mayor 

Page 10

Item No. 4.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021  

 

Title 

Citizen Input 

Summary 

During this 15 minute portion of the meeting, anyone may address the Council on 

any item of City Business appropriate for Council consideration that is not already 

listed on this evening’s agenda. Individual comments read into the record will be 

limited to 3 minutes and must include the name and address of the person 

submitting the comments for the record. 
                                 

Page 11

Item No. 5.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 16, 2021 

 

Title 

Approval of the Agenda 

Items 15 and 16 on the agenda are interrelated. The City Council’s Policies & Protocols 

prescribe the ordinary order of the agenda for Council meetings, as well as when the 

public can address the Council. There is a need to act on these items in an order 

opposite of how they appear on the regular agenda to consider the resolution for the 

Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch) prior to 

the final reading of the ordinance amending Chapter 6 Title 14, concerning the 

dedication of raw water for City water service.   

There is also a desire to allow public comment on the resolution prior to its 

consideration. Therefore, it is recommended items 15 and 16 be heard together by the 

Council, with a presentation by staff on both items before the public hearing is opened. 

To accommodate public comment on the resolution as well, the public hearing will  

allow comment on both the ordinance as well as the resolution. At the conclusion of 

the presentation and hearing, if Council is prepared to act on these items, a motion first 

on item 16 would be in order, followed by action on the ordinance in item 15. 

                        

Page 12

Item No. 6.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021  

 

Title 

Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting any Councilmember may offer announcements or 

reports on recent events and happenings.  These reports should be a summary of the 

Councilmember’s attendance at assigned board/commission meetings and should 

include key highlights and points that may require additional decision and discussion 

by the full Council at a future time.   
 

Page 13

Item No. 7.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021  

 

Title 

Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting any Councilmember may bring before the Council 

any business that the member feels should be deliberated upon by the Council.  These 

matters need not be specifically listed on the Agenda, but formal action on such 

matters shall be deferred until a subsequent Council meeting. 

 

Initiatives will generally fall into three categories: 

 

1) A policy item for Council deliberation and direction for a future Worksession, 

Committee meeting, or regular/special Council meeting; 

 

2) A request to the City Manager for information or research; 

 

3) A request involving administrative processes or procedures. 

 

At the close of this portion of the meeting, the Mayor will confirm Council’s consensus 

that the individual requests be pursued. 

 

Attachments 

Status Report of Council Initiatives and Related Information 

                                 

Page 14

Item No. 8.



 

 

Greeley City Council 
 

Status Report of Council Initiatives 
 

Initiative 

No. 

 

 

Council Request 

Council Meeting, 

Worksession, or 

Committee 

Meeting Date 

Requested 

Status or Disposition 

(After completion, item is shown one time as 

completed and then removed.) 
Assigned to: 

01-2021 Council Member Zasada offered an 

initiative relating to the level of the use 

of outside consultants by the City. She 

requested and received consensus to 

proceed with seeking an internal audit 

for the previous two years relating to 

the use of outside consultants on City 

projects and operations, including the 

total costs involved. 

 

January 19, 2021 

Council Meeting 

Update: 02/19/2021 

A response to this initiative will be provide to 

Council by the March 9 Worksession Agenda. 

 

In response to Council Member Zasada’s 

request for an audit of the usage of consultants 

within the City, the Purchasing Division of 

the Finance Department will compile an 

inventory of contracts of a value of $50,000 

or greater with consultants of a professional 

services nature between the period of 2018-

2020 including cost, host department, and 

purpose associated with contracting services 

for distribution to the City Council. 

Paul Fetherston 

02-2021 

 

Council Member Hall expressed a need 

to acknowledge and correct these 

issues from a safety standpoint. As the 

board president of the Poudre River 

Corridor Board, the council member 

requested coordination between that 

board, City Council, and City staff to 

address the issue, and asked for 

consensus to have the board 

Sustainability Chairman Mike 

Ketterling work with City staff on this. 

February 2, 2021 

Council Meeting 

Staff from Culture, Parks and 

Recreation/Natural Areas & Trails and Public 

Works met on site on 2/10 to review the 

problem.  An initial remedy will be 

implemented after spring thaw to create a “V” 

channel in the soil on the south edge of the 

trail to capture water runoff so it doesn’t spill 

on to the trail and freeze.  This remedy was 

also discussed with Mike Ketterling who 

agreed with the assessment and suggested 

remedy.  Furthermore, staff have been in 

Andy 

McRoberts 

Page 15

Item No. 8.



Initiative 

No. 

 

 

Council Request 

Council Meeting, 

Worksession, or 

Committee 

Meeting Date 

Requested 

Status or Disposition 

(After completion, item is shown one time as 

completed and then removed.) 
Assigned to: 

Discussion among the Council noted 

that the HOA for the housing 

development should also be included in 

those discussions, and that the length of 

the trail going through Greeley should 

also be looked at for other issues. 

regular contact with the HOA president to 

discuss the issue and seek any further clarity 

or communications regarding adjacent homes 

to the problem area.  In the meantime, City 

staff will continue to manage the ice build-up 

as best as possible with ice removal, sanding 

and salting.  Additional warning signage is 

also being installed for users of the trail.  

Other areas of the Poudre Trail are assessed 

on a regular basis and areas of concern 

regarding public safety are addressed with 

available resources.  The entire Poudre Trail 

was also assessed in 2018 by Otak 

Engineering to identify short and long term 

solutions to ongoing issues, particularly 

towards riverbank erosion and stabilization.  

This item is now closed. 

03-2021 Also related to the Poudre River Trail, 

Council Member Hall noted the section 

of the trail known as the Narrows is 

facing increasing risks of erosion, with 

some portions in danger of falling into 

the river, and no available alternative 

areas for trail placement in that 

vicinity. The School of Mines will do a 

project to work on some engineering 

solutions for the area, in addition to 

other engineering studies that have 

already been done. Council Member 

Hall requested the formation of a 

committee, which he would chair, to 

review and determine options to move 

February 2, 2021 

Council Meeting 

A committee, chaired by Council Member 

and Poudre River Trail Corridor Chairman 

Hall, has been formed with representatives 

from the Poudre Trail Corridor Board, 

Culture, Parks and Recreation/Natural Areas 

and Trails, Public Works, Water and Sewer, 

the Poudre River Run Master HOA, a member 

of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, 

and a representative from the Ditch #3 Board.  

Committee Chairman Hall has also 

referenced initial communications with Otak 

Engineering, a consulting firm who produced 

a study of this area in 2018 for the City of 

Greeley, as well as the Colorado School of 

Mines engineering students who will conduct 

Andy 

McRoberts 

Page 16

Item No. 8.



Initiative 

No. 

 

 

Council Request 

Council Meeting, 

Worksession, or 

Committee 

Meeting Date 

Requested 

Status or Disposition 

(After completion, item is shown one time as 

completed and then removed.) 
Assigned to: 

forward in addressing this with the 

assistance of City staff. City Manager 

Otto added information about potential 

Capital Improvement Projects through 

this area, and Council Member Hall 

provided information about existing 

potential rough cost estimates in 

response to questions from the Council. 

a capstone project this semester towards a 

suggested course of action and suggested 

funding mechanism(s).  An initial assessment 

with design parameters, recommended 

course(s) of action including recommended 

funding sources, is expected in June, 2021 

post consultation with the Mines student 

project and engineering consultants.  

Although this project will carry on in 

practicality through committee work, it is 

now considered closed as an Initiative. 

04-2021 Council Member Butler requested that 

City staff research and bring back to 

Council options for establishing a new 

sustainability commission, as a 

commission devoted to the goal of long 

term sustainability in Greeley as well 

as promoting economic development 

and environmental health for future 

generations. He noted such a 

commission could address issues 

including recycling, sustainable job 

growth, development, and open spaces. 

February 16, 

2021 

Council Meeting 

Staff is currently researching best 

management practices and other cities 

sustainability commissions to make a 

recommendation to City Council.  It is 

anticipated that an update will be provided to 

Council at the April 13, 2021 Worksession 

Meeting. 

Raymond Lee 

 

Page 17

Item No. 8.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Consent Agenda 
March 2, 2021 

The Consent Agenda is a meeting management tool to allow the City Council to handle several 

routine items with one action. 

Once the Clerk has read each Consent Agenda item into the record, along with Council’s 

recommended action, Council or staff may request the item be “pulled” off the Consent 

Agenda and considered separately under the next agenda item in the order they were listed. 

The Consent Agenda includes Items No. 9 through 13 and their recommended actions. 

Council’s Recommended Action 

To approve Items No. _____ through _____ or 

To approve Items No. _____ through _____ with the exceptions of No.(s) _____ 

Page 18

Item No. 8.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
March 2, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Anissa Hollingshead, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Acceptance of the Report of the February 9, 2021, City Council Worksession 

Summary:  

A City Council Worksession was held on February 9, 2021, virtually utilizing the Zoom 

Platform. 

Decision Options:  

1) 1.  To accept the Report as presented; or 

2) 2. Amend the Report if amendments or corrections are needed, and accept as 

amended. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to accept the Report as presented. 

Attachments: 
February 9, 2021 Report 

 

 

Page 19

Item No. 9.



1 

City Council Worksession Report of February 9, 2021 

City of Greeley, Colorado 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSESSION REPORT 

February 9, 2021 
 

1. Call to Order 

Mayor John Gates called the virtual meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. via the City's Zoom 

platform. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Gates led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 

3. Roll Call 

Cheryl Aragon, Deputy City Clerk, called the roll. 

PRESENT 

Mayor John Gates 

Council Member Tommy Butler 

Council Member Brett Payton  

Council Member Dale Hall 

Council Member Michael Fitzsimmons 

Council Member Ed Clark 

Council Member Kristin Zasada 

 

4.  COVID-19 Update 

Dan Frazen, Emergency Manager, reviewed the most current statistics on COVID-19 

and referenced the new State dial shared by the Governor.  He also shared that staff 

and residents at long-term care facilities are expected to have the vaccine by 

February 18th.  He reviewed the four metrics and statistics that have put us in yellow on 

the statewide dial and noted that we have to remain there for 7 days.   

 

With regard to the Five Star Program, Emergency Manager Frazen reported that 70 

percent of the age 70+ population needs to be vaccinated before businesses can 

operate in blue on the statewide dial, which is the next level up from yellow, and that 

we are at about 57 percent currently.     

 

He went on to highlight the new data links added in his report within the employee 

dashboard for employees and facility occupancy.  He advised that soon, the data will 

be shared daily with everything in one place, and until that happens, these Tuesday 

reports to Council will happen.  

 

In response to a question from Council Member Butler, Emergency Manager Frazen 

advised that for the new metric, the second vaccine is the metric for hitting the 70 

percent mark.   

Page 20

Item No. 9.



2 

City Council Worksession Report of February 9, 2021 

 

Council Member Fitzsimmons reported that he received his second vaccine with no 

reactions and encouraged everyone to get vaccinated. 

 

Anissa Hollingshead, City Clerk, provided additional information on the Five Star 

Program and emphasized that this is a valuable program with benefits to businesses for 

applying and becoming certified.   

 

5. Reports from Mayor and Council Members 

 

Council Member Hall reported that the Colorado School of Mines is undertaking a project  

gathering ideas for the Poudre River Trail Narrows Project.  Ideas from those engineering  

students will be shared soon. 

 

Council Member Clark asked for more information about the $93,000 that would be used 

to increase the ability for folks to get into the Recreation Center and Funplex to work out 

and use these facilities. 

 

Roy Otto, City Manager, reported that staff will move forward in this regard and monitor  

how many people are using the facility, as well as monitor the budget for any needed 

supplemental appropriations.  He added that additional hours will begin March 1st at the 

Recreation Center. 

 

 6. 2020 Year-end CIP Report 

 

Joel Hemesath, Public Works Director, reported that staff in the Public Works, Water & 

Sewer, and Culture, Parks & Recreation Departments (CPRD) work together each 

month on an internal committee called the Capital Projects Committee (CPD) to 

coordinate capital improvement projects (CIP).   He noted that this work consists of five-

year planning, budget status updates, and coordination of projects to minimize 

disruption to areas, debriefing on projects, and training.   

 

Together with Andy McRoberts, Culture, Parks & Recreation Director, and Adam Pryor, 

Chief Water & Sewer Engineer, Mr. Hemesath proceeded to review the report and 

offered a status of all major capital projects within Public Works, CPRD, and Water & 

Sewer, highlighting that the CIP budget totaled $161,762,184 for 138 different projects.   

 

7. Household Occupancy Standards 

 

Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, reported that single-family zoning 

became prominent in the suburban housing boom of the 1950’s and 1960’s.  Greeley 

first limited the number of unrelated adults allowed to share a single-family dwelling in 

1966 and the number of unrelated adults allowed to share housing has been adjusted 

over time.   

 

He introduced Caleb Jackson, Planner, who shared that the current standard of “you 

plus one” allows no more than two unrelated adjusts to share a single-family dwelling in 

Page 21

Item No. 9.



3 

City Council Worksession Report of February 9, 2021 

low-density areas and dates back to 1980.  The increasing cost of housing in Greeley is 

increasing pressures for Greeley fair market rent and median sales prices for housing. 

 

Planner Jackson reviewed standards set by peer communities and considerations.  He 

noted that the Housing Task Force, Code Advisory Committee, the Planning 

Commission and the public offered feedback through a survey and found that there 

seems to be a desire to slightly increase the number of unrelated people in a single-

family dwelling. 

 

Planner Jackson reviewed options for Council to consider which included everything 

from maintaining the status quo or increasing the number based on the number of 

bedrooms, house size, etc. 

 

Director Mueller shared that the goal is to get some consensus or general direction 

about Council’s preference on this which will give staff the benefit of being able to 

provide Code updates and frame the issues around small lot formatting, accessory 

dwelling units, etc.   

 

Council Member Clark expressed that he would not be in favor of increasing the “you 

plus one” designation since it is not enforceable.  He added that he would not be 

supportive of creating those kinds of impacts to neighborhoods. 

 

Council Member Hall shared his concern that there seems to be a disparity between 

related and unrelated status noting that “you plus one” is too restrictive and any 

number of unrelated people is too lenient.  He did state that tying it to the number of 

bedrooms is intriguing and that it might be a good compromise. 

 

Council Member Butler expressed agreement with Council Member Hall that tying it to 

the number of bedrooms does seem like a good compromise and also agreed that 

“you plus one” is unenforceable.   

 

Council Member Zasada shared that she is on a mission to protect single-family zoning, 

and the “you plus one” designation.  She stated that the issue is packing multiple 

tenants inside a house.  She would support a small movement or an increase in other 

zoning areas like Residential High Density (R-H) or Residential Medium Density (R-M), but 

not Residential Low Density (R-L).   

 

Council Member Payton stated that this has been discussed for many years and noted 

that there is only a problem when neighbors complain.  Director Mueller agreed and 

added that there is not any ability currently to actively enforce in neighborhoods.    

 

Council Member Payton stated that he is in favor of some change, and that this is worth 

additional investigation.   

 

Council Member Fitzsimmons stated that he would like to know more about other 

communities that have increased from “you plus one” before a decision is made here.  

He added that what is really needed is enforcement, so change plus enforcement is 

needed for it to work.   

Page 22

Item No. 9.



4 

City Council Worksession Report of February 9, 2021 

 

Conversation ensued about related and unrelated people in neighborhoods and the 

impacts of each on a neighborhood. 

 

Director Mueller advised that some geographic considerations could also be devised, 

like other communities have done. 

 

Council consensus was reached on staff recommended option C.   

 

Director Mueller emphasized that this discussion helps staff and noted that this is not a 

one and done deal.  Public hearings and presentation to the Planning Commission may 

bring forth some new information to consider.  There will be more opportunity to tie this 

together that hopefully meets policy goals when it comes back to Council in 

September.   

 

Council Member Zasada offered that as staff looks more at the number of bedrooms, to 

consider both conforming and non-conforming uses.    

 

8. Scheduling of Meetings and Other Events 

City Manager Otto noted that there were no additional meetings or events scheduled. 

9. Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Council, the Worksession was 

adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

John Gates, Mayor 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Cheryl Aragon, Deputy City Clerk 

 

Page 23

Item No. 9.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
March 2, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Anissa Hollingshead, City Clerk, 350-9742 

  

Title:  

Approval of the City Council Proceedings of February 16, 2021 

Summary:  

A meeting of the City Council was held on February 16, 2021, virtually utilizing the Zoom 

Platform. 

Decision Options:  

1) 1.  To approve the proceedings as presented; or 

2) 2.  Amend the proceedings if amendments or corrections are needed, and approve 

3)  as amended. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to approve the City Council proceedings as presented. 

Attachments: 
February 16, 2021 Proceedings 

 

 

 

Page 24

Item No. 10.



1 
 

City Council Proceedings of February 16, 2021 - Draft 

City of Greeley, Colorado 

CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 

February 16, 2021 

 

 
 

1. Call to Order 

Mayor John Gates called the remote meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. via the City's Zoom 

platform. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Gates led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 

3. Roll Call 

Anissa Hollingshead, City Clerk, called the roll. 

PRESENT 

Mayor John Gates 

Council Member Tommy Butler 

Council Member Michael Fitzsimmons 

Council Member Dale Hall 

Council Member Ed Clark 

Council Member Kristin Zasada 

ABSENT 

Council Member Brett Payton 

4. Recognitions and Proclamations 

Council Member Fitzsimmons presented the What's Great about Greeley Report. 

Mayor Gates honored and remembered former Council Member Bill Duff, who served 

on the Council in 2000-2001, in addition to significant involvement across the 

community upon his recent passing. 

5. Citizen Input 

No written comments were received.  

Dianna French, addressed the Council from the meeting's virtual audience and asked 

when the Council would address the work of the group pursuing secession of Weld 

County from the state of Colorado. 

Mario Carrasco addressed the Council from the meeting's virtual audience as a 

resident of Greeley and asked if any Council members are taking initiative regarding 

criminal justice reform, starting at the local level. He offered some suggested starting 

points for such reform. 

Page 25

Item No. 10.



2 
 

City Council Proceedings of February 16, 2021 - Draft 

6. Approval of the Agenda 

City Manager Roy Otto noted the COVID-19 update was being added as item 14B. 

The agenda was approved with the addition of that item. 

7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

There were no reports from the Mayor or Council members. 

8. Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Council Member Butler requested that City staff research and bring back to Council 

options for establishing a new sustainability commission, as a commission devoted to 

the goal of long-term sustainability in Greeley as well as promoting economic 

development and environmental health for future generations. He noted such a 

commission could address issues including recycling, sustainable job growth, 

development, and open spaces. 

Consensus was obtained to move forward with this initiative. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion made by Council Member Zasada, seconded by Council Member Butler, to 

approve items 9-11 on the consent agenda as presented. 

The motion carried 6-0. 

Excused: Council Member Payton 

9. Acceptance of the Report of the January 26, 2021, City Council Worksession 

The Council action recommended and approved was to accept the report as 

presented. 

10. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of February 2, 2021 

The Council action recommended and approved was to approve the City Council 

proceedings as presented. 

11. Introduction and first reading of an ordinance amending Chapter 6, Title 14 of the 

Code of the City of Greeley concerning the dedication of raw water for city water service 

The Council action recommended and approved was to introduce the ordinance and 

schedule the public hearing and final reading for March 2, 2021. 

End of Consent Agenda 

Following adoption of the consent agenda, Mayor Gates shared information about the 

process that will be followed at the next Council meeting for both the public hearing 

set by item 11 at this meeting, as well as a resolution to be considered by the Council 

relating to the Terry Ranch Master Purchase Agreement. 

Page 26

Item No. 10.



3 
 

City Council Proceedings of February 16, 2021 - Draft 

 

12. Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

No items were pulled from the consent agenda. 

13. Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance amending Sections 14.08.090 

and 14.08.160 of the Greeley Municipal Code (Concerning Water Use Restrictions and 

Drought Response)  

Sean Chambers, Water and Sewer Director, introduced this item and Jennifer Petrzelka, 

Water Resources Operations Manager, to present as set forth in the PowerPoint in the 

agenda packet. Ruth Quade, Water Conservation Specialist, also assisted in the 

presentation. 

The presenters answered questions from the Council about enforcement and the 

proposed effective date of this action. 

Mayor Gates opened the public hearing at 6:35 p.m. 

No written comments were received. 

Mario Carrasco, Greeley resident, addressed the Council from the virtual audience to 

ask about what sorts of penalties would apply in terms of any code enforcement type 

of action, and also noted that education in the Latino community would be important 

to ensure residents are aware when drought conditions exist. The presenters provided 

additional information about enforcement plans. 

There being no one further to speak, the public hearing was closed at 6:38 p.m. 

Council Member Fitzsimmons moved, seconded by Council Member Butler, to adopt 

the ordinance and publish it by reference to title only. 

The motion carried 6-0. 

Excused: Council Member Payton 

Ordinance No. 08, 2021, was adopted amending Sections 14.08.090 and 14.08.160 of 

the Greeley Municipal Code, concerning Water Use Restrictions and Drought 

Response.  

14. Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance repealing Chapter 18.44 and 

Appendix D in their entirety, adding a new Chapter 18.44, amending portions of Chapter 

18.04.110, 18.42,030, and amending Appendix 18-B of the City of Greeley Municipal 

Code, all regarding Landscaping, Irrigation, Buffers, and Screening Standards 

Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, introduced this item and presented as 

set forth in the PowerPoint in the agenda packet. He noted two members of the 

Advisory Committee that helped staff review and update the old landscape code 

would also be participating in his presentation. Sam Coutts and Courtney Stasiewicz, 

committee members, offered their input on the changes being presented to the 

Council for potential adoption. 

Page 27

Item No. 10.



4 
 

City Council Proceedings of February 16, 2021 - Draft 

Mayor Gates opened the public hearing at 6:52 p.m. 

No written comments were received. 

Dianna French, Greeley resident, addressed the Council from the virtual audience to 

inquire if there would be any incentive for homeowners with larger lots to reduce the 

amount of grass that they have in order to comply with the new land use objectives. 

The speaker also inquired about the ability to work with local Home Owner Associations 

(HOAs) to reduce the amount of grass. 

Director Mueller responded by noting that regulation is one of three legs, with incentives 

and education, on conservation, and turned to Water and Sewer Director Sean 

Chambers for more input on those fronts. Director Chambers shared information about 

existing programs for current ratepayers that can help with conservation efforts. 

There being no one further to speak, the public hearing was closed at 6:56 p.m. 

Council Member Fitzsimmons moved, seconded by Council Member Zasada, to adopt 

the ordinance and publish it by reference to title only. 

The motion carried 6-0. 

Excused: Council Member Payton 

Ordinance No. 09, 2021, was adopted repealing Chapter 18.44 and Appendix D in their 

entirety, adding a new Chapter 18.44, amending portions of Chapter 18.04.110, 

18.42,030, and amending Appendix 18-B of the City of Greeley Municipal Code, all 

regarding Landscaping, Irrigation, Buffers, and Screening Standards. 

14B. COVID-19 Update 

Dan Frazen, Emergency Manager, presented as set forth in his written report provided 

to the Council in advance of the meeting and placed in the public record. 

Emergency Manager Frazen answered questions from the Council about the sorts of 

rapid tests used by the City, and how they are allocated to ensure they do not expire. 

15. Appointment of applicants to the Citizen Transportation Advisory Board, Golf 

Board, Greeley Art Commission, Island Grove Advisory Board, Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board, and Stormwater Board. 

City Clerk Anissa Hollingshead reported the following appointments by the Council: 

 Citizen Transportation Advisory Board: appointed John Compton and directed 

staff to recruit for additional applicants. 

 Golf Board: appointed Bill Grady and Tory Hanson.  

 Greeley Art Commission: appointed Rachel Freemen and Eddie Mirick. 

 Island Grove Advisory Board: re-appointed James Herman.  

 Parks & Recreation Advisory Board: appointed Vicente Vega Ruiz and Louise 

Wilson and re-appointed Clint Torczon.  

 Stormwater Board: re-appointed Jerrod Carlson and Casey Christiansen. 

Page 28

Item No. 10.



5 
 

City Council Proceedings of February 16, 2021 - Draft 

16. Executive Session for Annual Review of the Municipal Court Judge 

Council Member Clark moved, seconded by Council Member Butler, to adjourn the 

meeting and move into an Executive Session immediately after the conclusion of the 

rest of the meeting for the purposes of discussing personnel who report to Council as 

provided for under C.R.S. 24-6-402(4) (f) and Greeley Municipal Code Section 2.04.020 

(6) a. 

The motion carried 6-0. 

Excused: Council Member Payton 

17. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

City Manager Otto noted there were no changes. 

18. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 

resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at 

this meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to 

sign all such resolutions, agreements and ordinances 

Council Member Fitzsimmons moved, seconded by Council Member Butler, to approve 

the above authorizations. 

The motion carried 6-0. 

Excused: Council Member Payton 

19. Adjournment 

There being no further business before the Council, Mayor Gates adjourned the 

meeting to executive session at 7:04 p.m. The executive session began at 7:12 p.m. 

Council Member Clark left the meeting at 7:17 p.m. The executive session adjourned at 

7:50 p.m. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

John D. Gates, Mayor 

 

___________________________________ 

Anissa N. Hollingshead, City Clerk 

Page 29

Item No. 10.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
March 2, 20201 

 

Key Staff Contact: Joel Hemesath, Public Works Director, 970-350-9795 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a resolution authorizing the transfer of $150,000 in Airport Improvement 

Funds from the Greeley-Weld County Airport to Monte Vista Municipal Airport 

Summary: 
 

As with other similar entities, the Greeley-Weld County Airport is entitled to access 

certain funds from the US Department of Transportation, Federal Aviation 

Administration (FAA).  As part of an Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Agreement for 

Transfer of Entitlements, local airports that do not intend to use their full entitlements in 

a given year may release or transfer their annual entitlements to another eligible airport 

that does have a pending project.  Greeley-Weld Airport was a beneficiary of such a 

transfer in 2015 for the design of the Runway 17-35 rehab project.  The City has regularly 

approved previous reciprocal requests of a similar nature.  The City approved a similar 

transfer to Wray Municipal Airport in 2019 and Holyoke Municipal Airport in 2020. 

 

With this request, Greeley-Weld Airport would transfer its entitlement of $150,000 to the 

Mote Vista Municipal Airport.  Such a transfer requires approval from each of the legal 

governing entities of the Greeley-Weld Airport (City of Greeley, Weld County, and the 

Greeley-Weld Airport Authority). 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? N/A 

What is the annual impact? N/A 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  N/A 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? Federal Grant Funding 

Is there grant funding for this item? Yes 

If yes, does this grant require a match? No 

Is this grant onetime or ongoing? One-time 

Additional Comments: N/A 

Legal Issues:   

N/A 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

N/A 

Page 30

Item No. 11.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Economic Health & Development: Foster and maintain public and private investment 

in business development. 

 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the resolution. 

Attachments: 

Resolution 

FAA Agreement 

 Greeley Weld Letter 

 

Page 31

Item No. 11.



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION _________, 2021 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF $150,000 IN AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGAM 
ENTITLEMENT FUNDS FROM THE GREELEY-WELD COUNTY AIRPORT TO MONTE VISTA MUNICIPAL 

AIRPORT 
 
WHEREAS, the Greeley-Weld County Airport (Airport) has used Airport Improvement Program 
(AIP) entitlement funds from the US Department of Transportation, Federal Aviation 
Administration, to complete certain improvements at the Airport; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Airport has been the beneficiary of Federal grant funds that were intended for 
but unable to be used by other local airports as part of the AIP entitlement funding; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Airport has AIP entitlement funding that it will not use in the fiscal year for which 
the funds are available, and consequently, the funds are available to extend to another airport 
that is eligible to receive such funding and has a pending project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Greeley-Weld County Airport Authority deems it advisable to transfer the funding 
from the Airport to the Monte Vista  Municipal Airport and urges the Greeley City Council to also 
authorize the transfer of the funds. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS:  
 

1. The transfer of Airport Improvement Program entitlement funding from the Airport to 
Monte Vista Municipal Airport is hereby approved. 

 
2. The Mayor of Greeley, Colorado is authorized to sign the transfer agreement on behalf 

of the City, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 

3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED ON THIS _________ DAY OF 
_________________________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST       CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
City Clerk Mayor 
 

Page 32

Item No. 11.



Page 33

Item No. 11.



Page 34

Item No. 11.



Page 35

Item No. 11.



Page 36

Item No. 11.



Page 37

Item No. 11.



Page 38

Item No. 11.



Page 39

Item No. 11.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
March 2, 2021 

 

Key Staff Contact: Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, 970-350-9786 

                         Brittany Hathaway, Planner III , 970-350-9823 
 

Title: 
 

Consideration of a resolution authorizing the City to enter into an Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) between the City of Greeley and the Cache Metropolitan District 

Nos. 1-8. 

Summary: 
 

The provided IGA is in the form of the City’s model IGA for metropolitan districts and 

was prepared in accordance with the terms, provisions, and limitations contained in 

the Service Plan.  State law permits the districts to have these additional powers per 

C.R.S. Section 32-1-1004(7) and C.R.S. Section 32-1-1004(8). A metropolitan district is an 

independent unit of local government formed by developers, created to finance, 

construct and maintain public improvements related to a development. 

 

The City of Greeley approved of a Colorado Revised Statutes Title 32 Special District 

Service Plan for the Cache Metropolitan District Nos. 1-8, which would provide public 

facilities financing and some ongoing service functions to the approximately 332-acre 

development, with an additional future inclusion area totaling 714 acres, on 

September 15, 2020 (Council Resolution 45, 2020).  The approved Service Plan makes 

reference to the execution of an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) between the 

City and the Districts. The draft IGA was included in the recorded Service Plan as Exhibit 

H. The Cache Metropolitan District held their organization meeting on January 21, 2021 

and approved the IGA as presented. The request is for the City to approve and 

execute the IGA to finalize the process. 

 

Metropolitan District IGAs are not reviewed by the Planning Commission.  Staff is 

recommending approval. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of 

Greeley? 

No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund? N/A  

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match? N/A 

Is this grant onetime or ongoing? N/A 

Additional Comments:  

Page 40

Item No. 12.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Legal Issues:   

The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the agreement and has no legal issues. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Economic Health & Development: Foster and maintain public and private investment 

in business development. 

 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the Resolution approving the Intergovernmental Agreement 

between the City of Greeley and Cache Metropolitan District No. 1, Cache 

Metropolitan District No. 2, Cache Metropolitan District No. 3, Cache Metropolitan 

District No. 4, Cache Metropolitan District No. 5, Cache Metropolitan District No. 6, 

Cache Metropolitan District No. 7, and Cache Metropolitan District No. 8, regarding the 

Service Plan for the District.  

Attachments: 

Council Resolution  

Intergovernmental Agreement 

 

 

Page 41

Item No. 12.



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION _______, 2021 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

GREELEY AND CACHE METROPOLITIAN DISTRICT NO. 1, CACHE METROPOLITIAN DISTRICT NO. 2, 

CACHE METROPOLITIAN DISTRICT NO. 3, CACHE METROPOLITIAN DISTRICT NO. 4, CACHE 

METROPOLITIAN DISTRICT NO. 5, CACHE METROPOLITIAN DISTRICT NO. 6, CACHE 

METROPOLITIAN DISTRICT NO. 7, CACHE METROPOLITIAN DISTRICT NO.8, REGARDING THE 

SERVICE PLAN FOR THE DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, the Districts were organized to provide those services and to exercise powers as are 

more specifically set forth in the Districts’ Service Plan approved by the City on September 15, 

2020 (Service Plan); and    

 

WHEREAS, the Service Plan makes reference to the execution of an intergovernmental 

agreement between the City and the Districts, as required by the Greeley City Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City and the Districts have determined it to be in the best interests of their 

respective taxpayers, residents and property owners to enter into this Intergovernmental 

Agreement (Agreement); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Cache Metropolitan Districts considered and approved the Agreement, 

attached as Exhibit A, at their organizing meeting on January 21, 2021. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 

1. The Agreement is hereby approved and accepted.  

  

2. Nothing contained herein limits the City’s powers with respect to the Districts, the property 

within the Districts, or the improvements to be constructed by the Districts. 

 

3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage as provided by the 

Greeley City Charter. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED ON THIS _______ DAY OF 

________________________, 2021. 

 

ATTEST       THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      Mayor 

 

Page 42

Item No. 12.



1 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

AND 

CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this 21st day of January, 2021, by

and between the CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a home-rule municipal 

corporation of the State of Colorado (“City”), and CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

NO. 1, CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2, CACHE METROPOLITAN 

DISTRICT NO. 3, CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4, CACHE 

METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 5, CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

NO. 6, CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7, CACHE METROPOLITAN 

DISTRICT NO. 8, quasi-municipal corporations and political subdivisions of the State of 

Colorado (“Districts”).  The City and the District are collectively referred to as the Parties. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Districts were organized to provide those services and to exercise powers 

as are more specifically set forth in the Districts’ Service Plan approved by the City on September 

15, 2020 (“Service Plan”); and 

WHEREAS, the Service Plan makes reference to the execution of an intergovernmental 

agreement between the City and the Districts; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Districts have determined it to be in the best interests of their 

respective taxpayers, residents and property owners to enter into this Intergovernmental 

Agreement (“Agreement”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and mutual agreements herein 

contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

1. Service Plan.  The Districts will not take any action, including, without

limitation, the issuance of any obligations or the imposition of any tax, which would constitute a 

material departure from the terms of the Service Plan and a material modification thereof as set 

forth in §32-1-207(2), C.R.S.  Actions of the Districts which constitute a material departure from 

the terms of the Service Plan and a material modification thereof as set forth in §32-1-207(2), 

C.R.S., shall be a default hereunder, and shall entitle the City to protect and enforce its rights

hereunder by such suit, action, or special proceedings as the City shall deem appropriate, including,

without limitation, an action for specific performance or damages.  It is intended that the remedies

hereof shall be in addition to any remedies the City may have or actions the City may bring under

§32-1-207, C.R.S., or any other applicable statute.  The Districts shall have sixty (60) days to

provide the City with written evidence that no Material Departure occurred, which evidence must

be reasonably satisfactory to the City or to commence to cure such Material Departure.  If the

Districts are diligently pursuing the cure of such Material Departure, the City shall not take any

DocuSign Envelope ID: A1276084-EF51-4906-98CD-CD994AE1B590

Page 43

Item No. 12.



2 

action to enjoin the Districts.  In the event the Districts fail to complete the cure or take any action 

to cure the Material Departure, the City may impose any sanctions allowed by municipal code or 

statute.  Nothing herein is intended to modify or prevent the use of the provisions of §32-1-

207(3)(b), C.R.S, however, the time limits of §32-1-207(3)(b) are expressly waived by the 

Districts. 

2. Notices.  All notices, demands, requests or other communications to be sent

by one party to the other hereunder or required by law shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 

have been validly given or served by delivery of same in person to the address or by courier 

delivery, via United Parcel Service or other nationally recognized overnight air courier service, or 

by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

To the Districts: Cache Metropolitan District Nos. 1-8 

Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. 

4725 S. Monaco Street, Suite 360 

Denver, CO 80237 

Attn: Jennifer L. Ivey 

Phone: (303) 867-3003 

Fax: (303) 292-9101 

To the City: City of Greeley  

1000 10th Street 

Greeley, CO 80631 

Attention:  [___________] 

Phone:  [___________] 

Fax:  [___________] 

All notices, demands, requests or other communications shall be effective upon such 

personal delivery or one (1) business day after being deposited with United Parcel Service or other 

nationally recognized overnight air courier service or three (3) business days after deposit in the 

United States mail.  By giving the other party hereto at least ten (10) days written notice thereof in 

accordance with the provisions hereof, each of the Parties shall have the right from time to time to 

change its address. 

3. Entire Agreement of the Parties.  This written Agreement constitutes the

entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior written or oral agreements, 

negotiations, or representations and understandings of the Parties with respect to the subject matter 

contained herein. 

4. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended, modified, changed, or

terminated in whole or in part only by a written agreement duly authorized and executed by the 

Parties hereto and without amendment to the Service Plan. 

5. Assignment.  No Party hereto shall assign any of its rights nor delegate any

of its duties hereunder to any person or entity without having first obtained the prior written 

consent of all other Parties, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.  Any purported 

assignment or delegation in violation of the provisions hereof shall be void and ineffectual. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A1276084-EF51-4906-98CD-CD994AE1B590

Page 44

Item No. 12.



3 

6. Default/Remedies.  In the event of a breach or default of this Agreement by

any Party, the non-defaulting Parties shall be entitled to exercise all remedies available at law or 

in equity, specifically including suits for specific performance and/or monetary damages.  In the 

event of any proceeding to enforce the terms, covenants or conditions hereof, the prevailing 

Party/Parties in such proceeding shall be entitled to obtain as part of its judgment or award its 

reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

7. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed and

construed under the laws of the State of Colorado. 

8. Inurement.  Each of the terms, covenants and conditions hereof shall be

binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and 

assigns. 

9. Integration.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the

Parties with respect to the matters addressed herein.  All prior discussions and negotiations 

regarding the subject matter hereof are merged herein. 

10. Parties Interested Herein.  Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement

is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person other than the Districts 

and the City any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any covenants, 

terms, conditions, or provisions thereof, and all the covenants, terms, conditions, and provisions 

in this Agreement by and on behalf of the Districts and the City shall be for the sole and exclusive 

benefit of the Districts and the City. 

11. Severability.  If any covenant, term, condition, or provision under this

Agreement shall, for any reason, be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 

unenforceability of such covenant, term, condition, or provision shall not affect any other provision 

contained herein, the intention being that such provisions are severable. 

12. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more 

counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one and 

the same document. 

13. Paragraph Headings.  Paragraph headings are inserted for convenience of

reference only. 

14. Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined

shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Service Plan. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A1276084-EF51-4906-98CD-CD994AE1B590

Page 45

Item No. 12.



4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Districts and the City have caused this Agreement to be 

duly executed to be effective as of the day first above written. 

CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

By: 

Todd Johnson, President

Attest: 

Sarah Woodland, Secretary

CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2 

By: 

Todd Johnson, President

Attest: 

Sarah Woodland, Secretary

CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 

By: 

Todd Johnson, President

Attest: 

Sarah Woodland, Secretary

DocuSign Envelope ID: A1276084-EF51-4906-98CD-CD994AE1B590

Page 46

Item No. 12.



5 

CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4 

By: 

Todd Johnson, President

Attest: 

Sarah Woodland, Secretary

CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 5 

By: 

Todd Johnson, President

Attest: 

Sarah Woodland, Secretary

CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 6 

By: 

Todd Johnson, President

Attest: 

Sarah Woodland, Secretary

DocuSign Envelope ID: A1276084-EF51-4906-98CD-CD994AE1B590

Page 47

Item No. 12.



6 

CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 

By: 

Todd Johnson, President

Attest: 

Sarah Woodland, Secretary

CACHE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 8 

By: 

Todd Johnson, President

Attest: 

Sarah Woodland, Secretary

DocuSign Envelope ID: A1276084-EF51-4906-98CD-CD994AE1B590

Page 48

Item No. 12.



7 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

By: 

Attest: 

By: 

Its: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A1276084-EF51-4906-98CD-CD994AE1B590

Page 49

Item No. 12.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
March 2, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Maria Gonzalez Estevez, 970-350-9714 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a resolution of the City Council of the City of Greeley authorizing City 

staff to enter into a Settlement and Mutual Release Agreement with Ms. Eugenia Lopez 

Flores 

Summary: 
 

Ms. Lopez Flores filed a notice of claim against the City for physical injuries sustained on 

October 17, 2019 in a pedestrian-vehicle accident. The notice claimed damages for 

medical treatment, prescriptions, therapy, severe pain and suffering, loss of enjoyment 

of life, loss of earnings, and loss of property. The City has reached a settlement with the 

Claimant, resolving all of her claims.  The settlement agreement is conditioned upon 

the approval of the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? $250,000 

What is the annual impact? None 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  Liability Fund 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? Allocations charge to each 

City Department 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

A settlement agreement with Ms. Eugenia Lopes Flores will resolve all associated claims 

against the City and the City employee involved in the accident. In addition, it will 

reduce the claims payout as well as avoid further costs associated with litigation. Prior 

to consideration of the resolution approving the settlement agreement, City Council 

may choose to go into executive session in order to receive legal advice and to give 

instructions to City staff. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Safety: Manage the health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense of 

security and well-being for residents, businesses and visitors. 

Page 50

Item No. 13.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Decision Options:  

Initially, City Council may consider whether to go into Executive Session (at Council’s 

option) using the following form of motion: 

 

I move to go into Executive Session to discuss the following matter as provided 

under Colorado Revised Statutes §§24-6-402(4)(e)(1) and 24-6-402(4)(b), and 

Greeley Municipal Code §§ 2.04.020(a)(5) and 2.04.020(a)(2): 

 

For the purpose of giving instructions to City staff and to receive legal advice 

from the City Attorney regarding the circumstances of potential litigation, 

Lopez Flores v City of Greeley. 

 

Upon consideration of the matter in open session, the Council may move to: 

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the Resolution. 

Attachments: 

Resolution 

Settlement and Mutual Release Agreement (Exhibit A to Resolution) 

 

Page 51

Item No. 13.



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION _________, 2021 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CITY STAFF TO ENTER INTO A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH 

EUGENIA LOPEZ FLORES 

 

WHEREAS, Eugenia Lopez Flores served the City of Greeley (City) with a Notice of Claim on 

November 25, 2019 for damages she suffered during the pedestrian-vehicle accident on 

October 18, 2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has reached an agreement resolving all claims with Ms. Lopez Flores, 

contingent upon Council’s approval pursuant to Section 4.18.040(b); and  

 

WHEREAS, settlement of the claim will include the full release of all claims against the City, its 

officers, and employees as required by Section 4.18.040(e); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s Safety and Risk Manager and the City Attorney’s Office believe it is in the 

best interests of the City of Greeley to approve a settlement of this litigation. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 

1. City Council authorizes City staff members to sign a Settlement and Mutual Release 

Agreement with Eugenia Lopez Flores that resolves all claims associated with the 

pedestrian-vehicle accident referenced in her Notice of Claim, a form of which 

Agreement is attached as Exhibit A. 

 

2. The City Attorney is authorized to make changes to the Mutual Release and Settlement 

Agreement following review and approval by City Council as long as such changes do 

not change the substance of the Agreement. 

 

3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED ON THIS _________ DAY OF 

________________________, 2021. 

 

ATTEST        CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

 

____________________________________   ______________________________________ 

City Clerk       Mayor 

Page 52

Item No. 13.



 

 
1 

SETTLEMENT AND  
MUTUAL RELEASE AGREEMENT 

 
THIS SETTLEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE AGREEMENT made this _____ day of 

_______________, 2021, by and between Eugenia Lopez Flores ( “Claimant”) and the City of Greeley, 
Colorado (“City”) (Claimant and City, collectively, “Parties”) is an agreement which exchanges a full and 
mutual release of all claims by Claimant, including claims by her counsel, against the City of Greeley as 
result of any and all injuries and damages arising from the events that occurred from a motor vehicle 
accident on October 18, 2019 (“INCIDENT”), in exchange for the following consideration. 
  
 IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants undertaken and the mutual releases contained in 
this agreement the adequacy of which is acknowledged by and between the Parties, Claimant and the City 
agree as follows: 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2019, Claimant was struck by a vehicle driven by a City employee as 
she jaywalked across 35th Avenue in the City of Greeley, Colorado; and 

 
WHEREAS, Claimant has undergone multiple surgeries and medical treatments to correct a 

fracture in her leg, as well as other injuries; and 
 
WHEREAS, Claimant gave notice within the time allowed under the Colorado Governmental 

Immunity Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties, being fully advised of the potential risks and uncertainties of litigation, 

have agreed to settle this dispute on the terms set forth herein; 
 
WHEREAS, rather than commencing litigation, the Parties agreed to participate in mediation, 

which mediation was held on January 20, 2021, during which they reached an agreement to settle this 
dispute on the terms set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties, being fully advised of the potential risks and uncertainties of litigation, 

hereby memorialize the terms of that agreement; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
 1. Settlement Compensation.  The City agrees to pay Claimant the amount of TWO HUNDRED 
FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($250,000.00) to resolve all claims for damages, attorneys’ fees and 
costs, related to the INCIDENT. Claimants and her counsel will identify the payee of the settlement 
compensation, and the amount will be paid within fifteen (15) business days following the execution of 
this Agreement and receipt by the City of a W-9 form from Claimant.  

 

Page 53

Item No. 13.



 

 
2 

2. Release and Discharge.   
 

A. Release by Claimant: In consideration of the mutual promises between the Parties, 
Claimant, her family, successors, and assigns completely release and forever discharge 
the City, its past, present and future officers, directors, stockholders, attorneys, agents, 
servants, representatives, employers, employees, subsidiaries, affiliates, partners, 
predecessors, successors and assigns, and all other persons, firms or corporation with 
whom the City has been, is now or may hereafter be affiliated, of and from any and all 
past, present or future claims, demands, obligations, actions, causes of action, damages, 
exemplary damages, costs, attorney’s fees, losses of services, expenses and 
compensation of any nature whatsoever, whether based on tort, contract or other theory 
of recovery, which Claimant now has, or which may hereafter accrue or otherwise be 
acquired, arising out of or in any way relating to the INCIDENT. This Release and 
Discharge shall be a fully binding and complete settlement between the Parties, their 
affiliates, assigns, predecessors and successors. 
 

B. Release by City: In consideration of the mutual promises between the Parties, the City, 
its past, present and future officers, directors, stockholders, attorneys, agents, servants, 
representatives, employers, employees, subsidiaries, affiliates, partners, predecessors, 
successors and assigns, and all other persons, firms or corporation with whom the City 
has been, is now or may hereafter be affiliated release Claimant, her family, successors, 
and assigns of and from any and all past, present or future claims, demands, obligations, 
actions, causes of action, damages, exemplary damages, costs, attorney’s fees, losses of 
services, expenses and compensation of any nature whatsoever, whether based on tort, 
contract or other theory of recovery, which the City now has, or which may hereafter 
accrue or otherwise be acquired, arising out of or in any way relating to the INCIDENT. 
This Release and Discharge shall be a fully binding and complete settlement between 
the Parties, their affiliates, assigns, predecessors and successors. 

 
3. General Release.  Claimant hereby acknowledges and agrees that this Settlement and Mutual 

Release Agreement is a general release of any and all claims arising out of or in any way relating to the 
INCIDENT, on behalf of herself, her family members, heirs, and assigns, and they further expressly 
waive and assume the risk of any and all claims for damages which exist as of this date, but of which the 
Parties do not know or suspect to exist, whether through ignorance, oversight, error, negligence, or 
otherwise, and which, if known, would materially affect the Parties’ decision to enter into this Agreement.  
Claimant further agrees that she has accepted the benefit of the payment of the sum specified herein and 
the mutual promises as a complete compromise of matters involving disputed issues of law and fact, and 
the Parties assume the risk that the facts or law may be otherwise than the Parties believe.  It is understood 
and agreed by the Parties that this settlement is a compromise of a disputed claim, and the payment is not 
to be construed as an admission of liability on the part of the City of Greeley. 

 
4. Scope of Agreement.  This Agreement is intended as a release of all claims of the kind or nature 

set forth above as to all persons, firms or corporations, regardless of whether such persons are specifically 
named or designated herein, and regardless of whether such persons, firms or corporations or parties to 
any litigation arising out of this matter, except to the extent any limitations are specifically designated 
herein to the contrary. 

 

Page 54

Item No. 13.



 

 
3 

5. Denial of Liability/Assumption of Risk/Mistake of Fact.  The Parties specifically affirm that the 
above-described compensation would not be paid, except as consideration set forth in exchange for the 
full and complete release of any and all claims, actions or causes of action, known or unknown, as 
described above.  It is understood and agreed to by the Parties that this settlement is a compromise of a 
disputed claim and the payments are not to be construed as an admission of liability on the part of either 
party.  The Parties specifically acknowledge that they have taken into account and are aware of the facts 
and circumstances surrounding the INCIDENT.  The Parties have specifically taken into account that 
potential mistakes of fact may have been made and reached in this particular settlement and affirm that 
part of the consideration above is being given by the Parties to each other for the voluntary assumption of 
that potential risk arising from this possible mistake of fact.  The Parties' assumption of this potential risk 
is final and complete, but this assumption of risk shall not constitute any admission by any party of any 
liability or wrongdoing.  The Parties acknowledge that there may be unknown injuries or damages, of 
which they are not aware, relating to the above-described incident and the surrounding circumstances. It is 
the Parties' intent to release the other from any and all claims which may arise from the above-described 
incident. 

 
6.  Warranty of Capacity to Execute Agreement.  Each Party and their counsel, as to its claims, 

demands, obligations, or causes of action referred to in this Agreement, represents and warrants that no 
other person or entity has or has had any interest to such Party’s or counsel’s claims, demands, 
obligations, or causes of action, except as otherwise set forth herein, and each Party and their counsel has 
the sole right and exclusive authority to execute this Agreement and receive the sums specified herein, 
and that each Party has not sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed or otherwise disposed of any of its 
claims, demands, obligations, or cause of action released or referred to in this Agreement.   

 
7.   Subrogation/Attorney Lien.   Claimant and her counsel agree that all payments to third parties 

who may have subrogation rights and/or Attorney’s Liens to any monies received pursuant to this 
Agreement as a result of any and all injuries and damages arising from the INCIDENT are the sole 
responsibility of Claimant.  Claimant agrees to accept sole responsibility for any lien asserted by any third 
party on any monies received pursuant to this agreement.  Claimant agrees to hold harmless, defend and 
indemnify the City from any third party claims to any portion of the monies received under this 
agreement. 

 
8.  Action to Enforce Terms.  The Parties agree that Presentation of the Agreement shall be a 

complete affirmative defense to any and all such claims and shall be a complete bar to any such action. 
 
9.    Miscellaneous.    
 

A. This instrument constitutes and contains the entire agreement and understanding of the 
Parties and the subject matter herein between the Parties arising from any and all damages 
and injuries arising from the INCIDENT and supersedes and replaces all prior negotiations 
and all agreements proposed or otherwise, whether written or verbal, all concerning the 
subject matter hereof.  No party, nor any agent or attorney therefor, has made any promise, 
representation, or warranty whatsoever, express or implied, not contained herein. 

 
B. Neither the process of negotiating nor the act of executing this agreement is intended to be 

nor shall at any time be deemed, construed, or treated in any respect as an admission of 
liability of the legal validity of any claim asserted by any party hereto or otherwise.   

 

Page 55

Item No. 13.



 

 
4 

C. Nothing in this agreement shall be constructed as a waiver of immunity provided by 
common law or by state statute, including the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, 
Section 24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S.; and further shall not be deemed as an assumption of 
any duty with respect to any non-party to this Agreement. 

 
D. No waiver of any breach of any term or provision of this agreement shall be construed to 

be, nor shall be, a waiver of any other breach of this agreement.  No waiver shall be 
binding unless in writing, signed by the party waiving the breach. 

 
E. If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be invalid or void, for any 

reason, the remaining provisions shall nonetheless remain in full force and effect. 
 

F. Each Party hereto acknowledges that they and/or their respective counsel have participated 
in or had the opportunity to participate in the drafting, preparation and review of this 
agreement and, therefore, no part hereof shall be construed against any party based upon 
the identity of any person who purported to be the drafter of such language.  

 
G. The Parties execute this Agreement without reliance upon any statements or 

representations by the other concerning the nature and extent of any damages, legal 
liability, tax consequences or any other matter except as contained in this Agreement.  
Claimant voluntarily agrees to assume the risk and obligation to pay any and all taxes due, 
if any, as the result of receiving the settlement funds referenced herein. 

 
H. This agreement is contractual in nature and not a mere recital, each party asserting that 

valuable consideration has been received, binding the Parties to their respective rights and 
obligations hereunder. 

 
I. It is understood and agreed that both Parties shall bear their own attorneys’ fees and costs, 

if any, arising from the action of their own counsel in connection with the claim.   
 

J. The Parties agree to cooperate fully and execute any and all supplementary documents, and 
to take all additional actions which may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and 
effect to the terms of this Agreement. 

 
K. Claimant will not make any disparaging statement to any news media and will not post any 

information on social media regarding the City’s or the police department’s actions in 
response to the INCIDENT, other than to acknowledge that a settlement has been reached, 
and the amount thereof. Similarly, the City will not publish any statements that could 
reasonably be interpreted as adversely affecting the personal or professional reputation of 
Claimant. 

 
L. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so 

executed, shall be deemed to be an original and all of which, taken together, shall 
constitute one and the same agreement. 

 
This Agreement shall become effective following its execution by the Parties and upon the release 

of funds, as stated in paragraph 1 above. 
 

Page 56

Item No. 13.



 

 
5 

 
 
CLAIMANT: 
Fth 
EUGENIA LOPEZ FLORES 
 
                                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 
 
 
By:_________________________________  
Roy Otto, City Manager 
 
AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 
John Karner, Director of Finance 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 
Doug Marek, City Attorney 
 
 

 

Page 57

Item No. 13.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021  

 

Title 

Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

                                 

Page 58

Item No. 14.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
March 2, 2021   

 

Key Staff Contact: Sean Chambers, Water & Sewer Director, 970-350-9815 

  

Title:  

Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance amending Chapter 6, Title 

14 of the Code of the City of Greeley concerning the dedication of raw 

water for city water service 

Summary: 
 

The City Greeley requires that developers dedicate certain water rights or make cash 

payments to the city in order to receive City water service (“Raw Water Dedication”).  

The proposed ordinance would amend Chapter 14.06 of the Municipal Code to both 

consolidate and revise Raw Water Dedication policies. 

 

Raw Water Dedication policies are primarily located in the City of Greeley Municipal 

Code, but are also contained in several resolutions of the Greeley Water & Sewer 

Board.  The Water & Sewer Department desires to consolidate all policies into Municipal 

Code to provide developers and staff a single point of reference.    

 

In addition, three revisions to Raw Water Dedication policies are proposed.  The first 

revision is necessitated by the Amended and Restated Master Purchase, Sale and Raw 

Water Credit Administration Agreement, effective as of June 23, 2020, (“Master 

Agreement”) for the purchase of groundwater rights, groundwater storage, and 

appurtenances contemplated by the Terry Ranch Project.  The Master Agreement 

creates Raw Water Credits (“Credits”) redeemable to meet Greeley’s Raw Water 

Dedication requirements.  A code revision is required to allow dedication of Credits 

and is a condition of closing on the Terry Ranch Project.   

 

The two additional revisions codify graduated raw water requirements for landscaping 

associated with commercial and multi-family developments, and clarify that Raw 

Water Dedication for large parcel, single family developments is required for the 

developed portion of the lot.  

 

This ordinance was introduced at the February 16, 2021 Council meeting.   

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? N/A 

What is the annual impact? Development dependent 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  N/A 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? N/A 

Page 59

Item No. 15.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match? N/A 

Is this grant onetime or ongoing? N/A 

Additional Comments: Acceptance of Raw Water Dedication Credits will reduce 

collection of revenue via cash-in-lieu fees paid for Raw Water 

Dedication for new City water service.  Future cash-in-lieu 

revenue depends on the pace of development, future cash-in-

lieu rates, and rate of sale and use of Raw Water Credits.   

Legal Issues:   

The City Attorney’s Office has reviewed the proposed ordinance. Consideration of this 

matter is a legislative process and a pre-closing condition of the Master Agreement 

which includes the following public hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation (if requested) 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

4) Council discussion 

5) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

The Terry Ranch Master Agreement prescribes certain defaults for changes to Raw 

Water Dedication policies that restrict redemption of Credits, specifically disadvantage 

Credits relative to other sources of dedication, or allow acceptance of a new water 

sources for dedication within 10-years following closing of the purchase.  The terms 

ensure Greeley does not purposefully erode the value of the Credits held by Credit-

holders. Consolidating policies in Municipal Code ensures adequate notice of 

potential changes to Raw Water Dedication policies. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only. 

Attachments: 

Ordinance 

Presentation 

 

Page 60

Item No. 15.



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE ________, 2021 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6, TITLE 14 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF 

GREELEY (CONCERNING THE DEDICATION OF WATER RIGHTS FOR CITY WATER SERVICE) 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley, Colorado ("City") is a home rule municipality empowered 

pursuant to Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution to, inter alia, construct, 

purchase, acquire, lease, add to, maintain, conduct, and operate water works and 

everything required therefor, within or without its territorial limits, for the use of the City; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 17-1 of the Greeley City Charter authorizes the Greeley Water and Sewer 

Board (“Board”) to qualify the Water and Sewer functions and operations as an "enterprise" as 

that term is contained in Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, and to provide for 

every function and operation of an enterprise, including but not limited to, bond issuance and 

all other necessary and ordinary functions of the Water and Sewer operations; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 17-4(c) of the Greeley City Charter and Section 14.04.110 of the Greeley 

Municipal Code authorize the Board to acquire, develop, convey, lease and protect the 

water and sewer assets, supplies and facilities needed to fully use the water supplies decreed, 

adjudicated or contracted for the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 14.06 (Water Service) of the Greeley Municipal Code sets forth various 

requirements for initiating water service from the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board has established by resolution certain raw water dedication requirements 

for water service that include, but are not limited to, specifying water rights suitable for 

potable and non-potable use within the City’s water system, the yield of a water right, and 

landscape dedication requirements (“Raw Water Dedication Policy”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City, acting by and through its Water Enterprise, previously entered into a 

Master Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch), dated 

June 23, 2020, with Wingfoot Water Resources, a Colorado limited liability company, for the 

purchase and sale of water rights and related property rights (“Agreement”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agreement obligates the City to issue and accept certain raw water dedication 

credits and to incorporate the Raw Water Dedication Policy into Chapter 14.06 of the Greeley 

Municipal Code; and  

  

WHEREAS, on January 20, 2021, Water and Sewer staff presented a near final version of the 

proposed amendments, attached hereto as Appendix A; and 

 

WHEREAS, Water and Sewer staff recommends that City Council adopt the proposed 

amendments in satisfaction of the Agreement and to consolidate the Raw Water Dedication 

Policy within Chapter 14.06 of the Greeley Municipal Code. 

 

 

Page 61

Item No. 15.



 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 

Section 1. That part (b) of Section 14.06.040 contained in Chapter 14.06, Water Service, be 

amended to read as shown on Appendix A, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 

Section 2. That Section 14.06.050 of the above-entitled ordinance be amended to read as 

shown on Appendix A. 

 

Section 3. That Section 14.06.060 of the above-entitled ordinance be amended to read as 

shown on Appendix A. 

 

Section 4. That Section 14.06.070 of the above-entitled ordinance be amended to read as 

shown on Appendix A. 

 

Section 5. That Section 14.06.080 of the above-entitled ordinance be amended to read as 

shown on Appendix A. 

 

Section 6. That part (c) of Section 14.06.110 of the above-entitled ordinance be amended 

to read as shown on Appendix A. 

 

Section 7. That Section 14.06.130 of the above-entitled ordinance be amended to read as 

shown on Appendix A. 

 

Section 8. That Section 14.06.170 of the above-entitled ordinance be amended to read as 

shown on Appendix A. 

 

Section 9. That Section 14.06.180 of the above-entitled ordinance be amended to read as 

shown on Appendix A. 

 

Section 10. That Section 14.06.190 of the above-entitled ordinance be amended to read as 

shown on Appendix A. 

 

Section 11. That Chapter 14.06 of the Greeley Municipal Code be amended by adding 

thereto a new Section 14.06.240 to read as shown on Appendix A. 

 

Section 12. Except as explicitly modified on Exhibit A, all other provisions of Title 14 of the 

Greeley Municipal Code shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 13. This Ordinance shall take effect on the fifth day following its final publication, as 

provided by Section 3-16 of the Greeley City Charter. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED ON THIS _____ DAY OF ______________________, 

2021.  

 

ATTEST    CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO  

Page 62

Item No. 15.



 

 

__________________________________    __________________________________  

City Clerk    Mayor 

Page 63

Item No. 15.



 

1 

 

APPENDIX A 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6, TITLE 14 

 GREELEY MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

Section 1. Section 14.06.040 contained in Chapter 14.06, Water Service, shall be 

amended to update part (b) to read as follows: 

 

14.06.040 - Taps required; service line extensions prohibited.  

 

(a) Each detached single-family residential building, multi-family residential building, 

and non-residential building shall be served by a minimum of one (1) separate water 

tap and service line. Buildings with mixed residential and non-residential uses shall be 

served by separate water taps for the residential and non-residential components of 

the development.  

 

(b) A separate and additional landscape irrigation tap and service line shall be 

required for all non-residential buildings and multi-family residential buildings with more 

than four (4) units within the City limits, including, without limitation, commercial, 

industrial, and group housing (apartment buildings, condominiums, nursing homes, 

hotels, and motels). The Director of Water and Sewer has the authority to grant a 

variance to the landscape irrigation tap requirement in this Section upon a written 

finding that the subject property can be served by a single tap due to minimal 

landscaping irrigation demand.  

 

(c) It is unlawful for a person or entity to extend a service line to serve any other 

buildings, lots or premises contrary to the requirements of this Section. Notwithstanding 

the foregoing, the Director of Water and Sewer has the discretionary authority to grant 

variances when appropriate for accessory uses on the same property or an adjoining 

lot.  

 

(d) A prohibited service line extension that was installed prior to September 1, 2019, 

may remain in effect so long as it does not create a sanitation, public health or public 

nuisance problem. If, in the discretion of the Director of Water and Sewer, a prohibited 

service line extension creates a sanitation, public health or public nuisance problem, 

the subject property owner(s) shall separate the compound tap at their own expense.  

 

(e) The owner of a property to which a new water service line is installed after the 

associated separation of a compound tap shall be required to pay all fees applicable 

to the initiation of water service to the subject property, including, without limitation, the 

costs required to install another water tap and service line. Plant investment fees that 

would otherwise be due and payable for a new water service line installed pursuant to 

this Section shall be waived upon a written finding of the Director of Water and Sewer 

that there will be no increase in water service to the subject property.  

 

(f) The use of a common service line by abutting property owners shall not alter the 

maintenance responsibility of the users of the common service line. The common 

service shall not constitute a public responsibility and the Director of Water and Sewer 

Page 64

Item No. 15.



 

2 

 

shall not perform maintenance or repair on the separate or combined service lines that 

may serve abutting properties.  

 

Section 2. Section 14.06.050 of the above-entitled ordinance shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

14.06.050 - Water rights dedication; amounts and criteria.  

 

(a) All applicants for water service within the City limits shall (i) dedicate to the City, 

as a prerequisite to and as part of the consideration for City water service to the subject 

property, water rights, if any, that the City, in its sole discretion, can use in its potable 

water supply system or non-potable irrigation system and (ii) if the applicant cannot 

satisfy the raw water dedication requirements through the dedication of water rights, 

shall  furnish to the City a cash-in-lieu fee (or satisfy the same pursuant to Section 

14.06.050(e)) to fulfill all or the remainder of the dedication requirement associated with 

a request for water service as a prerequisite to and as part of the consideration for City 

water service to the subject property. All water rights approved for dedication shall be 

conveyed to the City on or before the date the final plat for the development is 

approved. All cash-in-lieu fees shall be due and payable to the City no later than the 

date on which the building permit is issued. 

(b) The City has determined (i) that the water rights represented by shares of stock in 

the Greeley & Loveland Irrigation Company and the Seven Lakes Reservoir Company, 

and rights in the Loveland and Greeley Reservoir Company (Lake Loveland) can be 

used within its potable water supply system and non-potable irrigation system and (ii) 

that the water rights represented by units of Colorado-Big Thompson Project Water can 

be used within its potable water supply system. The water rights represented by shares 

of stock in the Greeley Irrigation Company can only be used within non-potable 

irrigation systems. Therefore, the City will accept such water rights only in satisfaction of 

the raw water dedication requirements associated with non-potable water service on 

property historically irrigated by the subject water rights. The City shall use the following 

yield values to determine the amount of raw water transferred by an applicant toward 

the satisfaction of any raw water dedication requirement: 

 

Company Yield/Share 

The Greeley & Loveland Irrigation Company 8 acre feet/share 

The Seven Lakes Reservoir Company 8 acre feet/share 

The Loveland And Greeley Reservoir Company (Lake 

Loveland) 

20 acre feet/right 

Colorado-Big Thompson Project Water (C-BT) 0.75 acre feet/unit 

Greeley Irrigation Company (Greeley No. 3 Canal) 10.3 acre feet/share 

Page 65

Item No. 15.



 

3 

 

(b)(c) All dedications of water rights proposed to satisfy the requirements of this Section 

are subject to approval by the Director of Water and Sewer. Water rights approved for 

dedication shall Except for water rights represented by units of Colorado-Big Thompson 

Project Water, the City will not accept the dedication of any water rights under Section 

14.06.050(b) for use within its potable water supply system or non-potable irrigation 

system unless the Director of Water and Sewer determines that the subject water rights 

meet the requisite criteria under Colorado law for conversion of the water to municipal 

use by the City, including, without limitation, sustained historical consumptive use. Such 

water rights shall also meet the criteria for dedication of water rights to the City set forth 

by resolution of the Water and Sewer Board. The transfer of water rights approved for 

dedication to the City shall be made by the applicant for water service no later than 

the date on which a final plat for the development is approved. that: (i) the water rights 

have a history of use on the property being developed; (ii) the property being 

developed was historically and consistently irrigated under the ditch system from which 

such water rights are being dedicated; (iii) the owner and all lienholders of the property 

being developed execute a restrictive covenant in a form acceptable to the City 

requiring the cessation of irrigation on the historically irrigated property with the subject 

water rights except under conditions authorized by the City; and (iv) the applicant 

provides any documents and materials reasonably required by the City to ensure 

consistency with any prior decrees, including but not limited to, decrees adjudicating 

changes of the Greeley & Loveland Irrigation Company, the Seven Lakes Reservoir 

Company, the Loveland and Greeley Reservoir Company (Lake Loveland), and the 

Greeley Irrigation Company water rights.  

(d) An applicant for water service may request that the City accept or permit the 

use of (i) water rights other than the water rights identified in Section 14.06.050(b) or (ii) 

water rights that do not satisfy the requirements of Section 14.06.050(c) in partial 

satisfaction or reduction of the applicant’s raw water dedication requirement. The City, 

in its sole discretion, may accept or permit the use of such water rights based on certain 

terms and conditions set by the Director of Water and Sewer but only in partial 

satisfaction or reduction of the raw water dedication requirement associated with non-

potable water service on property that has been historically irrigated by the subject 

water rights.  

(e) On or before December 31, 2099, an applicant for water service, who is also the 

registered owner of a certificate issued by the department to evidence one (1) or more 

raw water dedication credits, may redeem such credit(s) in whole or in part (but only in 

whole numbers) toward the satisfaction of any cash-in-lieu fee obligation associated 

with the applicant’s request for water service in accordance with Sections 14.06.060, 

14.06.070, 14.06.080, and 14.06.110. One (1) raw water dedication credit represents the 

equivalent of, but not an interest in, one (1) acre-foot of raw water that an applicant 

would otherwise have to satisfy by furnishing to the City a cash-in-lieu fee. 

(c)(f) Applicants for water service to single-family residential and multi-family 

residential developments with four (4) units or less within the City limits shall dedicate 

raw water and, if the applicant cannot dedicate raw water, furnish to the City any 

applicable cash-in-lieu fee in accordance with Section 14.06.060 in the amount of three 

(3) acre-feet per acre, or fraction thereof, of property to which water service will be 

provided. Streets, rights-of-way, driveways, sidewalks, outbuildings, and any other part 

Page 66

Item No. 15.



 

4 

 

of the property that has been or will be developed shall be included in the calculation 

of the total gross acreage of the property, regardless of whether such areas have been 

dedicated to public use. The City may, in its sole discretion, exclude area(s) from the 

total gross acreage, provided that irrigating such area is legally prohibited by plat or 

deed. 

(d)(g) Applicants for water service to non-residential and multi-family residential 

developments with more than four (4) units within the City limits, including, without 

limitation, commercial, industrial, and group housing (apartment buildings, 

condominiums, nursing homes, hotels, and motels), shall dedicate raw water and, if the 

applicant cannot dedicate raw water, furnish to the City the applicable cash-in-lieu fee 

in accordance with Section 14.06.070 in the amount of the water service demand for 

the subject development. The water service demand for non-residential and large 

multi-family residential developments shall be determined by multiplying the total units 

proposed by the applicant by the average unit use, as set forth in the business 

category and water use table below. The water service demand for industrial 

developments and commercial developments of a type not specifically identified in 

the business category and water use table below shall be determined by the Director 

of Water and Sewer on a case-by-case basis, utilizing the projected volume of total 

water use by the subject development.  

Business Category and Water Use  

Category  Units  
Average Unit Use 

(Gallons Per Unit Per Year)  

Auto Service and Repair  SF  12  

Car Wash  Bay  1,350,000  

Childcare  SF  47  

Church  SF  4.5  

Grocery Store  SF  20  

Gas Station Without Car Wash  SF  93  

Hospital  SF  21  

Hotel/Motel  Room  30,300  

Medical Office  SF  25  

Multi-Family Residential (Greater than 4 

units)  
Unit  35,500  

Page 67

Item No. 15.



 

5 

 

Office  SF  14  

Recreation With Pool  SF  122  

Recreation Without Pool  SF  25  

Restaurant (Outdoor Seating Areas 50%)  SF  188  

Retail  SF  16  

School  SF  11  

Warehouse  SF  5  

Industrial and Other Commercial  
Demand determined on case-by-case 

basis  

“SF” = Square Feet of Gross Floor Space Within the Building Area 

 

(h) Applicants for water service to non-residential and multi-family residential 

developments with more than four (4) units within the City limits, including, without 

limitation, commercial, industrial, and group housing (apartment buildings, 

condominiums, nursing homes, hotels, and motels), for which a separate and additional 

landscape irrigation tap and service line is required in accordance with section 

14.06.040, shall also dedicate raw water and, if the applicant cannot dedicate raw 

water, furnish to the City the applicable cash-in-lieu fee in accordance with section 

14.06.070 in the amount of the landscape irrigation demand for the subject 

development. Landscape irrigation demand shall be determined based on (i) the total 

gross acreage of property to which water service will be provided and (ii) the type of 

landscape as set forth in the landscape water use table below. landscape plans with 

more than seventy-five percent (75%) high water use vegetation are assumed to be 

entirely high water use and shall be calculated as such. streets, rights-of-way, 

driveways, sidewalks, outbuildings and any other part of the property that has been or 

will be developed shall be included in the calculation of the total gross acreage of 

property, regardless of whether such areas have been dedicated to public use. the 

City may, in its sole discretion, exclude area(s) from the total gross acreage, provided 

that irrigating such area(s) is legally prohibited by plat or deed. 

 

Landscape Water Use 

Water Use Dedication Requirement 

High water use (>14 gals/sf annual use) Three (3) acre-feet/acre 

Page 68

Item No. 15.



 

6 

 

Medium water use (10-14 gal/sf annual 

use) 
Two and one-third (2.33) acre-feet/acre 

Low water use (<10 gals/sf annual use) One and two-thirds (1.67) acre-feet/acre. 

No irrigation No raw water requirement for landscape 

 

Section 3. Section 14.06.060 of the above-entitled ordinance shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

14.06.060 - Cash in lieu of raw water required; single-family and small multi-family 

residential.  

 

(a) Any applicant for water service to single-family residential and multi-family 

residential developments with four (4) units or less within the City limits that cannot 

satisfy the requirements of Section 14.06.050 in full through the dedication of water rights 

shall furnish to the City a cash-in-lieu fee to fulfill all or the remainder of the dedication 

requirement associated with its request for water service.  

 

(b) The cash-in-lieu fee for single-family residential and multi-family residential 

developments with four (4) units or less shall be set by resolution of the Water and Sewer 

Board and calculated as the cash equivalent of three (3) acre-feet of water per acre, 

or fraction thereof, of property to which water service will be provided, using the fair 

market value of water per acre-foot.  

 

Section 4. Section 14.06.070 of the above-entitled ordinance shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

14.06.070 - Cash in lieu of raw water required; non-residential and large multi-family 

residential.  

 

(a) Any applicant for water service to non-residential and multi-family residential 

developments with more than four (4) units within the City limits, including, without 

limitation, commercial, industrial, and group housing (apartment buildings, 

condominiums, nursing homes, hotels, and motels), that cannot satisfy the requirements 

of Section 14.06.050 in full through the dedication of water rights shall furnish to the City 

a cash-in-lieu fee to fulfill all or the remainder of the dedication requirement associated 

with its request for water service.  

 

(b) The cash-in-lieu fee for non-residential and large multi-family residential 

developments shall be set by resolution of the Water and Sewer Board and calculated 

by multiplying the water service demand for the subject property, as determined in 

accordance with Section 14.06.050(de) above, and the landscape irrigation demand, 

as determined in accordance with section 14.06.050(h), by the fair market value of 

water per acre-foot. 

 

Page 69

Item No. 15.



 

7 

 

Section 5. Section 14.06.080 of the above-entitled ordinance shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

14.06.080 - Exception for large parcel single-family residential.  

 

(a) The water rights dedication and cash-in-lieu fee requirements set forth in Sections 

14.06.050 through 14.06.070 shall not apply to applications for domestic water service to 

a large parcel single-family residential development, defined as a parcelsparcel, of 

landproperty exceeding one (1) acre that contain only one (1) single-family residence. 

Any application for water service to such a parcel through a tap larger than three-

quarters of an inch (¾") in diameter is not considered domestic, and therefore ineligible 

for the exception in this Section.  

 

(b) All applicants for large parcel single-family residential water service pursuant to 

this Section shall dedicate to the City raw water in the amount of three (3) acre-feet per 

three-quarter-inch (¾") domestic tap, as a prerequisite to, and as a part of the 

consideration for, City water service to the subject property.All applicants for water 

service to a large parcel single-family residential development shall dedicate raw water 

and, if the applicant cannot dedicate raw water, furnish to the City the applicable 

cash-in-lieu fee in accordance with section 14.06.080(c) in the amount of the water 

service demand for the subject development. The water service demand for large 

parcel single-family residential developments shall be determined by (i) the total gross 

acreage, or fraction thereof, of property to which water service will be provided and (ii) 

the type of landscape as set forth in the landscape water use table in section 

14.06.050(h) above. Landscape plans with more than seventy-five percent (75%) high 

water use vegetation are assumed to be entirely high water use and shall be 

calculated as such. Streets, rights-of-way, driveways, sidewalks, outbuildings and any 

other part of the property that has been or will be developed shall be included in the 

calculation of the total gross acreage of property, regardless of whether such areas 

have been dedicated to public use. The City may, in its sole discretion, exclude area(s) 

from the total gross acreage, provided that irrigating such area(s) is legally prohibited 

by plat or deed. 

 

(c) Any applicant for large parcel single-family residential water service pursuant to 

this Section that cannot satisfy the requirement of Section 14.06.080(b) in full through 

the dedication of water rights shall furnish to the City a cash-in-lieu fee to fulfill all or the 

remainder of the dedication requirement associated with its request for water service.  

 

(d) The cash-in-lieu fee for large parcel single-family residential water service 

pursuant to this Section shall be set by resolution of the Water and Sewer Board and 

calculated as the cash equivalent of three (3) acre-feet of water per three-quarter-inch 

(¾") domestic tap, the calculated water service demand using the fair market value of 

water per acre-foot. 

 

Section 6. Section 14.06.110 of the above-entitled ordinance shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

Page 70

Item No. 15.



 

8 

 

14.06.110 - Raw water surcharge and supplemental cash in lieu of raw water; exception. 

 

(a) A non-residential or large multi-family residential customer whose metered water 

use in a calendar year exceeds its annual allotment shall be required to pay a raw 

water surcharge on the volume of water used in excess of such allotment, as set forth in 

its service commitment agreement.  

 

(b) Non-residential and large multi-family residential customers who initiated water 

service prior to the enactment of the ordinance codified in this Section and have not 

executed a service commitment agreement shall be entitled to an annual allotment in 

accordance with the raw water dedicated or cash in lieu of raw water it paid upon 

initiation of service. Any such customer whose metered water use in a calendar year 

exceeds its annual allotment shall be required to pay a raw water surcharge on the 

volume of water used in excess of such allotment.  

 

(c) Large parcel single-family residential customers shall be entitled to an annual 

allotment of three (3) acre-feet per three-quarter-inch (¾") domestic tap equal to the 

water service demand calculated in accordance with Section 14.06.080. Any such 

customer whose metered water use in a calendar year exceeds its annual allotment 

shall be required to pay a raw water surcharge on the volume of water used in excess 

of such allotment. 

 

(d) The raw water surcharge applicable to customers pursuant to this Section shall 

be set by resolution of the Water and Sewer Board. Any customer whose metered 

water use in a calendar year exceeds its annual allotment may also furnish to the City a 

separate supplemental cash-in-lieu fee to increase its annual allotment. Any such 

supplemental cash-in-lieu fee shall be calculated using the fair market value of water 

per acre-foot, as set by the Water and Sewer Board and in place when the raw water 

surcharge payment is due and payable, and shall result in a corresponding increase to 

the annual allotment for that customer, whether as determined in accordance with this 

Section or as set forth in its service commitment agreement.  

 

(e) Any non-residential, large multi-family residential, or large parcel single-family 

residential customer who initiates or modifies its water service after the enactment of 

the ordinance codified in this Section and whose metered water use in a calendar year 

exceeds the annual allotment set forth in its service commitment agreement in any two 

(2) consecutive calendar years shall be required to pay a supplemental cash-in-lieu fee 

to increase its annual allotment, as described in Section 14.06.110(d) above.  

 

(f) Any customer whose metered water use during its first full calendar year of water 

service exceeds its annual allotment shall be exempt from the raw water surcharge and 

supplemental cash-in-lieu fee requirements of this Section for that first year only.  

 

Section 7. Section 14.06.130 of the above-entitled ordinance shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

Page 71

Item No. 15.



 

9 

 

14.06.130 - Plant investment fees for water service; inside and outside the City.  

 

(a) All applicants for water service, whether inside or outside the City limits, shall 

furnish to the City a water plant investment fee based on the diameter of the tap as a 

prerequisite to, and as a part of the consideration for, City water service to the subject 

property. The water plant investment fee shall be the minimum amount set by resolution 

of the Water and Sewer Board, unless subsequently increased by resolution of the City 

Council. The diameter of a service line water tap installed for fire suppression purposes 

shall not be considered when calculating plant investment fees due pursuant to this 

Section.  

 

(b) Upon approval of the Director of Water and Sewer, plant investment fees may 

be based on the volume of a customer's annual allotment rather than the diameter of 

itsthe tap. When the Director of Water and Sewer authorizes a plant investment fee 

based on size of servicethe volume of a customer’s annual allotment, then the 

schedule of tap fees set by resolution of the Water and Sewer Board shall be applied in 

accordance with the size of service line. 

 

Section 8. Section 14.06.170 of the above-entitled ordinance shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

14.06.170 - Water service outside the City limits.  

 

The Director of Water and Sewer may consider applications for extraterritorial water 

service from persons or entities located outside the City limits. Any such extraterritorial 

water service authorized shall be contingent upon receipt by the City of written consent 

to the service from the jurisdiction in which the extraterritorial customer is located, if so 

required. Any person or entity granted such extraterritorial water service shall agree to 

transfercomply with this Chapter 14.06 when a request for City water is made, at no cost 

to the City, certain water rights, including Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District 

allotments, irrigation water and carriage rights of such water, to the City before receiving 

water service from the City. 

 

Section 9. Section 14.06.180 of the above-entitled ordinance shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

14.06.180 - Transfer of water rights upon annexation.  

 

Any petitioners requesting annexation of their landproperty to the City shall agree, as a 

prerequisite to receiving approval of such annexation and on behalf of themselves and 

all successors in interest to the landproperty to be annexed, to transfercomply with this 

Chapter 14.06 at no cost to the City, water rights, including Northern Colorado Water 

Conservancy District allotments, irrigation water and carriage rights upon subdividing 

and/or requesting domestic water service to the City, before receiving the approval of 

the annexation. 

 

Page 72

Item No. 15.



 

10 

 

Section 10. Section 14.06.190 of the above-entitled ordinance shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

14.06.190 - Special agreements approved by City Council.  

 

The provisions of this Chapter 14.06 shall not preclude the City Council from approving 

special agreements with applicants for water service regardingmodifying the 

requirements for development within the City, provided that such agreements are 

approved by ordinance. 

 

Section 11. Chapter 14.06 of the Greeley Municipal Code shall be amended by 

adding thereto a new Section 14.06.240 to read as follows: 

 

14.06.240 – Public Hearing; Scheduling.  

 

If the City Council introduces and approves on first reading an ordinance to either (i) 

amend Sections 14.06.050 through 14.06.120, Sections 14.06.170 through 14.06.190, or 

this Section 14.06.240 or (ii) approve a special agreement in accordance with Section 

14.06.190, then the City Council shall schedule the public hearing and final approval to 

take place no sooner than twenty-eight (28) days thereafter. The City Council shall 

provide notice of the public hearing and final approval by publishing the proposed 

ordinance along with the day, hour, and place as required by the City Charter. 

 

Page 73

Item No. 15.



11

March 2, 2021

Proposed Municipal Code Revisions: 
Raw Water Dedication

Page 74

Item No. 15.



22

Background

• Greeley’s raw water dedication policies prescribe:

• The amount of water required for specific development types

• The sources of water or other means to meet dedication requirements

• Process and procedures for dedication

• Proposed ordinance would both revise certain raw water 

dedication policies and consolidate all policies to single source

Page 75

Item No. 15.



33

Proposed Revisions

1. Allow acceptance of Terry Ranch raw water 

Credits 

• Condition of Closing per Terry Ranch Master 

Agreement

2. Graduated requirements for landscaping in 

commercial and multi-family developments

3. Revised requirements for large parcel, single-

family developments
Page 76

Item No. 15.



44

Graduated Landscaping 
Requirements

• Reduce raw water requirements for 

water-wise landscaping

• Commercial and multi-family 

developments only 

• Included in commercial and multifamily 

raw water policy updates in 2019, but 

ultimately not incorporated in Code
Page 77

Item No. 15.



55

Large-Parcel Lots

• Clarify that dedication 

required only for developed 

portion of lot

• Applies to single-family lots 

over 1 acre

• Aligns with 2019 policy 

updates
Page 78

Item No. 15.



66

Proposed Consolidation

• Raw water dedication policies are 

currently contained in:

• Chapter 14.06 of the City of Greeley 

Municipal Code

• Several Greeley Water and Sewer Board 

resolutions

• City Council adopted Master Plans and 

staff policies
Page 79

Item No. 15.



77

Proposed Consolidation

• Best practice – single source of 

policies for developers and staff

• Consolidation ensures adequate 

public notice of changes to raw 

water dedication policy per Terry 

Ranch Master Agreement

Page 80

Item No. 15.



88

Proposed Consolidation

• Policies to be consolidated:

• Municipal Code Chapter 14 Title 6 

• Board Resolution 14, 2014 – Dedication Requirements

• Board Resolution 2, 2016 – Gross Area Calculation

• Board Resolution 1, 2019 – Water Right Yields

• Board Resolution _, 2020 – Water Right Yields and Requirements

• Section 10.5 of Terry Ranch Master Agreement – Raw Water Credits

• Water & Sewer Board rescinded resolutions 

contingent on passage of Council ordinance Page 81

Item No. 15.



9

Questions?

Page 82

Item No. 15.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
March 2, 2021   

 

Key Staff Contact: Sean Chambers, Water & Sewer Director, 970-350-9815 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a resolution of the City Council of Greeley, Colorado authorizing the 

closing of the transaction contemplated by the Amended and Restated Master 

Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch) and 

taking related actions 

Summary: 
 

 In June 2020, the City, acting by and through its Water Enterprise, and pursuant to 

Greeley Water & Sewer Board approval, entered into a Master Purchase, Sale and 

Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement with Wingfoot Water Resources, LLC 

(“Wingfoot”) for acquisition of groundwater rights, underground water storage, and 

appurtenance underlying the Terry Grazing Association Ranch in northwest Weld 

County (the “Terry Ranch Project”).  On February 17, 2021, the Greeley Water & Sewer 

Board authorized the City, acting by an through its Water Enterprise, to enter into that 

Amended and Restated Master Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration 

Agreement, effective as of June 23, 2020(“Master Agreement”).  

  

 Over the past eight months, staff and professional consultants have undertaken 

extensive scientific, engineering and geochemical inspection activities.  This robust 

diligence investigation was designed to collect and analyze appropriate data to 

confirm the water resources offered in this purchase are safe and reliable. The work 

was also intended to identify any fatal flaws that might exist with the technical aspects 

of the project.  A description of those studies and their results are available on the Terry 

Ranch website: greeleygov.com/terryranch.  In summary, the City’s diligence efforts 

found the Terry Ranch Project can provide a safe and reliable water supply that will 

meet Greeley’s future water supply needs to support a growing population.  No fatal 

flaws were identified during diligence activities.  The investigative study findings and 

staff recommendations have been reviewed and confirmed by independent, third-

party experts.   

  

 On February 17, 2021, the Greeley Water & Sewer Board considered inspection findings 

and approved a resolution authorizing closing on the Terry Ranch Project and 

recommending the same to the City of Greeley City Council.  A video of the February 

17, 2021 Water & Sewer Board meeting in which Board deliberated the Terry Ranch 

Project may be found at: 

 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NrSnDGbdwMk&t=8m57s. 

 

Pursuant to the Master Agreement, at closing, the City must create and issue raw water 

dedication “Credits” to Wingfoot redeemable to meet Greeley’s raw water dedication 

requirements.  Rather than paying cash up front for the Terry Ranch Project, Greeley 

Page 83

Item No. 16.

https://greeleygov.com/services/ws/trp
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NrSnDGbdwMk&t=8m57s


City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

will issue Credits that are redeemable with Greeley.   Wingfoot may sell the Credits to 

home-builders or developers who will then deliver the Credits to Greeley to meet the 

City’s existing raw water requirements for growth and development.  The Credits will 

only be redeemable within Greeley’s water service area, and Greeley will continue to 

accept all other current forms of raw water dedication and its cash-in-lieu of raw water 

program. In effect, Greeley will forego a portion of future cash-in-lieu payments, but in 

return will receive immediate access to the Terry Ranch water and storage. In addition, 

Wingfoot is required to fund up to $125,000,000 for construction of the infrastructure 

necessary to develop and deliver the groundwater to Greeley.   

 

Key to the Master Agreement are provisions to ensure Greeley does not devalue 

Credits that are Greeley’s payment for the assets.  The Master Agreement contains 

specific language that precludes Greeley from devaluing Credits through certain 

changes to its Raw Water Dedication Policy (Chapter 14.06 of the Greeley Municipal 

Code).  Under the agreement, Wingfoot is entitled to certain remedies if the City 

changes its Raw Water Dedication Policy in such a way that disallows, limits, or 

disadvantages Credit redemption, or that allows acceptance of new sources of water 

for dedication within 10-years of closing.  Greeley will continue to be able to change 

its policies to adjust water dedication requirements in response to changing water 

consumption habits, so long as policy changes are based on usage data, economics, 

and best practices. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? N/A 

What is the annual impact? Development dependent 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  N/A 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? N/A 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match? N/A 

Is this grant onetime or ongoing? N/A 

Additional Comments: Acceptance of Raw Water Dedication Credits will reduce 

collection of revenue via cash-in-lieu fees paid for Raw Water 

Dedication for new City water service.  Future cash-in-lieu 

revenue depends on the pace of development, future cash-in-

lieu rates, and rate of sale and use of Raw Water Credits.   

Legal Issues:   

As a pre-closing condition of the Master Agreement, City Council must authorize 

closing on the Terry Ranch Project. The City Attorney’s Office has reviewed the 

proposed resolution. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

 The following are the principle findings of due diligence investigations of the Terry 

Ranch Project: 1) The quality of Terry Ranch groundwater is high.  It contains low-levels 

of naturally occurring uranium, but the uranium can be removed below detection with 

ion exchange treatment. Proven and common treatment systems exist to remove 

uranium from drinking water.  2) No adverse water quality reactions are expected by 

Page 84

Item No. 16.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

blending Terry Ranch water with Greeley’s existing treated water sources. Introduction 

of Terry Ranch water into Greeley’s existing water supply system is not anticipated to 

cause corrosion to or release of metals from distribution system piping.  3) The risk of 

contamination to Terry Ranch groundwater is at present very low.  The Terry Ranch 

aquifer is well-isolated and well protected from surface contamination.  4) The Terry 

Ranch Project requires pumping and treatment, the operational costs of which will be 

higher than Greeley’s existing water treatment and conveyance systems.  However, 

the higher operational costs are vastly outweighed by lower capital costs. The 

expected cost to Greeley of building the Terry Ranch Project infrastructure for the 2065 

planning horizon is $256 million in escalated, 2020 dollars.  5) Compared to the 

hundreds of alternatives evaluated to date, Terry Ranch is the least costly and most 

certain.   

 

City staff has sought to proactively engage the Greeley community and seek public 

input on the Terry Ranch Project over the last eight months.  The project has been 

presented at three City Council meetings, monthly Water & Sewer Board meetings, 

two Community Open Houses (December 2, 2020 and February 10, 2021), and to over 

20 community organizations, service clubs, and Boards and Commissions of the City of 

Greeley, Colorado.  Staff have built a robust project web page with comprehensive 

library of information including technical reports from the diligence activities.  The city 

has shared information on the project, the open houses and its web page through a 

variety of social media channels; all in a concerted effort to make sure the public had 

an opportunity to learn about the project, have their questions asked, and make their 

opinions known.  

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the resolution as presented. 

Attachments: 

Resolution 

Amended and Restated Master Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration 

Agreement 

Water & Sewer Board Resolution of Feb. 17, 2021 

Presentation 

Written Citizen Comments received 

 

Page 85

Item No. 16.



 

 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION _______, 2021 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CLOSING OF THE TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED BY THE 

AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT ADMINISTRATION 

AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) AND TAKING RELATED ACTIONS 

  

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley (City) is a Colorado home rule municipality empowered pursuant 

to Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution to, inter alia, construct, purchase, 

acquire, lease, add to, maintain, conduct, and operate water works and everything required 

therefor, within or without its territorial limits, for use of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 17-4 of the City Charter and Section 14.04.110 of the Greeley Municipal Code 

authorize and require the Water and Sewer Board (“Board”) to, inter alia, acquire water and 

sewer assets for the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City, acting by and through its Water Enterprise (the Enterprise), and pursuant to 

Board approval on February 17, 2021, entered into the Amended and Restated Master 

Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch), effective June 

23, 2020, (the Master Agreement) with Wingfoot Water Resources, a Delaware limited liability 

company (previously known as Wingfoot Water Resources, a Colorado limited liability 

company) (Wingfoot) for the purchase and sale of water rights and related property rights (the 

Asset), the consideration for which includes the City’s creation and acceptance of 12,121 raw 

water dedication credits (Credits), evidenced by certificates issued by the Water and Sewer 

Department (Certificate) (collectively, the Transaction); and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Master Agreement, Water and Sewer staff and the City’s 

consultants have conducted and reported the findings of various surveys, water quality and soils 

tests, environmental and ecological assessments, test borings, engineering tests, cost 

evaluations, environmental audits and tests, feasibility studies and other inspections, 

investigations and analyses deemed necessary or appropriate in connection with the City’s 

intended acquisition, use and development of the Asset (Inspection); and  

 

WHEREAS, the City retained independent, third-party consultants with expertise in 

hydrogeology, geochemistry, water quality, and water treatment to review the finding of the 

various investigations and analyses; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 6.1.A of the Master Agreement requires, as a condition of closing, that both 

the Board and City Council authorize closing on the Asset after the Inspection has been 

completed; and  

 

WHEREAS, on February 17, 2021, the Board considered the results of the Inspection and was 

satisfied with the condition of the Asset; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board found that closing on the Asset would be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Greeley and authorized the same; and  

 

Page 86

Item No. 16.



 

 

WHEREAS, City Council has considered the results of the Inspection and is also satisfied with the 

condition of the Asset; and 

 

WHEREAS, City Council finds that closing on the Asset is in the best interest of the citizens of 

Greeley; and  

 

WHEREAS, after closing on the Asset a certain number of Certificates will be held in escrow and 

subject to the put and call rights under in Article 11 of the Master Agreement.  If either the put 

or call right is exercised in accordance with the terms specified therein, the City will be required 

to purchase from Wingfoot or its assignees the associated number of Credits exercised.  Under 

the Master Agreement, the City payments for such Credits (the Put/Call Obligations) are 

required to be “Subordinate Obligations” within the meaning of Ordinance No. 41, 2018 (the 

Water Revenue Bond Ordinance); and   

 

WHEREAS, capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 

Master Agreement or the Water Revenue Bond Ordinance; and  

 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 18-8-308, Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.), all known potential 

conflicting interests, if any, with respect to the Transaction have been disclosed to the City 

Council and to the Colorado Secretary of State.  No member of the City Council has a personal 

or private interest, as such terms are used in Section 24-18-109, C.R.S., in the Transaction or any 

other subject matter of this resolution. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS. 

 

1. City Council hereby authorizes the closing of the Transaction. 

 

2. City Council hereby authorizes the creation of 12,121 Credits and the issuance and 

acceptance of Certificates evidencing the same pursuant to the terms of the Master 

Agreement and the terms and conditions attached to the Certificates. 

 

3. All actions previously taken by the City, City Council, the Board, and officers, agents 

and employees of the City directed toward the undertaking of the Transaction are 

hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

 

4. The officers, employees and agents of the City are hereby authorized and directed 

to take all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this 

Resolution, including, without limitation, the preparation and delivery of the 

documents required for closing pursuant to the Master Agreement. 

 

5. The Council hereby confirms that it has irrevocably pledged the Net Revenues, on an 

expressly subordinate basis, for the payment of the Put/Call Obligations.  Such pledge 

shall create an irrevocable subordinate lien on the Net Revenues, expressly 

subordinate to the lien of Parity Obligations currently Outstanding or issued in the 

future as provided in Section 25 of the Water Revenue Bond Ordinance.  This pledge 

shall be valid and binding and the Net Revenues shall immediately be subject to the 

lien of this pledge without any physical delivery thereof or any filing or further act.  Net 

Page 87

Item No. 16.



 

 

Revenues, to the extent available on a subordinate basis, in amounts sufficient to 

make all of the payments pursuant to the Put/Call Obligations are hereby pledged 

for said purposes, and said amounts for each year shall be included in the annual 

budget and appropriation ordinances or measures to be adopted or passed by the 

Council in each year respectively until the Put/Call Obligations are paid in full.   

 

6. The Council hereby confirms the provisions of the Master Agreement contemplating 

that such pledge shall also secure Subordinate Revenue Notes, if any are issued 

pursuant to Section 17.18 of the Master Agreement.  

 

7. The Put/Call Obligations shall be special, limited obligations of the City, acting by and 

through the Enterprise, payable and collectible solely out of Net Revenues as 

provided herein and in the Master Agreement.   

 

8. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED ON THIS _______ DAY OF 

___________________________, 2021. 

 

ATTEST  CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO  

 

 

______________________________________   ______________________________________ 

City Clerk        Mayor 

Page 88

Item No. 16.



AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER 
CREDIT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

by and between 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES, a Delaware Limited Liability Company 

and 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, acting by and through its WATER 
ENTERPRISE 

Dated:  Q, 22.-,  2021 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 
Page 89

Item No. 16.



Table of Contents 
Page 

ARTICLE 1 
DEFINITIONS 

1.1 

2.1 
2.2 
2.3 

Definitions  

ARTICLE 2 
CREATION OF TENANCY IN COMMON; SALE OF PROPERTY 

Water Rights; Creation of Tenancy in Common  
Improvements  
State Land Board Lease and Related Agreements  

2 

9 
9 
9 

 

ARTICLE 3 

  

PURCHASE PRICE 

 

3.1 Purchase Price  9 
3.2 Deposit and Release of Deposit  9 
3.3 Interest  10 
3.4 Payment at Closing  10 

 

ARTICLE 4 

  

TITLE 

 

4.1 Title Documents  10 
4.2 Condition of Title  11 
4.3 Conveyance of the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest  11 
4.4 Disapproved Title Matters  12 
4.5 Representations and Warranties  12 
4.6 Title Insurance  13 

 

ARTICLE 5 

  

INSPECTION PERIOD 

 

5.1 Inspection  13 
5.2 Cost; Cooperation  13 
5.3 Conditions of Access  13 
5.4 Defects Identified in Inspection  14 
5.5 Environmental Covenants During Inspection Period  15 
5.6 Liability During Inspection Period  15 

 

ARTICLE 6 

  

CLOSING CONTINGENCIES; CLOSING 

 

6.1 Closing Contingencies  16 
6.2 Closing  16 
6.3 Transactions at Closing  16 

ARTICLE 7 
PRORATIONS; CLOSING COSTS 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 

Page 90

Item No. 16.



Table of Contents 
(continued) 

 

Page 

7.1 Prorations  18 
7.2 Closing Costs  18 

 

ARTICLE 8 

  

TENANCY IN COMMON 

 

8.1 Tenancy in Common Agreement  18 
8.2 Conveyance of the Tenancy in Common Interest  19 
8.3 Termination of the Tenancy in Common; Ten-year limit  19 
8.4 Use  20 

 

ARTICLE 9 

  

CONSTRUCTION ESCROW 

 

9.1 Construction Escrow  20 
9.2 Failure to Fund  22 

 

ARTICLE 10 

  

RAW WATER CREDITS 

 

10.1 Raw Water Credit  23 
10.2 Transfer of the Tenancy in Common Interest  23 
10.3 Administration; Tracking  24 
10.4 Audit of Registry and Sales  25 
10.5 Material Change to Market Value  26 

 

ARTICLE 11 

  

PUT AND CALL OPTIONS 

 

11.1 Options  30 
11.2 Escrowed Credits  31 
11.3 Released Credits  31 
11.4 Contents of Notices; Acknowledgement  31 
11.5 Release; Payment; Cancellation of Raw Water Credits  31 
11.6 Annual Limit  31 
11.7 Assignment; Transfer  32 

 

ARTICLE 12 

  

REVENUE SHARING 

 

12.1 Revenue Sharing  32 

 

ARTICLE 13 

  

CONDITIONS OF CLOSING 

 

13.1 Wingfoot' s Conditions  33 
13.2 Greeley's Conditions  34 
13.3 Failure of Condition  34 

ii 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 91

Item No. 16.



Table of Contents 
(continued) 

Page 

13.4 Pre-Closing Liquidated Damages 35 

ARTICLE 14 
POST-CLOSING DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

14.1 Events of Default 35 
14.2 Remedies, Generally 36 
14.3 Special Provisions for Liquidated Damages 38 

ARTICLE 15 

CONDEMNATION 39 

ARTICLE 16 

NOTICES 39 

ARTICLE 17 
MISCELLANEOUS 

17.1 Termination 41 
17.2 No Third Party Beneficiary; No Waiver of Governmental Immunity 41 
17.3 Limits on Governmental Immunity 41 
17.4 Mediation 41 
17.5 Time 42 
17.6 Attorneys' Fees 42 
17.7 No Waiver 42 
17.8 Entire Agreement 42 
17.9 Survival 42 
17.10 Successors 43 
17.11 Assignment 43 
17.12 Relationship of the Parties 43 
17.13 Governing Law and Construction 43 
17.14 Joint Effort 43 
17.15 Review by Counsel 43 
17.16 Calendar Days 44 
17.17 Counterparts; Electronic Signatures 44 
17.18 Limited Source of Payments by Greeley. 44 
17.19 Interest 45 
17.20 Fiscal Contingency 45 
17.21 Integrated Agreement 46 
17.22 Approval 46 
17.23 Requirement of Good Faith and Reasonable Judgment 46 
17.24 Venue 46 
17.25 Severability 46 
17.26 Amendments and Waivers 46 

111 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 92

Item No. 16.



Table of Contents 
(continued) 

Page 

17.27 No Warranty of Tax Treatment 47 
17.28 Cooperation 47 

iv 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 93

Item No. 16.



Table of Contents 
(continued) 

Page 

EXHIBIT "A-1" 

EXHIBIT "A-2" 

EXHIBIT "B" 

EXHIBIT "C" 

EXHIBIT "D" 

EXHIBIT "E" 

EXHIBIT "F" 

EXHIBIT "G" 

EXHIBIT "H" 

EXHIBIT "I" 

EXHIBIT "J" 

EXHIBIT "K" 

EXHIBIT "L" 

EXHIBIT "M" 

EXHIBIT "N" 
EXHIBIT "0" 

EXHIBIT "P" 

EXHIBIT "Q" 

EXHIBIT "R" 
EXHIBIT "S"  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF TERRY RANCH 
DEPICTION OF TERRY RANCH 

ACCESS EASEMENT 

STATE LAND BOARD LEASE 

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF STATE LAND BOARD 
LEASE 

CERTIFICATE FORM 

CONSTRUCTION ESCROW AGREEMENT 

WINGFOOT ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS AND 
WARRANTIES 

GREELEY ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS AND 
WARRANTIES 

EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS 

WINGFOOT GENERAL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

GREELEY GENERAL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT 
SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF ACCESS EASEMENT 
GENERAL ASSIGNMENT AND BILL OF SALE 

FORM OF WINGFOOT'S AMENDED AND RESTATED LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT 
TENANCY IN COMMON CONVEYANCE DOCUMENTS 

CREDIT ESCROW AGREEMENT 
REVISIONS TO 2020 AGREEMENT 

DE -7630891000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 94

Item No. 16.



AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT  
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT  

(Terry Ranch) 

This AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER 
CREDIT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (Terry Ranch) (this "Agreement") dated 
Feb. 22.,  2021, but effective for all purposes as of June, 23, 2020 ("Effective Date"), by and 

between WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, 
previously known as WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a Colorado limited liability 
company ("Wingfoot"), and THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule 
municipal corporation, ("City"), acting by and through its WATER ENTERPRISE ("Greeley") 
(Wingfoot and Greeley each being a "Party" and collectively the "Parties"). Wingfoot and Greeley 
entered into the Master Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Agreement on June 23, 2020 (the 
"2020 Agreement"), and the Parties now wish to amend and restate the 2020 Agreement on the 
terms and conditions set forth herein. Revisions made to the 2020 Agreement and reflected in this 
Agreement, made and agreed to by and between the Parties, are provided in Exhibit S. 

RECITALS 

A. Wingfoot is the owner of nontributary deep aquifer ground water rights, underlying 
real property in Weld County, Colorado, legally described on Exhibit A-1 and depicted on Exhibit 
A-2 ("Terry Ranch"), adjudicated and quantified on June 14, 2018, in Case Number 11CW275, 
District Court, Water Division 1, Colorado, and further described in that certain Special Warranty 
Deed, dated September 30, 2016, recorded October 17, 2016 in the real property records of the 
Clerk and Recorder for Weld County, Colorado (the "Records"), at Reception Number 4245308, 
and that certain Special Warranty Deed, dated April 30, 2018, recorded May 1, 2018 in the Records 
at Reception Number 4394951 (collectively, the "Water Rights"). Terry Ranch is currently owned 
by the Terry Ranch Grazing Association ("Association"). 

B. Wingfoot, as the owner of the Water Rights, holds an easement to access Terry 
Ranch for purposes more fully described therein, attached as Exhibit B ("Access Easement"). 

C. Wingfoot has also entered into a Ground Water Production Lease with the State of 
Colorado, State Board of Land Commissioners, dated January 18, 2018, for purposes more fully 
described therein, attached as Exhibit C ("State Land Board Lease"). 

D. The Parties desire to set forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which Wingfoot 
shall create a tenancy in common with Greeley for the Water Rights (defined below), and pursuant 
to which Wingfoot agrees to sell, and Greeley agrees to buy, an initial interest in the Water Rights 
together with a full assignment of Wingfoot's rights to the Ancillary Assets (defined below) and 
the State Land Board Lease, and all other appurtenant property rights and water rights associated 
therewith, as more fully provided hereinafter. 

E. The objective of this Agreement is to provide the terms upon which Wingfoot will 
convey the Assets (defined below) to Greeley and make certain cash contributions for the 
construction of Project Infrastructure (defined below) and the terms upon which Greeley will make 
payment to Wingfoot for such conveyance. 

\\DE - 763089/006001 - 3588387 v7 
Page 95

Item No. 16.



NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, Wingfoot and Greeley hereby agree 
as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

ARTICLE 1  
DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Definitions. In addition to words and terms elsewhere defined in this Agreement, 
including the recitals hereto, the following words and terms used in this Agreement shall have the 
following meanings: 

"Access Easement" has the meaning given in Recital B. 

"Ancillary Assets" means (i) the Access Easement, (ii) any and all other rights, privileges 
and appurtenances owned by Wingfoot, without warranty of any type, which relate to or are used 
in connection with the Water Rights and the assets listed in this paragraph, to the extent assignable, 
and (iii) all of Wingfoot's right, title and interest, without warranty of any type, in and to all 
governmental permits, licenses, certificates and authorizations relating to the construction, 
development or use of the assets described in this paragraph. 

"Assets" means (i) the Water Rights, (ii) the Ancillary Assets, (iii) the Existing 
Improvements, and (iv) the State Land Board Lease and related agreements, if any. 

"Assignment and Assumption" means the assignment and assumption of the State Land 
Board Lease, substantially in the form attached as Exhibit D. 

"Association" has the meaning given in Recital A. 

"Base Amount" has the meaning given in Section 10.5.B. 

"Call Notice" has the meaning given in Section 11.1.A. 

"Call Option" has the meaning given in Section 11.1.A. 

"Cash Contribution" has the meaning given in Section 9.1. 

"Certificate" means and refers to that document evidencing the ownership of a Raw Water 
Credit(s) (defined below), in the form attached as Exhibit E. 

"City" has the meaning given in the preamble of this Agreement. 

"Closing" has the meaning given in Section 6.2. 

"Claim" has the meaning given in Section 5.6. 

"Closing Amount" has the meaning given in Section 3.4. 

2 
Page 96

Item No. 16.



"Closing Date" has the meaning given in Section 6.2. 

"Closing Documents" has the meaning given in Section 6.3.B. 

"Confidential" has the meaning given in Section 10.4. 

"Construction Escrow Agreement" has the meaning given in Section 9.1. 

"Construction Escrow" has the meaning given in Section 9.1. 

"Contribution Deadline" has the meaning given in Section 9.1.A. 

"Conveyance Documents" has the meaning given in Section 4.3. 

"Credit Escrow" has the meaning given in Section 11.2. 

"Credit Escrow Agent" has the meaning given in Section 11.2. 

"Credit Escrow Transferee" has the meaning given in Section 11.7. 

"Credit Event" means any of the following events or conditions: If a Party or any successor 
shall institute voluntary bankruptcy proceedings, or shall consent to the institution of a bankruptcy 
proceeding against it, or shall file a petition or answer or consent seeking reorganization or 
arrangement under the federal Bankruptcy Code or any similar applicable federal or state law, or 
shall consent to the filing of any such petition, or shall consent to the appointment of a receiver or 
trustee in bankruptcy or insolvency of such Party or any successor or any of their properties, or 
shall make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or shall admit in writing its inability to 
pay its debts generally as they become due. 

"Cure" has the meaning given in Section 4.4. 

"Defect" has the meaning given in Section 5.4. 

"Defect Notice" has the meaning given in Section 5.4. 

"Department" has the meaning given in Section 10.3.A. 

"Deposit" has the meaning given in Section 3.2. 

"Deposit Obligations" has the meaning given in Section 9.1.B. 

"Disapproved Matters" has the meaning given in Section 4.4. 

"Effective Date" has the meaning given in the preamble to this Agreement. 

"Enterprise" means the Water Enterprise. 

"Environment" means any water or water vapor, land surface or subsurface, soil, air, fish, 
wildlife, biota and all other natural resources. 

3 
Page 97

Item No. 16.



"Environmental Condition" means the presence in the Environment of any Hazardous 
Substances at a level which exceeds any applicable standard or threshold under any Environmental 
Law or otherwise requires investigation or remediation (including investigation, study, health or 
risk assessment, monitoring, removal, treatment or transport) under any applicable Environmental 
Laws. 

"Environmental Laws" means all federal, state and local environmental, land use, zoning, 
health, chemical use, safety and sanitation laws, statutes, ordinances, permits, and codes relating 
to the protection of the Environment or governing the use, storage, treatment, generation, 
transportation, processing, handling, production, discharge or disposal of any Hazardous 
Substance and the rules, regulations, policies, guidelines, interpretations, decisions, orders, permit 
conditions, and directives of federal, state and local government agencies and authorities with 
respect thereto. 

"Environmental Permits" means all permits, licenses, approvals, authorizations, consents 
or registrations, if any, required by any Environmental Laws in connection with the ownership, 
use or operation of the Assets for the storage, treatment, generation, transportation, processing, 
handling, production, discharge or disposal of any Hazardous Substance or the sale, transfer or 
conveyance of the Assets at Closing. 

"Environmental Representations and Warranties" means the representations and 
warranties contained in Exhibits G and H. 

"Escrowed Credits" has the meaning given in Section 11.2. 

"Event of Default" means each of the events described in Section 14.1 

"Exercise Event" has the meaning given in Section 11.5. 

"Exercise Price" has the meaning given in Section 11.4. 

"Exercised Credits" has the meaning given in Section 11.4. 

"Existing Improvements" means any structures, facilities or other improvements existing 
on Terry Ranch on the Effective Date as shown on Exhibit I. 

"General Representations and Warranties" means the representations and warranties 
contained in Exhibits J and K. 

"Governmental Approval Period" has the meaning given in Section 6.1.A. 

"Governing Bodies" has the meaning given in Section 6.1.A. 

"Greeley" has the meaning given in the preamble of this Agreement, which refers to the 
City acting by and through its Water Enterprise. 

"Greeley Environmental Covenants" has the meaning given in Section 5.5. 

4 

Page 98

Item No. 16.



"Greeley 's Intended Use" means the use to which Greeley intends to put the Assets, which 
consists of the delivery of water to and from the nontributary aquifer underlying Terry Ranch, 
including the use of the Assets and Project Infrastructure as part of an aquifer supply, recharge and 
storage facility to be operated as a part of Greeley's Water System. 

"Greeley 's TIC Interest" means Greeley's ownership interest, as it may exist from time to 
time, in the Water Rights held in the tenancy in common created pursuant to Section 2.1 and the 
Tenancy in Common Agreement. 

"Hazardous Substance" means, without limitation, any flammable materials, explosives, 
radon, radioactive materials (including naturally occurring radioactive materials ("NORM") that 
have been concentrated by industrial or commercial processes), asbestos, urea formaldehyde foam 
insulation, oil, polychlorinated biphenyls, methane, hazardous materials, hazardous wastes, 
hazardous or toxic substances or pollutants or contaminants, including those defined in or pursuant 
to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. Section 9601, et seq.) ("CERCLA"), the Clean Water Act, as amended (33 
U.S.C. Section 1251 to 1387), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as amended (49 U.S.C. 
Section 1801, et seq.), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
Section 6901, et seq.), the Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. Section 2601, et 
seq.), any other applicable Environmental Law and regulations adopted thereunder, or any State 
or local law or ordinance relating to environmental risk or exposure. 

"Improvements" means the Existing Improvements and any structures, facilities or other 
improvements installed by Greeley during the Inspection Period. 

"Initial Contribution" has the meaning given in Section 9.1.A. 

"Initial Credits" has the meaning given in Section 3.1. 

"Initial Tenancy in Common Interest" means and refers to 10/12,121th interest in the Water 
Rights to be conveyed by Wingfoot to Greeley at Closing. 

"Inspection Costs" has the meaning given in Section 5.2. 

"Inspection Indemnification" has the meaning given in Section 5.6. 

"Inspection Period" has the meaning given in Section 5.1. 

"Inspections" has the meaning given in Section 5.1. 

"Interim Period" has the meaning given in Section 8.2.A. 

"Liquidated Damages" has the meaning given in Section 14.3. 

"Losses" has the meaning given in Section 5.6. 

"Material Adverse Effect" means any event, occurrence, fact, condition or change that is, 
or could reasonably be expected to become, individually or in the aggregate, materially adverse to 

5 

Page 99

Item No. 16.



(a) the ability of Wingfoot or Greeley to perform the actions contemplated in this Agreement in a 
timely manner or (b) the identified property right, title or interest or right title or interest created 
by and through this Agreement, viewed together as a whole with all rights or interests of the 
applicable party arising from the transactions expressly set forth in this Agreement (including, but 
not limited to, with respect to (i) Greeley, the Assets transferred to Greeley hereunder, and (ii) 
Wingfoot, the market value of a Raw Water Credit or Wingfoot's right or ability to receive the 
cash price under Article 11 or exercise of the Put Option or Call Option hereunder). 

"Material Part" has the meaning given in Article 15. 

"Net Cash Proceeds" means, as the case may be, (a) the cash received by Wingfoot from 
(i) any Third Party Transfer as provided under Section 8.2.A (Conveyances), except for any cash 
proceeds from a Prohibited Transfer Fee; (ii) the sale of Raw Water Credits to third-parties as 
provided under Section 10.1.E (Limitations; Sales); or (iii) the portion of Net Revenue received 
by Wingfoot pursuant to Section 12.1.A (Revenue Sharing). "Net Cash Proceeds" excludes any 
portion of the Power Revenue Interest received by Wingfoot and amounts paid to Wingfoot 
pursuant to Section 12.1.B (Revenue Sharing; Outside Customers). 

"Net Revenue" has the meaning given in Section 12.1. 

"New Source" has the meaning given in Section 10.5.A(2). 

"Notice to Construct" has the meaning given in Section 9.1.A. 

"Objection" has the meaning given in Section 10.5.A(2). 

"Off-Record Documents" has the meaning given in Section 4.1.B. 

"Option Period" has the meaning given in Section 11.1.A. 

"Option Price" means an amount equal to thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) per Raw Water 
Credit in 2020 or thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) escalated at a rate of three percent (3%) 
compounded annually every year thereafter. 

"Parties" and "Party" have the meanings given in the preamble of this Agreement. 

"Payment Default" has the meaning given in Section 9.2.B. 

"Payment Obligation" means the payment obligations of Greeley described in Section 
17.18. 

"Permissible Policy Change" has the meaning given in Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(i). 

"Permitted Exceptions" has the meaning given in Section 4.2. 

"Power Revenue Interest" has the meaning given in Section 12.1.A. 

"Power Transaction" has the meaning given in Section 12.1.A. 

6 

Page 100

Item No. 16.



"Power Valuation" has the meaning given in Section 12.1.A. 

"Prevailing Party" has the meaning given under Section 17.6. 

"Prohibited Transfer Fee" has the meaning given in Section 8.2.A. 

"Project" means and refers to the acquisition and construction of groundwater wells, 
treatment and storage facilities, transmission system, and other improvements made or necessary 
to deliver water to and from the nontributary aquifer underlying Terry Ranch to and from Greeley's 
Water System, including without limitation the use of the Assets and Project Infrastructure as part 
of an aquifer supply, recharge and storage facility to be operated by the Enterprise as a part of the 
Water System. 

"Project Infrastructure" means and refers to all easements, rights of way, wells, pipeline, 
treatment facilities and other improvements, facilities and real or personal property deemed 
necessary, in the exclusive judgment of Greeley, to effectuate the Project or otherwise used in or 
relating to the Project. 

"Project Infrastructure Costs" has the meaning given in Section 9.1. 

"Property" means and refers to the (i) Water Rights and (ii) Ancillary Assets. 

"Prorated Contribution" has the meaning given in Section 9.1.C. 

"Prorated Escrow" has the meaning given in Section 9.1.C. 

"Purchase Price" has the meaning given in Section 3.1. 

"Put Notice" has the meaning given in Section 11.1.B. 

"Put Option" has the meaning given in Section 11.1.B. 

"Raw Water Credit" has the meaning given in Section 10.1.A. and for the avoidance of 
doubt is intended to relate to a Raw Water Dedication Credit as contemplated by Chapter 14.06 of 
the Greeley Municipal Code as in effect on the Closing Date. 

"Raw Water Dedication Policy" means and refers to the policy with respect to dedications 
of raw water or cash payments in lieu thereof established by Chapter 14.06 of the Greeley 
Municipal Code as in effect on the Closing Date. 

"Records" has the meaning giving in Recital A. 

"Registry" has the meaning given in Section 10.3.A. 

"Registry Default" has the meaning given in Section 10.4.B. 

"Registered Owner" has the meaning given in Section 10.3.A. 

"Registered Owner Committee" has the meaning given in Section 10.5.A.2. 

7 

Page 101

Item No. 16.



"Release" has the meaning given to that term in CERCLA and the regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

"Released Credits" has the meaning given in Section 11.3. 

"Semester Total" has the meaning given in Section 10.2. 

"Service Area" means and refers to that area within which Greeley provides water services 
as of Closing, inclusive of any expansions of the Service Area subsequent to the Closing, as well 
as areas served by other water districts that accept Raw Water Credits in the future in accordance 
with the Raw Water Dedication Policy or any similar policy recognized by another water district. 

"Specified Difference" has the meaning given in Section 10.5.B. 

"State Land Board Lease" has the meaning given in Recital C. 

"Surplus Revenues" has the meaning given in Section 17.18.B. 

"Surrendered Certificate" has the meaning given in Section 11.5. 

"Tenancy in Common Agreement" means and refers to that agreement substantially in the 
form attached as Exhibit L. 

"Tenancy in Common Conveyance Documents" has the meaning given in Section 8.2.B. 

"Terry Ranch" has the meaning given in Recital A. 

"Third Party Transfer" has the meaning given in Section 8.2.A. 

"Title Commitment" has the meaning given in Section 4.1.A. 

"Title Company" has the meaning given in Section 3.2. 

"Title Documents" has the meaning given in Section 4.1.A. 

"Title Policy" has the meaning given in Section 4.6. 

"Water Enterprise" or "Enterprise" means the water utility enterprise created pursuant to 
Greeley Code Section 14.04.050 to act as operator of the Water system. 

"Water Revenue Bond Ordinance" has the meaning given in Section 17.18.B. 

"Water Rights Documents" has the meaning given in Section 4.1.C. 

"Water System" means Greeley's municipal water system, operated by the Water 
Enterprise. 

"Water Rights" means those water rights defined under Recital A. 

8 

Page 102

Item No. 16.



"Wingfoot's TIC Interest" means the balance of Wingfoot's tenancy in common interest in 
the Water Rights. 

ARTICLE 2  
CREATION OF TENANCY IN COMMON; SALE OF PROPERTY 

2.1 Water Rights; Creation of Tenancy in Common. Wingfoot agrees to create a 
tenancy in common for the Water Rights with Greeley and agrees to sell, and Greeley agrees to 
buy, the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest at Closing (defined below), subject to the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Special Warranty Deed substantially in the form 
attached as Exhibit M. 

2.2 Improvements. In addition to the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest, Wingfoot 
agrees to sell and assign, and Greeley agrees to buy and assume, Wingfoot's rights, title and 
interest, as well as its obligations, in and to the Existing Improvements at Closing, subject to the 
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Assignment and Bill of Sale substantially 
in the form attached as Exhibit 0 (the "General Assignment and Bill of Sale"). 

2.3 State Land Board Lease and Related Agreements. Wingfoot agrees to sell and 
assign, and Greeley agrees to buy and assume, Wingfoot's rights, title and interest, as well as its 
obligations, in, to and under the State Land Board Lease and any related agreements, if any, on or 
before ninety (90) days after Closing, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement and the Assignment and Assumption of State Land Board Lease substantially in the 
form attached as Exhibit D. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Parties acknowledge and 
agree that the form of the Assignment and Assumption attached hereto may be subject to revision 
as may be necessary or convenient to obtain consent to such assignment from the State of 
Colorado, State Board of Land Commissioners. 

2.4 Ancillary Assets. In addition to the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest, Wingfoot 
agrees to sell and assign, and Greeley agrees to purchase and assume, all of Wingfoot's rights, title 
and interest, as well as its obligations, in, to and under the Ancillary Assets, if any, at Closing, 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Assignment and Assumption 
of Access Easement substantially in the form attached as Exhibit N. 

ARTICLE 3  
PURCHASE PRICE 

3.1 Purchase Price. The total purchase price for the Initial Tenancy in Common 
Interest, Existing Improvements, Assignment and Assumption of the Access Easement, and the 
Assignment and Assumption of the State Land Board Lease shall be an amount equal to the sum 
of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) ("Purchase Price") plus ten (10) Raw Water Credits 
("Initial Credits"). 

3.2 Deposit and Release of Deposit. Within fifteen (15) days following the Effective 
Date of this Agreement, Greeley shall cause the amount of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) 
("Deposit") to be deposited with Land Title Guaranty (Heidi Crue: title officer; Donna Manci: 
closing agent), ("Title Company"). The Deposit shall be held by the Title Company in a federally 
insured account to be credited toward the Purchase Price. The Deposit shall be fully refundable to 

9 

Page 103

Item No. 16.



Greeley pursuant to and in accordance with Section 4.4 (Disapproved Title Matters), Section 5.4 
(Defects Identified in Inspection), Section 6.1 (Closing Contingencies), Section 13.3 (Failure of 
Condition), Section 14.2.A(3) (Remedies, Generally) and Article 15 (Condemnation) below. 
Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, the Deposit shall be non-refundable to Greeley and 
shall be transferred to Wingfoot at Closing or upon termination of this Agreement. 

3.3 Interest. Unless otherwise agreed to by Wingfoot and Greeley, the Title Company 
is not required to hold the Deposit in an interest-bearing account. 

3.4 Payment at Closing. The Purchase Price (i) minus the Deposit; (ii) plus any other 
amounts required to be paid by Greeley at Closing (including Greeley's share of the closing costs); 
and (iii) plus or minus any prorations or credits pursuant to this Agreement ("Closing Amount"), 
shall be paid at Closing by Greeley to Wingfoot by cashier's check, wire transfer or other 
immediately available funds. 

ARTICLE 4 
TITLE  

4.1 Title Documents. Within fifteen (15) days after the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, Wingfoot shall provide the following to Greeley for review: 

A. A commitment for an owner's policy of title insurance ("Title 
Commitment"), issued by the Title Company covering the Access Easement and indicating the 
Title Company's willingness to issue to Greeley at Closing the Title Policy (defined below) in the 
amount of the Purchase Price, with such Title Commitment setting forth the status of title to the 
Access Easement and showing the Title Company's search results for all recorded liens, claims, 
encumbrances, easements, rights of way, encroachments, reservations, restrictions and other 
matters of record affecting title to the Access Easement (the copies of all recorded documents in 
the Title Commitment are collectively referred to as "Title Documents"). 

B. To the extent the same are in Wingfoot's possession and are not delivered 
in connection with the Title Documents provided by the Title Company, true and correct copies of 
the following documents: (i) well permits, together with any applications, approvals, engineering 
drawings or other documents related thereto; (ii) other agreements in Wingfoot's possession 
having a Material Adverse Effect upon the Assets; (iii) any surveys related to the Ancillary Assets, 
Existing Improvements, and the State Land Board Lease; (iv) any investigation or inspection 
documents or reports related to the Ancillary Assets, Existing Improvements, and the State Land 
Board Lease; (v) feasibility and design studies or engineering reports related to the Ancillary 
Assets, Existing Improvements, and the State Land Board Lease; and (vi) any as-built surveys of 
infrastructure or other improvements located on Terry Ranch (collectively referred to as "Off-
Record Documents"). 

C. To the extent the same are in Wingfoot's possession and are not delivered 
in connection with the Title Documents provided by the Title Company, true and correct copies of 
the following documents: any documents, recorded or unrecorded, that relate to the title, planning 
and development, use, quantity, quality and condition of the Water Rights, including, but not 
limited to, any deeds or other conveyances, assignments, permits, adjudications or court orders, 

10 

Page 104

Item No. 16.



any testing reports, and any records maintained by Wingfoot pertaining to the Water Rights; and 
copies of all contracts or other agreements relating to the development, operation, maintenance or 
leasing of the Water Rights (collectively referred to as "Water Rights Documents"). 

4.2 Condition of Title. At Closing, Wingfoot shall convey, and Greeley agrees to 
accept, title to the Access Easement free and clear of all liens and encumbrances subject only to 
each of the following (collectively, the "Permitted Exceptions"): 

A. All covenants, easements, agreements, restrictions and other recorded 
documents set forth in the Title Commitment, EXCEPT FOR: (i) mortgages, mechanic's liens and 
other financial encumbrances created by Wingfoot, which shall be discharged or, in the event of a 
mechanic's lien, otherwise bonded off through a surety bond at Closing by Wingfoot and (ii) 
easements, rights of way, servitudes, licenses, permits, orders, authorizations, franchises, and 
related instruments or rights relating to the ownership, operation, or use of the Access Easement, 
that (x) Greeley has disapproved of as Disapproved Matters which Wingfoot has committed to 
Cure or (y) individually or in the aggregate have a Material Adverse Effect on the Access Easement 
as of the Closing Date, EXCEPT to the extent any of the foregoing were created by Greeley or 
arose out of Greeley's access to or use of the Assets. 

B. General property taxes, if applicable, for the year of the Closing, provided 
that such taxes shall be prorated to the Closing Date, as provided in Section 7.1 (Prorations) below. 

C. Approvals, consents, notices, filings, permits, or other actions by or from 
a governmental authority or third party in connection with the contemplated sale or conveyance of 
the Assets under this Agreement prior to Closing, EXCEPT FOR such approvals, consents, notices, 
filings, permits, or other actions by or from a governmental authority or third party, individually 
or in the aggregate, that as of the Closing Date have a Material Adverse Effect on the Assets. 

D. Rights reserved to or vested in any governmental authority to control or 
regulate any of the Assets in any manner, and all obligations and duties under all applicable laws 
or under any franchise, grant, license, or permit issued by any such governmental authority. 

E. Any Disapproved Matter that becomes a Permitted Exception in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

F. Any other matter created by or through Greeley or arising out of Greeley's 
ownership of or access to or use of the Assets including, without limitation, any matter arising out 
of any inspections conducted by or for the benefit of Greeley during the Inspection Period. 

4.3 Conveyance of the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest and Access Easement. At 
Closing, Wingfoot shall convey the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest to Greeley by executing 
the form attached hereto as Exhibit M (Special Warranty Deed) and the Access Easement by 
executing the form attached hereto as Exhibit N (Assignment and Assumption of Access 
Easement), free and clear of all liens except for the Permitted Exceptions ("Conveyance 
Documents"). 

4.4 Disapproved Title Matters. Except for Permitted Exceptions, Greeley may 
disapprove of title exceptions ("Disapproved Matter") by delivering written notice of objection to 

11 
Page 105

Item No. 16.



Wingfoot either (i) prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period or (ii) if such notice is delivered 
after the expiration of the Inspection Period but prior to the Closing Date, then within ten days (10) 
days after receiving notice from Wingfoot or the Title Company. Any Disapproved Matter not 
objected to in writing prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period or within such ten (10) day 
period shall be deemed an additional Permitted Exception. Wingfoot may elect in its sole 
discretion (but shall not be obligated) to cure any Disapproved Matter by (i) removing or causing 
the Disapproved Matter to be removed or resolved at Wingfoot's expense; (ii) by obtaining title 
insurance insuring against the effect of the Disapproved Matter; or (iii) by any other means 
acceptable to Greeley (each a "Cure"). Within ten (10) days after Wingfoot's receipt of Greeley's 
notice of a Disapproved Matter, Wingfoot shall notify Greeley in writing whether Wingfoot elects 
to Cure such Disapproved Matter and, if it elects to do so, the method or means of the Cure. If 
Wingfoot elects, but fails or is unable to Cure a Disapproved Matter prior to Closing, then Greeley 
may, on the date of Closing, deliver written notice to Wingfoot that it elects to terminate this 
Agreement. If Wingfoot elects not to Cure one (1) or more Disapproved Matter, then within (i) 
ten (10) days after Greeley's receipt of Wingfoot's written notice regarding such election, or (ii) 
on the Closing Date, whichever occurs first in time, Greeley may elect to terminate this Agreement 
by delivering written notice to Wingfoot that it elects to terminate this Agreement. Upon 
termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section 4.4, the Deposit shall be returned to Greeley 
and neither Wingfoot nor Greeley shall have any further obligation or liability to the other, 
provided, however, that where a Disapproved Matter would have a Material Adverse Effect on the 
Assets, and where such Disapproved Matter is not Cured, then the Deposit shall be returned to 
Greeley and Greeley shall be entitled to reimbursements from Wingfoot and Wingfoot shall be 
obligated to pay Greeley for all reasonable, third party out-of-pocket costs incurred by Greeley 
subsequent to the Effective Date but prior to the termination, including but not limited to the 
Inspection Costs. If Greeley does not elect to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 
4.4, then Greeley shall be deemed to have accepted any outstanding Disapproved Matters and the 
Parties shall proceed to Closing, subject to the provisions of this Agreement, without any 
abatement of the Purchase Price or other remedy. 

4.5 Representations and Warranties. On the Effective Date of this Agreement, 
Wingfoot shall execute and deliver to Greeley the certifications relating to the General 
Representations and Warranties and the Environmental Representations and Warranties 
substantially in the forms attached as Exhibits J and G. At the Closing, Wingfoot shall certify that 
the representations made in the General Representations and Warranties, and the Environmental 
Representations and Warranties, are true and correct in all material respects as of the Closing Date 
(defined below) substantially in the forms attached as Exhibits J and G. On the Effective Date of 
this Agreement, Greeley shall execute and deliver to Wingfoot the certifications relating to the 
General Representations and Warranties substantially in the form attached as Exhibit K. At 
Closing, Greeley shall (i) execute and deliver to Wingfoot the certifications relating to the 
Environmental Representations and Warranties and (ii) certify that the representations made in the 
General Representations and Warranties are true and correct in all material respects as of the 
Closing Date, substantially in the forms attached as Exhibits K and H. 

4.6 Title Insurance. The Title Company shall commit at Closing that, as soon as 
reasonably practical after the Closing, the Title Company shall issue to Greeley an ALTA owner's 
form of title insurance policy, insuring that title to the Access Easement is vested in Greeley, 
subject to the Permitted Exceptions ("Title Policy"). 

12 

Page 106

Item No. 16.



ARTICLE 5  
INSPECTION PERIOD  

5.1 Inspection. During a period of time commencing upon the Effective Date and 
continuing until 4:00 p.m., Mountain Time, on the two hundred and tenth (210th) day thereafter 
("Inspection Period"), subject to Section 5.3 (Conditions of Access), Greeley and its authorized 
agents, representatives and consultants shall be entitled to enter upon the areas covered by the 
Access Easement and State Land Board Lease at reasonable times, and upon reasonable prior 
written notice to Wingfoot, to inspect the Assets for the purpose of (i) conducting surveys, water 
quality and soils tests, environmental and ecological assessments, test borings, engineering tests, 
cost evaluations, environmental audits and tests, feasibility studies and any other inspections, 
investigations or analyses Greeley deems necessary or appropriate in connection with its intended 
acquisition, use and development of the Assets or (ii) performing the following specific activities: 
drilling and logging of not more than three additional test borings; collection and analysis of water 
quality samples from test borings and existing wells; depth-specific flow, Gamma ray 
spectroscopic surveys, and water quality sampling of existing wells; downhole video survey of 
existing wells; topographical surveys; environmental assessments and field surveys of 
environmental resources; and bench-scale testing of geochemical interactions between aquifer core 
samples and recharge water, which activities Greeley has deemed necessary to conduct in 
connection with its intended acquisition, use and development of the Assets (collectively referred 
to as the "Inspections"). 

5.2 Cost; Cooperation. Greeley shall bear all costs of the Inspections ("Inspection 
Costs"). During the Inspection Period, Wingfoot agrees to reasonably cooperate with any 
Inspection activity, which includes but is not limited to attempts to obtain access and any necessary 
approval to conduct Inspections on Terry Ranch. In the event that Closing does not occur solely 
due to failure of a Closing condition in Section 13.3 (Failure of Condition) within Wingfoot's 
control, then Wingfoot shall reimburse Greeley for its reasonable third party out-of-pocket 
Inspection Costs. 

5.3 Conditions of Access. Greeley and its authorized agents, representatives and 
consultants shall (i) comply with the terms and conditions of the Access Easement and State Land 
Board Lease including but not limited to all required notices and submissions, as applicable, and 
all applicable laws, rules and regulations; (ii) not interfere with the operation and maintenance of 
the Terry Ranch by the Association or interfere with the business or operations of Wingfoot; (iii) 
comply with all Title Documents, all Permitted Exceptions, and any reasonable requirements 
imposed upon it by Wingfoot or the Association in connection with such Inspections; (iv) not 
injure or otherwise cause bodily harm to Wingfoot or the Association, their agents, contractors or 
employees; (v) promptly pay when due the costs of all Inspections; (vi) not permit any liens or 
encumbrances to attach to Terry Ranch or any of the Assets; (vii) restore Terry Ranch and/or the 
Assets to substantially the same condition in which such property was found before any such 
Inspections were undertaken, and at the election of Wingfoot (in its sole discretion), Greeley shall 
be required to remove (at Greeley's sole cost and expense) any improvement that was installed, 
and/or reclaim any surface disturbance, including close or seal disturbances related to below grade 
improvements consistent with standard industry practice, in accordance with this Section 5.3 (or 
with the written approval of Wingfoot) by Greeley during the Inspection Period in accordance with 
the terms of the Access Easement or the State Land Board Lease, as the case may be, or with 

13 

Page 107

Item No. 16.



Wingfoot's approval, except that Greeley shall not be required to remove any below grade 
improvements associated with test bores; and (viii) give reasonable advance notice (but no less 
than 24 hours) to Wingfoot and the Association prior to any entry onto Terry Ranch, the Access 
Easement, the State Land Board Lease or the Water Rights and shall permit Wingfoot to have 
representatives present during all Inspections. Upon the request of Wingfoot, Greeley shall supply 
Wingfoot with copies of the results of the Inspections. 

5.4 Defects Identified in Inspection. If Greeley identifies any defect with the Assets 
during its Inspection, as determined by Greeley in its good faith judgment, including but not 
limited to the following items: 

A. Matters disclosed in (i) the Title Documents, (ii) the Off-Record 
Documents, or (iii) the Water Rights Documents; 

B. Greeley's ability to verify or obtain real property including but not limited 
to adequate sites for facilities or appropriate easements for ingress, egress and utilities from third 
parties as deemed reasonably necessary or appropriate by Greeley for Greeley's Intended Use of 
the Assets; 

C. The suitability of the Assets for Greeley's Intended Use, including 
without limitation the capital and/or operational cost of effectuating such Intended Use; 

D. Greeley's ability to obtain state, local or federal approval and/or permits 
to construct improvements for the operation of an aquifer storage facility; 

(each a "Defect"). Greeley may terminate this Agreement if (i) Greeley provides written 
notice of any such Defect to Wingfoot on or before the expiration of the Inspection Period (a 
"Defect Notice") and (ii) Wingfoot fails to cure, to Greeley's reasonable satisfaction, any Defect 
identified in the Defect Notice within thirty (30) days of receipt of the applicable Defect Notice. 
If Greeley terminates this Agreement pursuant to this Section 5.4, the Deposit shall be returned to 
Greeley and neither Party shall have any further obligation to the other except as specifically 
provided in this Agreement. 

If Greeley does not provide written notice of termination to Wingfoot prior to the expiration 
of the Inspection Period, then Greeley's right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 
5.4 shall terminate and Greeley shall be deemed to have accepted any outstanding Defects. Except 
as provided under Section 4.4 (Disapproved Title Matters), Section 6.1 (Closing Contingencies), 
Section 13.3 (Failure of Condition), Section 14.2.A(3) (Remedies, Generally) and Article 15 
(Condemnation), upon the expiration of Greeley's right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to 
this Section 5.4 the Deposit shall be non-refundable to Greeley. 

5.5 Environmental Covenants During Inspection Period. During the Inspection Period, 
Greeley covenants as follows (collectively, "Greeley Environmental Covenants"): 

A. Greeley and its agents shall not bring onto the Assets, or permit to be 
brought onto the Assets, any Hazardous Substances, except to the extent that the Hazardous 
Substances are of a type and quantity the presence, use, storage, release and handling of which 
does not constitute a violation of any applicable Environmental Law and is customarily employed 

14 

Page 108

Item No. 16.



in the ordinary course of, or associated with, drilling for water and water treatment and 
construction of infrastructure relating to the same in the State of Colorado (and, to the extent that 
Greeley or its agents or representatives bring Hazardous Substances onto the Assets, they shall act 
prudently and use reasonable care relating thereto). 

B. Greeley's use of and activities on or with respect to the Assets shall 
comply with all applicable laws, including Environmental Laws and Environmental Permits. 

5.6 Liability During Inspection Period. Subject to Section 5.2(Cost; Cooperation), with 
respect to Greeley's Inspections during the Inspection Period only, Wingfoot shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless Greeley from and against any loss, cost, liability, or expense claimed 
by a third party arising out of or related to an Environmental Condition (collectively, "Losses"), 
but only to the extent that any such Environmental Condition was discovered by Greeley during 
the Inspection Period and disclosed to Wingfoot during the Inspection Period, and was not caused 
or contributed to by any negligent activity of Greeley or its agents (such indemnification obligation 
referred to as the "Inspection Indemnification"). If a Claim for Losses is asserted against Greeley 
by a third party prior to Closing, which may give rise to Inspection Indemnification, Greeley must 
promptly notify Wingfoot in writing and give Wingfoot the right to defend (or in Wingfoot's 
discretion, assist in the defense of) such Claim with counsel approved by Greeley, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. The Inspection Indemnification shall 
terminate at Closing, and no claims for Inspection Indemnification can be made by Greeley after 
Closing; provided, however, that Wingfoot must still satisfy or resolve any outstanding Claim as 
may exist at Closing except to the extent caused by the negligence of Greeley or its agents. As 
used in this Section 5.6, "Claim" means any written demands, causes of action, or claims of any 
kind and character made by a third party. This Section 5.6 does not apply to any actions taken 
with respect to the Assets that does not occur during the Inspection Period and does not apply to 
any Claim to the extent caused by or arising from Greeley or its agents. 

ARTICLE 6  
CLOSING CONTINGENCIES; CLOSING 

6.1 Closing Contingencies. 

A. Governing Body Approval. Greeley's obligation to purchase the Assets 
is subject to the City Council's and the Greeley Water and Sewer Board's (the "Governing 
Bodies") authorization to close on the purchase and the appropriation of the Purchase Price at 
Closing for the acquisition of the Assets within sixty (60) days following the expiration of the 
Inspection Period ("Governmental Approval Period"). In the event that the Governing Bodies 
have not authorized the closing and appropriated the Purchase Price at Closing for the acquisition 
of the Assets prior to the expiration of the Governmental Approval Period (unless extended by 
written agreement of the Parties), then, in such event, upon written notice by either Party to the 
other, this Agreement shall terminate, whereupon the Deposit shall be returned to Greeley pursuant 
to Section 13.3 (Failure of Condition) and neither Party shall have any further obligation to the 
other except as provided in Section 17.9 (Survival). 

B. Raw Water Dedication Policy. Wingfoot's obligation to convey the 
Assets is subject to the Governing Bodies' approval of the Raw Water Dedication Policy, in a form 

15 

Page 109

Item No. 16.



acceptable to Wingfoot, before the expiration of the Governmental Approval Period. In the event 
that the Governing Bodies have not approved the Raw Water Dedication Policy prior to the 
expiration of the Governmental Approval Period, then, in such event, upon written notice by 
Wingfoot to Greeley, this Agreement shall terminate, whereupon the Deposit shall be returned to 
Greeley pursuant to Section 13.3 (Failure of Condition) and neither Party shall have any further 
obligation to the other except as provided in Section 17.9 (Survival). 

6.2 Closing. The closing of this transaction (the "Closing") shall occur at 1:30 p.m. at 
the Greeley Office of the Title Company, fifteen (15) days after the expiration of the Governmental 
Approval Period or such other date as the Parties may mutually agree to in writing (the "Closing  
Date"). At or prior to the Closing, Greeley shall provide Wingfoot with a map of the Service Area 
as of the Closing Date. 

6.3 Transactions at Closing. 

A. On or before the Closing Date, Wingfoot shall deliver or cause to be 
delivered to the Title Company, acting as the escrow agent for the Closing, the following 
documents duly executed and acknowledged where appropriate: 

(1) The Conveyance Documents. 

(2) A Certificate of non-foreign status pursuant to Section 1445 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, together with any Certificates required pursuant to 
Colorado law. 

(3) The Construction Escrow Agreement (defined below) 

(4) The Credit Escrow Agreement (defined below). 

(5) The Tenancy in Common Agreement (defined below). 

(6) The General Assignment and Bill of Sale. 

(7) Wingfoot's Certification of the General Representations and 
Warranties, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit J. 

(8) Wingfoot's Certification of the Environmental Representations and 
Warranties, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G. 

(9) Wingfoot's Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company 
Agreement, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit P. 

(10) A closing statement executed by Wingfoot. 

(11) Duly executed assignments of the Escrowed Credits (defined below) 
to the Escrow Credit Transferee (defined below), substantially in the form attached as Exhibit 2 
(Form Transfer and Assignment of Raw Water Credits) to Exhibit E (Certificate). 

16 

Page 110

Item No. 16.



(7) 

(8) 

(12) Such other documents as may be reasonably necessary and 
appropriate to complete the Closing of the transaction contemplated herein. 

B. On or before the Closing Date, Greeley shall deliver to the Title Company, 
acting as the Closing escrow agent, the following documents duly executed and acknowledged 
where appropriate: 

(1) The Closing Amount. 

(2) Documentation in such form as may be satisfactory to Wingfoot and 
the Title Company, evidencing (i) the Governing Bodies' authorization of the issuance of Twelve 
Thousand One Hundred Twenty-one (12,121) Raw Water Credits and (ii) Greeley's authority to 
purchase the Assets. 

(3) The Assignment and Assumption of State Land Board Lease, in the 
form attached as Exhibit D. 

(4) Greeley's Certification of the General Representations and 
Warranties, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit K. 

(5) Greeley's Certification of the Environmental Representations and 
Warranties, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit H. 

(6) A certified copy of the Raw Water Dedication Policy (defined 
below). 

The Construction Escrow Agreement. 

The Credit Escrow Agreement. 

The Tenancy in Common Agreement. 

A closing statement executed by Greeley. 

The Certificate evidencing Wingfoot's ownership of the Initial 
Credits. 

(12) Twenty-five (25) Certificates, each evidencing one hundred sixty-
seven (167) Raw Water Credits, in the name of Wingfoot. 

(13) Twenty-five (25) Certificates, each evidencing one hundred sixty-
seven (167) Raw Water Credits, in the name of the Credit Escrow Transferee. 

(14) Such other documents as may be reasonably necessary and 
appropriate to complete the Closing of the transaction contemplated herein. 

Collectively, except for the Initial Credits, all other documents identified under Sections 
6.3.A and 6.3.B shall be referred to as the "Closing Documents." 

17 

Page 111

Item No. 16.



C. Closing Agent. The Title Company shall record and/or distribute the 
Closing Documents and shall hold, in escrow, the Certificates evidencing Wingfoot's ownership 
of the Initial Credits until Wingfoot has satisfied its Initial Contribution obligation. The Parties 
shall instruct the Escrow Agent to release such Certificates to Wingfoot simultaneous with 
Wingfoot's satisfaction of its Initial Contribution, which enables Wingfoot to satisfy its obligation 
to make the Initial Contribution from the sale of the Initial Credits. 

ARTICLE 7  
PRORATIONS; CLOSING COSTS  

7.1 Prorations. All real estate taxes attributable to the Assets, if any, for the calendar 
year in which the Closing occurs shall be prorated at the Closing on the basis of the most recent 
mill levy, unless the actual real estate taxes for the current year are known on the Closing Date. 
Wingfoot shall pay any special assessments against the Assets, if any, in full at the time of Closing. 
Prorations of taxes and assessments at Closing shall be a final settlement. All fees and payments 
for the current year due under the State Land Board Lease shall be prorated as of the Closing Date, 
based on the most recent payment provided by Wingfoot to the State of Colorado, State Board of 
Land Commissioners. 

7.2 Closing Costs. Greeley shall pay for the cost of recording of all of the deeds, all 
title insurance endorsements and one-half (1/2) of the Title Company closing costs. Wingfoot 
shall pay the initial basic premium for the Title Policy, and one-half (1/2) of the Title Company 
closing costs. Each party shall pay its own attorneys' fees and Greeley shall be solely responsible 
for the payment of any real estate escrow fees to the Title Company. 

ARTICLE 8  
TENANCY IN COMMON 

8.1 Tenancy in Common Agreement. The form of Tenancy in Common Agreement is 
attached hereto as Exhibit L. 

8.2 Conveyance of the Tenancy in Common Interest. 

A. Conveyances. Subject to Greeley's consent and except as otherwise 
provided in this Section 8.2.A, Wingfoot may convey all or any portion of Wingfoot's TIC Interest 
to a third-party (a "Third Party Transfer"), provided that the Third Party Transfer (1) identifies 
Greeley as a party to the agreement between Wingfoot and the third-party; (2) obligates the third-
party to simultaneously convey its entire interest in the Water Rights to Greeley in exchange for a 
number of Raw Water Credits bearing the same proportion to the total number of Raw Water 
Credits as the fractional interest conveyed in the Water Rights bears to the entire interest in the 
Water Rights; (3) identifies the full cash consideration for such portion and such amount is certified 
to Greeley by Wingfoot and shown in the property declaration with respect to such Third Party 
Transfer; (4) shall not obligate Greeley to accept title to any property other than the Water Rights 
and (5) requires conveyance to Greeley consistent with the Tenancy in Common Conveyance 
Documents defined in Section 8.2.B (Form of Conveyance). If Wingfoot has not fully satisfied its 
Cash Contribution obligation on the date of the closing of any Third Party Transfer, then Wingfoot 
shall deposit in the Construction Escrow at closing the lesser of (a) its then remaining Cash 

18 

Page 112

Item No. 16.



Contribution obligation, or (b) ninety percent (90%) of the Net Cash Proceeds. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, Wingfoot may not convey Wingfoot's TIC Interest in a cashless exchange for like 
property. If and when the proposed Third Party Transfer is consistent with the conditions set forth 
in clauses (1) — (5) in all material respects, then Greeley shall present the same to the Greeley 
Water and Sewer Board for approval within forty-five (45) days after receipt by Greeley of a 
purchase and sale agreement relating to such Third Party Transfer (the "Interim Period"). If the 
Greeley Water and Sewer Board rejects or does not approve the proposed Third Party Transfer 
within the Interim Period, then within twenty (20) days after the earlier of (x) Greeley Water and 
Sewer Board's rejection of the proposed Third Party Transfer or (y) expiration of the Interim 
Period without Wingfoot's receipt of written approval of the proposed Third Party Transfer from 
Greeley, Greeley shall pay to Wingfoot one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the sales price 
relating to the proposed Third Party Transfer (the "Prohibited Transfer Fee") and Wingfoot shall 
concurrently transfer to Greeley Wingfoot's TIC Interest identified in the proposed Third Party 
Transfer. No portion of the Prohibited Transfer Fee shall be subject to the Deposit Obligation of 
Section 9.1.B (Source of Funds). 

B. Form of Conveyance. Wingfoot shall convey Wingfoot's TIC Interest, 
and shall cause that portion of Wingfoot's TIC Interest conveyed to a third-party, if any, to be 
conveyed to Greeley, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances except for Permitted Exceptions, 
by executing the forms attached hereto as Exhibit Q (the "Tenancy in Common Conveyance 
Documents"). 

8.3 Termination of the Tenancy in Common. Ten-year limit. The Tenancy in Common 
shall terminate and ownership of the Water Rights shall vest entirely in Greeley (subject to any 
conveyances made by, through or under Greeley) upon the earlier of (i) the transfer of one hundred 
percent (100%) of the ownership of the Water Rights to Greeley or (ii) ten (10) years following 
the Closing Date, subject to Greeley's obligations and the other terms of this Agreement. 

8.4 Use. Subject to the terms of the Tenancy in Common Agreement and Greeley's 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement, Wingfoot agrees that, after Closing, Greeley shall 
have the exclusive right to use the Water Rights, and Wingfoot shall not access or use the Water 
Rights without Greeley's written permission. 

ARTICLE 9  
CONSTRUCTION ESCROW 

9.1 Construction Escrow. At Closing, the Parties shall execute an escrow agreement 
to manage the deposit and release of the Project Infrastructure funds substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit F (the "Construction Escrow Agreement"). Notwithstanding the 
preceding sentence, the Parties acknowledge and agree that the Construction Escrow Agreement 
attached hereto may be subject to revision as may be necessary or convenient to obtain approval 
from the escrow agent. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Wingfoot shall deposit a total of 
one hundred twenty-five million dollars ($125,000,000) ("Cash Contribution") in an escrow 
account established and maintained pursuant to the Construction Escrow Agreement (the 
"Construction Escrow"). The Cash Contribution is estimated to cover one-half of the estimated 
cost to plan, develop, permit and construct the Project Infrastructure ("Project Infrastructure  
Costs") and shall be funded and due as provided below, provided that "Project Infrastructure 

19 

Page 113

Item No. 16.



Costs" shall not include debt service payable by Greeley. For federal, state and local income tax 
purposes, notwithstanding the funding mechanism set forth in this Agreement, the Parties 
acknowledge that Wingfoot intends to treat the Cash Contribution as a reduction in the amount 
realized by Wingfoot in respect of the transfer of Wingfoot's TIC Interest or sale of Raw Water 
Credits, in order to reflect the fact that the Cash Contribution will reduce Wingfoot's net economic 
gain derived from the transfer of Wingfoot's TIC Interest or sale of Raw Water Credits, Wingfoot 
does not obtain any property or derive any separate benefit from the Cash Contribution, and the 
benefit of the Cash Contribution inures entirely to Greeley (in the form of Project Infrastructure 
owned by Greeley). For example, if the gross purchase price of a Raw Water Credit is thirty 
thousand dollars ($30,000) and Wingfoot has not satisfied its Deposit Obligations under Section 
9.2(B) (Source of Funds), then Wingfoot shall deposit ninety percent (90%) of such purchase price 
(twenty-seven thousand dollars ($27,000)) to the Construction Escrow as a Deposit Obligation, 
reducing the amount realized by Wingfoot in respect to the sale of such Raw Water Credit to three 
thousand dollars ($3,000). In furtherance of the foregoing, for federal, state, and local income tax 
purposes, (x) Wingfoot intends to treat the Initial Contribution (defined below) as an advance 
reduction in Wingfoot's amount realized in respect of transfers of Wingfoot's TIC Interest, and 
(y) Wingfoot may determine the extent to which a portion of the total reduction in the amount 
realized by Wingfoot (i.e., the total Cash Contribution, including the Initial Contribution) shall be 
attributed to any specific transfer of a portion of Wingfoot's TIC Interest. It is the intent of the 
Parties that, to the greatest extent possible, Wingfoot shall not be treated as having an amount 
realized from the transfer of a portion of Wingfoot's TIC Interest greater than the net amount of 
cash retained by Wingfoot in connection with that transfer, after the satisfaction of Wingfoot's 
funding obligations as set forth herein. Neither Party shall take a position contrary to the positions 
and statements set forth in this Section 9.1. 

A. Deposits Due. Within ninety (90) days after the Closing, Wingfoot shall 
deposit twenty-five million dollars ($25,000,000) ("Initial Contribution") in the Construction 
Escrow and provide written notice thereof to Greeley and the Title Company. The balance of the 
Cash Contributions shall be due on the earlier to occur of (i) twenty-four (24) months after Greeley 
provides written notice of its intent to construct the Project Infrastructure ("Notice to Construct") 
or (ii) ten (10) years after the Closing Date (the "Contribution Deadline"). Greeley shall have no 
deadline or timeline to commence or complete construction of the Project Infrastructure. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Greeley may not issue the Notice to Construct sooner than two (2) 
years after the Closing Date unless Wingfoot has fully satisfied its Cash Contribution obligation 
within such time. Wingfoot shall have no obligation to fund the Construction Escrow or the Project 
Infrastructure in excess of the Cash Contribution and Greeley shall be solely responsible for all 
costs related to the Project Infrastructure exceeding the Cash Contribution. 

B. Source of Funds. Until Wingfoot has fully satisfied its Cash Contribution 
obligation, Wingfoot shall deposit or arrange for the deposit of ninety percent (90%) of the Net 
Cash Proceeds received by Wingfoot (collectively, the "Deposit Obligations"). Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in this Section 9.1.B, Wingfoot shall retain one hundred percent (100%) 
of the proceeds from, and the Deposit Obligations shall not include, the sale of the Exercised 
Credits and the Released Credits pursuant to Article 11 (Put and Call Options) and from the 
Prohibited Transfer Fee. To track Wingfoot's obligation under this Section 9.1.B Wingfoot shall, 
promptly after each such deposit of a Deposit Obligation, provide to Greeley (i) a settlement 
statement evidencing the purchase price and (ii) a statement evidencing that ninety percent (90%) 

20 

Page 114

Item No. 16.



of the Net Cash Proceeds has been deposited in the Construction Escrow, along with the 
surrendered Certificate(s) or a copy of the deed transferring the Water Rights to a third-party 
pursuant to Section 8.2.A (Conveyance) until Wingfoot's obligation to fund the Cash Contribution 
has been fully satisfied. If the surrendered Certificate, or portion thereof, qualifies as a Released 
Credit, Wingfoot may retain one hundred percent (100%) of the proceeds. 

C. Greeley's Contribution. No less than thirty (30) days before Greeley 
requests withdrawal of any amount from the Construction Escrow, Greeley shall deposit in an 
escrow account established and maintained pursuant to the Construction Escrow Agreement that 
is separate from the Construction Escrow ("Prorated Escrow"), an amount sufficient to maintain 
Greeley's aggregate, prorated share of contributions to the total Project Infrastructure Costs at the 
percentages shown in the table below (the "Prorated Contributions"). 

Project Infrastructure Costs Wingfoot Portion 
Contribution 
to Total Cost 

Greeley_portion  
Percent of 
Total Cost 

From To Total Cost Contribution 
to Total Cost 

Percent of 
Total Cost 

$0 $78,125,000 $78,125,000 $62,500,000 80.00% $15,625,000 20.00% 
$78,125,000 $203,125,000 $125,000,000 $62,500,000 50.00% , $62,500,000 50.00% 
Total $203,125,000 $125,000,000 61.54% $78,125,000 38.46% 

D. Release of Funds. Greeley may not draw upon the available Cash 
Contribution for Project Infrastructure construction costs less than ninety (90) days after the 
Closing Date. Any withdrawals after the 90-day period are subject to the following conditions: (i) 
Greeley must be in compliance with its obligation under Section 9.1.0 (Greeley's Contribution) 
as of the date of withdrawal, and (ii) Greeley must (a) simultaneously withdraw an amount from 
the Prorated Escrow proportionate to Greeley's percent of total costs shown in the table in 
paragraph C of this Section 9.1.D and (b) use such funds from the Prorated Escrow and 
Construction Escrow solely for the planning, development, permitting and construction of Project 
Infrastructure. To track Greeley's compliance with this Section 9.1.D, Greeley shall provide 
Wingfoot with a copy of the statement evidencing withdrawal of a proportionate amount of funds 
from the Prorated Contribution, prior to the release of funds from the Construction Escrow to 
Greeley. Upon written request from Wingfoot, Greeley shall furnish evidence that the funds 
withdrawn have been spent on Project Infrastructure Costs. After substantial completion of the 
Project Infrastructure, or upon termination of this Agreement by operation of Section 14.2.B(3) 
(Remedies, Generally), the balance of the Cash Contribution in the Construction Escrow, if any, 
remaining shall be released to Wingfoot and the balance of the Prorated Contribution, if any, 
remaining shall be released to Greeley. 

21 

Page 115

Item No. 16.



9.2 Failure to Fund. 

A. Failure to Fund the Initial Contribution. If Wingfoot fails to deposit the 
Initial Contribution in the Construction Escrow within ninety (90) days of the Closing Date, then 
this Agreement shall automatically terminate, and pursuant to Section 14.2.A(3) (Remedies, 
General): (a) the Purchase Price shall be returned to Greeley; (b) the Initial Tenancy in Common 
Interest shall be conveyed back to Wingfoot, along with a reassignment of the Ancillary Assets 
and the State Land Board Lease; and (c) all documents deposited by Greeley or delivered to 
Wingfoot by Greeley, including without limitation the Initial Credits, shall be immediately 
returned to Greeley, if any, and all documents, deposited by Wingfoot or delivered to Greeley by 
Wingfoot shall be immediately returned to Wingfoot, if any. In addition, Greeley shall be entitled 
to reimbursements from Wingfoot and Wingfoot shall be obligated to pay Greeley for all 
reasonable, third party out-of-pocket costs incurred by Greeley subsequent to the Effective Date 
but prior to the termination, which shall include, but not be limited to, the Inspection Costs. Upon 
termination, all other rights and obligations of the Parties shall be terminated under this 
Agreement, except for the covenants, agreements and monetary obligations contained in Section 
17.9 (Survival) which shall survive the termination of this Agreement to the extent set forth in 
Section 17.9, for the time period(s) specified therein. 

B. Failure to Fund the Cash Contribution. If Wingfoot fails to fully satisfy 
its Cash Contribution obligation by the Contribution Deadline, and Greeley has not (i) breached 
any of its obligations under Section 10.5 (Material Change to Market Value); (ii) breached any of 
its obligations under Section 9.1.0 (Greeley's Contributions) or Section 9.1.D (Release of Funds); 
or (iii) committed a default or otherwise breached this Agreement that prevented or interfered with 
or adversely affected Wingfoot's ability to fund the Cash Contribution, then Greeley shall provide 
Wingfoot with written notice of such failure to satisfy Wingfoot's Cash Contribution (a "Payment 
Default"). If Wingfoot does not cure such Payment Default within sixty (60) days after its receipt 
of written notice from Greeley of such Payment Default (not subject to any additional cure period 
under Section 14.2.D (Remedies, Generally), then pursuant to Section 14.2.A(4) (Remedies, 
Generally), Greeley may elect to require that Wingfoot convey the entirety of Wingfoot's TIC 
Interest to Greeley, and Wingfoot shall be obligated to effect such conveyance, and Wingfoot shall 
continue to be subject to its Deposit Obligation under Section 9.1.B (Source of Funds) until 
Wingfoot's Cash Contribution obligation is fully satisfied. Other than Raw Water Credits subject 
to the Put Option and Call Option as set forth in Article 11 (Put and Call Option), Greeley shall 
not be required to issue any additional Raw Water Credits (other than transfers of outstanding Raw 
Water Credits in the Registry) in exchange for a transfer of Wingfoot's TIC Interest pursuant to 
this Section 9.2.B. 

ARTICLE 10  
RAW WATER CREDITS  

10.1 Raw Water Credit. 

A. Authorization. At Closing, Greeley shall authorize the issuance of twelve 
thousand one hundred twenty-one (12,121) credits, with each credit representing the equivalent of, 
but not an interest in, one (1) acre foot of raw water (each a "Raw Water Credit"). 

22 

Page 116

Item No. 16.



B. Issuance. Simultaneous with or after Wingfoot satisfies its Initial 
Contribution pursuant to Section 9.1.A (Deposit Due), Wingfoot may request from Greeley the 
issuance to it of up to seven thousand nine hundred forty-six (7,946) Raw Water Credits (inclusive 
of the Initial Credits but less the Escrowed Credits) at any time prior to the date which is ten (10) 
years after the Closing Date. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of a request for Raw Water Credits 
from Wingfoot pursuant to this Section 10.1(B), Greeley shall issue the corresponding amount of 
Raw Water Credits to Wingfoot. If any Raw Water Credits remain unissued as of the date which 
is ten (10) years after the Closing Date, then all remaining unissued Raw Water Credits shall be 
issued to Wingfoot in consideration of Wingfoot transferring Wingfoot's TIC Interest to Greeley 
pursuant to Section 10.2 (Transfer of Tenancy in Common Interest) as of that date. 

C. Form. The issuance of all Raw Water Credits shall be documented by the 
delivery of certificates in the form attached as Exhibit E (each a "Certificate"). A single Certificate 
may represent any whole number of Raw Water Credits. Each Certificate shall evidence the rights 
of the original or any subsequent Registered Owner (defined below) thereof with respect to the 
Raw Water Credits evidenced thereby. 

D. Redemption Period. The form of Certificate shall provide that any 
Registered Owner may redeem a Raw Water Credit from Greeley through December 31, 2099, 
subject to the terms and conditions of the Certificate and the Raw Water Dedication Policy. 

E. Limitations; Sales. All Raw Water Credits issued to Wingfoot shall be 
subject to Section 10.2 (Transfer of Tenancy in Common Interest). After issuance, Wingfoot may 
sell, convey, or transfer a Raw Water Credit to a third-party, subject to Section 9.1.B (Source of 
Funds). All Registered Owners, including Wingfoot, may freely sell, transfer, or convey Raw 
Water Credits to third-parties subject to compliance with Section 10.3 (Administration; Tracking). 

10.2 Transfer of the Tenancy in Common Interest. Greeley's issuance of a Raw Water 
Credit to Wingfoot shall obligate Wingfoot to convey an amount of Wingfoot's TIC Interest to 
Greeley as described in this Section 10.2. Wingfoot shall satisfy this obligation on a semiannual 
basis. On February 1 and August 1 of each year, Greeley and Wingfoot shall calculate the total 
number of Raw Water Credits issued to Wingfoot and the total number of Raw Water Credits 
released from the Credit Escrow pursuant to Article 11 during the preceding six months, but 
excluding the amount issued to a third-party pursuant to Section 8.2A (Conveyance) (collectively, 
the "Semester Total"). By each February 15 and August 15, Wingfoot shall convey to Greeley a 
fraction of the total interests in the Water Rights (out of Wingfoot's TIC Interest) with the (i) 
numerator being equal to the Semester Total and (ii) denominator being twelve thousand one 
hundred twenty-one (12,121) (i.e., the total authorized number of Raw Water Credits). Wingfoot 
shall convey any portion of Wingfoot's TIC Interest to Greeley in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Tenancy in Common Agreement and Section 8.2.B (Form of Conveyance). Upon 
the issuance of all of the Raw Water Credits available to Wingfoot under this Agreement, Wingfoot 
shall convey all of Wingfoot's TIC Interest to Greeley, at which point the tenancy in common shall 
terminate and one hundred percent (100%) ownership in and to the Water Rights will vest in 
Greeley, except to the extent that Greeley has assigned or encumbered any of its interest in the 
Tenancy in Common or the Water Rights. 

10.3 Administration; Tracking. 

23 

Page 117

Item No. 16.



A. Issuance. Greeley's Water and Sewer Department, acting on behalf of 
Greeley, (the "Department") shall establish and maintain a written record of all issued and 
outstanding Certificates (the "Registry"). The Registry shall include, but is not limited to, (i) the 
name of the person or entity to whom a Certificate has been issued or transferred ("Registered  
Owner"), (ii) the date of issuance or transfer, as applicable, (iii) the Registered Owner's contact 
information as of the date of the issuance or transfer, (iv) the Certificate Number affixed thereto, 
and (v) the number of Raw Water Credits evidenced thereby. 

B. Assignment. A Certificate may be transferred in the Registry, in whole 
or in part, but only in whole numbers of Raw Water Credits, by the Registered Owner upon 
presentation of the original Certificate with the form of assignment thereon, properly executed and 
acknowledged. If Wingfoot is the Registered Owner and Wingfoot has not fully satisfied its Cash 
Contribution obligation, then Wingfoot must submit documentation and deposit or arrange for the 
deposit of funds as required by Section 9.1.B (Source of Funds) along with the original Certificate 
and the properly executed and acknowledged assignment. Certificates for fractional Raw Water 
Credits will not be issued or accepted by Greeley. If a Registered Owner assigns only a portion of 
the Raw Water Credits evidenced by a Certificate, then the Department will issue the first 
Certificate to the assignee for the amount assigned and a second Certificate to the assignor (i.e., 
the original Registered Owner) for the amount retained. The Department shall not be obligated to: 
(i) recognize any person or entity as the owner of a Certificate, or having any interest therein, who 
does not appear as the Registered Owner thereof in the Registry or (ii) issue or reissue a Certificate 
to a Registered Owner, including Wingfoot, who has failed to comply with this Section 10.3 with 
respect to the Raw Water Credits evidenced or to be evidenced by such Certificate, until such 
failure to comply is remedied or cured. 

C. Redemption; Cancellation of Credit. A Registered Owner may redeem a 
Raw Water Credit in satisfaction of any cash-in-lieu fee obligation associated with the Registered 
Owner's request for water service as prescribed by the Raw Water Dedication Policy. If a 
Registered Owner presents a Certificate to Greeley and redeems a Raw Water Credit in satisfaction 
of the Raw Water Dedication Policy or if Wingfoot surrenders a Certificate evidencing put or 
called Raw Water Credits pursuant to Section 11.5 (Release; Payment; Cancellation of Raw Water 
Credits), then the Raw Water Credits so presented or acquired shall be deemed exercised and the 
Certificate or Certificates evidencing the same shall be cancelled. 

10.4 Audit of Registry and Sales. 

A. Wingfoot's Records. Upon no less than ten (10) days' written notice to 
Wingfoot, Greeley may audit Wingfoot's non-Confidential records related to the sale of Raw 
Water Credits or transfer, disposition, or encumbrance of the Water Rights. As used in the 
preceding sentence, "Confidential" means any documents or other information that Wingfoot 
believes in good faith would create a risk of financial or other injury if disclosed; provided, 
however, that proposed sale price and accounting of the Net Cash Proceeds of proposed or 
completed Third Party Transfers shall not be considered Confidential. Greeley agrees that it will 
not request an audit more than once in a calendar year, unless (a) an audit or investigation is 
required by any governmental or regulatory authority or (b) Greeley reasonably believes that an 
audit is necessary to address a potential breach of this Agreement. If during the course of an audit 
Greeley reasonably determines that Wingfoot has sold Raw Water Credits or transferred, disposed 

24 

Page 118

Item No. 16.



or encumbered the Water Rights in a manner that (x) either (i) violates this Agreement or (ii) 
constitutes an Event of Default by Wingfoot, and (y) individually or in the aggregate has a Material 
Adverse Effect on Greeley's interest in the Assets, then Greeley shall provide written notice to 
Wingfoot and an opportunity to cure such default in accordance with Article 14. Upon Wingfoot's 
failure to cure such default, Greeley may pursue any applicable or available remedy under this 
Agreement. 

B. Greeley's Records. Upon no less than then ten (10) days written notice to 
Greeley, Wingfoot may audit the Registry and Greeley's policies, procedures and records that 
relate to the maintenance of the Registry under this Agreement to ensure accurate and complete 
records consistent with Section 10.3 (Administration; Tracking). Wingfoot agrees that it will not 
request an audit more than once in a calendar year, unless (i) an audit or investigation is required 
by any governmental or regulatory authority or (ii) Wingfoot reasonably believes that an audit is 
necessary to address a potential breach of this Agreement. If during the course of an audit 
Wingfoot reasonably determines that the tracking of the Raw Water Credits in the Registry is 
deficient or that Greeley is in default of this Agreement (each, a "Registry Default"), then 
Wingfoot shall provide written notice to Greeley and an opportunity to cure such Registry Default 
in accordance with Article 14. If Greeley fails to cure such default, Wingfoot may pursue any 
applicable or available remedy under this Agreement including, but not limited to, the remedy in 
Section 10.4.0 (Election to Require External Registrar) below. As used in this Section 10.4, 
"deficient" means that the administrator failed to (i) retain accurate records of ownership or 
redemption of Raw Water Credits, or (ii) record any transfer or issuance of Raw Water Credits 
within thirty (30) days of (x) receipt of the proper form of assignment, or (y) the date of such 
issuance, as the case may be. 

C. Election to Require External Registrar. If, after notice and opportunity to 
cure, Greeley fails to cure either (i) a Registry Default, or (ii) an Event of Default arising from a 
breach of the provisions of Section 10.3 (Administration; Tracking), in each case, within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of notice from Wingfoot, and the Parties agree that this thirty (30) day period 
is the sole cure period under this Section 10.4.0 and they shall disregard the application of any 
and all other cure periods set forth in this Agreement, then Wingfoot may elect to treat this 
Agreement as being in full force and effect and, upon delivering written notice to Greeley, 
Wingfoot may require that Greeley retain at Greeley's cost a financial institution experienced in 
maintaining similar registries to act as the registrar and administer the Registry until the earlier of 
December 31, 2099, or the last day upon which any Raw Water Credits remain outstanding. 

10.5 Material Change to Market Value. 

A. Raw Water Dedication Policy Changes. 

(1) Revocation. If the City revokes or rescinds the Raw Water 
Dedication Policy to deny acceptance of Raw Water Credits (except as provided under Section 
10.5.A. of this Agreement) prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the date the last 
outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then Wingfoot may elect to terminate this Agreement 
and Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) shall have the remedies provided in either Section 
14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) or 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered Owners Derived Solely from 
Certificate), or both, as applicable. 

25 

Page 119

Item No. 16.



(2) Amendments. 

(a) Adding New Sources. The City may amend the Raw Water 
Dedication Policy to accept a New Source (defined below) in dedication and satisfaction of its raw 
water requirements, provided that such amendment does not occur within ten (10) years of the 
Closing Date. A "New Source" shall mean raw water taken in dedication from a source other than 
water attributable to units or shares of the following: (i) Colorado Big-Thompson Project, (ii) 
Greeley-Loveland Irrigation Company, (iii) Seven Lakes Reservoir Company, (iv) Loveland and 
Greeley Reservoir Company, (v) Greeley Irrigation Company, and/or (vi) any other water right 
used to historically irrigate lands within the Service Area, provided that the dedication of such 
water rights is limited to the satisfaction of the non-potable demand and are used to continue 
irrigating the historically irrigated lands. If the City amends the Raw Water Dedication Policy to 
accept a New Source less than ten (10) years after the Closing Date, then Wingfoot may terminate 
this Agreement and Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) shall have the remedies provided in 
either Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) or 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered Owners 
Derived Solely from Certificate), or both, as applicable. 

(b) Limiting Redemption of Raw Water Credits. As of the 
Closing Date, the Raw Water Dedication Policy shall provide that a Registered Owner may satisfy 
up to one hundred percent (100%) of the Registered Owner's cash-in-lieu fee obligation under the 
Raw Water Dedication Policy with Raw Water Credits. The City may amend the Raw Water 
Dedication Policy to limit a Registered Owner's right to satisfy up to one hundred percent (100%) 
of the Registered Owner's cash-in-lieu fee obligation with Raw Water Credits, provided that such 
amendment does not (i) occur on or before fifteen (15) years after the Closing Date, and (ii) reduce 
the proportion of Raw Water Credits that may be redeemed in satisfaction of a Registered Owner's 
cash-in-lieu fee obligation below seventy-five percent (75%) of such obligation. If the City (i) 
amends the Raw Water Dedication Policy to limit, or (ii) otherwise reduces, a Registered Owner's 
right to satisfy one hundred percent (100%) of the Registered Owner's cash-in-lieu fee obligation 
with Raw Water Credits before fifteen (15) years after the Closing Date, then Wingfoot may 
terminate this Agreement and shall have the remedies provided in Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, 
Generally). If the City (i) amends the Raw Water Dedication Policy to limit, or (ii) otherwise 
reduces, a Registered Owner's right to satisfy not less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the 
Registered Owner's cash-in-lieu fee obligation with Raw Water Credits prior to the earlier of 
December 31, 2099, or the date the last outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then Wingfoot 
may terminate this Agreement and Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) shall have the 
remedies provided in either Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) or 10.5.A(4) (Rights of 
Registered Owners Derived Solely from Certificate), or both, as applicable. 

(c) Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits. Except as provided in 
Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(i) (Permissible Policy Change) and subject to Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(ii) 
(Objection to a Proposed Change), if the City amends or revises the Raw Water Dedication Policy 
or enters into an agreement pursuant to Section 14.06.190 of the City's Municipal Code that has 
the effect of disadvantaging a Raw Water Credit relative to other sources or means of satisfying 
the City's raw water dedication requirements prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the date 
the last outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then Wingfoot may elect to terminate this 
Agreement and Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) shall have the remedies provided in 

26 

Page 120

Item No. 16.



either Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) or 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered Owners 
Derived Solely from Certificate), or both, as applicable. 

(i) Permissible Policy Changes. Notwithstanding 
Section 10.5.A.(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) above and subject to Section 
10.5.A(2)(c)(ii) (Objection to a Proposed Change), the City may amend or revise the Raw Water 
Dedication Policy to: (i) address non-substantive administrative, clerical, or procedural changes, 
including but not limited to any municipal code renumbering, that do not have the effect of 
disadvantaging a Raw Water Credit relative to other sources or means of satisfying the City's raw 
water dedication requirements; (ii) reflect or address a change in water use and/or consumption 
that is supported by economic or scientific analysis and is consistent with reasonable industry 
practice; or (iii) comply with applicable federal and state law (each a "Permissible Policy  
Change"). The intent of a Permissible Policy Change is to narrowly tailor such change to minimize 
a reduction or adverse change in the value of the Raw Water Credits. Subject to the process set 
forth in Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(ii) (Objection to a Proposed Change), if the City amends or revises 
the Raw Water Dedication Policy and such amendments or revisions do not qualify as a 
Permissible Policy Change prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the date the last 
outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then Wingfoot may terminate this Agreement and 
Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) may exercise the remedies under either Section 
14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) or Section 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered Owners Derived 
Solely from Certificate), or both, as applicable. 

(ii) Objection to a Proposed Change. If the City approves 
an agreement pursuant to Section 14.06.190 of the Greeley Municipal Code or adopts an 
amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy in a manner that is inconsistent with 
or otherwise violates Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or Section 
10.5.A(2)(c)(i) (Permissible Policy Changes) prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the date 
the last outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then the Certificate shall provide a means for 
all Registered Owners (including Wingfoot and Credit Escrow Transferee) to object to such 
amendments or revisions consistent with the following process. All Registered Owners will be 
deemed to have notice of any agreement approved pursuant to Section 14.06.190 or any 
amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy adopted pursuant to such policy if the 
City follows its normal ordinance adoption, hearing and publication requirements in accordance 
with C.R.S. §24-6-402(2)(c), Section 3-17 of the City's Charter, and the Raw Water Dedication 
Policy. Registered Owners may object to the proposed final approval of any such agreement or 
the proposed final adoption of any such amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication 
Policy by providing written notice to the Department (an "Objection"), certified by a majority of 
the Registered Owners of the then-outstanding Raw Water Credits (through a duly-appointed 
"Committee Representative", the "Registered Owner Committee"), no less than five (5) days prior 
to the date of the public hearing of the ordinance approving an agreement pursuant to Section 
14.06.190 or adopting an amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy. In 
accordance with Section 3-17 and the Raw Water Dedication Policy, the date of the public hearing 
shall be published after the first reading and shall be set for a date no less than twenty-eight (28) 
days after the first reading. The Objection shall include the Registered Owner Committee's basis 
for the Objection and, to the extent possible, suggested modifications that would resolve the 
Objection. After receipt of such Objection, the Department shall remove the ordinance approving 
the agreement or adopting the amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy from 

27 

Page 121

Item No. 16.



the City Council's agenda. Thereafter, the Department, and the Committee Representative shall 
have thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the Objection to resolve the Objection. If the 
Committee Representative does not withdraw the Objection, in writing, thirty (30) days from the 
date of receipt of the Objection, then the Department and the Committee Representative shall 
submit the agreement or amendments or revisions, along with each party's respective position, to 
an economist or engineer, agreeable to both parties, who is a Colorado based utility rate or policy 
expert, to determine whether the agreement violates Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw 
Water Credits) or the amendment or revision qualifies as a Permissible Policy Change. The 
economist or engineer's findings shall be binding on Greeley and the Registered Owner Committee 
(acting by and through the Committee Representative). If the economist or engineer finds that the 
agreement does not violate Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or that the 
amendment or revision qualifies as a Permissible Policy Change, then the Registered Owners shall 
not be entitled to exercise the remedy defined in Section 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered Owners 
Derived Solely from Certificate) pursuant to Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water 
Credits) or Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(i) (Permissible Policy Changes), as the case may be. If the 
economist or engineer finds (x) either (i) that the agreement violates Section 10.5.A(2)(c) 
(Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or (ii) that the amendment or revision does not qualify as a 
Permissible Policy Change and (y) the City does not amend or reject the agreement or the 
ordinance amending or revising the Raw Water Dedication Policy to resolve or otherwise satisfy 
the Registered Owner Committee's Objection, then a Registered Owner may surrender all or a 
portion of the Raw Water Credits (but only in whole numbers of Raw Water Credits) held by such 
Registered Owner to the Department and exercise the remedy defined in Section 10.5.A(4) (Rights 
of Registered Owners Derived Solely from Certificate) pursuant to Section 10.5.A(2)(c) 
(Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(i) (Permissible Policy Changes), as 
the case may be. If the Registered Owner Committee, acting by and through a Committee 
Representative, does not provide an Objection to the Department, five (5) days prior to the date of 
the public hearing of the ordinance approving an agreement pursuant to Section 14.06.190 or 
adopting an amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy, then each Registered 
Owner shall be deemed to have consented to the agreement or to have accepted the amendment or 
revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy as a Permissible Policy Change. Nothing in this 
Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(ii) shall be read to limit the Registered Owner Committee or individual 
Registered Owners from participating in any public hearing on an ordinance approving an 
agreement pursuant to Section 14.06.190 or amending or revising the Raw Water Dedication 
Policy. In addition to the foregoing, if Wingfoot has not conveyed one hundred percent (100%) 
of Wingfoot's TIC Interest when the economist or engineer finds that (x) either (i) the agreement 
violates Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or (ii) that the amendment or 
revision does not qualify as a Permissible Policy Change, and (y) the City does not amend or reject 
the agreement or the ordinance amending the Raw Water Dedication Policy to resolve or otherwise 
satisfy the Registered Owner Committee's Objection, then Wingfoot may terminate this 
Agreement and Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) may exercise the remedies under either 
Section 14.2.B(3) or Section 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered Owners Derived Solely from 
Certificate), or both, as applicable. 

(3) Reserved. 

(4) Rights of Registered Owners Derived Solely from Certificate. The 
form of the Certificate shall include the terms of Section 10.5.A(1) (Revocations) and Section 

28 

Page 122

Item No. 16.



10.5.A(2) (Amendments). If, prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099 or the date the last 
outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, Greeley (i) revokes or rescinds the Raw Water 
Dedication Policy pursuant to Section 10.5.A(1) (Revocation), (ii) adds a new source in violation 
of Section 10.5.A(2)(a) (Adding New Sources), (iii) limits or reduces the redemption of the Raw 
Water Credits or otherwise is in violation of Section 10.5.A(2)(b) (Limiting Redemption of Raw 
Water Credits), (iv) enters into an agreement that violates Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging 
Raw Water Credits), or (v) approves an amendment or revision that does not qualify as a 
Permissible Policy Change pursuant to Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(ii), then, subject to Section 17.21 
(Integrated Agreement), a Registered Owner's exclusive remedy shall be to have the option to 
surrender all or a portion of the Raw Water Credits (but only in whole numbers of Raw Water 
Credits) held by such Registered Owner to Greeley, and Greeley shall be obligated to buy back 
the surrendered Raw Water Credits at the greater of (a) thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) per Raw 
Water Credit in 2020 escalated three percent (3%) compounded annually thereafter, or (b) the 
three-year trailing average of Greeley's cash-in-lieu price, as defined by the Raw Water Dedication 
Policy. The form of the Certificate shall include the foregoing remedies and the instrument through 
which a Registered Owner shall exercise such rights and remedies, except that any rights and 
remedies of Wingfoot or a Credit Escrow Transferee shall not be limited or waived by this Section 
10.5.A(4). 

B. Cash-In-Lieu. If Greeley's calculated cash-in-lieu requirement, as 
provided in the Raw Water Dedication Policy, falls below thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) per 
acre-foot ("Base Amount") in any year prior to the earlier of (i) December 31, 2099 or (ii) the date 
that Wingfoot transfers and assigns its last Raw Water Credit to a third-party as evidenced by the 
Registry, Greeley shall compensate Wingfoot by paying the Specified Difference to Wingfoot each 
year Greeley's calculated cash-in-lieu requirement falls below the Base Amount. The Specified 
Difference shall be an amount equal to the product of the number of Raw Water Credits (including 
the Released Credits) sold by Wingfoot to a third-party and the difference between the Base 
Amount and the cash-in-lieu requirement set for that year ("Specified Difference") which shall be 
considered liquidated damages pursuant to Section 14.2.0 (Remedies, Generally). The Specified 
Difference shall be calculated one (1) year after each reduction in cash-in-lieu requirement 
becomes effective and shall be due and payable to Wingfoot thirty (30) days thereafter and shall 
only be payable to Wingfoot. 

ARTICLE!!  
PUT AND CALL OPTIONS  

11.1 Options. 

A. Call Option. Each calendar year, beginning in 2021 and expiring after 
July 15, 2045 ("Option Period"), Greeley may purchase (in its sole discretion), and Wingfoot shall 
sell, up to one hundred sixty-seven (167) Escrowed Credits (defined below) at the Option Price on 
an annual basis ("Call Option"), if Greeley timely delivers to Wingfoot and Credit Escrow Agent 
(defined below) the Call Notice (defined below). To exercise its Call Option, Greeley must 
provide written notice to Wingfoot and Credit Escrow Agent on or before June 8th of such calendar 
year ("Call Notice"). 

29 

Page 123

Item No. 16.



B. Put Option. Each calendar year, during the Option Period, Wingfoot may 
sell (in its sole discretion), and Greeley shall purchase, up to one hundred sixty-seven (167) 
Escrowed Credits at the Option Price on an annual basis ("Put Option"), if Wingfoot timely 
delivers to Greeley and Credit Escrow Agent the Put Notice (defined below). To exercise its Put 
Option, Wingfoot must provide written notice to Greeley and Credit Escrow Agent on or before 
July 15 of such calendar year ("Put Notice"). Wingfoot may also provide notice to Greeley and 
the Credit Escrow Agent at any date during the Option Period on or after June 8 of a commitment 
to not exercise the Put Option in any given year (a "Release Notice") subject to any terms or 
conditions agreed by Wingfoot (or Credit Escrow Transferee) in any applicable indenture, 
assignment or pledge. 

11.2 Escrowed Credits. For the purpose of reserving sufficient Raw Water Credits to 
support the Put Option and the Call Option, at Closing, the Parties shall execute an escrow 
agreement, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit R (the "Credit Escrow"), with an 
escrow agent (the "Credit Escrow Agent") to manage the deposit and release of twenty-five (25) 
Certificates, each evidencing one hundred sixty-seven (167) Raw Water Credits ("Escrowed  
Credits") during the Option Period. Further, the Credit Escrow Agent will manage the deposit and 
release of an additional twenty-five (25) Certificates, each evidencing one hundred sixty-seven 
(167) Raw Water Credits deposited pursuant to Section 6.2, which shall not be considered 
Escrowed Credits for purposes of this Article 11. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the 
Parties acknowledge and agree that the Credit Escrow attached hereto may be subject to revision 
as may be necessary or convenient to obtain approval from the Credit Escrow Agent. Escrowed 
Credits held in escrow for the benefit of Wingfoot, or any duly-approved assignee hereunder 
(including Credit Escrow Transferee), shall be considered issued for all purposes. 

11.3 Released Credits. To the extent that the Put Option and/or Call Option are not 
exercised in full in any calendar year with respect to all of the one hundred sixty seven (167) annual 
Escrowed Credits (such non-exercised credits being referred to as the "Released Credits"), then all 
Released Credits shall no longer be subject to the Put Option or the Call Option in future years. If 
neither the Put Option nor Call Option are exercised in any given calendar year, then on the earlier 
to occur of (i) the Credit Escrow Agent's receipt of a Release Notice; or (ii) July 16 of such year, 
the Credit Escrow Agent shall promptly deliver a Certificate representing all such Released Credits 
to Wingfoot, and, prior to the date which is ten (10) years after the Closing Date, the same amount 
shall be added to the Semester Total under Section 10.2 (Transfer of Tenancy in Common Interest). 
If the Put Option and/or Call Option are exercised in part or in full in any calendar year, then 
Section 11.5 (Release; Payment; Cancellation of Raw Water Credits) shall also apply. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Wingfoot shall retain one hundred percent (100%) of 
the proceeds received by it from the sale of any Released Credits. 

11.4 Contents of Notices; Acknowledgement. Each Call Notice and Put Notice shall 
contain (a) the number of Raw Water Credits to which the Call Option or Put Option is being 
exercised ("Exercised Credits"), (b) the Option Price, and (c) the product of the Option Price and 
Exercised Credits (the "Exercise Price"), with respect to such Call Option or Put Option being 
exercised. 

11.5 Release; Payment; Cancellation of Raw Water Credits. On July 16 of each year, in 
the event that the Put Option and/or Call Option is properly exercised by providing a timely Put 

30 

Page 124

Item No. 16.



Notice or Call Notice, respectively (each, an "Exercise Event"), then (i) the Credit Escrow Agent 
shall release one (1) Certificate evidencing one hundred sixty-seven (167) Raw Water Credits to 
Greeley (the "Surrendered Certificate") and (ii) the same amount shall be added to the Semester 
Total under Section 10.2. (Transfer of Tenancy in Common Interest). If an Exercise Event occurs 
in any calendar year as described in the preceding sentence, Wingfoot shall provide Greeley with 
wire transfer instructions (which may be included in the Put Notice, if applicable) on or before 
August 1. On or before the fifth (5th) business day after receipt of both the wire transfer 
instructions and the Surrendered Certificate, Greeley shall (x) pay Wingfoot the Exercise Price 
under the Put Notice and/or Call Notice, as applicable, and (y) Greeley shall issue Wingfoot a 
Certificate for the total Released Credits, if any, not exercised as part of any Exercise Event. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, in addition to proceeds received from sales of any 
Released Credits, Wingfoot may retain one hundred percent (100%) of the Exercise Price and none 
of the Exercise Price shall be required to be put into any escrow or otherwise withheld. 

11.6 Annual Limit. The annual aggregate maximum amount of Raw Water Credits that 
can be sold and purchased under the Put Option and Call Option shall be one hundred sixty-seven 
(167). Greeley shall not be obligated to purchase, and Wingfoot shall not be obligated to sell, 
more than an aggregate of one hundred sixty-seven (167) Raw Water Credits in any one year under 
the combined Call Option and Put Option for such calendar year. 

11.7 Assignment; Transfer. Wingfoot, or any of its duly-authorized successors or 
assigns, may assign all of its rights (or remaining rights) under this Article 11 to a third-party and 
the Credit Escrow (such third party, a "Credit Escrow Transferee"), provided that the form of 
assignment (and any subsequent reassignment) shall be approved by Greeley in its reasonable 
discretion. On or shortly after Closing, Wingfoot intends to assign all of its rights under this Article 
11 to a third-party directly or indirectly owned or controlled by HA I, LLC, which entity, as Credit 
Escrow Transferee, intends to assign its rights, remedies and obligations under this Article 11, 
including an assignment of revenues derived from the rights and/or obligations, to an indenture 
trustee in connection with financing secured by Wingfoot. In anticipation of that assignment, the 
Parties have agreed that Greeley shall issue a series of twenty-five (25) Certificates in the name of 
Wingfoot and a second series of twenty-five (25) Certificates, which have been duly assigned by 
Wingfoot, in the name of the Credit Escrow Transferee and to deliver both series of Certificates to 
the Credit Escrow Agent at Closing. Upon assignment of Wingfoot's rights under this Article 11 
and the Credit Escrow to a Credit Escrow Transferee, the following shall occur: (i) the Credit 
Escrow Agent shall be directed to release to Greeley (for cancellation by Greeley) the twenty-five 
(25) Certificates held in the name of Wingfoot, each evidencing 167 Escrowed Credits, along with 
the duly executed assignment by Wingfoot to the Credit Escrow Transferee; (ii) the Credit Escrow 
Agent shall be directed to continue to maintain custody of the remaining twenty-five (25) 
Certificates evidencing the issued but unreleased Escrowed Credits in the name of and for the 
benefit of the Credit Escrow Transferee; (iii) the total number of Raw Water Credits (totaling 4,175 
credits) that are in the name of Wingfoot and released to Greeley pursuant to 11.7(i) shall be added 
to the applicable Semester Total under Section 10.2 (Transfer of the Tenancy in Common Interest); 
(iv) the Credit Escrow Agent shall be directed to accept notices and instructions from the Credit 
Escrow Transferee (including the Put Notice, Release Notice, and rights to the Released Credits) 
as though it were a party (as if it was Wingfoot) to this Agreement and the Credit Escrow; and (v) 
Wingfoot shall covenant and agree, for itself, its successors and assigns, to indemnify, protect, 
defend and hold harmless Greeley, its successors and assigns, from and against any and all 

31 
Page 125

Item No. 16.



damages, losses, liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, litigation, demands, defenses, 
judgments, suits, actions, proceedings, costs, disbursements and/or expenses (including without 
limitation reasonable attorneys' fees) which are imposed upon or incurred by Greeley, its 
successors or assigns, for claims by any Credit Escrow Transferee against Greeley for breaches by 
Wingfoot of the assignment (described in this Section 11.7) to any Credit Escrow Transferee. 
Wingfoot agrees that the foregoing covenants and agreements shall survive any subsequent 
assignment. The Parties expressly acknowledge that an assignment of Wingfoot's or Credit Escrow 
Transferee's rights, remedies and obligations under this Article 11, including an assignment of 
revenues derived from the rights and/or obligations under this Article 11, to an indenture trustee 
in connection with financing secured by Wingfoot or Credit Escrow Transferee shall be permitted, 
provided such assignment otherwise complies with this Section 11.7. Upon assignment of 
Wingfoot's (or any subsequent Credit Escrow Transferee's) rights under this Article 11, the Credit 
Escrow Transferee shall be shall be entitled to enforce Wingfoot's rights and remedies pursuant to 
Article 14 (Post-Closing Defaults and Remedies) and Section 10.5 (Material Change to Market 
Value), as may be applicable and to the extent of the Escrowed Credits, (i) in the event of any 
Greeley breach of its obligations under this Article 11, any default by Greeley under Article 14 or 
as may be owed to the Credit Escrow Transferee, or (ii) to otherwise enforce the protections 
applicable to the Escrowed Credits (including protections generally inuring to the benefit of the 
Raw Water Credits) under this Agreement. In addition, the Credit Escrow Transferee shall have 
the rights applicable to a Registered Owner under the Escrowed Credits, and shall be treated as the 
Registered Owner of the Escrowed Credits for such purpose (including, without limitation, for 
purposes of enforcing its remedies under the terms of the Certificates). Following transfer or 
assignment of Wingfoot's obligations, rights, and remedies pursuant to this Section 11.7, all 
references to Wingfoot in Article 11 shall mean and refer to Credit Escrow Transferee and its duly 
authorized successors and assigns. 

11.8 Termination of Article 11. Except as otherwise provided, this Article 11 shall 
terminate at expiration of the Option Period. Upon expiration of the Option Period, all rights, 
remedies, and obligations under this Article 11 shall terminate, except for such rights, remedies 
and obligations that are left unperformed as of the date of the end of the Option Period. Subject 
to the preceding sentence, on termination of Article 11, Credit Escrow Transferee shall have 
remedies only under the terms of the Certificates it holds as a Registered Owner and not under this 
Agreement. 

11.9 Treatment of Semester Total Following Assignment. Notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary in this Article 11 (including but not limited to Sections 11.3 and 11.5), exercise or 
release of any Escrowed Credits under this Article 11 shall not impact the Semester Total 
subsequent to Wingfoot' s transfer or assignment of this Article 11 to a Credit Escrow Transferee 
pursuant to Section 11.7, the intent being that Wingfoot has transferred the amount of Wingfoot's 
TIC Interest that corresponds to the Escrowed Credits upon assignment of this Article 11. 

32 
Page 126

Item No. 16.



ARTICLE 12  
REVENUE SHARING 

12.1 Revenue Sharing. 

A. Use; Outside Customers Non-Municipal. From the Closing Date until the 
earlier of December 31, 2055, or twenty-five (25) years after Greeley has certified completion of 
the Project Infrastructure, Wingfoot shall be entitled to receive an amount equal to fifty percent 
(50%) of the Net Revenue generated by Greeley from the sale or lease of the untreated, raw water 
attributable to the Water Rights or the State Land Board Lease to non-municipal, non-domestic 
customers, including but not limited to oil and gas operators and agricultural water users. For this 
purpose, "Net Revenue" means an amount equal to the net proceeds of such sales or leases after 
deduction of power costs for any pumping required to deliver such water. Wingfoot shall also 
receive an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of any revenue derived from the operation of power 
generation facilities constructed as part of the Project Infrastructure for a period of twenty-five 
(25) years after completion of the Project Infrastructure ("Power Revenue Interest"). In the event 
power generating facilities are completed as part of the Project Infrastructure prior to December 
31, 2055, then on or before December 31, 2055, Greeley and Wingfoot shall appoint an 
independent third-party expert, agreeable to both Greeley and Wingfoot, who is an expert in power 
generation and valuation, to perform a valuation of the obligation of Greeley to pay the remaining 
25-year Power Revenue Interest to Wingfoot beyond December 31, 2055 in addition to any then 
unpaid Power Revenue Interests (the "Power Valuation") and deliver a written report of the Power 
Valuation to Greeley and Wingfoot. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of such report, Greeley 
shall purchase the remaining, unpaid Power Revenue Interest for the amount of the Power 
Valuation (the "Power Transaction"). Greeley shall determine in its sole discretion whether to sell 
or lease the untreated, raw water attributable to the Water Rights and the State Land Board Lease, 
and at what rate, and whether to install power generating capabilities. This provision shall only 
apply to the untreated, raw water attributable to the Water Rights and the State Land Board Lease, 
but shall not apply to the revenue generated from the sale or lease of wholly consumable effluent 
associated with Greeley's use of the water attributable to the Water Rights and/or the State Land 
Board Lease. 

B. Outside Customers. From the Closing Date until the earlier of December 
31, 2050, or twenty-five (25) years after Greeley has certified completion of the Project 
Infrastructure, Wingfoot shall be entitled to receive an amount equal to fifty cents ($0.50) per one-
thousand (1,000) gallons of treated water attributable to the Water Rights and/or the State Land 
Board Lease and delivered by Greeley to municipal and domestic water users located outside of 
the Service Area. Greeley shall maintain and make available to Wingfoot on request, flow records 
and water rights accounting for any deliveries outside the Service Area. 

ARTICLE 13  
CONDITIONS OF CLOSING 

13.1 Wingfoot's Conditions. Wingfoot's obligation to sell, convey and assign, as 
applicable, the Assets at Closing under this Agreement is subject to the satisfaction of the following 
conditions precedent or conditions concurrent (the satisfaction of which may be waived only in 

33 
Page 127

Item No. 16.



writing by Wingfoot). If Wingfoot elects not to close this transaction for failure of a condition, 
this Agreement shall terminate. 

A. Delivery and execution by Greeley of all monies, items, and other 
instruments required to be delivered by Greeley at or prior to the Closing. 

B. All of the actions contemplated by this Agreement to have been performed 
by Greeley at or before Closing shall have been completed. 

C. There being no uncured default by Greeley of any of its obligations under 
this Agreement resulting in a Material Adverse Effect. 

D. The pre-closing conditions under Section 6.1.A (Governing Body 
Approval) and B (Raw Water Dedication Policy) have been satisfied. 

E. The warranties and representations made by Greeley as specifically set 
forth in Greeley's General Representations, attached as Exhibit K, shall be true and correct in all 
material respects as of the Closing Date, and the warranties and representations made by Greeley 
as specifically set forth in the Environmental Representations and Warranties, attached as Exhibit 
H, shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the Closing Date. 

F. No Credit Event shall have occurred and be continuing with respect to 
Greeley. 

13.2 Greeley's Conditions. The obligation of Greeley to acquire and assume, as 
applicable, the Assets at Closing under this Agreement is subject to the satisfaction of the following 
conditions precedent or conditions concurrent (the satisfaction of which may be waived only in 
writing by Greeley). If Greeley elects not to close this transaction for failure of a condition, this 
Agreement shall terminate. 

A. Delivery and execution by Wingfoot of all items and other instruments 
required to be delivered by Wingfoot at or prior to the Closing. 

B. All of the actions contemplated by this Agreement to have been performed 
by Wingfoot at or prior to Closing shall have been completed. 

C. There being no uncured default by Wingfoot of any of its material 
obligations under this Agreement resulting in a Material Adverse Effect. 

D. No Credit Event shall have occurred and be continuing with respect to 
Wingfoot. 

E. That the pre-closing condition under Section 6.1.A (Governing Body 
Approval) has been satisfied. 

F. That the warranties and representations made by Wingfoot as specifically 
set forth in Wingfoot's General Representations and Warranties, attached as Exhibit J, and the 
Environmental Representations and Warranties, attached as Exhibit G, shall be true and correct in 

34 
Page 128

Item No. 16.



all material respects as of the Closing Date and shall not be deemed waived in the event Greeley 
shall elect to close pursuant to Section 13.3.A(3) (Failure of Condition) below. 

13.3 Failure of Condition. 

A. Except (i) as set forth in subparagraph B below and (ii) for failure of the 
condition set forth in Section 13.2.E (Greeley's Conditions) which shall be subject to Section 6.1.A 
(Governing Body Approval), in the event of a failure of any condition contained in Section 13.2 
(Greeley's Conditions), Greeley may in its sole discretion: 

(1) Terminate this Agreement by written notice to Wingfoot, in which 
event: (a) all funds deposited by Greeley under this Agreement as of such date shall be immediately 
returned to Greeley and (b) Greeley shall be entitled to reimbursements from Wingfoot and 
Wingfoot shall be obligated to pay Greeley for all reasonable, out-of-pocket costs incurred by 
Greeley subsequent to the Effective Date and prior to the termination arising from or in connection 
with this Agreement, which shall include but is not limited to the Inspection Costs; or 

(2) Greeley may waive such default or condition and effectuate the 
Closing; or 

(3) If the failure of condition consists of a default by Wingfoot that can 
be cured by action within the reasonable control of Wingfoot, Greeley may elect to treat this 
Agreement as being in full force and effect and Greeley shall have the right to specific 
performance, monetary damages arising out of such default, or both, EXCEPT THAT GREELEY 
SPECIFICALLY WAIVES ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, SPECULATIVE 
OR INDIRECT DAMAGES. 

B. In the event of a failure of any condition contained in Section 13.1 
(Wingfoot's Conditions) above, Wingfoot may in its sole discretion: 

(1) Terminate this Agreement by written notice to Greeley, in which 
event Wingfoot shall retain the Deposit, as liquidated damages pursuant to Section 13.4 (Pre-
Closing Liquidated Damages), in addition to reimbursements from Greeley of all of Wingfoot's 
reasonable, out-of-pocket costs incurred by Wingfoot subsequent to the Effective Date and prior 
to the termination arising from or in connection with this Agreement; or 

(2) Wingfoot may waive such default or condition and effectuate the 
Closing and Wingfoot shall have the right to recover monetary damages arising out of such default, 
EXCEPT THAT WINGFOOT SPECIFICALLY WAIVES ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, 
PUNITIVE, SPECULATIVE OR INDIRECT DAMAGES. 

WINGFOOT HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHTS IT MAY HAVE TO SPECIFIC 
PERFORMANCE IN THE EVENT OF A DEFAULT BY GREELEY. 

13.4 Pre-Closing Liquidated Damages. If Greeley defaults in any of its obligations 
under this Agreement prior to Closing and Wingfoot does not waive the default, Wingfoot's sole 
remedy shall be to terminate this Agreement and retain the amount of the Deposit as liquidated 
damages in addition to reimbursements from Greeley of all of Wingfoot's reasonable, out-of-

 

35 
Page 129

Item No. 16.



pocket costs incurred by Wingfoot subsequent to the Effective Date and prior to the termination 
arising from or in connection with this Agreement. WINGFOOT AND GREELEY 
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT WINGFOOT'S DAMAGES WOULD BE DIFFICULT TO 
DETERMINE AND THAT THE DEPOSIT AND REIMBURSEMENTS IS A REASONABLE 
ESTIMATE OF WINGFOOT'S DAMAGES. 

ARTICLE 14  
POST-CLOSING DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES  

14.1 Events of Default. After Closing, each of the following shall constitute an "Event 
of Default": 

A. Failure by either Party to make any payment or deposit when due. 

B. Default by either Party in the due and punctual performance of any of its 
covenants, conditions, agreements or other provisions contained in this Agreement on its part to 
be performed, if such default continues for thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such 
default and requiring the same to be remedied is given by the non-defaulting Party; provided that 
if such default cannot be cured within such thirty (30) days, and during such thirty (30) day period 
the defaulting Party has taken commercially reasonable efforts to remedy such default and 
subsequently is diligently pursued to the completion of such performance, an Event of Default 
shall not be deemed to have occurred until ninety (90) days after written notice has been delivered. 

C. Subject to the survival provisions of Section 17.9 (Survival), any of the 
representations or warranties made by a Party shall prove to have been materially incorrect under 
the circumstances when made. 

D. The occurrence and continuation of a Credit Event with respect to either 
Party. 

14.2 Remedies, Generally. Upon the occurrence and continuation of an Event of 
Default, the following remedies shall be available to the Parties: 

A. Except as provided in Section 14.3.A (Special Provisions for Liquidated 
Damages) below, if an Event of Default by Wingfoot, Greeley may in its sole discretion: 

(1) Waive such default or condition; or 

(2) If the Event of Default by Wingfoot can be cured by action within 
the reasonable control of Wingfoot, then Greeley may elect to treat this Agreement as being in full 
force and effect and Greeley may suspend its obligation to issue, reissue, acquire or buy Raw Water 
Credits, except as may be required by Article 11 (Put and Call Options) (which obligations may 
not be suspended by Greeley, subject to Section 11.8), until the default is cured, and shall have 
the right to specific performance, damages, or both, EXCEPT THAT GREELEY SPECIFICALLY 
WAIVES ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, SPECULATIVE OR INDIRECT 
DAMAGES; or 

36 
Page 130

Item No. 16.



(3) If the Event of Default by Wingfoot consists of a failure under 
Section 9.1.A (Deposit Due) to deposit the Initial Contribution within ninety (90) days of the 
Closing Date, then this Agreement shall automatically terminate, in which event: (a) the Purchase 
Price shall be returned to Greeley; (b) the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest shall be conveyed 
back to Wingfoot, along with a re-assignment of the Ancillary Assets and the State Land Board 
Lease; and (c) all documents deposited by Greeley or delivered to Wingfoot by Greeley shall be 
immediately returned to Greeley, if any, and all documents deposited by Wingfoot or delivered to 
Greeley by Wingfoot shall be immediately returned to Wingfoot, if any. In addition, Greeley shall 
be entitled to reimbursements from Wingfoot and Wingfoot shall be obligated to pay Greeley for 
all reasonable, third party out-of-pocket costs incurred by Greeley subsequent to the Effective Date 
but prior to the termination, which shall include but not be limited to the Inspection Costs. Upon 
termination, all other rights and obligations of the Parties shall be terminated under this 
Agreement, except for the covenants, agreements and monetary obligations contained in Section 
17.9 (Survival) which shall survive the Termination of this Agreement, for the time period(s) 
specified therein, and the rights and obligations of the Registered Owners of any Certificates 
remaining outstanding. 

(4) If the Event of Default consists of a default by Wingfoot under 
Section 9.2.B (Failure to Fund the Cash Contribution) or Section 14.1.D (Credit Event) then 
Greeley may elect to terminate this Agreement by delivering written notice to Wingfoot, in which 
event, as Liquidated Damages pursuant to Section 14.3.A (Special Provision for Liquidated 
Damages), Greeley may elect to require that Wingfoot convey the entirety of Wingfoot's TIC 
Interest to Greeley, and, in the event of a default by Wingfoot under Section 9.2.B (Failure to Fund 
the Cash Contribution), Wingfoot shall continue to be subject to its Deposit Obligation under 
Section 9.1.B (Source of Funds) until Wingfoot's Cash Contribution obligation is fully satisfied 
(as provided in Section 9.2.B (Failure to Fund the Cash Contribution)). Upon termination, all other 
rights and obligations of the Parties shall be terminated under this Agreement except for the 
covenants, agreements and monetary obligations contained in Section 17.9 (Survival) which shall 
survive the Termination of this Agreement, for the time period(s) specified therein, and the 
obligations, liabilities, covenants, agreements and monetary obligations contained in following 
Article(s), Section(s) or term(s) which shall survive the Termination of this Agreement: (i) Article 
11 (Put and Call Options) subject to Section 11.8; (ii) Wingfoot's Deposit Obligation under Section 
9.1.B (Source of Funds), which shall survive until the Cash Contribution is satisfied as provided 
in Section 9.1.B (Source of Funds); and (iii) Section 17.18 (Limited Source of Payments by 
Greeley), which shall survive as long as Greeley has obligations to Wingfoot or any assignee or 
Credit Escrow Transferee hereunder; and (iv) Section 10.5 (Material Change to Market Value), 
which shall survive (a) as long as Wingfoot remains a Registered Owner and (b) until Article 11 
terminates pursuant to Section 11.8. 

B. If the Event of Default consists of a default by Greeley under Section 
14.1.B or C (Events of Default) above, Wingfoot may in its sole discretion: 

(1) Waive such default or condition; or 

(2) If the default by Greeley can be cured by action within the 
reasonable control of Greeley, then Wingfoot may elect to treat this Agreement as being in full 
force and effect and Wingfoot shall have the right to specific performance, damages, or both, 

37 
Page 131

Item No. 16.



EXCEPT THAT WINGFOOT SPECIFICALLY WAIVES ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, 
PUNITIVE, SPECULATIVE OR INDIRECT DAMAGES. 

(3) If the default consists of a default by Greeley under Section 
10.5.A.(1) (Revocation) or (2) (Amendments), 17.11 (Assignment), 14.1.A. or 14.1.D (Events of 
Default), then, as Liquidated Damages pursuant to Section 14.3.B (Special Provision for 
Liquidated Damages), Wingfoot may elect to terminate this Agreement by delivering written 
notice to Greeley, in which event, (i) Wingfoot (or the Credit Escrow Transferee, as the case may 
be) shall have the option to sell to Greeley, and Greeley shall be obligated to purchase, all unissued 
Raw Water Credits and all current Escrowed Credits (i.e., all Raw Water Credits remaining to be 
issued to Wingfoot or remaining with the Credit Escrow Agent pursuant to the Credit Escrow as 
of the date of such termination and whether or not considered issued under this Agreement) at the 
greater of (a) a price of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) per Raw Water Credit in 2020 escalated 
three percent (3%) compounded annually thereafter, or (b) the 3-year trailing average of Greeley's 
cash-in-lieu price; and (ii) Wingfoot shall be entitled to all funds remaining in the Construction 
Escrow as of the date of default by Greeley. If Wingfoot exercises such election, then upon receipt 
of the full cash payment, Wingfoot shall concurrently convey its entire TIC Interest to Greeley in 
accordance with Section 10.2 (Transfer of the Tenancy in Common Interest) as if the unissued 
Raw Water Credits had been issued to Wingfoot and the Escrowed Credits released. Upon 
termination, all other rights and obligations of the Parties shall be terminated under this Agreement 
except for the covenants, agreements and monetary obligations contained in Section 17.9 
(Survival) which shall survive the Termination of this Agreement for the time period(s) specified 
therein. For the avoidance of doubt, Credit Escrow Transferee may elect to terminate that portion 
of this Agreement duly assigned to it pursuant to Section 11.7, and be entitled to sell to Greeley 
(and obligate Greeley to purchase) such assigned, unreleased Escrowed Credits pursuant to this 
Section 14.2.B(3). For purposes of exercising its rights under this Section, a Credit Escrow 
Transferee shall only have the right to terminate Article 11 of this Agreement (and only to the 
extent of its assignment and assumption of such Article pursuant to the terms of this Agreement), 
by delivering written notice to Greeley pursuant to this Section 14.2.B.(3), and provided that such 
termination by a Credit Escrow Transferee shall (i) be without regard to Wingfoot's election to 
terminate, and (ii) not affect the rights, obligations or remedies retained by Wingfoot pursuant to 
this Agreement. 

(4) If the Event of Default consists of a default by Greeley under Section 
10.3 (Administration; Tracking), then Wingfoot may elect to treat this Agreement as being in full 
force and effect and, upon delivering written notice to Greeley, Wingfoot may require that Greeley 
retain a financial institution, reasonably acceptable to Greeley and experienced in maintaining 
similar registries, to act as the registrar and administer the Registry until December 31, 2099 or 
such earlier date as the last outstanding Raw Water Credit has been redeemed. 

C. If the Event of Default consists of a default by Greeley under Section 
10.5.B (Cash-in-Lieu), then, as Liquidated Damages pursuant to Section 14.3.0 (Special 
Provisions for Liquidated Damages),Wingfoot may elect to treat this Agreement as being in full 
force and effect and, upon delivering written notice to Greeley, Greeley shall be obligated to pay 
the Specified Difference. 

38 
Page 132

Item No. 16.



D. If a cure period for an Event of Default is not otherwise expressly 
provided in this Agreement then, except for the giving of notices, neither party shall be deemed in 
default hereunder with respect to such Event of Default unless such Party fails to cure such default 
within thirty (30) days after written notice stating such default and requiring the same to be 
remedied is given by the non-defaulting Party; provided that if such default cannot be cured within 
such thirty (30) days, and during such thirty (30) day period the defaulting Party has taken 
commercially reasonable efforts to remedy such default and subsequently is diligently pursued to 
the completion of such performance (a full cure), an Event of Default shall not be deemed to have 
occurred until ninety (90) days after written notice has been delivered. If a cure period for an 
Event of Default is expressly provided in this Agreement, then such express cure period will 
control and be given effect. 

14.3 Special Provisions for Liquidated Damages. The following provisions shall apply 
to Events of Default by either Party which result in the following liquidated damages (each referred 
to as "Liquidated Damages"): 

A. If Wingfoot defaults in any of its obligations under Section 9.1.A 
(Deposits Due) and Greeley elects to terminate this Agreement, then Greeley's sole remedy shall 
be the terms of Section 14.2.A.(3) (Remedies, Generally). WINGFOOT AND GREELEY 
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT GREELEY'S DAMAGES WOULD BE DIFFICULT TO 
DETERMINE AND THAT THE TERMS OF SECTION 14.2.A.(3) (Remedies, Generally) ARE 
A REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF GREELEY'S DAMAGES. 

B. If Greeley defaults in any of its obligations under Section 10.5.A(1) 
(Revocation) and (2) (Amendments) of this Agreement and Wingfoot elects to terminate this 
Agreement, then Wingfoot's sole remedy shall be the terms of Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, 
Generally). WINGFOOT AND GREELEY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT WINGFOOT'S 
DAMAGES WOULD BE DIFFICULT TO DETERMINE AND THE TERMS OF SECTION 
14.2.B(3) (REMEDIES, GENERALLY) ARE A REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF 
WINGFOOT'S DAMAGES. 

C. If Greeley defaults in any of its obligations under Section 10.5.B (Cash-
in-Lieu) of this Agreement, Wingfoot's sole remedy shall be to the Specified Difference as 
provided in Section 10.5.B. WINGFOOT AND GREELEY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT 
WINGFOOT'S DAMAGES WOULD BE DIFFICULT TO DETERMINE AND THAT THE 
SPECIFIED DIFFERENCE IS A REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF WINGFOOT'S DAMAGES. 

ARTICLE 15  
CONDEMNATION 

If prior to Closing all or a Material Part (defined below) of the Property are subject to a 
proposed taking by any public authority other than Greeley, Wingfoot shall promptly notify 
Greeley of such proposed taking and Greeley may terminate this Agreement by notice to Wingfoot 
within fifteen (15) days after written notice thereof. In the event Greeley elects to terminate this 
Agreement, the Deposit shall be returned to Greeley and neither Party shall have any further 
obligation to the other except as provided in Section 17.9 (Survival). If Greeley does not terminate 
this Agreement, or if the taking is as to a non-Material Part of the Property, Greeley shall accept 

39 
Page 133

Item No. 16.



title to the Property subject to the taking without a reduction in the Purchase Price and shall receive 
at Closing an assignment of all of Wingfoot's rights to any condemnation award and Greeley shall 
have the sole right after the Closing to negotiate and otherwise deal with the condemning authority 
in respect of such matter. A "Material Part" of the Property for purposes of this Article 15 shall 
mean a portion that would have a Material Adverse Effect on Greeley's use of the Property to 
deliver water and as an aquifer supply, recharge and storage facility as determined by Greeley in 
its good faith judgment. 

ARTICLE 16 
NOTICES  

Any notice statement, demand, claim, offer or other written instrument required or 
permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing signed by the Party giving 
such notice and shall be sent by electronic mail, hand messenger delivery, overnight courier service 
or certified mail (receipt requested) to each other Party at the address set forth below and shall be 
deemed to have been duly given by delivery to the respective addresses provided below, or such 
other address changed by the recipient by notice consistent with this Article: (i) on the date and at 
the time of delivery if delivered personally to the Party to whom notice is given at such address; 
(ii) on the date and at the time of delivery or refusal of acceptance of delivery if delivered or 
attempted to be delivered by an overnight courier service to the Party to whom notice is given at 
such address; (iii) on the date of delivery or attempted delivery shown on the return receipt if 
mailed to the Party to whom notice is to be given by first-class mail, sent by registered or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and properly addressed to such address; (iv) if a 
facsimile number is specified, on the date and at the time shown on the facsimile; or (v) if an e-
mail address is specified, on the date and at the time shown on the sent e-mail message if sent to 
the e-mail address specified below: 

If to Wingfoot: 

With a copy to: 

and a copy to: 

If to Greeley: 

Wingfoot Water Resources LLC 
800 8th Ave, Ste 122 
Greeley, CO 80631 
Telephone: (720) 544-3932 
Email: cdietzler@wingfootwaterresources.corn 

Hogan Lovells US LLP 
1601 Wewatta St, Ste. 900 
Denver, CO 80202 
Telephone: (303) 899-7300 
Email: scot.anderson@hoganlovells.com 

ana.gutierrez@hoganlovells.com 
mark. heimlich@hoganlovells com 

Christopher P. Dietzler 
Email: cdietzler@poudrevalleycapital.com 

City of Greeley 
Attention: Director, Water and Sewer 
1001 11th Street, 2nd Floor 

40 
Page 134

Item No. 16.



Greeley, CO 80631 
Telephone: (970) 350-9812 
Facsimile: (970) 350-9805 
Email: Sean.Chamber@greeleygov.com 

Adam.Jokerst@greeleygov.com 
WSAdmin@Greeleygov.com 

With a copy to: City of Greeley 
Attention: City Attorney 
1100 10th Street, Ste. 401 
Greeley, CO 80631 
Telephone: (970) 350-9757 
Facsimile: (970) 350-9763 
Email: Douglas.Marek@Greeleygov.com 

Jerrae.Swanson@Greeleygov.com 
CityAttorney@Greeleygov.com 

ARTICLE 17  
MISCELLANEOUS 

17.1 Termination. Except as otherwise provided, this Agreement shall terminate at the 
later of the end of the Option Period or the expiration of the revenue sharing obligation of Greeley 
under Section 12.1 (Revenue Sharing). Upon termination of this Agreement, all other rights and 
obligations of the Parties shall be terminated under this Agreement except for the representations, 
obligations, liabilities, warranties, covenants, agreements and monetary obligations contained in 
following Article(s), Section(s) or term(s) which shall survive the Termination of this Agreement 
in addition to those identified in Section 17.9 (Survival): (i) Section 10.5.A(2) (Amendments); (ii) 
Article 11 (Put and Call Options) subject to Section 11.8; and (iii) Section 10.5.B (Cash-In-Lieu), 
which shall terminate on the dates specified therein. 

17.2 No Third Party Beneficiary; No Waiver of Governmental Immunity. This 
Agreement shall not create any duty of care or liability with respect to any person or entity not a 
Party to this Agreement, including without limitation any Registered Owner (except for Wingfoot), 
or waive any of the privileges or immunities Greeley or their officers, employees, successors and 
assigns may present pursuant to law, including, but not limited to, the Colorado Governmental 
Immunity Act, C.R.S . 24-10-101, et seq., as amended. 

17.3 Limits on Governmental Immunity. Greeley represents that, pursuant to C.R.S. 
§24-10-106, its governmental immunity is limited to claims for injury that lie in tort or could lie 
in tort. Under existing law, Greeley is not entitled to raise the defense of sovereign immunity in 
connection with any legal proceeding to enforce or collect upon contractual obligations, including 
this Agreement, or any amendments or exhibits to this Agreement, including the payment of any 
amounts due thereunder, provided however that no term or condition of this Agreement shall be 
construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the privileges or immunities of 
Greeley or its officers, employees, successors or assigns may present pursuant to law, including 
but not limited to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. §24-10-101 et seq., as 
amended. 

41 
Page 135

Item No. 16.



17.4 Mediation. If any dispute arises under this Agreement (including as to whether any 
Party has breached this Agreement or whether an Event of Default has occurred), then either Party 
may require that the other engage in nonbinding dispute resolution processes upon delivery of a 
written notice (a "Dispute Notice") setting forth the disputed matter. Upon receipt by the other 
party of such Dispute Notice, the Parties shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to 
negotiate a resolution of the dispute for a period of thirty (30) days (the "Dispute Resolution 
Period") which may include mediation using a mediator chosen by the Parties. During the Dispute 
Resolution Period, no Party may bring a claim or commence legal action related to or in connection 
with the matter set forth in the Dispute Notice until the Dispute Resolution Period ends. This 
Section 17.4 shall not alter any date in this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed. 

17.5 Time. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, time is of the essence as to 
each provision of this Agreement and the performance of each Party's obligations hereunder. 

17.6 Attorneys' Fees. If any legal action or other proceeding is commenced to enforce 
or interpret any provision of this Agreement, the Prevailing Party (defined below) shall be awarded 
its attorneys' fees and expenses, in addition to any other relief granted. The phrase "Prevailing 
Party" shall include a Party who receives substantially the relief desired whether by dismissal, 
summary judgment, judgment or otherwise. This provision shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 

17.7 No Waiver. No waiver by any party of the performance or satisfaction of any 
covenant or condition shall be valid unless in writing and shall not be considered to be a waiver 
by such party of any other covenant or condition hereunder. Any failure of a Party to enforce any 
of the provisions of this Agreement or to require compliance with any of its terms at any time 
during the pendency of this Agreement shall in no way affect the validity of this Agreement, or 
any part hereof, and shall not be deemed a waiver of the right of such Party thereafter to enforce 
any and each such provision. 

17.8 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and its Exhibits contain the entire agreement 
among the Parties regarding the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements, whether 
written or oral, among the Parties regarding the same. This Agreement may only be modified by 
mutual written agreement duly authorized and executed by the Parties. 

17.9 Survival. The following representations and warranties shall survive until Closing 
(and they shall terminate and be of no further force and effect after Closing), unless otherwise 
specified below, but if the Closing does not occur, the following representations and warranties 
shall terminate upon termination of this Agreement: 

A. All warranties of title set forth in this Agreement shall merge with any 
deed or assignment delivered at Closing. 

B. All representations and warranties contained in the General 
Representations and Warranties of both Parties shall survive for six months from the Closing Date, 
if the Closing Occurs. 

C. All representations and warranties contained in the Environmental 
Representations and Warranties. 

42 
Page 136

Item No. 16.



D. All other representations and warranties hereunder. 

All covenants and agreements (including monetary obligations) shall continue until the earlier of: 
(i) performance of such covenants or agreements or (ii) this Agreement terminates (except for the 
covenants and agreements contained in Article 11 (Put and Call Options),subject to Section 11.8, 
Section 14.2.A(4) (Remedies, Generally), 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) and Section 17.18 
(Limited Source of Payments by Greeley) which shall survive termination). 

17.10 Successors. Subject to Section 17.11 (Assignment), Section 8.2 (Conveyance of 
Tenancy in Common Interest) and Section 11.7 (Assignment; Transfer of Put and Call) this 
Agreement shall be binding upon, shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, the 
Parties, their successors and permitted assigns and the Parties hereto and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns. 

17.11 Assignment. No assignment shall relieve either of the Parties from its respective 
obligations hereunder if such obligations are not properly discharged by the assignee of such Party. 
The sale, pledge, or other disposition of greater than a fifty percent (50%) ownership interest in 
Wingfoot (a "Change of Control") to a third party not directly or indirectly owned or controlled 
by HA I, LLC shall require the written consent of Greeley, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
conditioned, withheld or delayed. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, neither this 
Agreement, nor any right hereunder, may be assigned by either Party without the prior written 
consent of the other Party, and any attempt to do so will be void. Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Agreement, in the event that Greeley unreasonably conditions, withholds or delays 
approval of any request for a Change of Control, Wingfoot may elect to terminate this Agreement 
and shall have the remedies provided in Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally). 

17.12 Relationship of the Parties. The Parties acknowledge that neither Party is an agent 
for the other Party, and that neither Party shall or can bind or enter into agreements for the other 
Party. 

17.13 Governing Law and Construction. This Agreement, including any instrument or 
agreement required hereunder, and all matters arising out of or in connection with this Agreement 
(whether in contract, tort or otherwise) shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the 
laws of the State of Colorado without giving effect to any conflict of law principles that would 
require the application of the laws of another jurisdiction. The Parties hereby agree that the normal 
rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party 
shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits 
hereto. 

17.14 Joint Effort. Preparation of this Agreement has been a joint effort of the Parties 
and the resulting document shall not be construed more severely against one Party than against 
any other Party. 

17.15 Review by Counsel. The Parties acknowledge that each Party and its legal counsel 
have reviewed and approved this Agreement. 

17.16 Calendar Days. In the event any time period set forth in this Agreement 
commences, expires or is determined from a date which falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal 

43 
Page 137

Item No. 16.



holiday of the State of Colorado, the date of such commencement, performance, expiration or 
determination shall automatically be extended to the next business day which is not a Saturday, 
Sunday or legal holiday of the State of Colorado. 

17.17 Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. The Agreement may be executed in two or 
more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same document. The Agreement, including all component parts set forth 
above, may be executed and delivered by electronic signature by any of the parties and all parties 
consent to the use of electronic signatures. 

17.18 Limited Source of Payments by Greeley. 

A. This Agreement does not constitute the debt, indebtedness or multiple 
fiscal year financial obligation of the City within the meaning of the constitution or laws of the 
State of Colorado or the home rule Charter of the City. 

B. Any obligation of Greeley for the payment of money hereunder (each a 
"Payment Obligation") shall be solely the special and limited obligations of the Enterprise. Any 
Payment Obligation shall be payable solely from the net revenues of the Water System remaining 
in each year after payment of or provision for (1) all standard operation and maintenance expenses 
of the Water System and the principal of, interest on and reserve requirements of its first-lien 
"Parity Obligations" (as that term is defined in the Water Revenue Bond Ordinance) issued and 
outstanding from time to time permitted by Ordinance No. 41, 2018 (the "Water Revenue Bond  
Ordinance"), (2) a reserve for operation and maintenance expenses equal to twenty five percent 
(25%) of the previous year's operation and maintenance expenses, and (3) reserves for 
depreciation and other amounts with respect to the Water System specifically required by the City 
Charter as in effect on the Closing Date (such net revenues being referred to herein as the "Surplus  
Revenues"). Each Payment Obligation shall constitute a "Subordinate Obligation" (as that term 
is defined in the Water Revenue Bond Ordinance) of the City, acting by and through the Enterprise, 
provided that notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 22 and 25(c) of the Water Revenue Bond 
Ordinance, Greeley shall not be required in any year to apply more than seventy percent (70%) of 
its Surplus Revenues to the payment of all Payment Obligations. 

C. In the event that Greeley fails to pay any Payment Obligations in full in 
the year incurred, then, and without limiting Wingfoot's other remedies under this Agreement or 
applicable law, the unpaid portion of the Payment Obligation shall continue to be due and shall be 
payable as provided in this Section 17.18. Greeley shall issue to Wingfoot a subordinate 
promissory note (each a "Subordinate Revenue Note"), in a principal amount equal to each such 
unpaid portion. The parties agree and acknowledge that any such Subordinate Revenue Note 
constitutes a "Security" as defined at C.R.S. §11-57-203(5), and is subject to the provisions of the 
Supplemental Public Securities Act, C.R.S. §11-57-201 et seq. Any such Subordinate Revenue 
Note shall mature not more than fifteen (15) years from issuance and shall be payable solely from 
Surplus Revenues semiannually on the first day of February and the first day of August in each 
year in substantially level installments of principal and interest, with simple interest accruing on 
the unpaid principal amount at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum, and shall be subject to 
prepayment by Greeley in whole or in part, without prepayment penalty, upon not less than thirty 
(30) days' notice. Greeley shall set water rates during the term of any Subordinate Revenue Note 

44 
Page 138

Item No. 16.



at a level to assure repayment of the Subordinate Revenue Note within the fifteen year maturity 
period of the Subordinate Revenue Note. 

D. Pursuant to C.R.S. §11-57-208, the Surplus Revenues are hereby pledged 
as security for the Payment Obligations, if any. This pledge shall be specifically confirmed by the 
City Council of the City in connection with each issuance of a Subordinate Revenue Note. The 
creation, perfection and priority of such pledge shall be governed by such Section, this Agreement 
(which is, and shall be deemed to be, a security agreement for all purposes under sections 922(d) 
and 928(a) of the federal Bankruptcy Code) and the acts of issuance by the City Council taken in 
connection with the issuance of each Subordinate Revenue Note. Whether or not for whatever 
reason (i) a Subordinate Revenue Note is issued to evidence any Payment Obligation or (ii) the 
City Council of the City confirms the pledge, the Surplus Revenues are hereby subject to the lien 
of such pledge without any physical delivery, filing or further act on the part of the City, the 
Enterprise or Wingfoot, and such pledge shall have priority over any and all other obligations and 
liabilities of Greeley, except as limited in this Section 17.18 by the Charter or by the Water 
Revenue Bond Ordinance. In addition, any breach of or noncompliance with this Section 17.18 
shall not limit Wingfoot's rights or remedies under this Agreement or applicable law. The lien of 
each such pledge shall be valid, binding, and enforceable as against all persons having claims of 
any kind in tort, contract, or otherwise against the public entity irrespective of whether such 
persons have notice of such liens. Greeley agrees that it will authorize and issue all Subordinate 
Revenue Notes in the manner and according to the procedures provided by its Charter and the 
Water Revenue Bond Ordinance, including advertisement for public sale to the extent then 
required by the Charter. 

E. Greeley hereby represents and warrants, as of the Effective Date, that 
there are no other currently outstanding Subordinate Obligations, as that term is used in the Water 
Revenue Bond Ordinance. Greeley further covenants that it shall not create, nor cause to be 
created, any Subordinate Obligations other than (1) Subordinate Obligations or Subordinate 
Revenue Notes owed or issued to Wingfoot; (2) Subordinate Obligations or Subordinate Revenue 
Notes issued to persons other than Wingfoot for the purpose of paying or refinancing Subordinate 
Revenue Notes or Subordinate Obligations held by or owed to Wingfoot; or (3) Subordinate 
Obligations secured on a basis expressly junior to the Subordinate Obligations or Subordinate 
Revenue Notes owed to or held by Wingfoot. 

17.19 Interest. Any Payment Obligation owed by Greeley under this Agreement and not 
paid when due shall bear simple interest at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum on the unpaid 
amount until paid, provided that any such amount shall be subject to prepayment at any time in 
whole or in part, together with the interest accrued on the amount so prepaid. 

17.20 Fiscal Contingency. The City shall include in its budget and appropriation 
measures for each fiscal year the estimated amount of revenues available for Payment Obligations 
pursuant to Section 17.18 (Limited Source of Payments by Greeley) hereof. 

17.21 Integrated Agreement. This Agreement, including all exhibits referenced herein, 
constitutes the complete, unseverable, unitary, integrated agreement between Greeley and 
Wingfoot concerning the subject matter hereof. This Agreement constitutes the entire 
understanding between the parties hereto and supersedes and cancels all prior written and oral 

45 
Page 139

Item No. 16.



agreements and understandings, including the 2020 Agreement, with respect to the subject matter 
of this Agreement. The parties hereto acknowledge that they negotiated this Agreement, including 
all exhibits, as a single transaction and would not have entered into any portion of the Agreement 
without the rights and obligations conferred by the Agreement as a whole. In the event that (i) 
there is a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and any exhibits, or (ii) this Agreement 
provides additional or more specific rights or remedies than those described in the exhibits 
(including, for purposes of an example only, those under Article 17), the terms of this Agreement 
shall control; provided, however, that any such remedies shall not be cumulative. The rights 
created hereunder are intended by the parties to be presently vested and fully enforceable according 
to their terms. The provisions of this Agreement were negotiated as, and constitute, parts of an 
integrated whole, and the inability of either party to enforce any of such provisions or to 
consummate any of the transactions contemplated hereby due to changes in law, whether by 
amendments to the State or federal constitutions, the Charter, the Code or any applicable statute 
or regulation, or by regulatory or judicial action, would result in substantial and irreparable harm 
to both parties and an impairment of their vested contractual rights. 

17.22 Approval. THE OBLIGATIONS OF GREELEY ARE EXPRESSLY 
CONTINGENT UPON THE APPROVAL OF THIS AGREEMENT BY GREELEY CITY 
COUNCIL AND WATER AND SEWER BOARD PURSUANT TO SECTION 6.1.A 
(GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL) ABOVE. 

17.23 Requirement of Good Faith and Reasonable Judgment. Unless otherwise expressly 
provided in this Agreement, all decisions (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any 
determinations, approvals, and findings) to be made by a Party shall be interpreted to require the 
exercise of that Party's reasonable judgment, acting in good faith, in rendering such decision. 

17.24 Venue. All actions or proceedings arising out of or relating to this Agreement and 
any dispute shall be litigated in any court in Weld County, Colorado. Each Party accepts for itself, 
generally and unconditionally, the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the aforesaid courts, submits 
itself to the personal jurisdiction of such courts and waives any defense of forum non conveniens 
or any similar defense. Each Party hereby waives its respective right to a trial by jury for any 
claim or cause of action based upon or arising out of or related to this Agreement in any action, 
proceeding, or other litigation of any type brought by any Party against any other Party, whether 
with respect to contract claims, tort claims, or otherwise. Each Party agrees that any such claim or 
cause of action will be tried by a court trial without a jury. 

17.25 Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement 
for any reason is held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability will not 
affect any other provision of this Agreement, which will be construed as if the invalid or 
unenforceable provision had not been contained in this Agreement and, in lieu of each invalid or 
unenforceable provision, there will be added automatically as a part of this Agreement a provision 
as similar in terms to the invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible and be valid and 
enforceable. 

17.26 Amendments and Waivers. This Agreement may not be amended except by a 
writing signed by all of the Parties hereto. No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed 
waived except in a writing executed by the waiving party. 

46 
Page 140

Item No. 16.



17.27 No Warranty of Tax Treatment. Each party is relying solely on itself and its own 
tax advisors regarding the tax treatment of the transactions contemplated under this Agreement. 
Greeley does not give any assurance that any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
will be treated for federal or state income tax purposes in any particular manner. Wingfoot shall 
be solely responsible for any tax consequences to it or to its owners, successors or assigns resulting 
from the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement. 

17.28 Cooperation. At the request of the other Party, each Party, on its own behalf, 
covenants that it shall reasonably cooperate with the other Party, at no cost to the cooperating 
Party, in obtaining permits or other governmental approvals which are required to implement the 
Project and use it as an aquifer and storage recovery facility; provided that after Closing, the parties 
agree that Wingfoot shall not be required to spend more than a de minimis amount of time assisting 
Greeley obtaining permits or other governmental approvals. 

[Signatures on following pages] 

47 
Page 141

Item No. 16.



By: 
City 

By: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the dates 
set opposite their respective signatures below. 

WING SOURCES LLC, a 

Date: fi4/142/7 1/1  2.02/ 

Date: Pe-1Pr.k4fr-y 2,024 

APPROV AS TO BSTANCE: 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS:  

Name: Christopher P. ietzler 
Title:  Chief Executive Officer 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a 
Colorado home rule municipal corporation, 
acting by and through its WATER 
ENTERPRISE 

By:  
Name: Harold Evans 
Title: Water and Sewer Board Chairman  

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

Dir;/or of Finance 

RECOMMENDED: 

By: 
Director of Water and Sewer Department 

48 

Page 142

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT A-1 TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Legal Description of Terry Ranch  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 
Page 143

Item No. 16.



Legal Description of Terry Ranch 

Township 11 North, Range 67 West of The 6th P.M., County of Weld, State of Colorado: 

Section 1:  All. 

Section 3:  All. 

Section 4: SE 1/4, EXCEPT a strip for Union Pacific Railroad Company as shown on map 

filed July 2, 1917, at Reception No. 255201. 

Section 5:  All East of Interstate Highway No. 25 described in Book 1619 at Page 614. 

Section 8:  W 1/2. 

Section 9:  All, EXCEPT a strip 400 feet wide for Union Pacific Railroad Company road 

described in Book 233 at Page 153. 

Section 11:  All. 

Section 13:  All. 

Section 15:  All, EXCEPT a Strip 200 Feet Wide for Union Pacific Railroad Company road 

described in Book 149 at Page 411. 

Section 17:  All, EXCEPT that part conveyed to American Telephone and Telegraph Company 

described in Book 1076 at Page 441. 

Section 19: That part of said Section 19 described as follows: Beginning at the point of 

intersection of the East line of said Section and the North line of the County Road 

described in Book 999 at Page 193, said point being 30 feet North of the East 

quarter corner of said Section; thence Westerly along the Northerly line of said 

County Road to the intersection with the Easterly line of the Interstate Highway 

No. 25 as described in Book 1619 at Page 614; thence North easterly along the 

Easterly line of said Highway No. 25 to the North line of said Section; thence East 

to the Northeast corner of said Section; thence South to the point of beginning. 

Section 21:  All 

Section 22:  SW 1/4 NE 1/4; S 1/2 SE 1/4; NW 1/4 SE/4 and SW/4, EXCEPT a strip 400 feet 

wide for Union Pacific Railroad Company road as shown on Map filed July 2, 

1917. 

Section 23:  All 

Township 12 North, Range 67 West of The 6th P.M., County of Weld, State of Colorado: 

Section 21:  All in Colorado 

Section 23:  All in Colorado 

Section 25: All 

Section 27: All, EXCEPT a strip 400 feet wide in N 1/2 NW 1/4 and a strip 200 feet wide in 

SW 1/4 NW 1/4 of said Section conveyed to Union Pacific Railroad Company 

described in Book 233, Page 383. 

Section 29:  All East of Interstate Highway No. 25 described in Book 1619, Page 614 

Section 34:  SE 1/4 

Section 35:  All 

Page 144

Item No. 16.



All in Weld County, Colorado 

Page 145

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT A-2 TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Depiction of Terry Ranch 

(See attached Map) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 

Page 146

Item No. 16.



Document Path: C:\Users\James\OneDrive - grasslandwatersolutions 2.com\Documents\Grassland\GIS\MapFiles\Wingfoot_Greeley_Exhibit_Map.mxd

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community

K
0 1 20.5

Miles

1:50,000

Coordinate System:
NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Colorado North FIPS 0501 Feet

Property Outline

Terry Grazing Association
State Land Board (within TGA)

State Boundary

JS
June 2020

CD

Surface Ownership

  DATE:
  DRAWN:   CHECKED: Page 147

Item No. 16.

James
Rectangle



EXHIBIT B TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Access Easement 

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 

Page 148

Item No. 16.



Page 149

Item No. 16.



Page 150

Item No. 16.



Page 151

Item No. 16.



Page 152

Item No. 16.



Page 153

Item No. 16.



Page 154

Item No. 16.



Page 155

Item No. 16.



Page 156

Item No. 16.



Page 157

Item No. 16.



Page 158

Item No. 16.



Page 159

Item No. 16.



Page 160

Item No. 16.



Page 161

Item No. 16.



Page 162

Item No. 16.



Page 163

Item No. 16.



Page 164

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT C TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

State Land Board Lease  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 165

Item No. 16.



Page 166

Item No. 16.



Page 167

Item No. 16.



Page 168

Item No. 16.



Page 169

Item No. 16.



Page 170

Item No. 16.



Page 171

Item No. 16.



Page 172

Item No. 16.



Page 173

Item No. 16.



Page 174

Item No. 16.



Page 175

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT D TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Assignment and Assumption of State Land Board Lease  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 
Page 176

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
 

After recording please return to: 
 

 

City of Greeley 

Attn:  Director, Water and Sewer 

1001 11th Street, 2nd Floor 

Greeley, CO 80631 

Email:  WSAdmin@Greeleygov.com 

 

 

 

(This space reserved for recording information) 

 

**SUBJECT TO STATE LAND BOARD INPUT** 

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF COLORADO STATE BOARD OF LAND 
COMMISSIONERS GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LEASE 

 This ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF COLORADO STATE BOARD OF 
LAND COMMISSIONERS GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LEASE NO. OT-111631 
(“Assignment”), is entered into as of ________, 20__ (the “Effective Date”) by and among 
WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a [Delaware/Colorado] limited liability company 
(“Assignor”) and THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipal 
corporation, acting by and through its WATER ENTERPRISE, whose address is 1001 11th 
Avenue, 2nd Floor, Greeley, Colorado 80631 (“Assignee”) (collectively referred to as the 
“Parties”). 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, Assignor entered into that certain Groundwater Production Lease 
No. OT-111631 with the State of Colorado, acting through its State Board of Land 
Commissioners (“State Land Board”), dated as of January 18, 2018 (the “State Land Board 
Lease”), attached as Exhibit 1.   

 
B. WHEREAS, under the State Land Board Lease, Assignor has the right to exercise 

the exclusive right and privilege of developing tributary and nontributary groundwater from the 
Upper Laramie aquifer (“Leased Water”), underlying certain lands situated in the County of 
Weld, State of Colorado, and managed by the State Land Board.  

 
C. WHEREAS, under the State Land Board Lease, Assignor has the right to use the 

surface above the Leased Water as may be reasonably required in the exercise of the right to 
develop and produce the Leased Water as further described in the State Land Board Lease. 

 
D. WHEREAS, Assignor and Assignee entered into that certain Master Purchase, 

Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch) dated June __, 2020 (the 
“Master Administration Agreement”), the objective of which is to provide the terms upon which 
Assignor will convey certain property and other assets to Assignee and make certain cash 
contributions to be used for the construction of certain infrastructure and the terms upon which 

Page 177

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
 

Assignee will make payment to Assignor for such conveyances, as further described in the 
Master Administration Agreement (the “Transaction”). 

 
E. WHEREAS, Assignor has agreed to assign to Assignee its interest in and to the 

State Land Board Lease, and the State Land Board has provided prior written consent to such 
assignment pursuant to the State Land Board Lease.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Assignment and Assumption. Subject to Section 2 of this Assignment, Assignor 
hereby assigns, transfers, and conveys to Assignee all of Assignor’s right, title and interest under 
the State Land Board Lease.  Assignee hereby accepts the foregoing assignment, agrees to be 
bound by all of the terms of the State Land Board Lease and assumes and agrees to pay, perform 
and discharge any and all liabilities and obligations to be performed by Assignor under the State 
Land Board Lease accruing or to be performed on or after the Effective Date. 

 
2. [Reversion and Waiver of Consent.1 Should either (i) the Closing of the 

Transaction not be consummated on or before ______, 2021, or (ii) Assignor fail to timely fund 
the Initial Cash Contribution pursuant to the terms of the Master Administration Agreement, then 
this Assignment shall be deemed void ab initio; or, in the alternative if not permitted under 
applicable law to be treated as void ab initio, the State Land Board Lease shall automatically 
revert back to Assignor (the “Lease Reversion”) on _____, 2021 without any further action by 
either of the parties.  In the event of a Lease Reversion, Assignee shall execute any and all 
documents necessary to evidence that Assignor has all rights to and under the State Land Board 
Lease and to extinguish and remove any cloud or potential cloud on rights and interests in the 
State Land Board Lease, and no consent shall be required by the State Land Board to effectuate 
the Lease Reversion.  The capitalized terms in this Section 2 shall have the meanings assigned to 
them in the Master Administration Agreement.]    

 
3. Assignor’s Warranties.  Assignor warrants to Assignee that, to Assignor’s 

knowledge, as of the Effective Date: the State Land Board Lease is valid, in full force and effect, 
unmodified and that Assignor is not in default of any terms and conditions of the State Land 
Board Lease. Assignor further warrants and represents to Assignee that Assignor has not 
assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or transferred any interest in the State Land Board 
Lease. 

 
4. No Joint Venture. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as creating a joint 

venture, agency, or any other relationship between the parties hereto other than that of assignor 
and assignee. 

 
5. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance by Assignor and 

Assignee of their obligations under this Assignment. 

                                                   
1  NTD:  This clause is subject to further edits based on conversations with the SLB and research 
regarding SLB leasing. 

Page 178

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
 

6. Successors and Assigns.  This Assignment shall be binding upon, and shall inure 
to the benefit of each of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

 
7. Severability.  Whenever possible, each provision hereof shall be interpreted in 

such a manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision hereof shall 
be prohibited by or invalid under such law, then such provision shall be ineffective to the extent 
of such prohibition or invalidity without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the 
remaining provisions of this Assignment. 

 
8. Waiver.  The failure of either party to exercise any right or power given 

hereunder, or to insist upon strict compliance by the other party, with its obligations set forth 
herein and/or any custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof, shall not 
constitute a waiver of either party’s rights to demand strict compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Assignment. 

 
9. Amendments.  This Assignment may not be amended except by a writing signed 

by the parties hereto. 
 
10. Governing Law.  This Assignment shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado, without reference to the choice of law 
principles thereof. 

 
11. Counterparts.  This Assignment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 

which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same Assignment. 
 
12. Recordation.  This Assignment shall be recorded by Greeley in the real property 

records of Weld County, Colorado, as soon as practicable upon the execution of the Assignment. 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 

Page 179

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Assignment as of the 
date first set forth above. 

 

ASSIGNOR: 

 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a 

Colorado limited liability company 

By:________________________________ 

Name:   Christopher P. Dietzler 

Title:   Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

ASSIGNEE: 

 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO,  a 

Colorado home rule municipal corporation, 

acting by and through its WATER 

ENTERPRISE 

By:________________________________ 

Name:_____________________________ 

Title:  Water and Sewer Board Chairman 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 

By:________________________________ 

   City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

By________________________________ 

    City Attorney 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

By:________________________________ 

   Director of Finance 

 

RECOMMENDED: 

By:________________________________ 

 

Page 180

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
 

     Director of Water and Sewer Department 

[Consented to by: 

State Land Board] 

By:________________________________ 

Name:______________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

  

Page 181

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “1” ATTACHED TO AND MADE A PART OF  

ASSIGNMENT OF STATE LAND BOARD LEASE 

STATE LAND BOARD LEASE 

 

 

 

Page 182

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT E TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Certificate Form  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387v7 

Page 183

Item No. 16.



   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3545476 v16   

 
 

FORM OF RAW WATER CREDIT CERTIFICATE 
 

 
THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

RAW WATER DEDICATION CREDIT CERTIFICATE NO._________. 
   
 THIS RAW WATER DEDICATION CREDIT CERTIFICATE (“CERTIFICATE”) 
CERTIFIES that, ______________________________________________________ is the 
“Registered Owner” of __________________________________ “Raw Water Credits”, as 
defined in the enclosed “Terms and Conditions.” By execution and delivery of this Certificate, 
the City of Greeley (“City”), acting by and through its Water Enterprise (“Enterprise”), agrees to, 
and by acceptance of this Certificate the Registered Owner agrees to, the Terms and Conditions 
on the following pages.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate is executed and delivered by the City, acting 
by and through its Enterprise this ___ day of 20__. 
 
        
 

By:_________________________________ 
        Director of Water and Sewer 
 
 

Page 184

Item No. 16.



2 
   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3545476 v16   

TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
(Raw Water Credits) 

 
1. Credit Redemption; Assignment and Transfer. 
 

A. Credit Value. One (1) Raw Water Credit represents the equivalent of, but 
not an interest in, one acre-foot of raw water.  

 
B. Redemption or Transfer of Certificate. The Registered Owner of this 

Certificate may surrender this Certificate to the Greeley Water and Sewer Department, acting on 
behalf of the Enterprise (the “Department”), to either (i) redeem the Raw Water Credit(s) 
represented by this Certificate in whole or in part (but only in whole numbers of Raw Water 
Credits) towards the satisfaction of any cash-in-lieu fee obligation associated with the Registered 
Owner’s request for water service as prescribed by the raw water dedication provisions under 
Chapter 14.06 of the Greeley Municipal Code (“Raw Water Dedication Policy”), attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit I, which may be amended consistent with these Terms and 
Conditions, or (ii) transfer the Raw Water Credit(s) represented by this Certificate, in whole or in 
part (but only in whole numbers of Raw Water Credits), to a transferee. The Department shall 
not be obligated to (x) recognize any person or entity as the owner of Raw Water Credits 
represented by a Certificate, or having any interest therein, who does not appear as the 
Registered Owner thereof in the Registry (defined below) or (y) issue or reissue a Certificate to a 
Registered Owner who has failed to comply with these Terms and Conditions, until such failure 
to comply has been remedied or cured. 

 
a. Redemption. If the Registered Owner of this Certificate surrenders 

this Certificate to the Department and redeems all or a portion of the Raw Water Credits 
represented thereby in accordance with the Raw Water Dedication Policy, then the Raw Water 
Credits so presented shall be deemed exercised and the Certificate evidencing the same shall be 
cancelled. Should the number of Raw Water Credits evidenced by this Certificate exceed the 
number of Raw Water Credits redeemed, the Department shall issue a new certificate to the 
Registered Owner for any unredeemed Raw Water Credits within thirty (30) days of surrender of 
this Certificate. 

 
b. Transfer. If the Registered Owner of this Certificate transfers all or 

a portion of the Raw Water Credit represented by this Certificate, then the Certificate evidencing 
the same shall be cancelled. The form attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit II, 
properly executed and acknowledged, shall be used for the transfer of a Raw Water Credit. 
Should the number of Raw Water Credits evidenced by this Certificate exceed the number of 
Raw Water Credits transferred, the Department shall issue a new certificate to the Registered 
Owner for any retained Raw Water Credits. The Department shall process all transfers made in 
accordance with these Terms and Conditions within thirty (30) days of surrender of this 
Certificate.   

 
C. Expiry. A Registered Owner may redeem a Raw Water Credit from the 

Enterprise through December 31, 2099, subject to these Terms and Conditions and the Raw 
Water Dedication Policy.  

Page 185

Item No. 16.



3 
   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3545476 v16   

 
2. Registry. The Department shall establish and maintain a written record of all 

issued and outstanding Certificates (the “Registry”).  The Registry shall include, but is not 
limited to, (i) the name of the person or entity to whom a Certificate has been issued, (ii) the date 
of issuance or transfer, (iii) the Registered Owner’s contact information on the date of the 
issuance or transfer, (iv) the Certificate Number affixed thereto, and (v) the number of Raw 
Water Credits evidenced thereby. The Department shall have no obligation to verify the 
Registered Owner’s contact information; provided, however, that the Department shall update 
information in the Registered Owner Contacts upon the issuance or reissuance of any Certificate 
or if the Registered Owner provides written notice to the Department of a change to its respective 
Registered Owner Contacts. 

 
3. Inspection. The Registry, including a Registered Owner’s contact information, 

shall be publicly available for inspection during the Department’s normal business hours and 
upon reasonable prior notice.  

 
4. Termination Date. These Terms and Conditions shall be effective from the date of 

issuance of a Certificate to a Registered Owner, and its successors and assigns, until the earlier of 
(i) redemption of all Raw Water Credits held by such Registered Owner, or (ii) December 31, 
2099. 

 
5. Revocation. If the City revokes or rescinds the Raw Water Dedication Policy to 

deny acceptance of Raw Water Credits prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the date the 
last outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then the Registered Owner may surrender any 
Raw Water Credits held by such Registered Owner to the Department and exercise the Remedy 
defined in Section 12. 

 
6. Adding New Sources. The City may amend the Raw Water Dedication Policy to 

accept a New Source (defined below) in dedication and satisfaction of its raw water 
requirements, provided that such amendment does not occur before [Closing Date + 10 years]. 
A “New Source” shall mean raw water taken in dedication from a source other than water 
attributable to units or shares of the following: (i) Colorado Big-Thompson Project, (ii) Greeley-
Loveland Irrigation Company, (iii) Seven Lakes Reservoir Company, (iv) Loveland and Greeley 
Reservoir Company, (v) Greeley Irrigation Company, and/or (vi) any other water right used to 
historically irrigate lands within the service area, provided that the dedication of such water 
rights is limited to the satisfaction of non-potable demand and are used to continue irrigating the 
historically irrigated lands. If the City amends the Raw Water Dedication Policy to accept a New 
Source before [Closing Date + 10 years], then a Registered Owner may surrender Raw Water 
Credits held by such Registered Owner to the Department and exercise the Remedy defined in 
Section 12.  As used in this Section 6, “service area” means and refers to that area within which 
the Enterprise provides water services as of [CLOSING DATE], inclusive of any expansions of 
the service area subsequent to [CLOSING DATE], as well as areas served by other water 
districts that accept Raw Water Credits in the future in accordance with the Raw Water 
Dedication Policy or any similar policy recognized by another water district.   

 
7. Limiting Redemption of Raw Water Credits. A Registered Owner may satisfy up 

Page 186

Item No. 16.



4 
   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3545476 v16   

to one hundred percent (100%) of the Registered Owner’s cash-in-lieu fee obligation under the 
Raw Water Dedication Policy with Raw Water Credits on or before [Closing Date + 15 years]. 
The City may amend the Raw Water Dedication Policy to limit a Registered Owner’s right to 
satisfy up to one hundred percent (100%) of the Registered Owner’s cash-in-lieu fee obligation 
with Raw Water Credits, provided that such amendment does not (i) occur before [Closing Date 
+ 15 years], and (ii) reduce the proportion of Raw Water Credits that may be redeemed in 
satisfaction of a Registered Owner’s cash-in-lieu fee obligation below seventy-five percent 
(75%) of such obligation.  If the City (i) amends the Raw Water Dedication Policy to limit, or (ii) 
otherwise reduces, a Registered Owner’s right to satisfy one hundred percent (100%) of the 
Registered Owner’s cash-in-lieu fee obligation with Raw Water Credits before [Closing Date + 
15 years], then a Registered Owner may surrender Raw Water Credits held by such Registered 
Owner to the Department and exercise the Remedy defined in Section 12 (Remedy; Obligation 
of the Enterprise). If the City (i) amends the Raw Water Dedication Policy to limit, or (ii) 
otherwise reduces, a Registered Owner’s right to satisfy not less than seventy-five percent (75%) 
of the Registered Owner’s cash-in-lieu fee obligation with Raw Water Credits prior to the earlier 
of December 31, 2099, or the date the last outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then a 
Registered Owner may surrender Raw Water Credits held by such Registered Owner to the 
Department and exercise the Remedy defined in Section 12 (Remedy; Obligation of the 
Enterprise). 

 
8. Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits. Subject to the process set forth in Section 10 

(Objection to a Proposed Change; Registered Owners Committee) below, if the City amends or 
revises the Raw Water Dedication Policy or enters into an agreement pursuant to Section 
14.06.190 of the City’s Municipal Code that has the effect of disadvantaging a Raw Water Credit 
relative to other sources or means of satisfying the City’s raw water dedication requirements 
prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the date the last outstanding Raw Water Credit is 
redeemed, then a Registered Owner may surrender all or a portion of the Raw Water Credits (but 
only in whole numbers of Raw Water Credits) held by such Registered Owner to the Department 
and exercise the Remedy defined in Section 12 (Remedy; Obligation of the Enterprise).   

 
9. Permissible Policy Changes. Notwithstanding Section 8 (Disadvantaging Raw 

Water Credits) above and subject to Section 10 (Objection to a Proposed Change; Registered 
Owners Committee) below, the City may amend or revise the Raw Water Dedication Policy to: 
(i) address non-substantive administrative, clerical, or procedural changes, including but not 
limited to any municipal code renumbering, that do not have the effect of disadvantaging a Raw 
Water Credit relative to other sources or means of satisfying the City’s raw water dedication 
requirements; (ii) reflect or address a change in water use and/or consumption that is supported 
by economic or scientific analysis and is consistent with reasonable industry practice; or (iii) to 
comply with applicable federal and state law (each a “Permissible Policy Change”).  The intent 
of a Permissible Policy Change is to narrowly tailor such change to minimize a reduction or 
adverse change in the value of the Raw Water Credits.  Subject to the process set forth in Section 
10  (Objection to a Proposed Change; Registered Owners Committee) below, if the City amends 
or revises the Raw Water Dedication Policy and such amendments or revisions do not qualify as 
a Permissible Policy Change prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the date the last 
outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then a Registered Owner may surrender Raw Water 
Credits held by such Registered Owner to the Department and exercise the Remedy defined in 

Page 187

Item No. 16.



5 
   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3545476 v16   

Section 12 (Remedy; Obligation of the Enterprise).  
 
10. Objection to a Proposed Change; Registered Owners Committee.  
 

A. Notice; Objection. If the City adopts an agreement pursuant to Section 
14.06.190 of the Greeley Municipal Code or amends or revises the Raw Water Dedication Policy 
in a manner that is inconsistent with or otherwise violates Section 8(Disadvantaging Raw Water 
Credits) or Section 9 (Permissible Policy Changes) prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or 
the date the last outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then the Registered Owners shall 
have the right to object to such agreements or amendments or revisions consistent with the 
following process. All Registered Owners will be deemed to have notice of any agreement 
approved pursuant to Section 14.06.190 or any amendments or revisions to the Raw Water 
Dedication Policy approved pursuant to such policy if the City follows its normal ordinance 
adoption, hearing and publication requirements in accordance with C.R.S. § 24-6-402(2)(c), 
Section 3-17 of the City’s Charter, and the Raw Water Dedication Policy. Registered Owners 
may object to the proposed final approval of such agreements or any proposed final adoption of 
such amendments or revisions to the Raw Water Dedication Policy by providing written notice to 
the Department (an “Objection”), certified by the Committee Representative (defined below), no 
less than five (5) days prior to the date of the public hearing of the ordinance approving an 
agreement pursuant to Section 14.06.190 or adopting an amendment or revisions to the Raw 
Water Dedication Policy. The Committee Representative shall furnish a copy of the Executed 
Committee Authorization (defined below) to the Department along with the Objection.  In 
accordance with Section 3-17 and the Raw Water Dedication Policy, the date of the public 
hearing shall be published after the first reading and shall be set for a date no less than twenty-
eight days after the first reading. The Objection shall include the Registered Owner Committee’s 
basis for the Objection and, to the extent possible, suggested modifications that would resolve 
the Objection. After receipt of such Objection, the Department shall remove the ordinance 
approving the agreement or adopting the amendments or revisions to the Raw Water Dedication 
Policy from the City Council’s agenda. Thereafter, the Department, and the Committee 
Representative shall have thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the Objection to resolve the 
Objection. If the Committee Representative does not withdraw the Objection, in writing, thirty 
(30) days from the date of receipt of the Objection, then the Department and the Committee 
Representative shall submit the agreement or the amendments or revisions, along with each 
party’s respective position, to an economist or engineer, agreeable to both parties, who is a 
Colorado based utility rate or policy expert, to determine whether the agreement violates Section 
8 (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or the amendments or revisions qualify as a Permissible 
Policy Change. The economist or engineer’s findings shall be binding on the Enterprise, and the 
Registered Owner Committee (acting by and through the Committee Representative). If the 
economist or engineer finds that the agreement does not violate Section 8 (Disadvantaging Raw 
Water Credits) or that the amendments or revisions qualify as a Permissible Policy Change, then 
the Registered Owners shall not be entitled to exercise the Remedy defined in Section 12 
(Remedy; Obligation of the Enterprise) pursuant to Section 8 (Disadvantaging Raw Water 
Credits) or Section 9 (Permissible Policy Changes), as the case may be. If the economist or 
engineer finds (x) either (i) that the agreement violates Section 8 (Disadvantaging Raw Water 
Credits) or (ii) that the amendments or revisions do not qualify as a Permissible Policy Change 
and (y) the City does not amend or reject the agreement or the ordinance amending or revising 

Page 188

Item No. 16.



6 
   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3545476 v16   

the Raw Water Dedication Policy to resolve or otherwise satisfy the Registered Owner 
Committee’s Objection, then a Registered Owner may surrender all or a portion of the Raw 
Water Credits (but only in whole numbers of Raw Water Credits) held by such Registered 
Owner to the Department and exercise the Remedy defined in Section 12 (Remedy; Obligation 
of the Enterprise) pursuant to Section 8 (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits)  or Section 9 
(Permissible Policy Changes), as the case may be. If the Registered Owner Committee, acting by 
and through a Committee Representative, does not provide an Objection to the Department, five 
(5) days prior to the date of the public hearing of the ordinance approving an agreement pursuant 
to Section 14.06.190 or adopting an amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy, 
then each Registered Owner shall be deemed to have consented to the agreement or to have 
accepted the amendments or revisions to the Raw Water Dedication Policy as a Permissible 
Policy Change. Nothing in this Section 10 shall be read to limit the Registered Owner Committee 
or individual Registered Owners from participating in any public hearing on an ordinance 
approving an agreement pursuant to Section 14.06.190 or amending or revising the Raw Water 
Dedication Policy.  

 
B. Registered Owner Committee; Committee Representative. The Registered 

Owners that account for a majority of the then-outstanding Raw Water Credits, as reflected in the 
Registry (the “Committee Threshold”), may form a “Registered Owner Committee”, with full 
authority to act for all Registered Owners for the purposes of exercising the rights provided in 
Section 10.A (Notice; Objection). Any Registered Owner may submit a written request to form 
the Registered Owner Committee (a “Committee Authorization”) to the other Registered 
Owners. A Committee Authorization shall include (i) a description of the Objection, which shall 
serve as a basis for forming the Registered Owner Committee, and (ii) the proposed 
representative or representatives of such Registered Owner Committee (the “Committee 
Representative”). The signatures (including electronic signatures) of a Committee Threshold on a 
Committee Authorization shall be conclusive evidence that a Registered Owner Committee has 
been formed (“Executed Committee Authorization”).  Following delivery of the Executed 
Committee Authorization and Objection to the Department, the Committee Representative(s) 
shall have full authority to act on behalf of the Registered Owners for the purposes of resolving 
the Objection. The Committee Authorization shall terminate when the Objection has been 
resolved in accordance with Section 10.A (Notice; Objection). 
  

11. No Duty to Other Registered Owners.  These Terms and Conditions, including but 
not limited to Section 10 (Objection to a Proposed Change; Registered Owners Committee), shall 
not give rise to any duty, claim or cause of action by one Registered Owner against another. 
Moreover, each Registered Owner acknowledges and agrees that no Registered Owner has any 
obligation or responsibility to (a) monitor any amendments or revisions to the Raw Water 
Dedication Policy, (b) submit any Objection, even if such Objection relates to a revision or 
amendment that is not a Permissible Policy Change, or (c) authorize or vote in favor of the 
formation of the Registered Owner Committee. The rights to submit an Objection and to 
authorize the Registered Owner Committee are to be exercised in each Registered Owner’s sole 
and absolute discretion.  

 
12. Remedy; Obligation of the Enterprise. If a Registered Owner elects to surrender 

any Raw Water Credits held by such Registered Owner to the Department pursuant to Section 5 

Page 189

Item No. 16.



7 
   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3545476 v16   

(Revocation), Section 6 (Adding New Sources), Section 7 (Limiting Redemption of Raw Water 
Credits), Section 8 (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits), or Section 9 (Permissible Policy 
Changes), then the Enterprise shall be obligated to buy back the surrendered Raw Water Credits 
at the greater of (i) thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) per Raw Water Credit in 2020 escalated 
three percent (3%) compounded annually thereafter, or (ii) the three-year trailing average of the 
City’s cash-in-lieu price (“Remedy”). A Registered Owner may surrender and the Enterprise will 
be obligated to buy back only a portion of the Raw Water Credits held by a Registered Owners, 
but only in whole numbers of Raw Water Credits.  The parties agree that the amount of damages 
would be very difficult or impossible to calculate and the Remedy defined in this Section is 
intended to, and does, represent the amount of damages due to a Registered Owner (and shall 
constitute liquidated damages), and shall be the Registered Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy, 
both at law and in equity, arising from or relating to those acts of the City set forth in Section 5 
(Revocation), Section 6 (Adding New Sources), Section 7 (Limiting Redemption of Raw Water 
Credits), Section 8 (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits), or Section 9 (Permissible Policy 
Changes), . 

 
13. Amounts Due; Payable. This Certificate does not represent a debt, indebtedness or 

multiple fiscal year financial obligation of the City and cannot be redeemed except as expressly 
provided in these Terms and Conditions. Any amounts due and payable by the City to a 
Registered Owner pursuant to these Terms and Conditions (a “Payment Obligation”) shall be 
solely the special and limited obligations of the Enterprise.  Any Payment Obligation shall be 
payable solely from the net revenues of Greeley’s municipal water system, operated by the 
Enterprise (the “Water System”), remaining in each year after payment of or provision for (a) all 
standard operation and maintenance expenses of the Water System and the principal of, interest 
on and reserve requirements of its first-lien Parity Obligations (as that term is defined in the 
Water Revenue Bond Ordinance) issued and outstanding from time to time as permitted by 
Ordinance No. 41, 2018 (the “Water Revenue Bond Ordinance”), (b) a reserve for operation and 
maintenance expenses equal to twenty five (25%) of the previous year’s operation and 
maintenance expenses, and (c) reserves for depreciation and other amounts with respect to the 
Water System specifically required by the City Charter as in effect on [Closing Date] (such net 
revenues being referred to herein as the “Surplus Revenues”).  Each Payment Obligation shall 
constitute a “Subordinate Obligation” (as that term is defined in the Water Revenue Bond 
Ordinance) of the City, acting by and through the Enterprise, provided that notwithstanding the 
provisions of Sections 22 and 25(c) of the Water Revenue Bond Ordinance, Greeley shall not be 
required in any year to apply more than seventy percent (70%) of its Surplus Revenues to the 
payment of all Payment Obligations. 

 
14. No Third Party Beneficiary; No Waiver of Governmental Immunity. These Terms 

and Conditions shall not create any duty of care or liability with respect to any person or entity 
not a Registered Owner, or waive any of the privileges or immunities the City or its officers, 
employees, successors and assigns may present pursuant to law, including, but not limited to, the 
Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. 24-10-101, et seq., as amended.  

 
15. Governing Law; Venue. These Terms and Conditions, including any instrument 

or agreement required hereunder, and all matters arising out of or in connection with these Terms 
and Conditions (whether in contract, tort or otherwise) shall be construed in accordance with and 

Page 190

Item No. 16.



8 
   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3545476 v16   

governed by the laws of the State of Colorado, without giving effect to any conflict of law 
principles that would require the application of the laws of another jurisdiction. All actions or 
proceedings arising out of or relating to these Terms and Conditions and any dispute shall be 
litigated in any such court in Weld County, Colorado. Each party accepts for itself, generally and 
unconditionally, the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the aforesaid courts, submits itself to the 
personal jurisdiction of such courts and waives any defense of forum non conveniens or any 
similar defense.  Each party hereby waives its respective right to a trial by jury for any claim or 
cause of action based upon or arising out of or related to this Agreement in any action, 
proceeding, or other litigation of any type brought by any party against any other party, whether 
with respect to contract claims, tort claims, or otherwise. Each party agrees that any such claim 
or cause of action will be tried by a court trial without a jury. 

 
16. Amendments. These Terms and Conditions shall not be amended, modified or 

changed without the written agreement of the Department and Registered Owner. 
 

Page 191

Item No. 16.



   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3545476 v16   

EXHIBIT I 
 

RAW WATER DEDICATION POLICY 
 

[See attached] 

Page 192

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3545476 v16   

EXHIBIT II 
 

FORM TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT OF RAW WATER CREDITS 
 

For $10.00 and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the undersigned Registered Owner hereby assigns to __________________ 
[Name], whose mailing address is _________________________, _[Address]_ (the 
“Transferee”) ____ of the Raw Water Credit(s) evidenced by Certificate No. ____ and requests 
that the Registrar issue a new Certificate or Certificates evidencing __ Raw Water Credit(s) to 
the Transferee and the balance of __ Raw Water Credit(s) to the undersigned Registered Owner. 
 

By: ______________________________________  
[Registered Owner] 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Representative Contact Information: 
 
Name: _______________________________________________ 
 
Company, if applicable: _________________________________ 
 
Address: _____________________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: ________________________________________ 
 
Email Address: ________________________________________ 

   
 

 
 

Page 193

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT F TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Form of Construction Escrow Agreement  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 
Page 194

Item No. 16.



 

4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

 

CONSTRUCTION ESCROW AGREEMENT 

by and among 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, 
acting by and through its 
WATER ENTERPRISE, 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

and 

____________________________,  
a ____________,1 
as Escrow Agent 

Relating to 
 

the funding and disbursements for Project Infrastructure Costs pursuant to the 
Master Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement  

dated as of _________ __, 2020, between  
Wingfoot Water Resources, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and  

the City of Greeley, Colorado, acting by and through its Water Enterprise 

Dated as of ___________ __, 2020 

                                                 
1 NTD: As discussed, title company likely be the escrow agent.   

Page 195

Item No. 16.



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

 

   
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01. Definitions........................................................................................................ 2 

ARTICLE II 
ESTABLISHMENT OF CONSTRUCTION ESCROW ACCOUNT; DISBURSEMENTS AND 

FLOW OF FUNDS 

Section 2.01. Creation of the Escrow Account and Deposit of Moneys ................................ 3 
Section 2.02. Disbursements for Payment of Costs of Project Infrastructure ....................... 4 
Section 2.03. Disbursement upon Termination of this Agreement ........................................ 5 
Section 2.04. Investment of Funds ......................................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE III 
CONCERNING THE ESCROW AGENT 

Section 3.01. Duties of Escrow Agent ................................................................................... 5 
Section 3.02. Status Report .................................................................................................... 5 
Section 3.03. Liability of the Escrow Agent .......................................................................... 5 
Section 3.04. Fees, Expenses and Indemnification ................................................................ 6 
Section 3.05. Permitted Acts .................................................................................................. 6 
Section 3.06. Disagreements .................................................................................................. 6 

 

ARTICLE IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 4.01. Amendments to this Agreement....................................................................... 7 
Section 4.02. Severability ...................................................................................................... 7 
Section 4.03. Agreement Binding .......................................................................................... 7 
Section 4.04. Termination, Resignation and Removal of the Escrow Agent ........................ 7 
Section 4.05. Execution in Counterparts................................................................................ 8 
Section 4.06. Notices ............................................................................................................. 8 
Section 4.07. Governing Law ................................................................................................ 9 
Section 4.08. Time of Essence ............................................................................................... 9 

Page 196

Item No. 16.



 

   
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

CONSTRUCTION ESCROW AGREEMENT 

THIS CONSTRUCTION ESCROW AGREEMENT (as the same may be modified, 
amended, supplemented, restated or replaced, this “Agreement”), made and entered into as of 
___________ __, 2020 by and among THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, acting by 
and through its WATER ENTERPRISE (together with its permitted successors and assigns, 
“Greeley”), WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(together with its permitted successors and assigns, “Wingfoot”) and 
_____________________________________, a _________, as escrow agent (the “Escrow 
Agent”); 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

WHEREAS, Greeley and Wingfoot have previously entered into a Master Purchase, Sale 
and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch) dated as of _________ __, 2020 
(as the same may be modified, amended, supplemented, restated or replaced, the “Master 
Agreement”) for the purpose of providing for the acquisition, financing, construction, 
improvement and installation of certain water rights, infrastructure improvements and 
appurtenant property for use by Greeley in its municipal water system; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Master Agreement, Greeley and Wingfoot have agreed to 
deposit certain funds (collectively and individually, “Cash Contributions”) in escrow for the 
purpose of funding Greeley’s cost of construction of infrastructure (the “Project Infrastructure”) 
for the purpose of withdrawing, collecting, transporting, treating and storing water withdrawn 
from or used for the recharge of the Upper Laramie-Fox Hills Aquifer underlying certain real 
property in Weld County, Colorado; and   

WHEREAS, the Master Agreement contemplates that, upon the occurrence of certain 
events Greeley, Wingfoot, or both Greeley and Wingfoot, will deposit funds in escrow with the 
Escrow Agent, subject to withdrawal upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, for payment of 
Project Infrastructure Costs (as defined in the Master Agreement), or, upon certain other events, 
including the completion of the Project Infrastructure, termination of or certain defaults under the 
Master Agreement or termination of this Agreement, for distribution to Greeley or Wingfoot or 
both; and  

WHEREAS, Greeley and Wingfoot desire to establish an escrow account to provide for 
the custody and disbursement of the Escrow Deposit (defined below) in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein 
set forth, and in order to secure the payment of the Project Infrastructure Costs or the return of 
the Escrow Deposit in whole or in part according to the tenor and effect of the Master 
Agreement, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

 

Page 197

Item No. 16.



 

 2  
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01.  Definitions.  In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this 
Agreement, including the recitals hereto, the following words and terms used in this Agreement 
shall have the following meanings.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall 
have the meanings set forth in the Master Agreement. 

“Closing Date” means the date of execution and delivery of this Agreement. 

“Director” means the Director of the City of Greeley Water and Sewer Department. 

“Escrow Account” means the interest-bearing account in which Escrow Agent holds the 
Escrow Deposit, which shall include the Greeley Subaccount and the Wingfoot Subaccount. 

“Escrow Deposit” means, as of any date, the sum of the funds held by the Escrow Agent 
hereunder, including, in the aggregate, Cash Contributions by Greeley or Wingfoot, or both, any 
other funds placed in the custody of the Escrow Agent from any source on behalf of Wingfoot or 
Greeley and held in the Wingfoot Subaccount or the Greeley Subaccount, as applicable, and all 
investment earnings thereon.  

“Greeley Subaccount” means the special subaccount created2 by Escrow Agent for the 
purpose of accounting for funds contributed to the Escrow Account by Greeley. 

“Investment Securities” means securities or deposits which are legal investments of 
public funds for Greeley under applicable State statutes and the investment policies of Greeley. 

“Project Infrastructure” has the same meaning provided in the Master Agreement.  

“Wingfoot Subaccount” means the special subaccount created by Escrow Agent for the 
purpose of accounting for funds contributed to the Escrow Account by Wingfoot. 

Whenever the context may require, any pronouns used herein shall be deemed and 
construed to include correlative words of the masculine, feminine and neuter forms.  Words 
importing the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa unless the context 
shall otherwise indicate.  The word “person” shall include corporations, associations, natural 
persons and public bodies unless the context shall otherwise indicate.  Reference to a person 
other than a natural person shall include its successors. 

                                                 
2 NTD: To discuss with the Escrow Agent whether an actual subaccount is possible or whether the subaccount will 
be noted as part of their accounting/record keeping.  GREELEY RESPONSE: Greeley has a strong preference for 
separate subaccounts and would hope that Escrow Agent can accommodate that request.  WINGFOOT RESPONSE: 
This is acceptable as long as the Escrow Agent is reasonably able to comply with this request.   

Page 198

Item No. 16.



 

 3  
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

ARTICLE II 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF CONSTRUCTION ESCROW ACCOUNT; 
DISBURSEMENTS AND FLOW OF FUNDS 

Section 2.01.  Creation of the Escrow Account and Deposit of Moneys.   

(a) The Escrow Account shall be held by the Escrow Agent and accounted for 
separately from other funds of Greeley, Wingfoot, the Escrow Agent and all other 
persons. 

(b) The Escrow Agent shall treat the deposits and withdrawals of funds by 
each party hereto as two separate subaccounts designated as the “Greeley Subaccount” 
for deposits made by Greeley, and the “Wingfoot Subaccount” for deposits made by 
Wingfoot.  Such Subaccounts shall be maintained and accounted for separately.  All 
interest and investment earnings on funds in (i) the Greeley Subaccount shall accrue to 
the benefit of Greeley, and (ii) the Wingfoot Subaccount shall accrue to the benefit of 
Wingfoot. 

(c) Pursuant to the Master Agreement, within Ninety (90) days after the date 
of this Agreement, Wingfoot shall deposit Twenty-Five Million and 00/100 Dollars 
($25,000,000.00) (“Initial Contribution”) with the Escrow Agent in the Escrow Account 
and provide written notice thereof to Greeley.  The balance of the Cash Contributions, in 
the amount of One Hundred Million and 00/100 Dollars ($100,000,000.00) shall be 
deposited by Wingfoot into the Escrow Account in accordance with the terms and 
provisions of the Master Agreement. 

(d) Greeley shall be entitled to a credit against its Cash Contribution 
requirements to the extent that it utilizes funds other than those held in the Wingfoot 
Subaccount by the Escrow Agent to acquire or construct any portion of the Project 
Infrastructure described in the Master Agreement. 

(e) No less than thirty (30) days before Greeley requests withdrawal of any 
amount from the Wingfoot Subaccount of the Escrow Account, Greeley shall deposit in 
the Greeley Subaccount of the Escrow Account an amount sufficient to maintain 
Greeley’s aggregate, prorated share of contributions to the total Project Infrastructure 
Costs at the percentages shown in the table below (the “Prorated Contributions”). 

 Project Infrastructure Costs Wingfoot Portion Greeley Portion 
From To Total Cost Contribution 

to Total Cost 
Percent of 
Total Cost 

Contribution 
to Total Cost 

Percent of 
Total Cost 

$0 $78,125,000 $78,125,000 $62,500,000 80.00% $15,625,000 20.00% 

$78,125,000 $203,125,000 $125,000,000 $62,500,000 50.00% $62,500,000 50.00% 
Total $203,125,000 $125,000,000 61.54% $78,125,000 38.46% 

 

Page 199

Item No. 16.



 

 4  
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

Section 2.02.  Disbursements for Payment of Costs of Project Infrastructure.   

(a) Greeley may not draw upon the funds in the Wingfoot Subaccount of the 
Escrow Account for any reason during the period on or prior to ninety (90) days after the 
Closing Date.  Any withdrawals by Greeley from the Wingfoot Subaccount of the Escrow 
Account after the ninety (90)-day period are subject to the following conditions: (i) 
Greeley must have made a Cash Contribution into the Escrow Account in accordance 
with Section 2.01(e) hereof, and (ii) Greeley must (a) simultaneously withdraw an 
amount from the Greeley Subaccount of the Escrow Account proportionate to Greeley’s 
percent of total costs shown in the table in Section 2.01(e), and (b) use such funds from 
the Escrow Account solely for the Project Infrastructure Costs.  After substantial 
completion and payment for the Project Infrastructure, the balance of the Escrow Deposit 
in the Escrow Account, if any, remaining in the Wingfoot Subaccount shall be released to 
Wingfoot and the balance of the Escrow Deposit, if any, remaining in the Greeley 
Subaccount shall be released to Greeley. 

(b) The moneys deposited with the Escrow Agent pursuant to Section 2.01 
hereof shall be applied by the Escrow Agent to pay or reimburse costs of Project 
Infrastructure as follows: 

(i) For each disbursement (except as expressly set forth herein), 
Greeley shall deliver a requisition (a “Greeley Requisition”) to the Escrow Agent 
and Wingfoot, at least five (5) business days prior to the requested disbursement, 
which shall consist of: 

(A) a certification of the Director confirming that: (i) the funds 
being requested are for Project Infrastructure Costs incurred by Greeley in 
accordance with the Master Agreement, and (ii) the work for which funds 
are requested has been completed to Greeley’s satisfaction;  

(B) a written request signed by an authorized representative of 
Greeley for an amount or amounts either paid by Greeley, or due and 
payable, in connection with Project Infrastructure Costs, to be disbursed 
from the Greeley Subaccount and the Wingfoot Subaccount in proportions 
consistent with the “Percent of Total Cost” listed in Section 2.01(e) above, 
which total requested amount shall not exceed the lesser of the balance on 
hand in the Escrow Account or the maximum amount thereof permitted to 
be withdrawn from the Escrow Account in accordance with this 
Agreement, which request shall name the persons or person to whom 
payment is to be made; 

(C) either written evidence of payments made or costs incurred 
by Greeley or the unpaid invoices for such work. 

Upon receipt of each such Greeley Requisition and supporting documents the Escrow Agent 
shall disburse the amount or amounts requested from the Greeley Subaccount and the Wingfoot 
Subaccount in proportions consistent with the “Percent of Total Cost” listed in Section 2.01(e) 

Page 200

Item No. 16.



 

 5  
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

above by check or wire transfer to the persons named therein.  Greeley shall be the only party 
authorized to submit requisitions for Project Infrastructure Costs from the Escrow Account. 

Section 2.03.  Disbursement upon Termination of this Agreement.  Upon the occurrence 
of any of the following events, and provided that the fees and expenses of the Escrow Agent are 
paid, this Agreement shall terminate and the Escrow Agent shall disburse any funds remaining in its 
custody and not required for fees and expenses of the Escrow Agent or any pending Greeley 
Requisitions to Greeley and Wingfoot their respective remaining balances in the Greeley 
Subaccount and the Wingfoot Subaccount, respectively, within [two] ([2]) business days of: (a) 
receipt by the Escrow Agent of written notice from Greeley that no further requests for 
disbursements for Project Infrastructure Costs will be submitted; (b) receipt by the Escrow Agent of 
written notice from Greeley that the Project Infrastructure is completed and there are no 
disbursement requisitions outstanding and unpaid; (c) receipt by the Escrow Agent of written notice 
acknowledged by Greeley and Wingfoot that the Master Agreement has been terminated, or (d) 
termination of this Agreement by its terms on or before ___________ __, 20__. 

Section 2.04.  Investment of Funds.  The Escrow Agent shall, at all times, maintain the 
Escrow Deposit in an interest-bearing account, and shall have no power or duty to invest any 
moneys held hereunder except as provided in this Agreement, nor shall the Escrow Agent have any 
liability with respect to such investments, including, without limitation, any losses or taxes thereon.  
The Escrow Deposit shall be either held in cash or invested and reinvested from time to time in 
Investment Securities as directed in writing by Greeley. 

ARTICLE III 
 

CONCERNING THE ESCROW AGENT 

Section 3.01.  Duties of Escrow Agent.  The Escrow Agent shall have no duties or 
responsibilities whatsoever except such duties and responsibilities as are expressly set forth in this 
Agreement, and no covenant or obligation shall be implied in this Agreement against the Escrow 
Agent. 

Section 3.02.  Status Report. 

(a) Not less than fifteen (15) days after the close of each month, commencing 
with the first full month following the Initial Contribution, the Escrow Agent shall submit 
to the Director and Wingfoot a report covering all money which the Escrow Agent shall 
have received and all payments which it shall have made or caused to be made hereunder. 

Section 3.03.  Liability of the Escrow Agent. 

(a) The Escrow Agent shall have no lien, security interest or right of setoff 
whatsoever upon any of the moneys or investments in the Escrow Account for the 
payment of fees or expenses for services rendered by the Escrow Agent under this 
Agreement. 

(b) The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any loss or damage in tort, 
contract or otherwise, including counsel fees and expenses, resulting from or in 

Page 201

Item No. 16.



 

 6  
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the establishment of the 
Escrow Account or any payment, transfer or other application of moneys by the Escrow 
Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, or by reason of any other 
action, omission or error hereunder, except for any loss or damage arising out of its own 
negligence or misconduct.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Escrow 
Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted in reliance on any notice, 
direction, consent, certificate, affidavit, statement, designation or other paper or 
document reasonably believed by it to be genuine and to have been duly and properly 
signed or presented to it by the Director or his or her designee, with respect to Greeley, 
and [_________] or his or her designee, with respect to Wingfoot. 

Section 3.04.  Fees, Expenses and Indemnification. 

(a) Greeley and Wingfoot shall be responsible for and shall pay to the Escrow 
Agent, in equal shares, for its performance hereunder: (i) such compensation as may 
mutually be agreed upon in writing; and (ii) the Escrow Agent’s reasonable out-of-pocket 
expenses (including reasonable third-party counsel fees and expenses) incurred in 
connection with this Agreement, to the extent agreed upon in writing (collectively, the 
“Escrow Agent Fees”). 

(b) Wingfoot, on the one hand, and, to the extent permitted by law, Greeley, 
on the other hand, severally (on a 50%/50% basis) and not jointly, shall indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the Escrow Agent from and against any and all claims, 
demands, expenses (including reasonable counsel fees and expenses) and liabilities of 
any and every nature (the “Indemnified Costs”) which the Escrow Agent may sustain or 
incur or which may be asserted against the Escrow Agent as a result of any action taken 
or omitted by the Escrow Agent as provided hereunder, except to the extent any such 
Indemnified Costs arise out of the Escrow Agent’s bad faith, negligence or willful 
misconduct.  At any time, the Escrow Agent may apply to Greeley or Wingfoot, as 
applicable for written instructions with respect to any matter arising under this 
Agreement and shall be fully protected in acting in accordance with such instructions, 
provided that such action are not contrary to the express terms of this Agreement.  If the 
Escrow Agent receives conflicting instructions it shall not be obligated to act.  In 
addition, the Escrow Agent may, as reasonably necessary, consult its own counsel and 
shall be fully protected with respect to any action taken or omitted in good faith in 
accordance with such advice or opinion of counsel.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Agreement, to the extent any Indemnified Costs arise out of Wingfoot’s 
or Greeley’s bad faith, negligence or willful misconduct, such party shall be solely 
responsible for indemnifying the Escrow Agent for such Indemnified Costs.   

Section 3.05.  Permitted Acts.  Nothing herein shall prevent the Escrow Agent from 
engaging in business dealings with either Greeley or Wingfoot, either as customers or borrowers or 
in any other capacity or in any other matter provided that it is unrelated to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 

Section 3.06.  Disagreements.  If any conflict, disagreement or dispute arises between, 
among, or involving any of the parties hereto concerning the meaning or validity of any provision 

Page 202

Item No. 16.



 

 7  
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

hereunder or concerning any other matter relating to this Agreement, or the Escrow Agent is in 
doubt as to the action to be taken hereunder, the Escrow Agent may, at its option, after sending 
written notice of the same to Wingfoot and Greeley, retain the Escrow Deposit until Escrow Agent 
(a) receives a final non-appealable order of a court of competent jurisdiction or a final non-
appealable arbitration decision directing delivery of the Escrow Deposit, (b) receives a written 
agreement executed by each of the parties involved in such disagreement or dispute directing 
delivery of the Escrow Deposit, in which event the Escrow Agent will be authorized to make such 
disbursement in accordance with such final court order, arbitration decision, or agreement, or 
(c) files an interpleader action in any court of competent jurisdiction, and upon the filing thereof, 
the Escrow Agent will be relieved of all liability as to the Escrow Deposit and will be entitled to 
recover reasonable and documented out-of-pocket attorneys’ fees, expenses and other costs incurred 
in commencing and maintaining any such interpleader action.  The Escrow Agent will be entitled to 
act on any such agreement, court order, or arbitration decision without further question, inquiry or 
consent. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 4.01.  Amendments to this Agreement.  This Agreement is made for the benefit of 
Greeley and Wingfoot and it shall not be repealed, revoked, altered or amended without the prior 
written consent of both such parties and the Escrow Agent, except for the termination of this 
Agreement in accordance with Section [4.04] hereof. 

Section 4.02.  Severability.  If any one or more of the provisions in this Agreement shall be 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, each such provision shall be 
deemed and construed to be severable from the remaining provisions hereof and its invalidity shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

Section 4.03.  Agreement Binding.  All the covenants, promises and agreements in this 
agreement contained by or on behalf of Greeley, Wingfoot or the Escrow Agent shall bind and 
inure to the benefit of their respective permitted successors and assigns, whether or not so 
expressed. 

Section 4.04.  Termination, Resignation and Removal of the Escrow Agent. 

(a) This Agreement shall terminate on the earliest of (i) ____________, 20__, 
(ii) when all transfers and payments required to be made by the Escrow Agent under the 
provisions of Sections [2.02, 2.03 and/or 2.04, as applicable,] hereof shall have been 
made, or (iii) [termination of the Master Agreement.]  The provisions of Sections 3.03 
and 3.04 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

(b) The Escrow Agent may evidence its intent to resign by giving written 
notice to Greeley and Wingfoot.  Such resignation shall take effect only upon delivery of 
the Escrow Deposit to the successor Escrow Agent agreed upon in writing by Greeley 
and Wingfoot, and the Escrow Agent shall thereupon be discharged from all obligations 
under this Agreement and shall have no further duties or responsibilities in connection 
herewith.  The Escrow Agent shall deliver the Escrow Deposit without unreasonable 

Page 203

Item No. 16.



 

 8  
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

delay, and no later than [two] ([2]) business days, after receiving the designation of the 
successor Escrow Agent and upon payment of all of its fees and expenses due and owing 
as of such date. 

(c) Greeley and Wingfoot may evidence their intent to remove the Escrow 
Agent with or without cause by giving joint written notice to the Escrow Agent and 
Wingfoot.  Such removal shall take effect only upon delivery of the Escrow Deposit to 
the successor Escrow Agent designated in writing by Greeley and Wingfoot, and the 
Escrow Agent shall thereupon be discharged from all obligations under this Agreement 
and shall have no further duties or responsibilities in connection herewith.  The Escrow 
Agent shall deliver the Escrow Deposit without unreasonable delay, and no later than 
[two] ([2]) business days, after receiving the designation of the successor Escrow Agent 
in accordance with this Agreement and upon payment of all of its fees and expenses due 
and owing as of such date. 

(d) If after thirty (30) days from the date of delivery of its written notice of 
intent to resign or of the joint written notice of Greeley and Wingfoot to remove, the 
Escrow Agent has not received a written designation of the successor Escrow Agent, the 
Escrow Agent’s sole responsibility shall be in its sole discretion either to retain custody 
of the Escrow Deposit and apply the Escrow Deposit in accordance with this Agreement 
or to apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Escrow 
Agent and after such appointment to have no further duties or responsibilities in 
connection herewith upon the transfer of the Escrow Deposit to the successor Escrow 
Agent.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, if Escrow 
Agent is liable for the payment of any costs or expenses under this Agreement, the 
replacement of the Escrow Agent shall not release Escrow Agent of its obligation to pay 
all such costs and expenses in accordance with this Agreement.   

Section 4.05.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, all or any of which shall be regarded for all purposes as one original and shall 
constitute one and the same instrument.  The Agreement, including all component parts set forth 
above, may be executed and delivered by electronic signature by any of the parties and all parties 
consent to the use of electronic signatures. 

Section 4.06.  Notices.  All notices, demands, requests and other communications required 
or permitted hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be (a) personally delivered with a written 
receipt of delivery; (b) sent by a nationally-recognized overnight delivery service requiring a 
written acknowledgement of receipt or providing a certification of delivery or attempted delivery; 
(c) sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested; or (d) sent by electronic mail with 
an original copy thereof transmitted to the recipient by one of the means described in subsections 
(a) through (c) no later than 3 Business Days thereafter.  All notices shall be deemed effective when 
actually delivered as documented in a delivery receipt; provided, however, that if the notice was 
sent by overnight courier or mail as aforesaid and is affirmatively refused or cannot be delivered 
during customary business hours by reason of the absence of a signatory to acknowledge receipt, or 
by reason of a change of address with respect to which the addressor did not have either knowledge 
or written notice delivered in accordance with this paragraph, then the first attempted delivery shall 
be deemed to constitute delivery.  Each party shall be entitled to change its address for notices from 

Page 204

Item No. 16.



 

 9  
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

time to time by delivering to the other party notice thereof in the manner herein provided for the 
delivery of notices.  All notices shall be sent to the addressee at its address set forth following its 
name below: 

If to Greeley: City of Greeley 
1001 11th Street, 2nd Floor 
Greeley, Colorado  80631 
Attn: Director, Water and Sewer 
Telephone:  (970) ___-____ 
Email: _______________ 

If to the Escrow Agent: _____________________ 
_____________________ 
_____________________ 
____________. CO  80___ 
Attn: ____________________ 
Telephone:  (___) ___-____ 
Email: _______________ 

If to Wingfoot:  Wingfoot Water Resources 
    800 8th Avenue, Suite 122 
    Greeley, Colorado 80631 

Attn:  _______________     
Telephone: (720) 544-3932 
Email: _______________ 

Section 4.07.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado without giving effect to any choice of law or 
conflict of law provision or rule that would cause the application of the law of any jurisdiction other 
than the State of Colorado. 

Section 4.08.  Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of the 
obligations from time to time imposed upon the Escrow Agent by this Agreement. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

Page 205

Item No. 16.



 

 10  
4847-0005-0609.6  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3543746 v8   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has caused this Agreement to be 
executed by its duly authorized officers as of the date first above written. 

 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, ACTING 
BY AND THROUGH ITS WATER 
ENTERPRISE 

 
By    
 ______________, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

  
______________, City Clerk 
 
 
 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES, LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY 

 
 
By  _______________________________  

Its  _______________________________  

____________________, ______, as the 
Escrow Agent 

 By    
 ________________, Vice President 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 206

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT G TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Wingfoot Environmental Representations and Warranties  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 

Page 207

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553181 v3   

Wingfoot Environmental Representations and Warranties 

The undersigned hereby certifies, solely in his capacity as officer or manager of Wingfoot (and 

not in his individual capacity), as required by Article 4 of the Master Purchase, Sale and Raw 

Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch) (the “Agreement”), dated ________ __, 

2020, by and between WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC (“Wingfoot”) and THE CITY 

OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipal corporation, (“City”), acting by 

and through its WATER ENTERPRISE (“Greeley”), that the following representations and 

warranties are true and correct as of the Effective Date to the current actual knowledge of 

Wingfoot: 

A. The Assets are not currently being and have not been used in violation of 
applicable Environmental Laws or Environmental Permits. No storage tanks for Hazardous 
Substances are or were located on, in or under the Assets. 

B. Wingfoot has not caused a Release on, at or from the Assets, or any 
facilities located thereon, and Wingfoot has not received any form of notice or inquiry from any 
federal, state or local government agency or authority, any operator, tenant, subtenant, licensee 
or occupant of the Assets or any other person with regard to a Release, at or from the Assets, or 
any facilities located thereon. 

C. No event has occurred with respect to the Assets that is reasonably likely 
to constitute a violation of any currently applicable Environmental Law or non-compliance with 
any Environmental Permit held by Wingfoot. 

D. There are no agreements, consent orders, decrees, judgments, licenses or 
permit conditions or other orders or directives of any federal, state or local court, governmental 
agency or authority relating to the past, present or future ownership, use, operation, sale, transfer 
or conveyance of the Assets which require any change in the present condition or use of the 
Assets or any work, repairs, construction, containment, clean up, investigations, studies, removal 
or other remedial action or capital expenditures with respect to the Assets that have not been 
disclosed in writing to Greeley. 

E. There are no pending actions, suits, claims or proceedings which are 
reasonably likely to cause the incurrence of expenses or costs or which seek money damages, 
injunctive relief, remedial action or any other remedy that arise out of, relate to or result from (i) 
a material violation or alleged material violation of any applicable Environmental Law or 
material non-compliance or alleged material noncompliance with any Environmental Permit held 
by Wingfoot, (ii) the presence of any Hazardous Substance or a Release on, at or from the Assets 
or any facilities located thereon, or (iii) human exposure to any Hazardous Substance, noises, 
vibrations or nuisances of whatever kind to the extent the same arise from the condition of the 
Assets or the ownership, use, operation, sale, transfer or conveyance thereof. 

F. It has not received notice that any treatment, storage or disposal facility, or 
any other place to which Hazardous Substances generated from the Assets by Wingfoot or any 
prior owner or operator or its agent were transported, delivered or came to be located (i) has 

Page 208

Item No. 16.



Page 209

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553181 v3   

CLOSING CERTIFICATION 

 

The undersigned hereby certifies, solely in his capacity as officer or manager of Wingfoot 

(and not in his individual capacity), that to the current actual knowledge of Wingfoot, the 

representations and warranties of Wingfoot on Exhibit G, made as of the Effective Date, are true 

and correct in all material respects, and are unmodified or amended as of the Closing Date as 

though such representations and warranties were made at and as of the Closing Date; provided 

that such representations and warranties shall terminate and be of no further force and effect 

upon the earlier of (i) the termination of the Agreement or (ii) Closing. 

 

DATED as of the ____ day of____________, 20__.   

 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a [Colorado/Delaware] 

limited liability company 

By:________________________________ 

Name:  Christopher P. Dietzler 

Title:   Chief Executive Officer 

 

Page 210

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT H TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Greeley Environmental Representatives and Warranties  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 
Page 211

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553219 v3   

Greeley Environmental Representatives and Warranties 

 The undersigned hereby, solely in his or her capacity as an elected official, officer or 

employee of Greeley (and not in his or her individual capacity), makes and certifies, as required 

by Article 4 of the Master Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement 

(Terry Ranch) (the “Agreement”), dated ________, by and between WINGFOOT WATER 

RESOURCES LLC (“Wingfoot”) and THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado 

home rule municipal corporation, (“City”), acting by and through its WATER ENTERPRISE 

(“Greeley”), the following representations and warranties as of the Closing Date to the current 

actual knowledge of Greeley:  

 

A. Greeley has complied in all material respects with the Greeley 
Environmental Covenants set forth in Section 5.5 of the Agreement. 

B. Greeley has not caused a Release on, at or from the Assets, or any 
facilities located thereon except as otherwise disclosed on Exhibit H-11 attached hereto. 

C. No event has occurred with respect to the Assets that is reasonably likely 
to constitute a violation of any currently applicable Environmental Law or non-compliance with 
any Environmental Permit except as otherwise disclosed on Exhibit H-1 attached hereto. 

The above representations and warranties shall terminate and be of no further force and effect 

upon the earlier of (i) the termination of the Agreement or (ii) Closing. 

DATED as of the ____ day of____________, 20__. 

  

                                                   
1  NTD: To be inserted based on Due Diligence.  

Page 212

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553219 v3   

Date:    THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO,  a 

Colorado home rule municipal corporation, 

acting by and through its WATER 

ENTERPRISE 

By________________________________ 

Name:_____________________________ 

Title:  Water and Sewer Board Chairman 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 

By________________________________ 

    City Manager 

 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

By________________________________ 

Director of Finance 

 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

By________________________________ 

 City Attorney 

  

RECOMMENDED: 

By________________________________ 

Director of Water and Sewer Department  

Page 213

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553219 v3   

 

EXHIBIT H-1 TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 

ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Environmental Violations and/or Releases 

[To be completed by Greeley] 

 

  

Page 214

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT I TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Existing Improvements  

(See Attached) 

X-4-3 

ADE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 215

Item No. 16.



 
 

LIST OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 
 
PRODUCTION WELLS 
 

 Production well WWR-1  
o NE ¼ , Sec. 21, Township 12 N, Range 67 W (refer to Map of Production Wells, enclosed) 
o Major components include, but may not be limited to: 12.75-inch outside diameter steel pipe, 435 

feet of plain casing and a total of 890 feet of 35-slot, continuous v-wire-wrap Type 304 stainless 
steel screen, 1,175 feet of SiLiBead filter pack, pitless adapter.  Total depth of well is 1,345 feet 
below ground surface. “As is.” 

 Production well WWR-2 
o NW ¼, Sec. 23, Township 12 N, Range 67 W (refer to Map of Production Wells, enclosed) 
o Major components include, but may not be limited to: 12.75-inch outside diameter steel pipe,  535 

feet of plain casing and a total of 880 feet of 35-slot, continuous v-wire-wrap Type 304 stainless 
steel screen, 960 feet of SiLiBead filter pack, pitless adapter.  Total depth of well is 1,425 feet 
below ground surface. “As is.” 

 Production well WWR-3 
o NE ¼ , Sec. 3, Township 11 N, Range 67 W (refer to Map of Production Wells, enclosed) 
o Major components include, but may not be limited to: 12.75-inch outside diameter steel pipe,  310 

feet of plain casing and a total of 860 feet of 35-slot, continuous v-wire-wrap Type 304 stainless 
steel screen, 1,010 feet of SiLiBead filter pack, pitless adapter.  Total depth of well is 1,180 feet 
below ground surface. “As is.” 

 Production well WWR-4 
o SE ¼ , Sec. 23, Township 11 N, Range 67 W (refer to Map of Production Wells, enclosed) 
o Major components include, but may not be limited to: 12.75-inch outside diameter steel pipe,  137 

feet of plain casing and a total of 820 feet of 35-slot, continuous v-wire-wrap Type 304 stainless 
steel screen, 915 feet of SiLiBead filter pack, pitless adapter.  Total depth of well is 965 feet below 
ground surface. “As is.” 

 Production well WWR-5 
o SW ¼ , Sec. 21, Township 11N, Range 67 W (refer to Map of Production Wells, enclosed) 
o Major components include, but may not be limited to: 12.75-inch outside diameter steel pipe,  207 

feet of plain casing and a total of 800 feet of 35-slot, continuous v-wire-wrap Type 304 stainless 
steel screen, 980 feet of SiLiBead filter pack, pitless adapter.  Total depth of well is 1,030 feet 
below ground surface. “As is.” 

Page 216

Item No. 16.



Document Path: C:\Users\James\OneDrive - grasslandwatersolutions 2.com\Documents\Grassland\GIS\MapFiles\Wingfoot_Greeley_Exhibit_Map.mxd

@A
@A

@A

@A

@A

WWR-1
WWR-2

WWR-3

WWR-4

WWR-5

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community

K
0 1 20.5

Miles

1:50,000

Coordinate System:
NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Colorado North FIPS 0501 Feet

@A 2019 Production Wells

Property Outline

Terry Grazing Association
State Land Board (within TGA)

State Boundary

JS
June 2020

CD

Map of Production Wells

  DATE:
  DRAWN:   CHECKED: Page 217

Item No. 16.

James
Rectangle



EXHIBIT J TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Wingfoot General Representations and Warranties 

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 
Page 218

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553183 v3   

Wingfoot General Representations and Warranties 

The undersigned hereby certifies, solely in his capacity as officer or manager of Wingfoot (and 

not in his individual capacity), as required by Article 4 of the Master Purchase, Sale and Raw 

Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch) (the “Agreement”), dated ________ __, 

2020, by and between WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a Colorado limited liability 

company (“Wingfoot”) and THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule 

municipal corporation, (“City”), acting by and through its WATER ENTERPRISE (“Greeley”), 

that the following representations and warranties are true and correct as of the Effective Date to 

the current actual knowledge of Wingfoot: 

 A. Compliance with Governmental Regulations.  There are no orders or directives of 

any city, county, state or federal authority, for repairs, maintenance work or improvements to be 

performed on Terry Ranch. Wingfoot has received no notice from any municipal, state or other 

statutory authority relating to non-compliance with any building code or restriction, applicable to 

the Assets that has not been corrected, or any notice of or impending expropriation or 

condemnation of Terry Ranch or the Assets. 

B. Litigation.  There is no dispute, action or litigation pending or threatened 

respecting the ownership or use of the Assets or other interests related thereto. 

C. Status.  Wingfoot has all requisite legal power and authority to own and convey 

the Assets and perform all of the terms of the Agreement. 

D. Compliance with Law.  Wingfoot has complied in all material respects with all 

laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, orders, judgments and decrees applicable to the Assets, and 

to Wingfoot’s current actual knowledge there is no proposed order, judgment, decree, 

governmental taking or other proceeding applicable to Wingfoot which is reasonably likely to 

constitute a Material Adverse Effect on the Assets. 

E. Zoning.  Wingfoot has not given its consent to, and to Wingfoot’s current actual 

knowledge, there are no pending requests for, zoning variances or changes with respect to the 

Terry Ranch or its zoning. 

F.  Entity Representations.   

(i) Wingfoot is and, at all times since its inception, has been duly formed, 

validly existing, and in good standing in the State of Colorado and in all other 

jurisdictions where Wingfoot is qualified to do business as of the date hereof. 

(ii) Wingfoot is not now a party to any lawsuit, arbitration, summons or legal 

proceeding (including, without limitation, any dispute with a taxing authority), and there 

are no unpaid judgments or outstanding judgment or tax liens of any nature against 

Wingfoot except for tax liens not yet due. 

Page 219

Item No. 16.



  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553183 v3   

(iii) Wingfoot has filed all tax returns required to be filed by Wingfoot and has 

paid all taxes which are due and payable by Wingfoot as of the date hereof, except for 

accrued taxes or taxes disputed by Wingfoot. 

(iv) Wingfoot has never owned, leased, operated or possessed any real 

property other than the Assets owned by Wingfoot on the date hereof, and Wingfoot has 

never engaged in any business other than the ownership and operation of the Assets and 

matters relating thereto. 

(v) There is (a) no UCC financing statement filed against Wingfoot that has 

not been terminated, (b) no lien against Wingfoot other than (1) liens for taxes not yet 

due and payable or being contested in good faith; (2) mechanics’, carriers’ workmens’, 

repairmens’ or other like liens, none of which are material; (3) easements, rights of way, 

zoning ordinances and other similar encumbrances affecting real property, which either 

have been disclosed to Greeley or which do not adversely affect the operation of 

Wingfoot in any material respect; and (4) liens, encumbrances, imperfections, in title, 

charges, matters of record, easements and restrictions which, individually or in the 

aggregate, do not materially impair the intended use of the Assets, (c) no unpaid 

judgment against Wingfoot, and (d) no bankruptcy case in which Wingfoot is the debtor. 

(vi) Wingfoot has no currently outstanding liabilities not related to the Assets 

or its related business. 

G. Encumbrances. Wingfoot has not encumbered the Assets nor granted any property 

or contract right relating to the Assets, except for the Permitted Exceptions and the rights granted 

to Greeley under the Agreement. 

The above representations and warranties shall terminate and be of no further force and effect 

upon the earlier of (i) the termination of the Agreement or (ii) Closing. 

 

Page 220

Item No. 16.



Page 221

Item No. 16.



  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553183 v3   

CLOSING CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned hereby certifies, solely in his capacity as officer or manager of Wingfoot 

(and not in his individual capacity), that the representations and warranties of Wingfoot on 

Exhibit J, made as of the Effective Date, are true and correct in all material respects, and are 

unmodified or amended as of the Closing Date as though such representations and warranties 

were made at and as of the Closing Date; provided that such representations and warranties shall 

terminate and be of no further force and effect upon the earlier of (i) the termination of the 

Agreement or (ii) the date which is six (6) months after Closing. 

 Additionally, the undersigned hereby certifies, solely in his capacity as officer or 

manager of Wingfoot (and not in his individual capacity), that the following representations and 

warranties are true and correct in all material respects as of the Closing Date; provided that such 

representations and warranties shall terminate and be of no further force and effect upon the 

earlier of (i) the termination of the Agreement or (ii) the date which is six (6) months after 

Closing: 

A. Contracts, Leases and Agreements.  From the Effective Date of the Agreement 

until the Closing, unless consented by Greeley in writing, Wingfoot has not entered into any 

contracts, leases, licenses, commitments or undertakings respecting the use or maintenance of the 

Assets or the performance of services on the Assets or by which Greeley is obligated or liable to 

any third party in relation thereto. 

 

  

 

DATED as of the ____ day of____________, 20__.   

 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a [Delaware/Colorado] 

limited liability company 

By:________________________________ 

Name:  Christopher P. Dietzler 

Title:   Chief Executive Officer 

Page 222

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT K TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Greeley General Representations and Warranties  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 

Page 223

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553175 v2   

Greeley General Representations and Warranties 

 The undersigned hereby certifies, solely in his or her capacity as an elected official, officer or 

employee of Greeley (and not in his or her individual capacity), as required by Article 4 of the 

Master Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch) (the 

“Agreement”), dated ________, by and between WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC 

(“Wingfoot”) and THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipal 

corporation, (“City”), acting by and through its WATER ENTERPRISE (“Greeley”), that the 

following representations and warranties are true and correct as of the Effective Date to the 

current actual knowledge of Greeley: 

 A. Status.  Greeley has all requisite legal power and authority to own and accept the 

Assets, and enter into and perform the terms of the Agreement. 

 B. Compliance with Law.  Greeley has complied in all material respects with all 

laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, orders, judgments and decrees applicable to the purchase of 

the Assets and entry into the Agreement.   

 C. Disclosure of Limitations on Enforcement.  There is no proposed order, judgment, 

decree, law (including state laws applicable to Greeley or any relevant county or city code 

provision or ordinance) or proceeding applicable to Greeley that is reasonably likely to 

materially and adversely affect Wingfoot’s ability to enforce the terms of the Agreement, except 

as expressly provided in the Agreement. 

 D. Financial Capability to Close and Perform Payment Obligations.  Greeley has 

adequate cash reserves to meet its obligations at Closing and Closing is not contingent on the 

borrowing of funds, extension of Greeley’s credit, or any payments for which funds are 

unavailable.  To Greeley’s current actual knowledge there is no reason as of the date of 

execution of the Agreement to believe that it will be unable to satisfy its monetary obligations 

pursuant to the Agreement, if any, when due. 

The above representations and warranties shall terminate and be of no further force and effect 

upon the earlier of (i) the termination of the Agreement or (ii) Closing. 

 

 

 

 

DATED as of the ____ day of____________, 20__. 

Page 224

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553175 v2   

Date:   THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO,  a 

Colorado home rule municipal corporation, 

acting by and through its WATER 

ENTERPRISE 

By________________________________ 

Name:_____________________________ 

Title:  Water and Sewer Board Chairman 

 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 

By________________________________ 

    City Manager 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

By________________________________ 

    Director of Finance 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

By________________________________ 

     City Attorney 

 

RECOMMENDED: 

 

 

By ________________________________ 

    Director of Water and Sewer Department

Page 225

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553175 v2   

CLOSING CERTIFICATION 

 

The undersigned hereby certifies, solely in his or her capacity as an elected official, 

officer or employee of Greeley (and not in his or her individual capacity), that the foregoing 

representations and warranties, made as of the Effective Date, are true and correct in all material 

respects, and are unmodified or amended as of the Closing Date as though such representations 

and warranties were made at and as of the Closing Date; provided that such representations and 

warranties shall terminate and be of no further force and effect upon the earlier of (i) the 

termination of the Agreement or (ii) the date which is six (6) months after Closing. 

DATED as of the ____ day of____________, 20__.   

 

Date:   THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO,  a 

Colorado home rule municipal corporation, 

acting by and through its WATER 

ENTERPRISE 

By________________________________ 

Name:_____________________________ 

Title:  Water and Sewer Board Chairman 

 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 

By________________________________ 

    City Manager 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

By________________________________ 

    Director of Finance 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

By________________________________ 

     City Attorney 

 

RECOMMENDED: 

 

 

By ________________________________ 

    Director of Water and Sewer Department 

Page 226

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT L TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Tenancy in Common Agreement  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 227

Item No. 16.



 

 - 1 -  
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT 

 

for 

TERRY RANCH PROPERTY 

Dated ____________ __, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 228

Item No. 16.



 

    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS .......................................................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE 2 INVESTMENT IN AND MANAGEMENT OF THE PROPERTY ........................ 6 
2.1. Purpose and Scope of Investment. ....................................................................... 6 
2.2. Acquisition of Property. ....................................................................................... 7 
2.3. Use of Property. ..................................................................................................... 7 
2.4. Indebtedness. ......................................................................................................... 7 
2.5. Term of Agreement. .............................................................................................. 7 
2.6. Controlling Agreement. ........................................................................................ 7 
2.7. Management of the Property. .............................................................................. 7 
2.8. Unanimous Consent Actions. ............................................................................... 9 
2.9. Approval Process. ................................................................................................ 10 
2.10. Binding Authority. ............................................................................................. 10 

ARTICLE 3 RELATIONSHIP AMONG OWNERS .................................................................. 10 
3.1. Nature of Ownership Relationship. ................................................................... 10 
3.2. Disclaimer of Partnership and Fiduciary Relationship; Tax Reporting. ...... 10 
3.3. Waiver of Right to Partition............................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 4 SHARING OF COSTS AND EXPENSES ............................................................. 12 
4.1. Sharing of Income and Expenses. ...................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 5 OWNERS’ FUNDING OBLIGATIONS................................................................ 12 
5.1. Costs other than Project Infrastructure. .......................................................... 13 

ARTICLE 6 RIGHTS OF OWNERS .......................................................................................... 13 
6.1. Limitation on Owners’ Rights. .......................................................................... 13 
6.2. Liability for Certain Acts. .................................................................................. 13 
6.3. Limitation on Third Party Owners. .................................................................. 14 
6.4. Removal and Designation of Successor Administrator. .................................. 14 

ARTICLE 7 TERMINATION AND WINDUP .......................................................................... 14 
7.1. Termination of the Tenancy in Common. ......................................................... 14 

ARTICLE 8 RESTRICTION ON TRANSFER OF AN OWNERSHIP INTEREST ................. 14 
8.1. Third Party Transfers. ....................................................................................... 15 
8.2. Transferability of Ownership Interests. ............................................................ 15 

ARTICLE 9 LIABILITIES, EXCULPATION AND INDEMNIFICATION ............................. 15 
9.1. Disclaimer of Liability. ....................................................................................... 15 
9.2. Indemnification of Administrator. .................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEOUS ............................................................................................. 16 
10.1. Notices. ................................................................................................................ 16 
10.2. Successors and Assigns. ..................................................................................... 18 
10.3. Governing Law, Jurisdiction. ........................................................................... 18 
10.4. No Waiver of Governmental Immunity/No Third Party Beneficiary. .......... 19 
10.5. Amendment. ....................................................................................................... 19 

Page 229

Item No. 16.



 

    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

10.6. Waiver; Ratification. ......................................................................................... 19 
10.7. Attorney Fees. ..................................................................................................... 19 
10.8. Headings.............................................................................................................. 19 
10.9. Recordation. ....................................................................................................... 20 
10.10. Multiple Counterparts. ...................................................................................... 20 
10.11. Integration with Other Agreements. ................................................................ 20 
10.12. Legal Construction............................................................................................. 20 
10.13. Joint Effort and Review..................................................................................... 20 
10.14. Dispute Resolution and Jury Trial Waiver. .................................................... 21 
10.15. Further Assurances. ........................................................................................... 21 
10.16. Singular Includes Plural. ................................................................................... 21 
10.17. Calendar Days. ................................................................................................... 21 
 

Page 230

Item No. 16.



 

 4 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT 

THIS TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is effective as of 

____________ __, 2020 (the “Effective Date”), by and between WINGFOOT WATER 

RESOURCES, a [Colorado/Delaware] limited liability company (“Wingfoot”), and THE CITY 

OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipal corporation, (“Greeley” or 

“City”), acting by and through its Water Enterprise (the “Enterprise”) (each, an “Original 

Owner” and collectively the “Original Owners”). 

R E C I T A L S: 

WHEREAS, the Original Owners have executed that certain MASTER PURCHASE, 

SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (Terry Ranch) (the 

“Master Agreement”) providing for ownership, as tenants-in-common, of certain property (the 

“Property”) comprised of (i) nontributary deep aquifer ground water rights, underlying real 

property in Weld County, Colorado, legally described on Exhibit A-1 and depicted on Exhibit 

A-2 (“Terry Ranch”), adjudicated and quantified on June 14, 2018, in Case Number 11CW275, 

District Court, Water Division 1, Colorado, and further described in that certain Special 

Warranty Deed, dated September 30, 2016, recorded October 17, 2016 in the real property 

records of the Clerk and Recorder for Weld County, Colorado (the “Records”), at Reception 

Number 4245308, and that certain Special Warranty Deed, dated April 30, 2018, recorded May 

1, 2018 in the Records at Reception Number 4394951 (“Water Rights”), and (ii) certain 

Ancillary Assets (defined below);   

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Master Agreement, Wingfoot has sold, and 

Greeley has purchased, an undivided 10/12,121th interest in the Property by delivery of the deed 

and assignment duly executed and acknowledged, attached as Exhibits B-1 and B-2, and the 

Original Owners contemplate additional conveyances of the Property from Wingfoot (or certain 

third parties) to Greeley pursuant to this Agreement and the Master Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Owners (as defined below) desire to set forth in this Agreement certain 

terms and conditions regarding (i) the Property and the Owners’ co-ownership of the Property, 

(ii) the Management (as defined below) of the Property, including rights and responsibilities with 

respect to additional partial conveyances of the Property and obtaining orderly determinations 

with respect to such Management, and (iii) certain other arrangements regarding the Owners’ 

rights and interests with respect to the Property and the Master Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements of the 

Owners contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and total 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Owners agree as follows: 

 

 

Page 231

Item No. 16.



 

 5 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 

Unless defined in this Agreement, capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in the Master Agreement.  In addition to terms defined 

elsewhere in this Agreement, as used herein, the following terms shall have the definitions set 

forth below: 

“Access Easement” means the easement held by Owners, as the owner of the Water 

Rights, to access Terry Ranch for purposes more fully described therein, attached as Exhibit C. 

“Administrator” means Greeley, together with its authorized employees, agents and 

designees. 

“Affiliates” means, with respect to any Person, any individual or entity directly or 
indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controlling, controlled by or under common 
control with such Person.  The term “control,” as used in the immediately preceding sentence, 
means the right to the exercise, directly or indirectly, of more than fifty percent (50%) of the 
voting rights attributable to the shares or other equity interests of the controlled corporation or 
other entity, or the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction 
of the management, policies or governance of the controlled entity. 

“Ancillary Assets” means (i) the Access Easement, (ii) any and all other rights, 

privileges and appurtenances owned by Wingfoot, without warranty of any type, which relate to 

or are used in connection with the Water Rights and the assets listed in this sentence, to the 

extent assignable, and (iii) all of Wingfoot’s right, title and interest, without warranty of any 

type, in and to all governmental permits, licenses, certificates and authorizations relating to the 

construction, development or use of the assets described in this sentence. 

“Co-tenancy” means the Owners with respect to their collective co-tenancy in the 

Property. 

“Deed” has the meaning given in Section 6.3. 

 “Law” means any federal, state or local constitution, statute, code, ordinance, rule, 

regulation, judicial or administrative decision or other rule of law. 

“Leases” means all leases and other agreements for the use and occupancy of space or 

granting an interest in real property entered into by the Owners or their predecessors-in-interest 

with respect to all or a portion of Property. 

Page 232

Item No. 16.



 

 6 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

“Lien” means any mortgage, deed of trust, lien, pledge, hypothecation, assignment, 

security interest, option, right of first offer or refusal, preemptive rights, or any other 

encumbrance, charge or transfer of, on or affecting the Property or any portion thereof or interest 

therein including, without limitation, any conditional sale or other title retention agreement, any 

financing lease having substantially the same economic effect as any of the foregoing, the filing 

of any financing statement, control agreement, and mechanic’s, materialmen’s, tax, judgment 

and other similar liens and encumbrances. 

“Management” means, with respect to the Co-tenancy, the Owners’ use, operation, 

maintenance, leasing, financing and disposition of the Property. 

“Owner” means any of the Original Owners or Third Party Owners, with the collective 

Original Owners and Third Party Owners (if any) referred to as “Owners”. 

“Percentage Ownership Interest” means each Owner’s (and Third Party Owner’s, as 

applicable) undivided interest in the Property, expressed as a percentage or fraction of the entire 

Property. 

“Person” means any individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint 

venture, estate, trust, unincorporated association or other entity whatsoever, any federal, state, 

county or municipal government, or any bureau or department or agency thereof, and any 

fiduciary acting in such capacity on behalf of any of the foregoing. 

“Property” shall have the meaning given in the Recitals hereto. 

“State” means the State of Colorado. 

“Third Party Owner” means any Person other than the Original Owners who acquires 

and owns (for any period of time) an undivided interest as a tenant in common in the Property 

and executes a Deed (in compliance with Section 8.1), and two or more such Persons being 

referred to herein collectively as “Third Party Owners”.  

“Unanimous Consent Action” means any event, action or matter which requires the 

consent or approval of the Original Owners pursuant to the terms of this Agreement as further 

described in Section 2.8 of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 2 

INVESTMENT IN AND MANAGEMENT OF THE PROPERTY 

2.1. Purpose and Scope of Investment.  The Owners hereby enter into this 

Agreement and agree to the terms, conditions and provisions hereof for the purpose of regulating 

their ownership and Management of the Property.   

Page 233

Item No. 16.



 

 7 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

2.2. Acquisition of Property.  The Owners, as limited by this Agreement, including 

Section 6.3, own the Property in their respective names as tenants in common under Colorado 

law, with each Owner owning an undivided interest in the Property in the amount of their 

respective Percentage Ownership Interests.  As of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the 

initial Percentage Ownership Interests of the Owners are set forth on Exhibit D attached to this 

Agreement.  Any changes to the Percentage Ownership Interests shall be documented and 

recorded in the Registry, as further described in the Master Agreement. 

2.3. Use of Property.  Each of the Owners agrees that it shall exercise its rights to use 

the Property only pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the Master 

Agreement.  Each Owner hereby agrees that during the Term (defined below) it will not exercise 

its rights as a tenant in common, or any of its rights to use or improve the Property or to lease or 

sell the Property to any Person, except as (and subject to the conditions and restrictions) provided 

in this Agreement and the Master Agreement. 

2.4. Indebtedness.  Each Owner agrees that it will not incur any indebtedness secured 

by the Property, or allow any Lien to be placed on the Property, subject to Greeley’s right to 

incur debt or payment obligations, unsecured by the Property, in the ordinary course of its 

business, including the Enterprise’s right to issue water bonds unsecured by the Property.  

2.5. Term of Agreement.  

(a) The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) shall commence on the 

Effective Date, and shall end upon the sooner of the following to occur (each, a “Termination 

Event”): 

(i) either of the Original Owners acquiring all of the undivided 
interests in the Property such that any Owner’s Percentage Ownership Interest is one 
hundred percent (100%); and 

(ii) subject to Section 8.3 of the Master Agreement, the date which is 
ten (10) years after the Closing Date. 

(b) Upon the occurrence of a Termination Event, this Agreement shall not be 

terminated and shall continue until the winding up of the affairs of the Owners under Section 7.1 

of this Agreement is completed.   

2.6. Controlling Agreement.  This Agreement is intended to be the governing 

agreement between the parties regarding their co-tenancy in common in the Property, but 

remains expressly subject to the Master Agreement in all respects.  In the event of any 

inconsistency between the terms of the Master Agreement, or any portion thereof, and the terms 

of this Agreement, the applicable terms of the Master Agreement shall prevail.     

2.7. Management of the Property. 

Page 234

Item No. 16.



 

 8 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

(a) Except as provided in and limited by Section 2.8 and the Master 

Agreement, the Administrator shall have full authority to take the following actions with respect 

to the Property, including executing and delivering all documents in connection therewith:  

(i) holding, operating, managing, maintaining, improving, and 

repairing the Property, including constructing the Project Infrastructure (as that term is 

defined in the Master Agreement) and operating the Water Distribution System (as that 

term is defined in the Master Agreement) on the Property in accordance with the Master 

Agreement;  

(ii) depositing funds in banks or with an escrow agent and authorizing 

withdrawals therefrom (except as limited by the Master Agreement, including provisions 

regarding the Construction Escrow and Prorated Escrow), to pay the legitimate expenses 

of the Co-tenancy, on the signature of such person as the Administrator determines; and 

(iii) acquiring and contracting for products, insurance and other goods 

and services for use in the ordinary course of the Co-tenancy’s operation and in 

connection with construction of the Project Infrastructure and the operation of the Water 

Distribution System. 

(b) The Administrator shall maintain the records of the Property, including 

copies of any documents executed or maintained by the Administrator in its Management of the 

Property.  Each Original Owner may inspect and make copies of the records maintained by the 

Administrator and related to the Property during the Administrator’s regular business hours and 

upon reasonable prior notice to the Administrator; provided, however, that any out-of-pocket 

expenses incurred by an Original Owner’s inspection shall be borne solely by the Original 

Owner conducting such inspection.  The Administrator will provide annual financial information 

related to the Property and Assets within ninety (90) days of the applicable calendar year end to 

each Original Owner sufficient to allow each Original Owner to complete federal, state and local 

income tax returns.   

(c) Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or the Master Agreement, 

the Administrator shall have the exclusive right to use and access the Property including, but not 

limited to, enjoyment of the rights set forth in the Ancillary Assets, to achieve the stated 

purposes set forth in the Master Agreement and this Agreement.  All elements of the Project 

Infrastructure and the Water Distribution System constructed on the Property by Administrator 

shall be the sole property of Greeley and no other Owner shall have any ownership interest 

therein.  Any other Original Owner or Third-Party Owner may only access and use the property 

upon (i) written permission from the Administrator or (ii) upon any default by the Administrator 

under this Agreement or the Master Agreement. 

2.8. Unanimous Consent Actions. 

Page 235

Item No. 16.



 

 9 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

(a) All actions with respect to the Property not enumerated in Section 2.7 

shall be Unanimous Consent Actions, and such Unanimous Consent Actions cannot be taken by 

the Administrator without the prior consent of all of the Original Owners pursuant to Section 2.9.  

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Administrator may not take any 

action with respect to the Property that is inconsistent with its rights and obligations under the 

Master Agreement, even with the consent of the Original Owners.      

(b) Unanimous Consent Actions include, but shall not be limited to, the 

following:  

(i) On behalf of the Owners, acquisition of any property by purchase, 

lease, or otherwise to be held by the Owners as tenants in common pursuant to the terms 

of this Agreement, other than  

(A) the Property,  and 

(B) the proceeds of the Property; 

(ii) sell or otherwise transfer the Property or any ownership interests in 

the Property, except for Third Party Transfers described in Section 8.1;  

(iii) Except for transactions contemplated by the Master Agreement, 

give or grant any options, rights of first refusal, deeds of trusts, mortgages, pledges, 

security interests, other encumbrances, or other interests in or to the Property, any portion 

thereof, or Percentage Ownership Interest;  

(iv) cause or permit any loans to be made in relation to the Co-tenancy 

or allow the Co-tenancy to become a surety, guarantor, endorser, or accommodation 

endorser for any person, firm or corporation; 

(v) enter into a Property management agreement or assignment of 

Administrator’s rights;  

(vi) on behalf of the Owners, enter into any written employment 

agreement or severance arrangement with any individual, or amending or terminating any 

such agreement;  

(vii) modify, amend or waive, in any material respect, the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement; 

Page 236

Item No. 16.



 

 10 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

(viii) bring onto the Property, or permit to be brought onto the Property, 

any hazardous or toxic substance or material regulated by the State of Colorado, the 

United States of America, or any other government authority with applicable jurisdiction, 

except to the extent that the hazardous or toxic substances are of a type or quantity the 

presence, use, storage, release or handling of which does not constitute a violation of any 

applicable environmental laws and is customarily employed in the ordinary course of, or 

associated with, drilling and water treatment and construction of infrastructure relating to 

same in the State of Colorado. 

2.9. Approval Process.  Any Unanimous Consent Action must be approved by a 

written instrument signed by each Original Owner that sets forth the approval of the subject 

matter at issue.  An Original Owner may request approval by delivering to the other Original 

Owner written notice requesting approval of a Unanimous Consent Action (an “Approval 

Notice”).  Any Approval Notice not executed by both Original Owners shall be deemed to be 

disapproved by the Original Owners.  Such approval or disapproval, as applicable, shall be 

binding upon each Owner.  The approval or disapproval by an Original Owner of a matter shall 

not be deemed to waive or render unnecessary approval to or for any similar or subsequent act or 

request. 

2.10. Binding Authority.  Consistent with (and as limited by) Section 2.8, the 

Administrator shall have the power and authority to act on behalf of the Owners. 

ARTICLE 3 

RELATIONSHIP AMONG OWNERS 

3.1. Nature of Ownership Relationship.  Each Owner owns an undivided interest in 

the Property, subject to Section 6.3, describing the nature of ownership acquired by Third Party 

Owners.  The percentage of each Owner’s undivided interest in the Property as of the Effective 

Date is reflected on Exhibit D and shall be maintained and amended in the Registry.  Nothing in 

this Agreement shall modify the nature of an Owner’s interest as an owner of an undivided 

interest in the Property as a tenant-in-common.  In the event of any change in the Percentage 

Ownership Interests of the Owners, whether pursuant to this Agreement or the Master 

Agreement, the Owners agree to update the Registry pursuant to the Master Agreement, and each 

Owner, on its own behalf, shall cooperate and shall execute any documents in connection 

therewith. 

3.2. Disclaimer of Partnership and Fiduciary Relationship; Tax Reporting. 

Page 237

Item No. 16.



 

 11 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

(a) The Owners expressly intend that their relationship shall be that of co-

tenant owners of the Property.  The provisions of this Agreement are not intended to create, nor 

shall they be in any way interpreted to create: (i) a joint venture, partnership or other similar 

relationship between or among the Owners, and each of the Owners hereby expressly waives and 

disclaims any such joint venture, partnership or similar relationship or (ii) any fiduciary 

relationship between or among the Owners, and each Owner hereby expressly disclaims any such 

fiduciary relationship.  The Owners intend that the tenancy in common created by this 

Agreement not be treated as a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes and each 

Owner agrees that it will prepare or cause to be prepared its federal and applicable state income 

tax returns (or, if applicable, its beneficial owners’ federal and applicable state income tax 

returns) in a manner consistent with such intention, unless otherwise required by law. The 

Owners, in addition, may not hold themselves or the Co-Tenancy out collectively as one entity or 

under one name or conduct business holding forth as one entity.  The Original Owners’ activities 

shall be limited to those customarily performed in connection with the maintenance, repair and 

operation of the Property, taking into account all activities of the Owners, their agents and any 

person related to the Owners.  Third Party Owners’ actions shall at all times be expressly limited 

as described in Section 6.3.  Notwithstanding any terms or conditions contained herein, all terms 

and conditions hereof are subject to the terms and conditions of the Internal Revenue Code as 

may be necessary to establish and maintain the relationship of the parties strictly as co-tenants. 

(b) The Owners shall be subject to any and all restrictions in the Master 

Agreement concerning an Owner’s right to engage in or possess an interest in other business 

ventures, whether or not in competition with the Property, including, but not limited to, 

limitations on Wingfoot’s activities provided in the Master Agreement. 

(c) Wingfoot was and is organized solely for the limited purpose of obtaining 

real property rights and related assets and rights regarding water and water-related projects and 

carrying out the transactions contemplated by the Master Agreement as provided in the Amended 

and Restated Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Wingfoot dated ______, 2020 

(the “Wingfoot Operating Agreement”) and during the Term of this Agreement, Wingfoot 

agrees to maintain its existence and at all times conduct its business operations in a manner 

consistent in all material respects with the Wingfoot Operating Agreement.  

Page 238

Item No. 16.



 

 12 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

3.3. Waiver of Right to Partition. Having been previously advised of their respective 

rights to bring an action for partition under the Laws of the State (“Action for Partition”), each of 

the Owners hereby covenants and warrants that it will not bring, pursue or maintain an action (a) 

for partition with respect to the Property or (b) to compel any sale thereof under the Laws of the 

State as from time to time in effect, and each Owner hereby irrevocably waives its rights to bring 

an action for partition with respect to the Property or to compel any sale thereof.  In connection 

with the foregoing, the Owners acknowledge and agree that each of them has been induced to 

enter into this Agreement in reliance on the aforementioned covenants, warranties and waivers of 

the other Owners and, without such covenants, warranties and waivers, no Owner would have 

entered into this Agreement.  The Owners expressly acknowledge and agree that the foregoing 

covenants may be enforced by an action for specific performance or injunction preventing an 

Owner from bringing or maintaining an action for partition.  

ARTICLE 4 

SHARING OF COSTS AND EXPENSES 

4.1. Sharing of Income and Expenses. 

(a) All income arising from or with respect to the Original Owners’ interests 

in the Property shall be allocated, distributed and deposited as described in the Master 

Agreement.  Except as provided in the Master Agreement, including Wingfoot’s obligations 

under Article 9 of the Master Agreement, Greeley shall be solely responsible for all expenses 

arising out of the business of the Co-tenancy and the operating, managing, maintaining, 

improving, and repairing of the Property, Project Infrastructure and Water Distribution System.  

(b) For the avoidance of doubt, the sale of Raw Water Credits (as that term is 

defined in the Master Agreement) by Wingfoot shall not be considered income arising from the 

Owners’ interest in the Property, and such sale shall not be subject to the terms of this 

Agreement.    

ARTICLE 5 

OWNERS’ FUNDING OBLIGATIONS 

5.1. Costs other than Project Infrastructure.  Except as provided in the Master 

Agreement with respect to Wingfoot’s Cash Contribution commitments related to Project 

Infrastructure (as that term is defined in the Master Agreement), Greeley shall be solely 

responsible for contribution and funding for all costs associated with operating, managing, 

maintaining, improving, and repairing of the Property, and Greeley shall have no right or 

authority to seek contribution from Wingfoot or the other Owners for such costs and expenses. 

ARTICLE 6 

RIGHTS OF OWNERS 

6.1. Limitation on Owners’ Rights. 

Page 239

Item No. 16.



 

 13 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

Except as expressly provided in this Agreement or the Master Agreement, no Owner shall 

have the authority or power to act for or on behalf of the other Owners or to exercise any rights 

with respect to the ownership or Management of the Property, or to do any act that would be 

binding on the other Owners, or to make or incur any expenditures or liabilities on behalf of the 

Property or the other Owners.  Each Owner hereby waives any rights it may have at law or in 

equity to use of the Property separate and apart from rights granted under and pursuant to this 

Agreement and the Master Agreement.  Further, each Owner agrees that it will not incur any 

expense with respect to the Property except and to the extent permitted under and pursuant to this 

Agreement or the Master Agreement, and no Owner shall be liable to any Owner who incurs any 

expense or cost with respect to the Property, except as provided in this Agreement or the Master 

Agreement. 

6.2. Liability for Certain Acts. 

(a) The Administrator shall perform its duties in good faith, in a manner it 

reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the Owners and with such care as an ordinarily 

prudent person in a similar position would use under similar circumstances. 

(b) Except as provided in the Master Agreement, the Administrator shall not 

be liable to the Owners for any loss or damage sustained by the Owners, unless:  

(i) the loss or damage shall have been the result of gross negligence, 

bad faith or involve intentional misconduct or violation of Law by the Administrator; 

(ii) the Administrator gained a financial profit or other advantage to 

which it was not legally entitled to the detriment of the Owners; or 

(iii) entered into any agreement, transaction or arrangement with 

Greeley, the Enterprise or their Affiliates unless on commercially reasonable terms. 

6.3. Limitation on Third Party Owners. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 

this Agreement, Third Party Owners shall have no right to participate in the ownership or 

management of the Co-tenancy or the Property.  Third Party Owners shall have no right to use, 

access, encumber, convey, or otherwise engage in any activity whatsoever with respect to the 

Property, Co-tenancy, or any interest therein, except as expressly granted by the Deed attached to 

the Master Agreement as Exhibit Q (the “Deed”).  Third Party Owners shall have no right or 

claim to (i) incomes, revenues or other beneficial use of the Property, (ii) approve decisions of 

the Administrator, or (iii) appoint or remove the Administrator.  For the sake of clarity, Third 

Party Owners shall be subject to all other limitations and restrictions applicable to Owners in this 

Agreement, and if applicable, to such restrictions in the Master Agreement.  

Page 240

Item No. 16.



 

 14 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

6.4. Removal and Designation of Successor Administrator. If, after the Effective 

Date of this Agreement, the Administrator (i) sells, transfers or has a loss of title to its interest in 

the Co-tenancy, (ii) is no longer capable of serving as Administrator, or (iii) provides thirty (30) 

day advance written notice of its voluntary resignation as Administrator, then the Administrator 

shall be deemed to have resigned without any action by the other Owners.  Upon resignation of 

the Administrator, a successor Administrator shall be selected by Wingfoot. 

ARTICLE 7 

 TERMINATION AND WINDUP 

7.1. Termination of the Tenancy in Common.  Upon the occurrence of any 

Termination Event, this Agreement and the Co-tenancy shall continue until the affairs of the Co-

tenancy are diligently wound up.  If determined necessary by all of the Original Owners, a 

person selected by the Original Owners shall act as liquidator to wind up the Co-tenancy.  Such 

liquidator shall have full power and authority, subject to the Master Agreement, to sell, assign 

and encumber any or all of the assets of the Co-tenancy for the express purpose of facilitating 

vesting of one hundred percent (100%) ownership of the Property in a single Original Owner. 

ARTICLE 8 

RESTRICTION ON TRANSFER OF AN OWNERSHIP INTEREST 

8.1. Third Party Transfers.  Wingfoot may transfer its interest in the Co-tenancy and 

the Property to a Third Party Owner pursuant to the terms of the Master Agreement (a “Third 

Party Transfer”).  A Third Party Transfer shall be effective only upon the execution of the 

Deed in addition to the other requirements set forth in Section 8.2 of the Master Agreement.  

Any purported sale, transfer or conveyance of an interest in the Property contrary to the terms of 

this Agreement or the Master Agreement shall be void.  For the avoidance of doubt, each Third 

Party Owner acknowledges and agrees that, upon its acquisition of any interest in the Property or 

the Co-tenancy as part of a Third Party Transfer, such interest acquired must be immediately 

conveyed to Greeley pursuant to the terms of the Master Agreement.  

8.2. Transferability of Ownership Interests.   No Owner shall have the right to sell 
its Percentage Ownership Interest to a third party, or to mortgage, pledge or encumber its 
Percentage Ownership Interests except as provided in this Agreement (including but not limited 
to Section 8.1 of this Agreement) or the Master Agreement (including but not limited to Section 
8.2 of the Master Agreement).  The transfer or sale of any Raw Water Credits shall not be 
considered to be a transfer of any Owner’s Percentage Ownership Interest or a transfer of an 
interest in the Property. 
 

ARTICLE 9 

LIABILITIES, EXCULPATION AND INDEMNIFICATION 

Page 241

Item No. 16.



 

 15 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

9.1. Disclaimer of Liability.  No individual Owner shall be personally liable for any 

act of the other Owner or any act by the Administrator.  No individual Owner shall be 

responsible or liable for any indebtedness or obligation of the other Owner or the Administrator, 

incurred either before or after the execution of this Agreement. 

9.2. Indemnification of Administrator.   Each Owner, on its own behalf, to the 

extent of its respective net assets of its Percentage Ownership Interest, shall indemnify, defend 

and save harmless the Administrator from and against any claims, demands, damage, loss, 

liability (whether tort, contract or otherwise), cost or expense (including, but not limited to, 

reasonable attorneys’ fees), incurred by it in connection with or resulting from any act or 

omission to act on behalf of the Co-tenancy, provided that the Administrator’s action (or 

omission) was performed in compliance with this Agreement, including Article 2, and the Master 

Agreement.  In no event shall any Owner be obligated to indemnify the Administrator for (i) any 

special, punitive, consequential or treble damages, or (ii) any claims or causes of action arising 

out of the Administrator’s negligence, willful misconduct, fraud (actual or constructive), breach 

of contract, or any other tortious or illegal conduct, whether by action or omission of the 

Administrator. 

ARTICLE 10 

MISCELLANEOUS 

10.1. Notices.  Any notice, statement, demand, claim, offer or other written instrument 

required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing signed by the 

Owner giving such notice and shall be sent by electronic mail, hand messenger delivery, 

overnight courier service, or certified mail (receipt requested) to each other Owner at the address 

set forth below and shall be deemed to have been duly given by delivery to the respective 

addresses provided below, or such other address changed by the recipient by notice consistent 

with this Section: (i) on the date and at the time of delivery if delivered personally to the Owner 

to whom notice is given at such address; (ii) on the date and at the time of delivery or refusal of 

acceptance of delivery if delivered or attempted to be delivered by an overnight courier service 

to the Owner to whom notice is given at such address; (iii) on the date of delivery or attempted 

delivery shown on the return receipt if mailed to the Owner to whom notice is to be given by 

first-class mail, sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and 

properly addressed to such address; (iv) if a facsimile number is specified, on the date and at the 

time shown on the facsimile; or (v) if an e-mail address is specified, on the date and at the time 

shown on the sent e-mail message if sent to the e-mail address specified below: 

 

If to Wingfoot:  

 

Wingfoot Water Resources, LLC 

800 8th Ave, Ste 122 

Greeley, CO 80631 

Telephone: (720) 544-3932  

Page 242

Item No. 16.



 

 16 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

 

With a copy to: 

 

Hogan Lovells US LLP 

1601 Wewatta St, Ste. 900 

Denver, CO 80202 

Telephone: (303) 899-7300 

Email: scot.anderson@hoganlovells.com 

 ana.gutierrez@hoganlovells.com 

 mark.heimlich@hoganlovells.com 

 

If to Greeley: 

 

City of Greeley 

Attention: Director, Water and Sewer 

1001 11th Street, 2nd Floor 

Greeley, CO 80631 

Telephone: (970) 350-9812 

Facsimile: (970) 350-9805 

Email: Sean.Chamber@greeleygov.com 

 Adam.Jokerst@greeleygov.com 

 WSAdmin@Greeleygov.com  

 

With a copy to: 

 

City of Greeley 

Attention:  City Attorney 

1100 10th Street, Ste. 401 

Greeley, CO 80631 

Telephone: (970) 350-9757 

Facsimile: (970) 350-9763 

Email: Douglas.Marek@Greeleygov.com  

Jerrae.Swanson@Greeleygov.com 

 CityAttorney@Greeleygov.com  

 

Any Person may change its address for notice under this Agreement by sending notice 

thereof to all other address parties hereunder in accordance with the provisions of this Section 

10.1.  Any such notice of change of address shall be effective fifteen (15) days after the same is 

deposited with the United States Postal Service. 

Page 243

Item No. 16.

mailto:scot.anderson@hoganlovells.com
mailto:ana.gutierrez@hoganlovells.com
mailto:mark.heimlich@hoganlovells.com
mailto:Sean.Chamber@greeleygov.com
mailto:Adam.Jokerst@greeleygov.com
mailto:WSAdmin@Greeleygov.com
mailto:Douglas.Marek@Greeleygov.com
mailto:Jerrae.Swanson@Greeleygov.com
mailto:CityAttorney@Greeleygov.com


 

 17 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

10.2. Successors and Assigns.  All provisions, conditions, covenants, restrictions, 

obligations and agreements contained herein are made for the direct, mutual and reciprocal 

benefit of each and every part of the Property; shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit 

of each of the Owners and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, assigns, 

devisees, representatives, lessees and all other persons acquiring any undivided interest in the 

Property or any portion thereof whether by operation of law or any manner whatsoever 

(collectively, “Successors”); shall create mutual, equitable servitudes and burdens upon the 

undivided interest in the Property of each Owner in favor of the interest of every other Owner; 

shall create reciprocal rights and obligations between the respective Owners, their interests in the 

Property, and their Successors; and shall, as to each of the Owners and their Successors, operate 

as covenants running with the land, for the benefit of the other Owners pursuant to applicable 

law, including, but not limited to, the laws of the State.  It is expressly agreed that each covenant 

contained herein (a) is for the benefit of and is a burden upon the undivided interests in the 

Property of each of the Owners, (b) runs with the undivided interest in the Property of each 

Owner and (c) benefits and is binding upon each Successor owner during its ownership of any 

undivided interest in the Property, and each owner having any interest therein derived in any 

manner through any Owner or Successor.  Every person or entity who now or hereafter owns or 

acquires any right, title or interest in or to any portion of the Property is and shall be conclusively 

deemed to have consented and agreed to every restriction, provision, covenant, right and 

limitation contained herein, whether or not such person or entity expressly assumes such 

obligations or whether or not any reference to this Agreement contained in the instrument 

conveying such interest in the Property to such person or entity.  The Owners agree that, subject 

to the restrictions on transfer and on Third-Party Owners, any Successor shall become a party to 

this Agreement upon acquisition of an undivided interest in the Property.  Wingfoot may assign 

its interest under this Agreement (or in the Property) as provided in the Master Agreement.  

10.3. Governing Law, Jurisdiction.  This Agreement, and any instrument or 

agreement required, or disputes arising, hereunder (to the extent not otherwise expressly 

provided for therein), shall be construed in accordance with, and all matters arising out of or in 

connection with this Agreement (whether in contract, tort or otherwise) shall be governed by, the 

laws of the State of Colorado without giving effect to any conflict of law principles that would 

require the application of the laws of another jurisdiction. 

Page 244

Item No. 16.



 

 18 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

10.4. No Waiver of Governmental Immunity/No Third Party Beneficiary.  This 

Agreement shall not create any duty of care or liability with respect to any person or entity not a 

party to this Agreement, or waive any of the privileges or immunities Greeley or their officers, 

employees, successors and assigns may present pursuant to law, including, but not limited to the 

Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. 24-10-101, et seq., as amended.  Greeley 

represents and agrees that, pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-10-106, its and the Enterprise’s governmental 

immunity is limited to claims for injury that lie in tort or could lie in tort.  Under existing law, 

Greeley and the Enterprise are not entitled to raise the defense of sovereign immunity in 

connection with any legal proceeding to enforce or collect upon contractual obligations, including 

this Agreement; provided, however, no term or condition of this Agreement shall be construed or 

interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the privileges or immunities Greeley, the 

Enterprise, or their officers, employees, successors and assigns may present pursuant to law, 

including, but not limited to, the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et 

seq., as amended. 

 

10.5. Amendment.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, this Agreement 

may be amended only by a written agreement executed by both of the Original Owners. 

10.6. Waiver; Ratification.  No waiver by the Owners of the performance or 

satisfaction of any covenant or condition shall be valid unless in writing and shall not be 

considered to be a waiver by such Owner of any other covenant or condition hereunder.  Any 

failure of an Owner to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement or to require compliance 

with any of its terms at any time during the pendency of this Agreement shall in no way affect 

the validity of this Agreement, or any part hereof, and shall not be deemed a waiver of the right 

of such Owner thereafter to enforce any and each such provision. 

10.7. Attorney Fees.  If any legal action, arbitration or other proceeding is commenced 

to enforce or interpret any provision of this Agreement or to enforce any indemnity, the 

prevailing Owner shall be awarded its attorneys’ fees and expenses, in addition to any other 

relief granted.  The phrase “prevailing Owner” shall include an Owner who receives substantially 

the relief desired whether by dismissal, summary judgment, judgment or otherwise. This 

provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

10.8. Headings.  The Article, Section and paragraph headings in this Agreement are 

used only for convenience in finding the subject matters and are not part of this Agreement or to 

be used in determining the intent of the parties or otherwise in interpreting this Agreement. 

10.9. Recordation.  This Agreement and the agreements of the Owners contained 

herein shall be covenants running with the land.  This Agreement or a memorandum containing a 

summary notice of the terms hereof shall be recorded by Greeley in the real property records of 

the clerk and recorder of Weld County, Colorado. 

Page 245

Item No. 16.



 

 19 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

10.10. Multiple Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute 

one and the same document. The Agreement, including all component parts set forth above, may 

be executed and delivered by electronic signature by any of the Original Owners and all Original 

Owners consent to the use of electronic signatures. 

10.11. Integration with Other Agreements.  This Agreement and all attachments, 

together with the Master Agreement, and all attachments and all documents contemplated 

thereby, constitutes the entire agreement of the Owners with respect to the matters set forth 

herein and therein, provided that nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to amend, 

modify, alter or otherwise affect any of the provisions of the Master Agreement, which shall 

control pursuant to Section 2.6. 

10.12. Legal Construction.  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this 

Agreement for any reason is held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 

unenforceability will not affect any other provision of this Agreement, which will be construed 

as if the invalid or unenforceable provision had not been contained in this Agreement and, in lieu 

of each invalid and unenforceable provision, there will be added automatically a part of this 

Agreement a provision as similar in terms to the invalid or unenforceable provision as may be 

possible and be valid and enforceable. 

10.13. Joint Effort and Review.  Preparation of this Agreement has been a joint effort 

of the Parties and the resulting document shall not be construed more severely against one Party 

than against any other Party.  The Parties acknowledge that each Party and its legal counsel have 

reviewed and approved this Agreement.   

Page 246

Item No. 16.



 

 20 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

10.14. Dispute Resolution and Jury Trial Waiver. If any dispute arises under this 

Agreement (including as to whether any Owner has breached this Agreement), then any Owner 

may require that the Owners engage in nonbinding dispute resolution processes upon delivery of 

written notice to all other Owners (a “Dispute Notice”) setting forth the disputed matter.  Upon 

receipt by all Owners of such Dispute Notice, the Owners shall use their commercially 

reasonable efforts to negotiate a resolution of the dispute for a period of thirty (30) days (the 

“Dispute Resolution Period”) which may include mediation using a mediator chosen by the 

Owners. After all Owners receive a Dispute Notice, no Owner may bring a claim or commence 

any legal action related to or in connection with the matter set forth in the Dispute Notice until 

Dispute Resolution Period ends.  ALL ACTIONS OR PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR 

RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY DISPUTE SHALL BE LITIGATED IN ANY 

SUCH COURT IN WELD COUNTY, COLORADO.  EVERY OWNER AND THIRD PARTY 

OWNER ACCEPTS FOR ITSELF, GENERALLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY, THE 

EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE AFORESAID COURTS, SUBMITS 

ITSELF TO THE PERSONAL JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURTS AND WAIVES ANY 

DEFENSE OF FORUM NON CONVENIENS OR ANY SIMILAR DEFENSE.   EACH 

OWNER AND THIRD PARTY OWNER HEREBY WAIVES ITS RESPECTIVE RIGHT TO 

A TRIAL BY JURY FOR ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED UPON OR 

ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT IN ANY ACTION, 

PROCEEDING, OR OTHER LITIGATION OF ANY TYPE BROUGHT BY ANY OWNER 

OR THIRD PARTY OWNER AGAINST ANY OTHER OWNER OR THIRD PARTY, 

WHETHER WITH RESPECT TO CONTRACT CLAIMS, TORT CLAIMS, OR OTHERWISE.  

EACH OWNER AND THIRD PARTY OWNER AGREES THAT ANY SUCH CLAIM OR 

CAUSE OF ACTION WILL BE TRIED BY A COURT TRIAL WITHOUT A JURY. 

10.15. Further Assurances.  The Owners each agree to execute such documents as may 

be reasonably required to achieve the intent of the Owners pursuant to and in accordance with 

this Agreement with respect to the Property. 

10.16. Singular Includes Plural.  Where applicable the singular use of a word shall be 

deemed to include the plural use of the word. 

10.17. Calendar Days.  In the event any time period set forth in this Agreement 

commences, expires or is determined from a date which falls on a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

holiday of the State of Colorado, the date of such commencement, performance, expiration or 

determination shall automatically be extended to the next business day which is not a Saturday, 

Sunday, legal holiday of the State. 

 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

Page 247

Item No. 16.



 

 21 
    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29    

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Original Owners have executed this Agreement as of the 

day and year first above written. 

 THE ORIGINAL OWNERS: 
 

 

 

 

 

Date: ___________________________ 

Wingfoot, a Colorado Limited Liability 

Company 

 

By:________________________________ 

Name:______________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date:_____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 

 

 

By________________________________ 

    City Manager 

 

 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

 

 

By________________________________ 

    Director of Finance 

 

RECOMMENDED: 

 

By________________________________ 

    Director of Water and Sewer Department 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, 

 a Colorado home rule municipal 

 corporation, acting by and through its Water 

Enterprise 

 

By________________________________ 

Name:_____________________________ 

Title:  Water and Sewer Board Chairman 

 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

 

 

By________________________________ 

     City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 248

Item No. 16.



 

    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29      

EXHIBIT A-1 TO TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT  

 
Legal Description of Terry Ranch 

(See Attached) 

Page 249

Item No. 16.



 

    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29      

EXHIBIT A-2 TO TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT 

 
Depiction of Terry Ranch 

(See Attached)

Page 250

Item No. 16.



 

    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29      

EXHIBIT B-1 TO TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT  

 
Special Warranty Deed 

(See Attached) 

Page 251

Item No. 16.



 

    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29      

EXHIBIT B-2 TO TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT 

 
Assignment and Assumption of Access Easement 

(See Attached)

Page 252

Item No. 16.



 

    
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29      

EXHIBIT C TO TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT  

 
Access Easement 

(See Attached) 

Page 253

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3494760 v29   

EXHIBIT D TO TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT 

 
Percentage Ownership Interest 

 

Owner Percentage Ownership Interest 

Greeley 10/12,121th 

Wingfoot 12,111/12,121th 

 

   
 

 

 

 

Page 254

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT M TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Conveyance Document: Special Warranty Deed  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 

Page 255

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553185 v6   

After recording please return to: 
 

 

City of Greeley 

Attn: Director, Water and Sewer 

1001 11th Street, 2nd Floor 

Greeley, CO  80631 

Email: WSAdmin@Greeleygov.com 

 

 

 

(This space reserved for 

recording information) 

 

**SUBJECT TO FURTHER NEGOTIATIONS** 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

 This SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED, dated as of this ___ day of ______, 20__, is made 
between WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a [Delaware/Colorado] limited liability 
company, whose mailing address is 800 8th Ave, Ste. 122, Greeley, CO 80631 (“Grantor”), and 
THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipal corporation, acting 
by and through its WATER ENTERPRISE, whose address is 1001 11th Avenue, 2nd Floor, 
Greeley, Colorado 80631 (“Grantee”). 

 WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and 00/100 
Dollars ($10.00), and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, hereby grants, bargains, sells conveys and confirm unto Grantor, as to 
an undivided 12,111/12,121th interest, and Grantee, as to an undivided 10/12,121th interest, as 
tenants in common, and their successors and assigns forever, all of Grantor’s right, title and 
interest in and to the following:    

The Upper Laramie aquifer underlying that portion of the real property in Weld County, 
Colorado, described in Exhibit “1” attached hereto, including but not limited to all rights 
to withdraw all nontributary ground water therefrom pursuant to (i)  the decree entered by 
the District Court for Water Division 1, Colorado (the “Water Court”) as adjudicated and 
quantified by the Decree entered on June 14, 2018, in Case Number 11CW275, (ii) any 
amendment to or modification or restatement of the Decree entered by the Water Court, 
and (iii) any new decree entered by the Water Court (collectively, the “Property Rights”). 

  TOGETHER WITH all the estate, right, title interest, claim and demand whatsoever of 
the Grantor, either at law or in equity, of, in and to the Property Rights; except and subject to the 
right of Connell Resources, Inc. to withdraw up to fifty (50) acre feet per year of nontributary 
ground water under Well Permit No. 25477-F pursuant to the Third Amendment to Sand and 
Gravel Lease dated December 10, 2015, and recorded at Reception No. 4166067 in the real 
property records of the Clerk and Recorder for Weld County, Colorado, which fifty (50) acre feet 
is excepted from the Decree at paragraph 8(A)(l), and subject to the reservation of Terry Grazing 
Association (the “Association”) of the right to withdraw, through wells owned and operated by 
the Association, nontributary ground water from the Upper Laramie aquifer underlying the real 
property in Weld County, Colorado described in Exhibit “1” attached hereto, solely for purposes 

Page 256

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553185 v6   

of watering livestock of the Association’s or the Association’s lessees that graze on such real 
property and only in such quantities as are reasonably necessary for such stock watering, 
pursuant to the Special Warranty Deed, dated September 30, 2016, and recorded at Reception 
No. 439451 in the real property records of the Clerk and Recorder for Weld County, Colorado. 

  TO HAVE AND HOLD the Property Rights unto the Grantee, its successors and assigns, 
forever, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances caused by Grantor, subject to (i) the 
exceptions described above, (ii) [those matters set forth on Exhibit “2” attached hereto], or which 
would be apparent by an inspection or survey of the real property described in Exhibit “1” 
attached hereto, (iii) that certain Groundwater Production Lease No. OT-111631 with the State 
of Colorado, acting through its State Board of Land Commissioners, dated as of January 18, 
2018, (iv) that certain Easement Agreement between Grantor and the Association dated 
September 30, 2016 and recorded on [INSERT DATE] in the Records at Reception No. 
4245309, as amended by that certain Amended Easement Agreement dated January 24, 2020 (the 
“Access Easement”) as memorialized by that certain Memorandum of Easement Agreement 
dated [INSERT DATE, 2020] recorded in the Records at Reception No. [INSERT], and (v) all 
other matters of record as of the date hereof regarding the Property Rights in the Water Court or 
in Weld County, Colorado (the “Permitted Exceptions”).  The Grantor, for itself, its successors 
and assigns, does covenant and agree that it shall and will WARRANT AND FOREVER 
DEFEND the above-bargained rights and interest in the quiet and peaceable possession of the 
Grantee, its successors and assigns, against any and every person or persons claiming the whole 
or any part thereof, by, through or under the Grantor, subject to the exceptions described above 
and the Permitted Exceptions.  

Page 257

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553185 v6   

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed this Special Warranty Deed as of the 
date set forth above. 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a Colorado limited 
liability company 

By:________________________________ 

Name:  Christopher P. Dietzler 

Title:   Chief Executive Officer 

 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ___________  ) 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _________, 
2021, by _____________________, as___________ of WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES 
LLC, a [] limited liability company. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

My Commission Expires: ________________ 

________________________________________ 
(seal)      Notary Public 

 

  

Page 258

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553185 v6   

EXHIBIT “1” ATTACHED TO AND MADE A PART OF  

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE LAND 

Township 11 North, Range 67 West of The 6th P.M., County of Weld, State of Colorado: 

Section 1:  All. 

Section 3:  All. 

Section 4: SE 1/4, EXCEPT a strip for Union Pacific Railroad Company as shown on map 

filed July 2, 1917, at Reception No. 255201. 

Section 5:  All East of Interstate Highway No. 25 described in Book 1619 at Page 614. 

Section 8:  W 1/2. 

Section 9:  All, EXCEPT a strip 400 feet wide for Union Pacific Railroad Company road 

described in Book 233 at Page 153. 

Section 11:  All. 

Section 13:  All. 

Section 15:  All, EXCEPT a Strip 200 Feet Wide for Union Pacific Railroad Company road 

described in Book 149 at Page 411. 

Section 17:  All, EXCEPT that part conveyed to American Telephone and Telegraph Company 

described in Book 1076 at Page 441. 

Section 19: That part of said Section 19 described as follows: Beginning at the point of 

intersection of the East line of said Section and the North line of the County Road 

described in Book 999 at Page 193, said point being 30 feet North of the East 

quarter corner of said Section; thence Westerly along the Northerly line of said 

County Road to the intersection with the Easterly line of the Interstate Highway 

No. 25 as described in Book 1619 at Page 614; thence North easterly along the 

Easterly line of said Highway No. 25 to the North line of said Section; thence East 

to the Northeast corner of said Section; thence South to the point of beginning. 

Section 21:  All 

Section 22:  SW 1/4 NE 1/4; S 1/2 SE 1/4; NW 1/4 SE/4 and SW/4, EXCEPT a strip 400 feet 

wide for Union Pacific Railroad Company road as shown on Map filed July 2, 

1917. 

Section 23:  All 

Township 12 North, Range 67 West of The 6th P.M., County of Weld, State of Colorado: 

Section 21:  All in Colorado 

Section 23:  All in Colorado 

Section 25: All 

Section 27: All, EXCEPT a strip 400 feet wide in N 1/2 NW 1/4 and a strip 200 feet wide in 

SW 1/4 NW 1/4 of said Section conveyed to Union Pacific Railroad Company 

described in Book 233, Page 383. 

Page 259

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553185 v6   

Section 29:  All East of Interstate Highway No. 25 described in Book 1619, Page 614 

Section 34:  SE 1/4 

Section 35:  All  

Page 260

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553185 v6   

[EXHIBIT “2” ATTACHED TO AND MADE A PART OF  

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

PERMITTED EXCEPTIONS] 

[Note to Draft: To be updated to match the title exceptions listed in Schedule B of the Title 

Commitment] 

 

Page 261

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT N TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Conveyance Document: Assignment and Assumption of Access Easement 

(See Attached) 

-2 

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 262

Item No. 16.



   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553187 v6   

After recording please return to: 
 

 

City of Greeley 

Attn: Director, Water and Sewer 

1001 11th Street, 2nd Floor 

Greeley, CO 80631 

Email:   WSAdmin@Greeleygov.com 

 

 

 

(This space reserved for recording information) 

 

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF ACCESS EASEMENT 

 This ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF ACCESS EASEMENT (“Assignment”), 
is entered into as of ________, 20__ (the “Effective Date”) by and among WINGFOOT WATER 
RESOURCES LLC, a [Delaware/Colorado] limited liability company (“Wingfoot”) and THE 
CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipal corporation, acting by and 
through its WATER ENTERPRISE, whose address is 1001 11th Avenue, 2nd Floor, Greeley, 
Colorado 80631 (“Greeley”). 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, Terry Grazing Association, a Colorado Corporation, whose address 
is P.O. Box 3170, Cheyenne, Wyoming 82003 (the “Association”) owns 10,662 acres of land 
located in Weld County, Colorado, as described on the attached Exhibit 1 (the “Terry Ranch”), 
which overlies certain ground water in the Upper Laramie aquifer. 

 
B. WHEREAS, Wingfoot is the owner of nontributary deep aquifer ground water 

rights, underlying Terry Ranch, adjudicated and quantified on June 14, 2018, in Case Number 
11CW275, District Court, Water Division 1, Colorado, and further described in that certain 
Special Warranty Deed, dated September 30, 2016, recorded October 17, 2016 in the real 
property records of the Clerk and Recorder for Weld County, Colorado (the “Records”), at 
Reception Number 4245308, and that certain Special Warranty Deed, dated April 30, 2018, 
recorded May 1, 2018 in the Records at Reception Number 4394951 (collectively, the “Water 
Rights”). 

 
C. WHEREAS, Wingfoot entered into that certain Easement Agreement with the 

Association dated September 30, 2016 and recorded on [INSERT DATE] in the Records at 
Reception No. 4245309, as amended by that certain Amended Easement Agreement dated 
January 24, 2020 (the “Access Easement”) as memorialized by that certain Memorandum of 
Easement Agreement dated [INSERT DATE, 2020] recorded in the Records at Reception No. 
[INSERT]. 

 
D. WHEREAS, the Access Easement pertains to certain rights of access to Terry 

Ranch for the benefit of the Water Rights. 
 

Page 263

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553187 v6   

E. WHEREAS, as of the Effective Date, Wingfoot has assigned to Greeley a 
10/12,121th undivided tenant-in-common interest in the Water Rights. 

 F. WHEREAS, Wingfoot has agreed to assign to Greeley a 10/12,121th undivided 
tenant-in-common interest in and to the Access Easement.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Assignment and Assumption. Wingfoot hereby assigns, transfers, and conveys to 
Greeley a 10/12,121th undivided tenant-in-common interest in and to (i) Wingfoot’s right title 
and interest under the Access Easement, without warranty of any type, (ii) any and all other 
rights, privileges and appurtenances owned by Wingfoot, without warranty of any type, which 
relate to or are used in connection with the Water Rights and the Access Easement, to the extent 
assignable and (iii) all of Wingfoot’s right, title and interest, without warranty of any type, in and 
to all governmental permits, licenses, certificates and authorizations relating to the construction, 
development or use of the Water Rights and the Access Easement.  Greeley hereby accepts the 
foregoing assignment, agrees to be bound by all of the terms of the Access Easement and 
assumes and agrees to pay, perform and discharge any and all liabilities and obligations to be 
performed by Wingfoot under the Access Easement accruing and to be performed on or after the 
Effective Date.  The payment or rental due under the Access Easement shall be prorated as of the 
Effective Date, Wingfoot being charged or credited, as the case may be, for all of same 
attributable up to the Effective Date, and Greeley being credited or charged, as the case may be, 
for its proportionate share of same attributable to the period on or after the Effective Date. 

 
2. No Joint Venture. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as creating a joint 

venture, agency, or any other relationship between the parties hereto other than that of assignor 
(Wingfoot) and assignee (Greeley). 

 
3. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance by Wingfoot and 

Greeley of their obligations under this Assignment. 
 
4. Notices.  Any notice statement, demand, claim, offer or other written instrument 

required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Assignment shall be in writing signed by the 
party giving such notice and shall be sent by electronic mail, hand messenger delivery, overnight 
courier service or certified mail (receipt requested) to each other party at the address set forth 
below and shall be deemed to have been duly given by delivery to the respective addresses 
provided below, or such other address changed by the recipient by notice consistent with this 
Section 4: (i) on the date and at the time of delivery if delivered personally to the party to whom 
notice is given at such address; (ii) on the date and at the time of delivery or refusal of 
acceptance of delivery if delivered or attempted to be delivered by an overnight courier service 
to the party to whom notice is given at such address; (iii) on the date of delivery or attempted 
delivery shown on the return receipt if mailed to the party to whom notice is to be given by first-
class mail, sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and 
properly addressed to such address; (iv) if a facsimile number is specified, on the date and at the 

Page 264

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553187 v6   

time shown on the facsimile; or (v) if an e-mail address is specified, on the date and at the time 
shown on the sent e-mail message if sent to the e-mail address specified below: 

If to Wingfoot: Wingfoot Water Resources LLC 
 800 8th Ave, Ste 122 
 Greeley, CO 80631 
 Telephone:  (720) 544-3932 
 Email: cdietzler@wingfootwaterresources.com  

With a copy to: Hogan Lovells US LLP 
 1601 Wewatta St, Ste. 900 
 Denver, CO 80202 
 Telephone:  (303) 899-7300 
 Email: scot.anderson@hoganlovells.com 
  ana.gutierrez@hoganlovells.com 
  mark.heimlich@hoganlovells.com 

and a copy to: Christopher P. Dietzler 
 Email:  cdietzler@poudrevalleycapital.com  
 
If to Greeley: City of Greeley 

 Attention: Director, Water and Sewer 
 1001 11th Street, 2nd Floor 
 Greeley, CO 80631 
 Telephone:  (970) 350-9812 
 Facsimile:  (970) 350-9805 
 Email: Sean.Chamber@greeleygov.com 
  Adam.Jokerst@greeleygov.com 
  WSAdmin@Greeleygov.com 
  

With a copy to: City of Greeley 
 Attention:  City Attorney 
 1100 10th Street, Ste. 401 
 Greeley, CO 80631 
 Telephone:  (970) 350-9757 
 Facsimile:  (970) 350-9763 
 Email: Douglas.Marek@Greeleygov.com  
  Jerrae.Swanson@Greeleygov.com 
     CityAttorney@Greeleygov.com 

5. Successors and Assigns.  This Assignment shall be binding upon, and shall inure 
to the benefit of each of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

 
6. Severability.  Whenever possible, each provision hereof shall be interpreted in 

such a manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision hereof shall 
be prohibited by or invalid under such law, then such provision shall be ineffective to the extent 

Page 265

Item No. 16.

mailto:scot.anderson@hoganlovells.com
mailto:ana.gutierrez@hoganlovells.com
mailto:mark.heimlich@hoganlovells.com
mailto:cdietzler@poudrevalleycapital.com
mailto:Sean.Chamber@greeleygov.com
mailto:Adam.Jokerst@greeleygov.com
mailto:WSAdmin@Greeleygov.com
mailto:Douglas.Marek@Greeleygov.com
mailto:Jerrae.Swanson@Greeleygov.com
mailto:CityAttorney@Greeleygov.com


\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553187 v6   

of such prohibition or invalidity without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the 
remaining provisions of this Assignment. 

 
7. Waiver. The failure of either party to exercise any right or power given hereunder, 

or to insist upon strict compliance by the other party, with its obligations set forth herein and/or 
any custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof, shall not constitute a 
waiver of either party’s rights to demand strict compliance with the terms and conditions of this 
Assignment. 

 
8. Amendments. This Assignment may not be amended except by a writing signed 

by the parties hereto. 
 
9. Governing Law. This Assignment shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado, without reference to the choice of law 
principles thereof. 

 
10. Counterparts. This Assignment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 

which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same Assignment. 
 
11. Recordation.  This Assignment shall be recorded by Greeley in the real property 

records of Weld County, Colorado, as soon as practicable upon the execution of the Assignment. 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 

 

Page 266

Item No. 16.



\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553187 v6   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Assignment as of the 
date first set forth above. 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a Colorado limited 
liability company 

By:________________________________ 

Name:  Christopher P. Dietzler 

Title:   Chief Executive Office 

Page 267

Item No. 16.



   
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553187 v6   

 

 

 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO,  a 

Colorado home rule municipal corporation, 

acting by and through its WATER 

ENTERPRISE 

By:________________________________ 

Name:_____________________________ 

Title:  Water and Sewer Board Chairman 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 

By:________________________________ 

   City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

By________________________________ 

    City Attorney 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

By:________________________________ 

   Director of Finance 

 

RECOMMENDED: 

By:________________________________ 

     Director of Water and Sewer Board 

 

Page 268

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553187 v6   

EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED TO AND MADE A PART OF  

ASSIGNMENT OF ACCESS EASEMENT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE LAND 

Township 11 North, Range 67 West of The 6th P.M., County of Weld, State of Colorado: 

Section 1:  All. 

Section 3:  All. 

Section 4: SE 1/4, EXCEPT a strip for Union Pacific Railroad Company as shown on map 

filed July 2, 1917, at Reception No. 255201. 

Section 5:  All East of Interstate Highway No. 25 described in Book 1619 at Page 614. 

Section 8:  W 1/2. 

Section 9:  All, EXCEPT a strip 400 feet wide for Union Pacific Railroad Company road 

described in Book 233 at Page 153. 

Section 11:  All. 

Section 13:  All. 

Section 15:  All, EXCEPT a Strip 200 Feet Wide for Union Pacific Railroad Company road 

described in Book 149 at Page 411. 

Section 17:  All, EXCEPT that part conveyed to American Telephone and Telegraph Company 

described in Book 1076 at Page 441. 

Section 19: That part of said Section 19 described as follows: Beginning at the point of 

intersection of the East line of said Section and the North line of the County Road 

described in Book 999 at Page 193, said point being 30 feet North of the East 

quarter corner of said Section; thence Westerly along the Northerly line of said 

County Road to the intersection with the Easterly line of the Interstate Highway 

No. 25 as described in Book 1619 at Page 614; thence North easterly along the 

Easterly line of said Highway No. 25 to the North line of said Section; thence East 

to the Northeast corner of said Section; thence South to the point of beginning. 

Section 21:  All 

Section 22:  SW 1/4 NE 1/4; S 1/2 SE 1/4; NW 1/4 SE/4 and SW/4, EXCEPT a strip 400 feet 

wide for Union Pacific Railroad Company road as shown on Map filed July 2, 

1917. 

Section 23:  All 

Township 12 North, Range 67 West of The 6th P.M., County of Weld, State of Colorado: 

Section 21:  All in Colorado 

Section 23:  All in Colorado 

Section 25: All 

Section 27: All, EXCEPT a strip 400 feet wide in N 1/2 NW 1/4 and a strip 200 feet wide in 

SW 1/4 NW 1/4 of said Section conveyed to Union Pacific Railroad Company 

described in Book 233, Page 383. 

Page 269

Item No. 16.



 
 

 
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553187 v6   

Section 29:  All East of Interstate Highway No. 25 described in Book 1619, Page 614 

Section 34:  SE 1/4 

Section 35:  All 

 

 

 

 

Page 270

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT 0 TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

General Assignment and Bill of Sale  

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 271

Item No. 16.



   

GENERAL ASSIGNMENT AND BILL OF SALE 

(Terry Ranch) 

 FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES (“Assignor”), does hereby 
transfer, convey, bargain, sell and assign, unto THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a 
Colorado home rule municipal corporation (“Assignee”), the following Existing Improvements 
(defined below): 

 1. Existing Improvements.  The existing improvements as described on Exhibit “1” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, together with all right, title and interest of 
the Assignor, without warranty of any type, in and to all governmental permits, licenses, 
certificates and authorizations relating to the construction, development, use or operation of the 
existing improvement (collectively, “Existing Improvements”). 

 2. Special Warranty.  The Assignor covenants and agrees to and with the Assignees, 
their successors and assigns, to WARRANT AND DEFEND the title to the EXISTING 
IMPROVEMENTS against all and every person or persons whomever claiming by, through or 
under the Assignor, subject to those matters set forth on Exhibit “2” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.  Assignor makes no other representations, warranties, 
promises, covenants or guaranties of any kind or character whatsoever, whether express or 
implied, oral or written, past, present or future unto Assignee regarding the Existing 
Improvements, including, without limitation, value, quality, marketability, merchantability or 
suitability for any intended or contemplated use or purpose, and Assignee agrees that it is 
purchasing the Existing Improvements “as is,” “where is,” and “with all faults.” TO HAVE 
AND TO HOLD the Existing Improvements hereby assigned, transferred and conveyed unto the 
Assignees, their successors and assigns, for their own use, benefit and behalf forever.   

 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 

 

Page 272

Item No. 16.



   

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Assignment is executed by the Assignor as of 
_________, 20___. 

 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a Colorado limited 
liability company 

By:________________________________ 
Name:   Christopher P. Dietzler 
Title:   Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

 

 

Page 273

Item No. 16.



   

EXHIBIT “1” ATTACHED TO AND MADE A PART OF THE GENERAL ASSIGNMENT 
AND BILL OF SALE BY AND BETWEEN WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES AND 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES AND THE CITY OF GREELEY 

List of Existing Improvements, and Accompanying Map 

Page 274

Item No. 16.



___-2 

   

EXHIBIT “2” ATTACHED TO AND MADE A PART OF THE GENERAL ASSIGNMENT 

AND BILL OF SALE BY AND BETWEEN WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES AND 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES AND THE CITY OF GREELEY 

Permitted Exceptions 

 

 

 

 

Page 275

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT P TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
AD1VHNISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Form of Wingfoot's Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement 

(See Attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 276

Item No. 16.



 

 
1 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT1 
OF 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES, LLC 

This Limited Liability Company Agreement (together with the schedules attached hereto, 
this “Agreement”) of Wingfoot Water Resources, LLC (the “Company”), is made and entered into 
as of [Date], 2021 by [_____________], LLC, a __________ limited liability company, as the sole 
equity member (the “Member”), and Kristine E. Eppes, as the Independent Manager (as defined on 
Schedule A attached hereto).  Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein have the 
meanings set forth on Schedule A attached hereto. 

The Company has been formed as a limited liability company pursuant to and in accordance 
with the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act (6 Del.C. § 18-101 et seq.), as amended from 
time to time (the “Act”).  The Member and Independent Manager hereby agree as follows: 

Section 1. Formation. 

A certificate of formation for Company (as the same may be amended or restated from time 
to time in accordance with the terms of the Act and this Agreement, the “Certificate of 
Formation”) was filed on [DATE] in the Office of the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware 
in conformity with the Act.  The Company previously operated as a Colorado limited liability 
company but was converted to a Delaware limited liability company on [DATE]. 

Section 2. Name. 

The name of the limited liability company is Wingfoot Water Resources, LLC. 

Section 3. Principal Business Office. 

The principal business office of the Company shall be located at [______________], or such 
other location as may hereafter be determined by the Member. 

Section 4. Intentionally Omitted. 

Section 5. Registered Agent and Registered Office. 

The name and address of the registered agent of the Company for service of process on the 
Company in the State of Delaware is [Corporation Service Company, Wilmington, County of New 
Castle, Delaware 19808].  The registered office of the Company in the State of Delaware is 
[Corporation Service Company, Wilmington, County of New Castle, Delaware 19808]. 

                                                 
1  NTD: This Agreement subject to CSC review.  

Page 277

Item No. 16.



 

 
2 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

Section 6. Members. 

(a) The mailing address of the Member is set forth on Schedule B attached hereto.  The 
Member was admitted to the Company as a member of the Company upon its execution of a 
counterpart signature page to this Agreement. 

(b) Subject to Section 9(d), the Member may act by written consent or any other way 
permitted by the Act. 

(c) Upon the occurrence of any event that causes the Member to cease to be a member 
of the Company (other than upon continuation of the Company without dissolution upon (i) an 
assignment by the Member of all of its limited liability company interest in the Company and the 
admission of the transferee pursuant to Sections 21 and 23, or (ii) the resignation of the Member 
and the admission of an additional member of the Company pursuant to Sections 22 and 23), the 
Person acting as the Independent Manager pursuant to Section 10 shall, without any action of any 
Person and simultaneously with the Member ceasing to be a member of the Company, automatically 
be admitted to the Company as the Special Member and shall continue the Company without 
dissolution; provided for purposes of clarity, the Person acting as the Independent Manager shall not 
become a Special Member under any other events or circumstances except as specifically set forth 
above in this sentence.  The Special Member shall not resign from the Company or transfer its 
rights as Special Member unless (i) a successor Special Member has been admitted to the Company 
as Special Member by executing a counterpart to this Agreement, and (ii) such successor has also 
accepted its appointment as Independent Manager pursuant to Section 10; provided, however, the 
Special Member shall automatically cease to be a member of the Company upon the admission to 
the Company of a substitute Member.  The Special Member shall be a member of the Company that 
has no interest in the profits, losses and capital of the Company and has no right to receive any 
distributions of Company assets.  Pursuant to Section 18-301 of the Act, the Special Member shall 
not be required to make any capital contributions to the Company and shall not receive a limited 
liability company interest in the Company.  The Special Member, in its capacity as Special 
Member, does not have authority or power to bind the Company.  Except as required by any 
mandatory provision of the Act, the Special Member, in its capacity as Special Member, shall have 
no right to vote on, approve or otherwise consent to any action by, or matter relating to, the 
Company, including, without limitation, the merger, consolidation or conversion of the Company.  
In order to implement the admission to the Company of the Special Member, the Person acting as 
Independent Manager pursuant to Section 10 shall execute a counterpart to this Agreement.  Prior to 
its admission to the Company as Special Member, the Person acting as an Independent Manager 
pursuant to Section 10 shall not be a member of the Company. 

Section 7. Purpose.   

(a) The purpose to be conducted or promoted by the Company is to engage in the 
following activities (collectively, the “Limited Purposes”): 

(i) acquiring, developing, owning, holding, selling, leasing, transferring, 
exchanging, managing, maintaining, improving, and disposing the 

Page 278

Item No. 16.



 

 
3 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

Company’s interest in the Property and Assets (each, as defined in the Master 
Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry 
Ranch), dated ________, 2020 (the “Master Agreement”), by and between 
the Company and the City of Greeley, acting by and through its Water 
Enterprise (“Greeley”)) held as tenants in common with Greeley and 
operating the tenancy in common with Greeley, to the extent not prohibited 
by the Transaction Documents; 

(ii) acquiring, owning, holding, selling, transferring, and exchanging the raw 
water deduction credits provided by Greeley (the “Raw Water Credits”) as 
provided in or contemplated under the Transaction Documents;  

(iii) contributing funds to the construction escrow established pursuant to the 
Transaction Documents; 

(iv) entering into and otherwise performing and engaging in activities 
contemplated and asserting rights under the Transaction Documents; and 

(v) engaging in any lawful act or activity and exercising any powers permitted to 
limited liability companies organized under the laws of the State of Delaware 
that are related or incidental to and necessary, convenient or advisable for the 
accomplishment of the above-mentioned purposes. 

After the termination of the Tenancy in Common Agreement, dated [DATE], by and between 
Greeley and the Company (the “Tenancy in Common Agreement”), the Company may engage in 
any and all activities permitted under the Act. 

(b) The Company is hereby authorized to execute, deliver and perform, and the Member 
or any Officer, or [_________] as “Authorized Signatory,” on behalf of the Company, is hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver, the Transaction Documents and all documents, agreements, 
certificates, or financing statements contemplated thereby or related thereto, all without any further 
act, vote or approval of any other Person notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the 
Act or applicable law rule or regulation.  The foregoing authorization shall not be deemed a 
restriction on the powers of the Member or any Officer or [_________] as “Authorized Signatory” 
to enter into other agreements on behalf of the Company. 

Section 8. Powers. 

Subject to Section 9(d), the Company, and the Member on behalf of the Company, (i) shall 
have and exercise all powers necessary, convenient or incidental to accomplish its purposes as set 
forth in Section 7 and (ii) shall have and exercise all of the powers and rights conferred upon 
limited liability companies formed pursuant to the Act. 

Page 279

Item No. 16.



 

 
4 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

Section 9. Management. 

(a) Subject to Section 9(d), the business and affairs of the Company shall be managed by 
or under the direction of the Member.  Subject to Section 10, the Member may determine at any 
time in its sole and absolute discretion the number of Independent Managers.  The initial number of 
Independent Managers shall be one.  The initial Independent Manager designated by the Member is 
Kristine E. Eppes. 

(b) Powers.  Subject to Section 9(d), the Member shall have the power to do any and all 
acts necessary, convenient or incidental to or for the furtherance of the purposes described herein, 
including all powers, statutory or otherwise.  Subject to Sections 7 and 9, the Member has the 
authority to bind the Company. 

(c) Member as Agent.  To the extent of its powers set forth in this Agreement and 
subject to Section 9(d), the Member is an agent of the Company for the purpose of the Company’s 
business, and the actions of the Member taken in accordance with such powers set forth in this 
Agreement shall bind the Company. 

(d) Limitations on the Company’s Activities. 

(i) This Section 9(d) is being adopted in order to comply with certain provisions 
required in order to qualify the Company as a “special purpose” entity. 

(ii) The Member shall not, until the later of (a) the earlier of (i) the termination of 
the Tenancy in Common Agreement or (ii) Greeley owning all of Wingfoot’s 
TIC Interest (as defined in the Master Agreement), and (b) the earlier of (x) 
termination of the Construction Escrow or Construction Escrow Agreement 
(each as defined under the Master Agreement) and either the spending of the 
funds in the Construction Escrow or return of the funds in the Construction 
Escrow to the Company or Wingfoot, or (y) completion of the Project 
Infrastructure (such date, the “Termination Date”), amend, alter, change or 
repeal the definition of “Independent Manager” or Section 6(c), 7, 8, 9, 10, 
16, 20-26, 30 or 31 or Schedule A (solely to the extent that any amendment, 
alteration, change, or repeal of the definitions in Section A would have the 
effect of amending, altering, changing, or repealing any of the immediately 
referenced sections in any material respect) of this Agreement without the 
written consent of the Independent Manager (which written consent shall not 
be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned).  Subject to this Section 
9(d), the Member reserves the right to amend, alter, change or repeal any 
provisions contained in this Agreement in accordance with Section 32. 

(iii) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement and any provision of 
law that otherwise so empowers the Company, the Member or any other 
Person, until the Termination Date, neither the Member nor any other Person 
shall be authorized or empowered on behalf of the Company to, nor shall 

Page 280

Item No. 16.



 

 
5 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

they permit the Company to, and the Company shall not, without the prior 
written consent of both the Member and the Independent Manager (which 
written consent cannot be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned), 
take any Material Action; provided, however, that so long as any Obligation 
is outstanding, the Member may not authorize the taking of any Material 
Action unless there is at least one Independent Manager then serving in such 
capacity. 

(iv) The Member shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Company 
to do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in full 
force and effect its existence, rights (charter and statutory) and franchises.  So 
long as any Obligation is outstanding, the Member also shall use 
commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Company to comply with the 
following: 

(A) The Company was, is and will be organized solely for the purpose of 
the Limited Purposes; 

(B) The Company is not and will not be engaged, in any business 
unrelated to the Limited Purposes; 

(C) The Company does not have and will not have any assets other than 
ordinary course assets (i.e., cash, cash equivalents, prepaid expenses, 
receivables), and those related to the Water Rights and the Raw Water 
Credits and the proceeds from the sale of the above; 

(D) The Company has not engaged in, sought or consented to, and will, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, not engage in, seek or consent to 
(1) any dissolution, winding up, liquidation, or, (2) except as 
expressly permitted or contemplated under the terms of the 
Transaction Documents, while insolvent, any consolidation, merger, 
or sale of all or substantially all of its assets, to the extent such 
consolidation, merger, or sale would constitute a fraudulent transfer or 
fraudulent conveyance under state or federal law; 

(E) The Company currently is and will be a limited liability company 
formed under the laws of the State of Delaware and shall at all times 
have a Special Member and Independent Manager as provided in 
Sections 6 and 10 of this Agreement; 

(F) The Company has been, is, and intends to remain solvent and has paid 
and intends to continue to pay its debts and liabilities from its then 
available assets (including a fairly-allocated portion of any personnel 
and overhead expenses that it shares with any Affiliate) from its assets 
as the same shall become due; provided, however, the foregoing shall 

Page 281

Item No. 16.



 

 
6 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

not require any owner of the Company to make any additional capital 
contribution, loans, or other funding to the Company; 

(G) The Company has not failed, and will not fail, to correct any known 
misunderstanding (known by the Member) regarding the separate 
identity of the Company and has not and shall not identify itself as a 
division of any other Person; 

(H) The Company has maintained and will maintain its accounts, books, 
and records separate from any other Person and has filed and will file 
its own tax returns, except to the extent that it has been or is required 
or permitted to file consolidated tax returns by law; 

(I) The Company has maintained and will maintain its own records, 
books and resolutions and will not enter into agreements in the name 
of other Persons; 

(J) The Company (i) has not commingled, and will not commingle, its 
funds or assets with those of any other Person and (ii) has not 
participated and will not share bank accounts with any other Person, 
except as may be contemplated under the Transaction Documents; 

(K) The Company has held and will hold its assets in its own name; 

(L) The Company has conducted and shall conduct its business in its 
name or in a name franchised or licensed to it by an entity other than 
an Affiliate of itself or the Company, except for business conducted 
on behalf of itself by another Person under a business management 
services agreement that is on commercially reasonable terms, so long 
as the manager, or equivalent thereof, under such business 
management services agreement holds itself out as an agent of the 
Company; 

(M) The Company has maintained and will maintain its books, bank 
accounts, balance sheets, financial statements, accounting  records 
and other entity documents separate from any other Person and has 
not permitted, and will not permit, its assets to be listed as assets on 
the financial statement of any other entity except as required or 
permitted by GAAP; provided, however, that the Company may 
permit its assets to be listed as assets on the consolidated financial 
statements of an Affiliate if appropriate notation is made in at least 
one place on any such consolidated statements (including but not 
limited to footnotes) to indicate the Company’s separateness from 
such Affiliate and to indicate that the Company’s assets are not 
available to satisfy the debts and other obligations of such Affiliates 

Page 282

Item No. 16.



 

 
7 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

or any other Person (except as may be permitted under this 
Agreement); provided that notwithstanding anything to the contrary, 
the Company’s cash or current assets may be distributed to the 
Member in accordance with applicable law; 

(N) While the Company has never had and does not currently have any 
employees or believe any employees will be necessary, the Company 
will pay its own liabilities and expenses, including the salaries of its 
own employees, if any, out of its own funds and assets, and has 
maintained and will maintain a sufficient number of employees (if 
any) in light of its business operations; provided, however, the 
foregoing shall not require any owner of the Company to make any 
additional capital contributions, loans, or other funding to the 
Company; 

(O) The Company has observed and will observe in all material respects 
all limited liability company formalities; 

(P) The Company has not had, and will not have, any indebtedness for 
borrowed money other than (i) as provided or contemplated under the 
Transaction Documents, (ii) unsecured trade and operation debt 
incurred in the ordinary course of business relating to the ownership 
and operation of the Water Rights and Raw Water Credits and the 
routine administration of the Company, which liabilities are not 
evidenced by a promissory note, and which amounts are normal and 
reasonable under the circumstances, and (iii) such other liabilities that 
are permitted pursuant to or contemplated by the Transaction 
Documents; 

(Q) The Company has not assumed or guaranteed or become obligated 
for, and will not assume or guarantee or become obligated for, the 
debts of any other Person and has not held out and will not hold out 
its credit as being available to satisfy the obligations of any other 
Person except as may be permitted pursuant to the Transaction 
Documents; 

(R) The Company has not acquired and will not acquire obligations or 
securities of its partners, members or shareholders or any other 
Affiliate; 

(S) The Company has allocated and will allocate, fairly and reasonably, 
any overhead expenses that are shared with any Affiliate, including 
but not limited to, paying for shared office space and services 
performed by any employee of an Affiliate, although it is not 

Page 283

Item No. 16.



 

 
8 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

currently contemplated that the Company will have the need for office 
space and the like; 

(T) To the extent applicable, the Company has maintained and used, now 
maintains and uses, and will maintain and use, separate invoices and 
checks bearing its name, and all invoices, and checks utilized by such 
Person or utilized to collect its funds or pay its expenses have borne 
and shall bear its own name and have not borne and shall not bear the 
name of any other entity unless such entity is clearly designated as 
being such Person’s agent; 

(U) Except pursuant to the Transaction Documents, the Company has not 
pledged and will not pledge its assets for the benefit of any other 
Person; 

(V) The Company has held itself out and identified itself, and will hold 
itself out and identify itself, as a separate and distinct entity under its 
own name or in a name franchised or licensed to it by an entity other 
than an Affiliate of the Company and not as a division or part of any 
other Person; provided that the owners of the Company can state that 
the Company is a portfolio company or  investment of its owners (and 
statements consistent with that); 

(W) Except only for the Company’s shared interest in the Property and 
Assets with Greeley (as such terms are defined in the Transaction 
Documents) or otherwise contemplated under the Transaction 
Documents, the Company has maintained and will maintain its assets 
in such a manner that it will not be costly or difficult to segregate, 
ascertain or identify its individual assets from those of any other 
Person; 

(X) The Company has not made and will not make loans to any Person or 
hold evidence of Indebtedness issued by any other Person or entity 
(other than cash and investment grade securities issued by an entity 
that is not an Affiliate of or subject to common ownership with such 
entity); 

(Y) The Company has not entered into or been a party to, and will not 
enter into or be a party to, any transaction with its partners, members, 
shareholders or Affiliates except (i) in the ordinary course of its 
business and on terms which are commercially reasonable (which are 
reasonably comparable to those of an arm’s-length transaction with an 
unrelated third party, (ii) as may be permitted or contemplated by the 
Transaction Documents, and (iii) that agreement with Chris Dietzler 
dated ______, 201_ (the “Dietzler Agreement”); 

Page 284

Item No. 16.



 

 
9 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

(Z) Except as provided in Section 20 of this Agreement, the Company has 
not had and will not have any obligation to indemnify, and has not 
indemnified and will not indemnify, its partners, officers, directors, 
managers or members, as the case may be, unless such an obligation 
or indemnification is fully subordinated to the Company’s Obligations 
under the Transaction Documents and shall not constitute a claim 
against the Company in the event that cash flow is insufficient to pay 
such Obligations; 

(AA) The Company does not and will not have any of its obligations 
guaranteed by any Affiliate; and 

(BB) Other than capital contributions and distributions permitted under the 
terms of this Agreement, the Company has not entered into or been a 
party to, and shall not enter into or be a party to, any transaction with 
any of its partners, members, shareholders or Affiliates except (i) for 
the Dietzler Agreement and (ii) in the ordinary course of its business 
and on terms which are commercially reasonable terms (which are 
reasonably comparable to those of an arm’s length transaction with an 
unrelated third party). 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, failure of the Company, or an Officer or the Member 
on behalf of the Company, to comply with any of the foregoing covenants or any other covenants 
contained in this Agreement shall not affect the status of the Company as a separate legal entity or 
the limited liability of the Member. 

Section 10. Independent Manager. 

 As long as any Obligation is outstanding, the Member shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 
cause the Company at all times to have at least one (1) Independent Manager who will be appointed 
by the Member.  In acting or otherwise voting on matters referred to in Section 9(d)(iii)  of this 
Agreement, the Independent Manager shall, to the extent permitted by law, including Section 18-
1101(c) of the Act and notwithstanding any duty otherwise existing at law or in equity, consider 
only the interests of the Member of the Company and the Company (including its creditors to the 
extent a duty would run from a manager to the Company’s creditors under applicable law) in acting 
or otherwise voting on a Material Action (which such duties to the Member of the Company and its 
creditors, to the extent a duty would run from a manager to the Company’s creditors under 
applicable law, in each case, shall be deemed to apply solely to the extent of their respective 
economic interests in the Company exclusive of (A) all other interests, (B) the interests of other 
affiliates of the Member of the Company or the Company, and (C) the interests of any group of 
affiliates of which the Member of the Company or the Company is a part).  Except as provided in 
the second sentence of this Section 10, the Independent Manager shall not have any fiduciary duties 
to any Member, or any other Person; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not eliminate the 
implied contractual covenant of good faith and fair dealing. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
including Section 18-1101(e) of the Act, an Independent Manager shall not be liable to the 

Page 285

Item No. 16.



 

 
10 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

Company, any Member, or any other Person for breach of contract or breach of duties (including 
fiduciary duties), unless the Independent Manager acted in bad faith or engaged in willful 
misconduct. In the event of a vacancy in the position of Independent Manager, the Member shall, as 
soon as practicable, appoint a successor Independent Manager. The Independent Manager shall not 
be removed other than for Cause, and the Company shall be required to give Greeley at least fifteen 
(15) days' prior written notice of any removal along with the identity of the proposed replacement 
Independent Manager, together with a certification that such replacement satisfies the requirements 
for an Independent Manager set forth in this Agreement  All right, power and authority of the 
Independent Manager shall be limited to the extent necessary to exercise those rights and perform 
those duties specifically set forth in this Agreement and the Independent Manager shall otherwise 
have no authority to bind the Company. The Independent Manager shall not at any time serve as 
trustee in bankruptcy for an Affiliate of the Company. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, the Independent Manager, in its capacity as Independent Manager, may only vote on, or 
otherwise participate in, Material Actions. The Independent Manager is hereby designated as a 
“manager” within the meaning of Section 18-101(12) of the Act, but solely for these express 
purposes.   
  
Section 11. Officers. 

 The Member may appoint such Officers and agents as it shall deem necessary or advisable 
who shall hold their offices for such terms and shall exercise such powers and perform such duties 
as shall be determined from time to time by the Member.  Any number of offices may be held by 
the same person.  The Officers of the Company shall hold office until their successors are chosen 
and qualified.  Any Officer may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by the Member.  
Any vacancy occurring in any office of the Company may be filled by the Member.  The Member 
may also delegate its authority and rights to others by resolution.  The Officers, to the extent of their 
powers set forth in this Agreement or otherwise vested in them by action of the Member not 
inconsistent with this Agreement, are agents of the Company for the purpose of the Company’s 
business and, subject to Section 9(d), the actions of the Officers taken in accordance with such 
powers shall bind the Company. 

Section 12. Limited Liability. 

Except as otherwise expressly provided by the Act, the debts, obligations and liabilities of 
the Company, whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise, shall be the debts, obligations and 
liabilities solely of the Company, and none of the Member, Special Member, Officers, or 
Independent Manager shall be obligated personally for any such debt, obligation or liability of the 
Company solely by reason of being a Member, Special Member, Independent Manager or Officer of 
the Company. 

Page 286

Item No. 16.



 

 
11 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

Section 13. Intentionally Omitted. 

Section 14. Additional Contributions. 

The Member is not required to make any additional capital contribution or loan to the 
Company. However, the Member may make additional capital contributions to the Company at any 
time upon the written consent of such Member.  To the extent that the Member makes an additional 
capital contribution to the Company, the Member shall revise Schedule B of this Agreement.  The 
provisions of this Agreement, including this Section 14, are intended to benefit the Member and, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, shall not be construed as conferring any benefit upon any 
creditor of the Company (and no such creditor of the Company shall be a third-party beneficiary of 
this Agreement) and the Member shall not have any duty or obligation to any creditor of the 
Company to make any contribution to the Company or to issue any call for capital pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

Section 15. Allocation of Profits and Losses. 

The Company’s profits and losses shall be allocated to the Member. 

Section 16. Distributions. 

Distributions shall be made to the Member at the times and in the aggregate amounts 
determined by the Member.  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this 
Agreement, the Company shall not be required to make a distribution to the Member on account of 
its interest in the Company if such distribution would violate the Act or any other applicable law. 

Section 17. Books and Records. 

The Company shall keep or cause to be kept complete and accurate books of account and 
records with respect to the Company’s business.  The Member and its duly authorized 
representatives shall have the right to examine the Company books, records and documents during 
normal business hours.  The Company’s books of account shall be kept using the method of 
accounting determined by the Member.  The Company’s independent auditor, if any, shall be an 
independent public accounting firm selected by the Member. 

Section 18. Intentionally Omitted.  

Section 19. Other Business. 

Notwithstanding any duty otherwise existing at law or in equity, the Member, the Special 
Member, the Officers, and the Independent Manager and any Affiliate of the Member, the Special 
Member, or the Independent Manager may engage in or possess an interest in other business 
ventures (unconnected with the Company) of every kind and description, independently or with 
others, and the Company shall not have any rights in or to such independent ventures or the income 
or profits therefrom by virtue of this Agreement. 

Page 287

Item No. 16.



 

 
12 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

Section 20. Exculpation and Indemnification. 

(a) To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, none of the Member, the Special 
Member, Officers, or the Independent Manager nor any officer, director, employee, agent or 
Affiliate of the foregoing (collectively, the “Covered Persons”) shall be liable to the Company or 
any other Person who is bound by this Agreement for any loss, damage or claim incurred by reason 
of any act or omission performed or omitted by such Covered Person in good faith on behalf of the 
Company and in a manner reasonably believed to be within the scope of the authority conferred on 
such Covered Person by this Agreement, except that a Covered Person shall be liable for any such 
loss, damage or claim incurred by reason of such Covered Person’s gross negligence, bad faith, or 
willful misconduct (or in the case of the Independent Manager, bad faith or willful misconduct). 

(b) To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, a Covered Person shall be entitled 
to indemnification from the Company for any loss, damage or claim incurred by such Covered 
Person by reason of any act or omission performed or omitted by such Covered Person in good faith 
on behalf of the Company and in a manner reasonably believed to be within the scope of the 
authority conferred on such Covered Person by this Agreement, except that no Covered Person shall 
be entitled to be indemnified in respect of any loss, damage or claim incurred by such Covered 
Person by reason of such Covered Person’s gross negligence, bad faith, or willful misconduct (or in 
the case of the Independent Manager, bad faith or willful misconduct), with respect to such acts or 
omissions; provided, however, that any indemnity under this Section 20 by the Company shall be 
provided out of and to the extent of Company assets only, and the Member shall not have personal 
liability on account thereof and provided further, that so long as any Obligation is outstanding, no 
indemnity payment from funds of the Company (as distinct from funds from other sources, such as 
insurance) of any indemnity under this Section 20 shall be payable from amounts allocable to any 
other Person pursuant to the Transaction Documents. 

(c) To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, expenses (including reasonable 
legal fees) incurred by a Covered Person defending any claim, demand, action, suit or proceeding 
shall, from time to time, be advanced by the Company prior to the final disposition of such claim, 
demand, action, suit or proceeding upon receipt by the Company of a written undertaking by or on 
behalf of the Covered Person to repay such amount if it shall be determined that the Covered Person 
is not entitled to be indemnified as authorized in this Section 20. 

(d) A Covered Person shall be fully protected in relying in good faith upon the records 
of the Company and upon such information, opinions, reports or statements presented to the 
Company by any Person as to matters the Covered Person reasonably believes are within such other 
Person’s professional or expert competence and who has been selected with reasonable care by or 
on behalf of the Company, including information, opinions, reports or statements as to the value and 
amount of the assets, liabilities, or any other facts pertinent to the existence and amount of assets 
from which distributions to the Member might properly be paid. 

(e) The provisions of this Agreement, to the extent that they restrict or eliminate the 
duties and liabilities of a Covered Person to the Company or its members otherwise existing at law 

Page 288

Item No. 16.



 

 
13 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

or in equity, are agreed by the parties hereto to replace such other duties and liabilities of such 
Covered Person. 

(f) The foregoing provisions of this Section 20 shall survive any termination of this 
Agreement. 

Section 21. Assignments. 

The Member may assign in whole or in part its limited liability company interest in the 
Company.  Subject to Section 23, the transferee shall be admitted to the Company as a member of 
the Company upon its execution of an instrument signifying its agreement to be bound by the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement, which instrument may be a counterpart signature page to this 
Agreement.  If the Member transfers all of its limited liability company interest in the Company 
pursuant to this Section 21, such admission shall be deemed effective immediately prior to the 
transfer and, immediately following such admission, the transferor Member shall cease to be a 
member of the Company.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any 
successor to the Member by merger or consolidation in compliance with the Transaction Documents 
shall, without further act, be the Member hereunder, and such merger or consolidation shall not 
constitute an assignment for purposes of this Agreement and the Company shall continue without 
dissolution. 

Section 22. Resignation. 

So long as any Obligation is outstanding, the Member may not resign as a member, except 
as permitted under the Transaction Documents unless Greeley’s prior written consent has been 
obtained.  If the Member is permitted to resign pursuant to this Section 22, an additional member of 
the Company shall be admitted to the Company, subject to Section 23, upon its execution of an 
instrument signifying its agreement to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
which instrument may be a counterpart signature page to this Agreement.  Such admission shall be 
deemed effective immediately prior to the resignation and, immediately following such admission, 
the resigning Member shall cease to be a member of the Company. 

Section 23. Admission of Additional Members. 

One or more additional Members of the Company may be admitted to the Company with the 
written consent of the Member, subject to any further restrictions expressly provided for in the 
Transaction Documents; provided that notwithstanding anything to the contrary, membership 
interests may be transferred or assigned (and additional members may be admitted to the Company) 
without the consent of the Independent Manager or any other Person; provided further that HA II, 
LLC and its Affiliates directly or indirectly own or control at least 50% of the membership interests 
of the Company. 

Page 289

Item No. 16.



 

 
14 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

Section 24. Dissolution. 

(a) Subject to Section 9(d), the Company shall be dissolved, and its affairs shall be 
wound up upon the first to occur of the following:  (i) the termination of the legal existence of the 
last remaining member of the Company or the occurrence of any other event which terminates the 
continued membership of the last remaining member of the Company in the Company unless the 
Company is continued without dissolution in a manner permitted by this Agreement or the Act, (ii) 
the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution under Section 18-802 of the Act, or (iii) after no 
Obligation is outstanding, as determined by the Member.  Upon the occurrence of any event that 
causes the last remaining member of the Company to cease to be a member of the Company or that 
causes the Member to cease to be a member of the Company (other than upon continuation of the 
Company without dissolution upon (i) an assignment by the Member of all of its limited liability 
company interest in the Company and the admission of the transferee pursuant to Sections 21 and 
23, or (ii) the resignation of the Member and the admission of an additional member of the 
Company pursuant to Sections 22 and 23), to the fullest extent permitted by law, the personal 
representative of such member is hereby authorized to, and shall, within 90 days after the 
occurrence of the event that terminated the continued membership of such member in the Company, 
agree in writing (i) to continue the Company and (ii) to the admission of the personal representative 
or its nominee or designee, as the case may be, as a substitute member of the Company, effective as 
of the occurrence of the event that terminated the continued membership of such member in the 
Company.   

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Bankruptcy of the 
Member or Special Member shall not cause the Member or Special Member, respectively, to cease 
to be a member of the Company and upon the occurrence of such an event, the Company shall 
continue without dissolution. 

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, each of the Member and the 
Special Member waives any right it might have to agree in writing to dissolve the Company upon 
the Bankruptcy of the Member or the Special Member, or the occurrence of an event that causes the 
Member or the Special Member to cease to be a member of the Company.  In the event of 
dissolution, the Company shall conduct only such activities as are necessary to wind up its affairs 
(including the sale of the assets of the Company in an orderly manner), and the assets of the 
Company shall be applied in the manner, and in the order of priority, set forth in Section 18-804 of 
the Act. 

(d) The Company shall terminate when (i) all of the assets of the Company, after 
payment of or due provision for all debts, liabilities and obligations of the Company shall have been 
distributed to the Member in the manner provided for in this Agreement and (ii) the Certificate of 
Formation shall have been canceled in the manner required by the Act. 

Section 25. Waiver of Partition; Nature of Interest. 

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement and the Transaction Documents, 
to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Member hereby irrevocably waives any right or power 

Page 290

Item No. 16.



 

 
15 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

that such Person might have to cause the Company or any of its assets to be partitioned, to cause the 
appointment of a receiver for all or any portion of the assets of the Company, to compel any sale of 
all or any portion of the assets of the Company pursuant to any applicable law or to file a complaint 
or to institute any proceeding at law or in equity to cause the dissolution, liquidation, winding up or 
termination of the Company.  The Member shall not have any interest in any specific assets of the 
Company, and the Member shall not have the status of a creditor with respect to any distribution 
pursuant to Section 16 hereof.  The interest of the Member in the Company is personal property. 

Section 26. Benefits of Agreement; No Third-Party Rights. 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be for the benefit of or enforceable by any 
creditor of the Company or by any creditor of the Member.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
deemed to create any right in any Person (other than Covered Persons) not a party hereto, and this 
Agreement shall not be construed in any respect to be a contract in whole or in part for the benefit 
of any third Person (other than Covered Persons). 

Section 27. Tax Status 

 It is intended that the Company shall be a disregarded entity for federal, state, and local 
income tax purposes. 

Section 28. Severability of Provisions. 

Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason any 
provision or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable or illegal under any 
existing or future law, such invalidity, unenforceability or illegality shall not impair the operation of 
or affect those portions of this Agreement which are valid, enforceable and legal. 

Section 29. Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof. 

Section 30. Binding Agreement. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Member agrees that this 
Agreement, including, without limitation, Sections 7, 8, 9, 10, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 26, 30 and 32, 
constitutes a legal, valid and binding agreement of the Member, and is enforceable against the 
Member by the Independent Manager, in accordance with its terms. 

Section 31. Governing Law. 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Delaware 
(without regard to conflict of laws principles), all rights and remedies being governed by said laws. 

Page 291

Item No. 16.



 

 
16 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

Section 32. Amendments. 

This Agreement may be modified, altered, supplemented or amended pursuant to a written 
agreement executed and delivered by the Member.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Agreement, so long as any financial Obligation is outstanding, this Agreement may not be modified, 
altered, supplemented or amended without Greeley’s prior written consent to the extent that such 
amendment, alteration, supplement, or amendment addresses the Limited Purposes, Material 
Actions, the limitations set forth in Section 9(d), and/or the rights, duties, and obligations of the 
Independent Manager (including but not limited to those set forth in Section 9(d)); provided that 
this sentence shall be terminated and have no force and effect upon the Termination Date. 

Section 33. Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original of this Agreement and all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

Section 34. Notices. 

Any notices required to be delivered hereunder shall be in writing and personally delivered, 
mailed or sent by telecopy, electronic mail or other similar form of rapid transmission, and shall be 
deemed to have been duly given upon receipt (a) in the case of the Company, to the Company at its 
address in Section 3, (b) in the case of the Member, to the Member at its address as listed on 
Schedule B attached hereto and (c) in the case of either of the foregoing, at such other address as 
may be designated by written notice to the other party. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

Page 292

Item No. 16.



 

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of 
Wingfoot Water Resources, LLC 

4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, intending to be legally bound hereby, have 
duly executed this Agreement as of the day first above written 

 

MEMBER: 

[INSERT SIG BLOCK] 
 

 

INDEPENDENT MANAGER/SPECIAL 
MEMBER: 

________________________________ 
Kristine E. Eppes 

 

Page 293

Item No. 16.



 

A-1 
4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

SCHEDULE A 

Definitions 

A. Definitions 

All terms not otherwise defined in this Schedule A, shall have the meaning ascribed to 
them elsewhere in this Agreement or in the Transaction Documents (defined below).  When used 
in this Agreement, the following terms not otherwise defined herein have the following 
meanings: 

“Act” has the meaning set forth in the preamble to this Agreement. 

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person directly or indirectly 
Controlling or Controlled by or under direct or indirect common Control with such Person. 

“Agreement” means this Limited Liability Company Agreement of the Company, 
together with the schedules attached hereto, as amended, restated or supplemented or otherwise 
modified from time to time. 

“Bankruptcy” means, with respect to any Person, (A) if such Person (i) makes an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, (ii) files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, (iii) is 
adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or has entered against it an order for relief, in any bankruptcy 
or insolvency proceedings, (iv) files a petition or answer seeking for itself any reorganization, 
arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation or similar relief under any statute, law or 
regulation, (v) files an answer or other pleading admitting or failing to contest the material 
allegations of a petition filed against it in any proceeding of this nature, or (vi) seeks, consents to 
or acquiesces in the appointment of a trustee, receiver or liquidator of the Person or of all or any 
substantial part of its properties, or (B) if 120 days after the commencement of any proceeding 
against the Person seeking reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation 
or similar relief under any statute, law or regulation, if the proceeding has not been dismissed, or 
if within 90 days after the appointment without such Person’s consent or acquiescence of a 
trustee, receiver or liquidator of such Person or of all or any substantial part of its properties, the 
appointment is not vacated or stayed, or within 90 days after the expiration of any such stay, the 
appointment is not vacated.  The foregoing definition of “Bankruptcy” is intended to replace and 
shall supersede and replace the definition of “Bankruptcy” set forth in Sections 18-101(1) and 
18-304 of the Act. 

“Cause” means, with respect to the Independent Manager, (a) acts or omissions by such 
Person that constitute willful disregard or gross negligence of such Person's duties under this 
Agreement, (b) that such Person has engaged in or has been charged with, or has been convicted 
of, fraud or other acts constituting a crime under any law applicable to such Person, (c) that such 
Independent Manager is unable to perform his or her duties as an Independent Manager, 
including but not limited to due to death, disability, or incapacity, (d) that such Independent 
Manager no longer meets the definition of “Independent Manager,” (e) such Person has taken 

Page 294

Item No. 16.



 

A-2 
4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

action with respect to the Company that is not expressly authorized under this Agreement, (f) 
such Person has disparaged the Company or Member or any of their Affiliates, or (g) that the 
fees and other compensation charged by such Person are in excess of industry standards.  The 
industry standard annual fee for the services of the Independent Manager for the calendar year 
2021 is $2,625.00. 

“Certificate of Formation” means the Certificate of Formation of the Company filed with 
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on [Date], as amended or amended and restated 
from time to time. 

“Company” means Wingfoot Water Resources, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company. 

“Control” means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the 
direction of the management or policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of voting 
securities or general partnership or managing member interests, by contract or otherwise. 
“Controlling” and “Controlled” shall have correlative meanings.  Without limiting the generality 
of the foregoing, a Person shall be deemed to Control any other Person in which it owns, directly 
or indirectly, a majority of the ownership interests. 

“Covered Persons” has the meaning set forth in Section 20(a). 

“Independent Manager” shall mean (a) a natural person who is not at the time of initial 
appointment as an Independent Manager or at any time while serving as an Independent Manager 
of the Company and is not, has never been, and will not be at any time while serving as an 
Independent Manager: 

(i) a stockholder, partner, member (other than as a special member) or other equity 
owner, director (other than as an independent director), officer, trustee, attorney or counsel of 
Company or an Affiliate of Company; 

(ii) a customer, supplier, or other Person who derives any of its purchases or revenues 
from its activities with the Company or any Affiliate of the Company other than a nationally 
recognized professional service company that provides professional independent managers and 
special members and also provides other corporate services in the ordinary course of its business; 

(iii) a Person Controlling or under common Control with any such stockholder, 
partner, member or other equity owner, director, officer, customer, supplier or other Person other 
than a nationally recognized professional service company that provides professional 
independent managers and special members and also provides other corporate services in the 
ordinary course of its business;  

(iv) a member of the immediate family any such stockholder, partner, member, equity 
owner, director, officer, employee, manager, customer, supplier or other Person; or 

Page 295

Item No. 16.



 

A-3 
4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

(v) otherwise affiliated with Company or any stockholder, member, partner, director, 
officer, employee, attorney or counsel of Company, and 

(b) has either (x) accounting or finance experience of at least five (5) years), or (y) both 
(i) prior experience as an independent director or independent manager for a corporation, a trust 
or a limited liability company whose charter documents required the unanimous consent of all 
independent directors or independent managers thereof before such corporation, trust or limited 
liability company could consent to the institution of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings 
against it or could file a petition seeking relief under any applicable Federal or state law relating 
to bankruptcy and (ii) at least three (3) years of employment experience with one or more 
nationally-recognized professional service companies that provides, inter alia, professional 
independent directors or independent managers in the ordinary course of their respective 
business to issuers of securitization or structured finance instruments, agreements or securities or 
lenders originating commercial real estate loans for inclusion in securitization or structured 
finance instruments, agreements or securities and is at all times during his or her service as an 
Independent Manager of Company an employee of such a company or companies.   

A natural Person who otherwise satisfies the foregoing definition other than subclause 
(a)(i) of this definition by reason of being the independent director or independent manager of a 
Special Purpose Entity affiliated with Company shall not be disqualified from serving as an 
Independent Manager of the Company, provided that the fees that such individual earns from 
serving as independent director or independent manager of affiliates of the Company in any 
given year constitute in the aggregate less than five percent (5%) of such individual’s annual 
income for that year.   

As used in this definition and in the definition of “Special Purpose Entity,” the term 
“nationally recognized profession service company” shall mean Corporation Service Company, 
CT Corporation, Stewart Management Corporation, National Registered Agents, Inc. and 
Independent Director Services, Inc. and their respective successors and any other Person 
approved in writing by Greeley. 

“Material Action” means to (a) (i) consolidate or merge the Company while insolvent 
with or into any Person, to the extent such consolidation or merger would constitute a fraudulent 
transfer or fraudulent conveyance under state or federal law, or (ii) sell all or substantially all of 
the assets of the Company while insolvent, to the extent such sale would constitute a fraudulent 
transfer or fraudulent conveyance under state or federal law, or to institute proceedings to have 
the Company be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or (b) consent to the institution of bankruptcy 
or insolvency proceedings against the Company or file a voluntary bankruptcy petition or any 
other petition seeking, or consent to, reorganization or relief with respect to the Company under 
any applicable federal or state law relating to bankruptcy, or consent to the appointment of a 
receiver, liquidator, assignee in an assignment for the benefit of creditors, trustee, sequestrator 
(or other similar official) of the Company or a substantial part of its property, or make any 
assignment for the benefit of creditors of the Company or admit in writing the Company’s 
inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, or take material action in furtherance of 
any such action, or, to the fullest extent permitted by law,  dissolve or liquidate the Company. 

Page 296

Item No. 16.



 

A-4 
4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

“Member” means [________________], LLC, a [________] limited liability company, as 
the initial member of the Company, and includes any Person admitted as an additional member 
of the Company or a substitute member of the Company pursuant to the provisions of this 
Agreement, each in its capacity as a member of the Company; provided, however, the term 
“Member” shall not include the Special Member. 

“Obligation” shall mean any indebtedness of the Company or financial obligations of the 
Company arising under the Transaction Documents in effect as of any date of determination; 
provided that all Obligations shall be deemed to have terminated upon the Termination Date. 

“Officer” means an officer of the Company described in Section 11.  

“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability 
company, limited liability partnership, association, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated 
organization, or other organization, whether or not a legal entity, and any governmental 
authority. 

“Special Member” means, upon such person’s admission to the Company as a member of 
the Company pursuant to Section 6(c), a person acting as Independent Manager, in such person’s 
capacity as a member of the Company.  A Special Member shall only have the rights and duties 
expressly set forth in this Agreement.  For the avoidance of doubt, the term “Member” shall not 
include the Special Member. 

“Termination Date” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 9(d)(ii). 

“Transaction Documents” means [insert list of Transaction Documents], each dated on or 
about the date hereof, and all other documents and certificates contemplated thereby or delivered 
in connection therewith. 

B. Rules of Construction 

Definitions in this Agreement apply equally to both the singular and plural forms of the 
defined terms.  The words “include” and “including” shall be deemed to be followed by the 
phrase “without limitation.”  The terms “herein,” “hereof” and “hereunder” and other words of 
similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Section, paragraph or 
subdivision.  The Section titles appear as a matter of convenience only and shall not affect the 
interpretation of this Agreement.  All Section, paragraph, clause, Exhibit or Schedule references 
not attributed to a particular document shall be references to such parts of this Agreement. 

Page 297

Item No. 16.



 

B-1 
4811-6503-3149.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553188 v4   

SCHEDULE B 

Member 

 
Name 

 
Mailing Address 

Membership 
Interest 

 
[___________] LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company 

[Insert]  
100% 

 

 

Page 298

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT Q TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Form of Tenancy in Common Conveyance Document 

(See attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 

Page 299

Item No. 16.



Form of Tenancy in Common Conveyance Document 

TO BE DRAFTED 

1. Form SWD 

2. Form Assignment of Easement 

 

 
 
 
  

Page 300

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT R TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Credit Escrow Agreement 

(See attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3588387 v7 

Page 301

Item No. 16.



 

4835-2080-3516.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553191 v2   

 

CREDIT ESCROW AGREEMENT 

by and among 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, 
acting by and through its 
WATER ENTERPRISE, 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

and 

____________________________,  
a ____________,1 
as Escrow Agent 

Relating to the deposit and release of Certificates evidencing Raw Water Credits  
pursuant to the 

Master Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement 
dated as of _________ __, 2020,  

between 
Wingfoot Water Resources, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and 

the City of Greeley, Colorado, acting by and through its Water Enterprise 

Dated as of ___________ __, 2020 

                                                 
1 NTD: As discussed, title company likely be the escrow agent.   

Page 302

Item No. 16.



 

4835-2080-3516.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553191 v2   

CREDIT ESCROW AGREEMENT 

THIS CREDIT ESCROW AGREEMENT (as the same may be modified, amended, 
supplemented, restated or replaced, this “Agreement”), made and entered into as of 
___________ __, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) by and among THE CITY OF GREELEY, 
COLORADO, acting by and through its WATER ENTERPRISE (together with its permitted 
successors and assigns, “Greeley”), WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company (together with its permitted successors and assigns, “Wingfoot”) and 
_____________________________________, a _________, as escrow agent (the “Escrow 
Agent”); 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

WHEREAS, Greeley and Wingfoot have previously entered into a Master Purchase, Sale 
and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch) dated as of _________ __, 2020 
(as the same may be modified, amended, supplemented, restated or replaced, the “Master 
Agreement”) for the purpose of providing for the acquisition, financing, construction, 
improvement and installation of certain water rights, infrastructure improvements and 
appurtenant property for use by Greeley in its municipal water system; and 

WHEREAS, the Master Agreement contemplates that, upon the occurrence of certain 
events, Greeley shall issue certificates evidencing the ownership of Raw Water Credit(s) to 
Wingfoot (each a “Certificate”, collectively the “Certificates”); and 

WHEREAS, the Master Agreement contemplates that, each calendar year beginning in 
202__ [insert year of the first July following the Closing Date] and expiring after calendar year 
204__ [insert year which is 25 years after the first July following the Closing Date] (“Option 
Period”), either (a) Greeley may elect to purchase up to one hundred sixty-seven (167) Raw 
Water Credits (the “Call Option”) by sending written notice to Wingfoot and Escrow Agent on 
or before July 1 of such year (“Call Notice”), or (b) Wingfoot may elect to sell up to one hundred 
sixty-seven (167) Raw Water Credits (the “Put Option”) by sending written notice to Greeley 
and Escrow Agent on or before July 15 of such year (“Put Notice”); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Master Agreement, Greeley and Wingfoot have agreed to 
deposit twenty-five (25) Certificates, each evidencing one hundred sixty-seven (167) Raw Water 
Credits (each, an “Escrowed Certificate”, and collectively, the “Escrowed Certificates”) in 
escrow for the purpose of reserving sufficient Raw Water Credits to support the Put Option and 
the Call Option; and   

WHEREAS, Greeley and Wingfoot desire to establish an escrow to provide for the 
custody and release of the Escrowed Certificates in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein 
set forth the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

 

Page 303

Item No. 16.



 

 2  
4835-2080-3516.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553191 v2   

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01.  Definitions.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall 
have the meanings set forth in the Master Agreement.  Whenever the context may require, any 
pronouns used herein shall be deemed and construed to include correlative words of the masculine, 
feminine and neuter forms.  Words importing the singular number shall include the plural number 
and vice versa unless the context shall otherwise indicate.  The word “person” shall include 
corporations, associations, natural persons and public bodies unless the context shall otherwise 
indicate.  Reference to a person other than a natural person shall include its successors. 

ARTICLE II 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF ESCROW; 
DEPOSIT AND RELEASE OF CERTIFICATES 

Section 2.01.  Creation of the Escrow and Deposit of Certificates.   

(a) Wingfoot and Greeley hereby create an escrow (the “Escrow”), with the 
Escrow Agent which shall be held and administered by the Escrow Agent in accordance 
with the provisions of this Agreement. 

(b) On the Effective Date, Greeley shall deposit the Escrowed Certificates in 
the Escrow.  

Section 2.02.  Release of Certificates.   

(a) The Escrowed Certificates shall be released from the Escrow only as 
follows:   

(b) In each year during the Option Period: 

(i) If Escrow Agent receives a Call Notice from Greeley on or before 
July 1, or if Escrow Agent receives a Put Notice from Wingfoot on or before July 
15, then on July 16, Escrow Agent shall release one Escrowed Certificate to 
Greeley. 

(ii) If Escrow Agent does not receive a Call Notice from Greeley on or 
before July 1, and Escrow Agent does not receive a Put Notice from Wingfoot on 
or before July 15, then on July 16, Escrow Agent shall release one Escrowed 
Certificate to Wingfoot. 

(iii) Escrowed Certificates released pursuant to Sections 2.02(b)(i) or 
(ii), above, shall be sent by Escrow Agent to the notice addresses listed in Section 
4.06, below, via recognized overnight courier service for delivery to the recipient 
on the following business day.     

Page 304

Item No. 16.



 

 3  
4835-2080-3516.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553191 v2   

Section 2.03.  Termination of this Agreement.  Upon the occurrence of any of the 
following events, and provided that the fees and expenses of the Escrow Agent are paid, this 
Agreement shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of: (a) the release of the last Escrowed 
Certificate in Escrow Agent’s possession; (b) receipt by the Escrow Agent of written notice 
acknowledged by Greeley and Wingfoot that the Master Agreement has been terminated, in which 
event Escrow Agent shall release all of the Escrowed Certificates to Greeley, or (c) receipt by the 
Escrow Agent of written notice of termination of this Agreement acknowledged by Greeley and 
Wingfoot, in which event Escrow Agent shall release all of the Escrowed Certificates to Greeley. 

ARTICLE III 
 

CONCERNING THE ESCROW AGENT 

Section 3.01.  Duties of Escrow Agent.  The Escrow Agent shall have no duties or 
responsibilities whatsoever except such duties and responsibilities as are expressly set forth in this 
Agreement, and no covenant or obligation shall be implied in this Agreement against the Escrow 
Agent. 

Section 3.02.  Liability of the Escrow Agent. 

(a) The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any loss or damage in tort, 
contract or otherwise, including counsel fees and expenses, resulting from or in 
connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the establishment of the 
Escrow or by reason of any other action, omission or error hereunder, except for any loss 
or damage arising out of its own negligence or misconduct.  Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, the Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or 
omitted in reliance on any notice, direction, consent, certificate, affidavit, statement, 
designation or other paper or document reasonably believed by it to be genuine and to 
have been duly and properly signed or presented to it by the Director of the City of 
Greeley Water and Sewer Department or his or her designee, with respect to Greeley, and 
[_________] or his or her designee, with respect to Wingfoot. 

Section 3.03.  Fees, Expenses and Indemnification. 

(a) Greeley and Wingfoot shall be responsible for and shall pay to the Escrow 
Agent, in equal shares, for its performance hereunder: (i) such compensation as may 
mutually be agreed upon in writing; and (ii) the Escrow Agent’s reasonable out-of-pocket 
expenses (including reasonable third-party counsel fees and expenses) incurred in 
connection with this Agreement, to the extent agreed upon in writing (collectively, the 
“Escrow Agent Fees”). 

(b) Wingfoot, on the one hand, and, to the extent permitted by law, Greeley, 
on the other hand, severally (on a 50%/50% basis) and not jointly, shall indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the Escrow Agent from and against any and all claims, 
demands, expenses (including reasonable counsel fees and expenses) and liabilities of 
any and every nature (the “Indemnified Costs”) which the Escrow Agent may sustain or 
incur or which may be asserted against the Escrow Agent as a result of any action taken 
or omitted by the Escrow Agent as provided hereunder, except to the extent any such 

Page 305

Item No. 16.



 

 4  
4835-2080-3516.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553191 v2   

Indemnified Costs arise out of the Escrow Agent’s bad faith, negligence or willful 
misconduct.  At any time, the Escrow Agent may apply to Greeley or Wingfoot, as 
applicable for written instructions with respect to any matter arising under this 
Agreement and shall be fully protected in acting in accordance with such instructions, 
provided that such action are not contrary to the express terms of this Agreement.  If the 
Escrow Agent receives conflicting instructions it shall not be obligated to act.  In 
addition, the Escrow Agent may, as reasonably necessary, consult its own counsel and 
shall be fully protected with respect to any action taken or omitted in good faith in 
accordance with such advice or opinion of counsel.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Agreement, to the extent any Indemnified Costs arise out of Wingfoot’s 
or Greeley’s bad faith, negligence or willful misconduct, such party shall be solely 
responsible for indemnifying the Escrow Agent for such Indemnified Costs.   

Section 3.04.  Permitted Acts.  Nothing herein shall prevent the Escrow Agent from 
engaging in business dealings with either Greeley or Wingfoot, either as customers or borrowers or 
in any other capacity or in any other matter provided that it is unrelated to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 

Section 3.05.  Disagreements.  If any conflict, disagreement or dispute arises between, 
among, or involving any of the parties hereto concerning the meaning or validity of any provision 
hereunder or concerning any other matter relating to this Agreement, or the Escrow Agent is in 
doubt as to the action to be taken hereunder, the Escrow Agent may, at its option, after sending 
written notice of the same to Wingfoot and Greeley, retain the Escrowed Certificates until Escrow 
Agent (a) receives a final non-appealable order of a court of competent jurisdiction or a final non-
appealable arbitration decision directing delivery of the Escrowed Certificates, (b) receives a 
written agreement executed by each of the parties involved in such disagreement or dispute 
directing delivery of the Escrowed Certificates, in which event the Escrow Agent will be authorized 
to make such disbursement in accordance with such final court order, arbitration decision, or 
agreement, or (c) files an interpleader action in any court of competent jurisdiction, and upon the 
filing thereof, the Escrow Agent will be relieved of all liability as to the Escrowed Certificates and 
will be entitled to recover reasonable and documented out-of-pocket attorneys’ fees, expenses and 
other costs incurred in commencing and maintaining any such interpleader action.  The Escrow 
Agent will be entitled to act on any such agreement, court order, or arbitration decision without 
further question, inquiry or consent. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 4.01.  Amendments to this Agreement.  This Agreement is made for the benefit of 
Greeley and Wingfoot and it shall not be repealed, revoked, altered or amended without the prior 
written consent of both such parties and the Escrow Agent, except for the termination of this 
Agreement in accordance with Section [4.04] hereof. 

Section 4.02.  Severability.  If any one or more of the provisions in this Agreement shall be 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, each such provision shall be 

Page 306

Item No. 16.



 

 5  
4835-2080-3516.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553191 v2   

deemed and construed to be severable from the remaining provisions hereof and its invalidity shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

Section 4.03.  Agreement Binding.  All the covenants, promises and agreements in this 
agreement contained by or on behalf of Greeley, Wingfoot or the Escrow Agent shall bind and 
inure to the benefit of their respective permitted successors and assigns, whether or not so 
expressed. 

Section 4.04.  Termination, Resignation and Removal of the Escrow Agent. 

(a) The provisions of Sections 3.02 and 3.03 shall survive the termination of 
this Agreement. 

(b) The Escrow Agent may evidence its intent to resign by giving written 
notice to Greeley and Wingfoot.  Such resignation shall take effect only upon delivery of 
the Escrowed Certificates to the successor Escrow Agent agreed upon in writing by 
Greeley and Wingfoot, and the Escrow Agent shall thereupon be discharged from all 
obligations under this Agreement and shall have no further duties or responsibilities in 
connection herewith.  The Escrow Agent shall deliver the Escrowed Certificates without 
unreasonable delay, and no later than [two] ([2]) business days, after receiving the 
designation of the successor Escrow Agent and upon payment of all of its fees and 
expenses due and owing as of such date. 

(c) Greeley and Wingfoot may evidence their intent to remove the Escrow 
Agent with or without cause by giving joint written notice to the Escrow Agent and 
Wingfoot.  Such removal shall take effect only upon delivery of the Escrowed 
Certificates to the successor Escrow Agent designated in writing by Greeley and 
Wingfoot, and the Escrow Agent shall thereupon be discharged from all obligations 
under this Agreement and shall have no further duties or responsibilities in connection 
herewith.  The Escrow Agent shall deliver the Escrowed Certificates without 
unreasonable delay, and no later than [two] ([2]) business days, after receiving the 
designation of the successor Escrow Agent in accordance with this Agreement and upon 
payment of all of its fees and expenses due and owing as of such date. 

(d) If after thirty (30) days from the date of delivery of its written notice of 
intent to resign or of the joint written notice of Greeley and Wingfoot to remove, the 
Escrow Agent has not received a written designation of the successor Escrow Agent, the 
Escrow Agent’s sole responsibility shall be in its sole discretion either to retain custody 
of the Escrowed Certificates and release the Escrowed Certificates in accordance with 
this Agreement or to apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a 
successor Escrow Agent and after such appointment to have no further duties or 
responsibilities in connection herewith upon the transfer of the Escrowed Certificates to 
the successor Escrow Agent.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this 
Agreement, if Escrow Agent is liable for the payment of any costs or expenses under this 
Agreement, the replacement of the Escrow Agent shall not release Escrow Agent of its 
obligation to pay all such costs and expenses in accordance with this Agreement.   

Page 307

Item No. 16.



 

 6  
4835-2080-3516.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553191 v2   

Section 4.05.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, all or any of which shall be regarded for all purposes as one original and shall 
constitute one and the same instrument.  The Agreement, including all component parts set forth 
above, may be executed and delivered by electronic signature by any of the parties and all parties 
consent to the use of electronic signatures. 

Section 4.06.  Notices.  All notices, demands, requests and other communications required 
or permitted hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be (a) personally delivered with a written 
receipt of delivery; (b) sent by a nationally-recognized overnight delivery service requiring a 
written acknowledgement of receipt or providing a certification of delivery or attempted delivery; 
(c) sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested; or (d) sent by electronic mail with 
an original copy thereof transmitted to the recipient by one of the means described in subsections 
(a) through (c) no later than 3 Business Days thereafter.  All notices shall be deemed effective when 
actually delivered as documented in a delivery receipt; provided, however, that if the notice was 
sent by overnight courier or mail as aforesaid and is affirmatively refused or cannot be delivered 
during customary business hours by reason of the absence of a signatory to acknowledge receipt, or 
by reason of a change of address with respect to which the addressor did not have either knowledge 
or written notice delivered in accordance with this paragraph, then the first attempted delivery shall 
be deemed to constitute delivery.  Each party shall be entitled to change its address for notices from 
time to time by delivering to the other party notice thereof in the manner herein provided for the 
delivery of notices.  All notices shall be sent to the addressee at its address set forth following its 
name below: 

If to Greeley: City of Greeley 
1001 11th Street, 2nd Floor 
Greeley, Colorado  80631 
Attn: Director, Water and Sewer 
Telephone:  (970) ___-____ 
Email: _____________________ 

If to the Escrow Agent: _____________________ 
_____________________ 
_____________________ 
____________. CO  80___ 
Attn: _____________________ 
Telephone: (___) ___-____ 
Email: _____________________ 

If to Wingfoot: Wingfoot Water Resources 
800 8th Avenue, Suite 122 
Greeley, Colorado  80631 
Attn: _____________________ 
Telephone: (720) 544-3932 
Email: _____________________ 

Section 4.07.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of 

Page 308

Item No. 16.



 

 7  
4835-2080-3516.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553191 v2   

law provision or rule that would cause the application of the law of any jurisdiction other than the State of 
Colorado. 

Section 4.08.  Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of the 
obligations from time to time imposed upon the Escrow Agent by this Agreement. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

Page 309

Item No. 16.



 

 8  
4835-2080-3516.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553191 v2   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has caused this Agreement to be 
executed by its duly authorized officers as of the date first above written. 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a 
Colorado home rule municipal corporation, 
acting by and through its WATER 
ENTERPRISE 

By   
______________, Water and Sewer Board 
Chairman 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 

By:________________________________ 
   City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

By________________________________ 
    City Attorney 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

By:________________________________ 
   Director of Finance 

 

RECOMMENDED: 

By:________________________________ 
     Director of Water and Sewer Board 

 

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company 

By  _______________________________  

Its  _______________________________  

Page 310

Item No. 16.



 

 9  
4835-2080-3516.2  
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3553191 v2   

____________________, ______, as the 
Escrow Agent 

By  _______________________________  

________________, Vice President 

Page 311

Item No. 16.



EXHIBIT S TO MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) 

Revisions to 2020 Agreement 

(See attached) 

\\DE - 763089/000001 -3588387 v7 

Page 312

Item No. 16.



AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER
CREDIT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH)

by and between

WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES, a ColoradoDelaware Limited Liability Company

and

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, acting by and through its WATER
ENTERPRISE

Dated:  June________, 20202021

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 34635433588387 v677 Page 313

Item No. 16.



Table of Contents
Page

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 34635433588387 v677

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions 2

ARTICLE 2
CREATION OF TENANCY IN COMMON; SALE OF PROPERTY

2.1 Water Rights; Creation of Tenancy in Common 9
2.2 Improvements 9
2.3 State Land Board Lease and Related Agreements 9

ARTICLE 3
PURCHASE PRICE

3.1 Purchase Price 9
3.2 Deposit and Release of Deposit 9
3.3 Interest 10
3.4 Payment at Closing 10

ARTICLE 4
TITLE

4.1 Title Documents 10
4.2 Condition of Title 11
4.3 Conveyance of the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest 11
4.4 Disapproved Title Matters 12
4.5 Representations and Warranties 12
4.6 Title Insurance 13

ARTICLE 5
INSPECTION PERIOD

5.1 Inspection 13
5.2 Cost; Cooperation 13
5.3 Conditions of Access 13
5.4 Defects Identified in Inspection 14
5.5 Environmental Covenants During Inspection Period 15
5.6 Liability During Inspection Period 15

ARTICLE 6
CLOSING CONTINGENCIES; CLOSING

6.1 Closing Contingencies 16
6.2 Closing 16
6.3 Transactions at Closing 16

Page 314

Item No. 16.



Table of Contents
(continued)

Page

v
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 34635433588387 v677

EXHIBIT “A-1” LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF TERRY RANCH

EXHIBIT “A-2” DEPICTION OF TERRY RANCH

EXHIBIT “B” ACCESS EASEMENT

EXHIBIT “C” STATE LAND BOARD LEASE

EXHIBIT “D” ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF STATE LAND BOARD
LEASE

EXHIBIT “E” CERTIFICATE FORM

EXHIBIT “F” CONSTRUCTION ESCROW AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT “G” WINGFOOT ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS AND
WARRANTIES

EXHIBIT “H” GREELEY ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS AND
WARRANTIES

EXHIBIT “I”  EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS 

EXHIBIT “J” WINGFOOT GENERAL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

EXHIBIT “K” GREELEY GENERAL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

EXHIBIT “L” TENANCY IN COMMON AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT “M” SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

EXHIBIT “N”  ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF ACCESS EASEMENT
EXHIBIT “O” GENERAL ASSIGNMENT AND BILL OF SALE

EXHIBIT “P” FORM OF WINGFOOT’S AMENDED AND RESTATED LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT “Q” TENANCY IN COMMON CONVEYANCE DOCUMENTS

EXHIBIT “R” CREDIT ESCROW AGREEMENT
EXHIBIT “S” REVISIONS TO 2020 AGREEMENT

Page 315

Item No. 16.



AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT

(Terry Ranch)

This AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW
WATER CREDIT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (Terry Ranch) (this “Agreement”) dated
_________,__ 2021, but effective for all purposes as of June, 23, 2020 (“Effective Date”), by
and between WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
previously known as WINGFOOT WATER RESOURCES LLC, a Colorado limited liability
company (“Wingfoot”), and THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule
municipal corporation, (“City”), acting by and through its WATER ENTERPRISE (“Greeley”)
(Wingfoot and Greeley each being a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”).  Wingfoot and
Greeley entered into the Master Purchase, Sale and Raw Water Credit Agreement on June 23,
2020 (the “2020 Agreement”), and the Parties now wish to amend and restate the 2020
Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth herein.  Revisions made to the 2020 Agreement
and reflected in this Agreement, made and agreed to by and between the Parties, are provided in
Exhibit S.

RECITALS

A.  Wingfoot is the owner of nontributary deep aquifer ground water rights,
underlying real property in Weld County, Colorado, legally described on Exhibit A-1 and
depicted on Exhibit A-2 (“Terry Ranch”), adjudicated and quantified on June 14, 2018, in Case
Number 11CW275, District Court, Water Division 1, Colorado, and further described in that
certain Special Warranty Deed, dated September 30, 2016, recorded October 17, 2016 in the real
property records of the Clerk and Recorder for Weld County, Colorado (the “Records”), at
Reception Number 4245308, and that certain Special Warranty Deed, dated April 30, 2018,
recorded May 1, 2018 in the Records at Reception Number 4394951 (collectively, the “Water
Rights”).  Terry Ranch is currently owned by the Terry Ranch Grazing Association
(“Association”).

B.  Wingfoot, as the owner of the Water Rights, holds an easement to access Terry
Ranch for purposes more fully described therein, attached as Exhibit B (“Access Easement”).

C. Wingfoot has also entered into a Ground Water Production Lease with the State
of Colorado, State Board of Land Commissioners, dated January 18, 2018, for purposes more
fully described therein, attached as Exhibit C (“State Land Board Lease”).

D. The Parties desire to set forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which
Wingfoot shall create a tenancy in common with Greeley for the PropertyWater Rights (defined
below), and pursuant to which Wingfoot agrees to sell, and Greeley agrees to buy, an initial
interest in the Water Rights, related property, and Access Easement, together with a full
assignment of Wingfoot’s rights to the Ancillary Assets (defined below) and the State Land
Board Lease, and all other appurtenant property rights and water rights associated therewith, as
more fully provided hereinafter.

\\DE - 763089/000001 - 34635433588387 v677 Page 316

Item No. 16.



E. The objective of this Agreement is to provide the terms upon which Wingfoot will
convey the PropertyAssets (defined below) to Greeley and make certain cash contributions for
the construction of Project Infrastructure (defined below) and the terms upon which Greeley will
make payment to Wingfoot for such conveyance.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants
herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, Wingfoot and Greeley hereby agree
as follows:

AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions.  In addition to words and terms elsewhere defined in this Agreement,
including the recitals hereto, the following words and terms used in this Agreement shall have
the following meanings:

“Access Easement” has the meaning given in Recital B.

“Ancillary Assets” means (i) the Access Easement, (ii) any and all other rights, privileges
and appurtenances owned by Wingfoot, without warranty of any type, which relate to or are used
in connection with the Water Rights and the assets listed in this paragraph, to the extent
assignable, and (iii) all of Wingfoot’s right, title and interest, without warranty of any type, in
and to all governmental permits, licenses, certificates and authorizations relating to the
construction, development or use of the assets described in this paragraph.

“Assets” means (i) the PropertyWater Rights, (ii) the Ancillary Assets, (iii) the Existing
Improvements, and (iiiiv) the State Land Board Lease and related agreements, if any.

“Assignment and Assumption” means the assignment and assumption of the State Land
Board Lease, substantially in the form attached as Exhibit D.

“Association” has the meaning given in Recital A.

“Base Amount” has the meaning given in Section 10.5.B.

“Call Notice” has the meaning given in Section 11.1.A.

“Call Option” has the meaning given in Section 11.1.A.

“Cash Contribution” has the meaning given in Section 9.1.

“Certificate” means and refers to that document evidencing the ownership of a Raw
Water Credit(s) (defined below), in the form attached as Exhibit E.

“City” has the meaning given in the preamble of this Agreement.

2
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 317

Item No. 16.



“Closing” has the meaning given in Section 6.2.

“Claim” has the meaning given in Section 5.6.

“Closing Amount” has the meaning given in Section 3.4.

“Closing Date” has the meaning given in Section 6.2.

“Closing Documents” has the meaning given in Section 6.3.B.

“Confidential” has the meaning given in Section 10.4.

“Construction Escrow Agreement” has the meaning given in Section 9.1.

“Construction Escrow” has the meaning given in Section 9.1.

“Contribution Deadline” has the meaning given in Section 9.1.A.

“Conveyance Documents” has the meaning given in Section 4.3.

“Credit Escrow” has the meaning given in Section 11.2.

“Credit Escrow Agent” has the meaning given in Section 11.2.

“Credit Escrow Transferee” has the meaning given in Section 11.7.

“Credit Event” means any of the following events or conditions:  If a Party or any
successor shall institute voluntary bankruptcy proceedings, or shall consent to the institution of a
bankruptcy proceeding against it, or shall file a petition or answer or consent seeking
reorganization or arrangement under the federal Bankruptcy Code or any similar applicable
federal or state law, or shall consent to the filing of any such petition, or shall consent to the
appointment of a receiver or trustee in bankruptcy or insolvency of such Party or any successor
or any of their properties, or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or shall
admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due.

“Cure” has the meaning given in Section 4.4.

“Defect” has the meaning given in Section 5.4.

“Defect Notice” has the meaning given in Section 5.4.

“Department” has the meaning given in Section 10.3.A.

“Deposit” has the meaning given in Section 3.2.

“Deposit Obligations” has the meaning given in Section 9.1.B.

“Disapproved Matters” has the meaning given in Section 4.4.

3
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 318

Item No. 16.



5
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67

“Governing Bodies” has the meaning given in Section 6.1.A.

“Greeley” has the meaning given in the preamble of this Agreement, which refers to the
City acting by and through its Water Enterprise.

“Greeley Environmental Covenants” has the meaning given in Section 5.5.

“Greeley’s Intended Use” means the use to which Greeley intends to put the Assets,
which consists of the delivery of water to and from the nontributary aquifer underlying Terry
Ranch, including the use of the Assets and Project Infrastructure as part of an aquifer supply,
recharge and storage facility to be operated as a part of Greeley’s Water System.

“Greeley’s TIC Interest” means Greeley’s ownership interest, as it may exist from time to
time, in the PropertyWater Rights held in the tenancy in common1 created pursuant to Section
2.1 and the Tenancy in Common Agreement.

“Hazardous Substance” means, without limitation, any flammable materials, explosives,
radon, radioactive materials (including naturally occurring radioactive materials (“NORM”) that
have been concentrated by industrial or commercial processes), asbestos, urea formaldehyde
foam insulation, oil, polychlorinated biphenyls, methane, hazardous materials, hazardous wastes,
hazardous or toxic substances or pollutants or contaminants, including those defined in or
pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of
1980, as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 9601, et seq.) (“CERCLA”), the Clean Water Act, as
amended (33 U.S.C. Section 1251 to 1387), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as
amended (49 U.S.C. Section 1801, et seq.), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as
amended (42 U.S.C. Section 6901, et seq.), the Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended (15
U.S.C. Section 2601, et seq.), any other applicable Environmental Law and regulations adopted
thereunder, or any State or local law or ordinance relating to environmental risk or exposure.

“Improvements” means the Existing Improvements and any structures, facilities or other
improvements installed by Greeley during the Inspection Period.

“Initial Contribution” has the meaning given in Section 9.1.A.

“Initial Credits” has the meaning given in Section 3.1.

“Initial Tenancy in Common Interest” means and refers to 10/12,121th interest in the
PropertyWater Rights to be conveyed by Wingfoot to Greeley at Closing.

“Inspection Costs” has the meaning given in Section 5.2.

“Inspection Indemnification” has the meaning given in Section 5.6.

“Inspection Period” has the meaning given in Section 5.1.

1 Note to Greeley:  TIC was not a defined term, but we have now included Tenancy in Common
Agreement as defined term and revised this to fix that issue.

Page 319

Item No. 16.



“Payment Obligation” means the payment obligations of Greeley described in Section
17.18.

“Permissible Policy Change” has the meaning given in Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(i).

“Permitted Exceptions” has the meaning given in Section 4.2.

“Power Revenue Interest” has the meaning given in Section 12.1.A.

“Power Transaction” has the meaning given in Section 12.1.A.

“Power Valuation” has the meaning given in Section 12.1.A.

“Prevailing Party” has the meaning given under Section 17.6.

“Prohibited Transfer Fee” has the meaning given in Section 8.2.A.

“Project” means and refers to the acquisition and construction of groundwater wells,
treatment and storage facilities, transmission system, and other improvements made or necessary
to deliver water to and from the nontributary aquifer underlying Terry Ranch to and from
Greeley’s Water System, including without limitation the use of the Assets and Project
Infrastructure as part of an aquifer supply, recharge and storage facility to be operated by the
Enterprise as a part of the Water System.

“Project Infrastructure” means and refers to all easements, rights of way, wells, pipeline,
treatment facilities and other improvements, facilities and real or personal property deemed
necessary, in the exclusive judgment of Greeley, to effectuate the Project or otherwise used in or
relating to the Project.

“Project Infrastructure Costs” has the meaning given in Section 9.1.

“Property” means and refers to the (i) Water Rights and (ii) Ancillary Assets.

“Prorated Contribution” has the meaning given in Section 9.1.C.

“Prorated Escrow” has the meaning given in Section 9.1.C.

“Purchase Price” has the meaning given in Section 3.1.

“Put Notice” has the meaning given in Section 11.1.B.

“Put Option” has the meaning given in Section 11.1.B.

“Raw Water Credit” has the meaning given in Section 10.1.A. and for the avoidance of
doubt is intended to relate to a Raw Water Dedication Credit as contemplated by Chapter 14.06
of the Greeley Municipal Code as in effect on the Closing Date.

7
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 320

Item No. 16.



“Title Documents” has the meaning given in Section 4.1.A.

 “Title Policy” has the meaning given in Section 4.6.

“Transferee” has the meaning given in Section 11.7.

“Water Enterprise” or “Enterprise” means the water utility enterprise created pursuant to
Greeley Code Section 14.04.050 to act as operator of the Water system.

“Water Revenue Bond Ordinance” has the meaning given in Section 17.18.B.

“Water Rights Documents” has the meaning given in Section 4.1.C.

“Water System” means Greeley’s municipal water system, operated by the Water
Enterprise.

“Water Rights” means those water rights defined under Recital A.

“Wingfoot’s TIC Interest” means the balance of Wingfoot’s tenancy in common interest
in the PropertyWater Rights.

ARTICLE 2
CREATION OF TENANCY IN COMMON; SALE OF PROPERTY

2.1 Water Rights; Creation of Tenancy in Common.  Wingfoot agrees to create a
tenancy in common for the PropertyWater Rights with Greeley and agrees to sell, and Greeley
agrees to buy, the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest at Closing (defined below), subject to the
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Special Warranty Deed substantially in
the form attached as Exhibit M and the Assignment and Assumption of Access Easement
substantially in the form attached as Exhibit N.

2.2 Improvements.  In addition to the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest, Wingfoot
agrees to sell and assign, and Greeley agrees to buy and assume, Wingfoot’s rights, title and
interest, as well as its obligations, in and to the Existing Improvements at Closing, subject to the
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Assignment and Bill of Sale
substantially in the form attached as Exhibit O (the “General Assignment and Bill of Sale”).

2.3 State Land Board Lease and Related Agreements.  Wingfoot agrees to sell and
assign, and Greeley agrees to buy and assume, Wingfoot’s rights, title and interest, as well as its
obligations, in, to and under the State Land Board Lease and any related agreements, if any, on or
before ninety (90) days after Closing, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement and the Assignment and Assumption of State Land Board Lease substantially in the
form attached as Exhibit D.  Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Parties acknowledge
and agree that the form of the Assignment and Assumption attached hereto may be subject to
revision as may be necessary or convenient to obtain consent to such assignment from the State
of Colorado, State Board of Land Commissioners.

9
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 321

Item No. 16.



2.4 Ancillary Assets.  In addition to the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest,
Wingfoot agrees to sell and assign, and Greeley agrees to purchase and assume, all of
Wingfoot’s rights, title and interest, as well as its obligations, in, to and under the Ancillary
Assets, if any, at Closing, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the
Assignment and Assumption of Access Easement substantially in the form attached as Exhibit N.

ARTICLE 3
PURCHASE PRICE

3.1 Purchase Price.  The total purchase price for the Initial Tenancy in Common
Interest and, Existing Improvements, Assignment and Assumption of the Access Easement, and
the Assignment and Assumption of the State Land Board Lease shall be an amount equal to the
sum of Five Hundred Thousand Dollarsfive hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) (“Purchase
Price”) plus ten (10) Raw Water Credits (“Initial Credits”).

3.2 Deposit and Release of Deposit.  Within fifteen (15) days following the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Greeley shall cause the amount of Fifty Thousand Dollarsfifty thousand
dollars ($50,000) (“Deposit”) to be deposited with Land Title Guaranty (Heidi Crue: title officer;
Donna Manci: closing agent), (“Title Company”).  The Deposit shall be held by the Title
Company in a federally insured account to be credited toward the Purchase Price.  The Deposit
shall be fully refundable to Greeley pursuant to and in accordance with Section 4.4 (Disapproved
Title Matters), Section 5.4 (Defects Identified in Inspection), Section 6.1 (Closing
Contingencies), Section 13.3 (Failure of Condition), Section 14.2.A(3) (Remedies, Generally)
and Article 15 (Condemnation) below.  Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, the Deposit
shall be non-refundable to Greeley and shall be transferred to Wingfoot at Closing or upon
termination of this Agreement.

3.3 Interest.  Unless otherwise agreed to by Wingfoot and Greeley, the Title Company
is not required to hold the Deposit in an interest-bearing account.

3.4 Payment at Closing.  The Purchase Price (i) minus the Deposit; (ii) plus any other
amounts required to be paid by Greeley at Closing (including Greeley’s share of the closing
costs); and (iii) plus or minus any prorations or credits pursuant to this Agreement (“Closing
Amount”), shall be paid at Closing by Greeley to Wingfoot by cashier’s check, wire transfer or
other immediately available funds.

ARTICLE 4
TITLE

4.1 Title Documents.  Within fifteen (15) days after the Effective Date of this
Agreement, Wingfoot shall provide the following to Greeley for review:

A. A commitment for an owner’s policy of title insurance (“Title
Commitment”), issued by the Title Company covering the Access Easement and indicating the
Title Company’s willingness to issue to Greeley at Closing the Title Policy (defined below) in
the amount of the Purchase Price, with such Title Commitment setting forth the status of title to
the Access Easement and showing the Title Company’s search results for all recorded liens,
claims, encumbrances, easements, rights of way, encroachments, reservations, restrictions and

10
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 322

Item No. 16.



notices, filings, permits, or other actions by or from a governmental authority or third party,
individually or in the aggregate, that as of the Closing Date have a Material Adverse Effect on
the Assets.

D. Rights reserved to or vested in any governmental authority to control or
regulate any of the Assets in any manner, and all obligations and duties under all applicable laws
or under any franchise, grant, license, or permit issued by any such governmental authority.

E. Any Disapproved Matter that becomes a Permitted Exception in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

F. Any other matter created by or through Greeley or arising out of
Greeley’s ownership of or access to or use of the Assets including, without limitation, any matter
arising out of any inspections conducted by or for the benefit of Greeley during the Inspection
Period.

4.3 Conveyance of the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest and Access Easement.  At
Closing, Wingfoot shall convey the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest to Greeley by executing
the formsform attached hereto as Exhibit M (Special Warranty Deed) and the Access Easement
by executing the form attached hereto as Exhibit N (Assignment and Assumption of Access
Easement), free and clear of all liens except for the Permitted Exceptions (“Conveyance
Documents”).

4.4 Disapproved Title Matters.  Except for Permitted Exceptions, Greeley may
disapprove of title exceptions (“Disapproved Matter”) by delivering written notice of objection
to Wingfoot either (i) prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period or (ii) if such notice is
delivered after the expiration of the Inspection Period but prior to the Closing Date, then within
ten days (10) days after receiving notice from Wingfoot or the Title Company.  Any Disapproved
Matter not objected to in writing prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period or within such
ten (10) day period shall be deemed an additional Permitted Exception.  Wingfoot may elect in
its sole discretion (but shall not be obligated) to cure any Disapproved Matter by (i) removing or
causing the Disapproved Matter to be removed or resolved at Wingfoot’s expense; (ii) by
obtaining title insurance insuring against the effect of the Disapproved Matter; or (iii) by any
other means acceptable to Greeley (each a “Cure”).  Within ten (10) days after Wingfoot’s
receipt of Greeley’s notice of a Disapproved Matter, Wingfoot shall notify Greeley in writing
whether Wingfoot elects to Cure such Disapproved Matter and, if it elects to do so, the method
or means of the Cure.  If Wingfoot elects, but fails or is unable to Cure a Disapproved Matter
prior to Closing, then Greeley may, on the date of Closing, deliver written notice to Wingfoot
that it elects to terminate this Agreement.  If Wingfoot elects not to Cure one (1) or more
Disapproved Matter, then within (i) ten (10) days after Greeley’s receipt of Wingfoot’s written
notice regarding such election, or (ii) on the  Closing Date, whichever occurs first in time,
Greeley may elect to terminate this Agreement by delivering written notice to Wingfoot that it
elects to terminate this Agreement.  Upon termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section
4.4, the Deposit shall be returned to Greeley and neither Wingfoot nor Greeley shall have any
further obligation or liability to the other, provided, however, that where a Disapproved Matter
would have a Material Adverse Effect on the Assets, and where such Disapproved Matter is not
Cured, then the Deposit shall be returned to Greeley and Greeley shall be entitled to

12
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 323

Item No. 16.



reimbursements from Wingfoot and Wingfoot shall be obligated to pay Greeley for all
reasonable, third party out-of-pocket costs incurred by Greeley subsequent to the Effective Date
but prior to the termination, including but not limited to the Inspection Costs.  If Greeley does
not elect to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 4.4, then Greeley shall be deemed
to have accepted any outstanding Disapproved Matters and the Parties shall proceed to Closing,
subject to the provisions of this Agreement, without any abatement of the Purchase Price or other
remedy.

4.5 Representations and Warranties.  On the Effective Date of this Agreement,
Wingfoot shall execute and deliver to Greeley the certifications relating to the General
Representations and Warranties and the Environmental Representations and Warranties
substantially in the forms attached as Exhibits J and G.  At the Closing, Wingfoot shall certify
that the representations made in the General Representations and Warranties, and the
Environmental Representations and Warranties, are true and correct in all material respects as of
the Closing Date (defined below) substantially in the forms attached as Exhibits J and G. On the
Effective Date of this Agreement, Greeley shall execute and deliver to Wingfoot the
certifications relating to the General Representations and Warranties substantially in the form
attached as Exhibit K.  At Closing, Greeley shall (i) execute and deliver to Wingfoot the
certifications relating to the Environmental Representations and Warranties and (ii) certify that
the representations made in the General Representations and Warranties are true and correct in
all material respects as of the Closing Date, substantially in the forms attached as Exhibits K and
H.

4.6 Title Insurance.  The Title Company shall commit at Closing that, as soon as
reasonably practical after the Closing, the Title Company shall issue to Greeley an ALTA
owner’s form of title insurance policy, insuring that title to the Access Easement is vested in
Greeley and Wingfoot, as tenants in common, subject to the Permitted Exceptions (“Title
Policy”).

ARTICLE 5
INSPECTION PERIOD

5.1 Inspection.  During a period of time commencing upon the Effective Date and
continuing until 4:00 p.m., Mountain Time, on the Two Hundredtwo hundred and Tenthtenth
(210th) day thereafter (“Inspection Period”), subject to Section 5.3 (Conditions of Access),
Greeley and its authorized agents, representatives and consultants shall be entitled to enter upon
the areas covered by the Access Easement and State Land Board Lease at reasonable times, and
upon reasonable prior written notice to Wingfoot, to inspect the Assets for the purpose of (i)
conducting surveys, water quality and soils tests, environmental and ecological assessments, test
borings, engineering tests, cost evaluations, environmental audits and tests, feasibility studies
and any other inspections, investigations or analyses Greeley deems necessary or appropriate in
connection with its intended acquisition, use and development of the Assets or (ii) performing
the following specific activities: drilling and logging of not more than three additional test
borings; collection and analysis of water quality samples from test borings and existing wells;
depth-specific flow, Gamma ray spectroscopic surveys, and water quality sampling of existing
wells; downhole video survey of existing wells; topographical surveys; environmental
assessments and field surveys of environmental resources; and bench-scale testing of

13
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 324

Item No. 16.



geochemical interactions between aquifer core samples and recharge water, which activities
Greeley has deemed necessary to conduct in connection with its intended acquisition, use and
development of the Assets (collectively referred to as the “Inspections”).

5.2 Cost; Cooperation.  Greeley shall bear all costs of the Inspections (“Inspection
Costs”).  During the Inspection Period, Wingfoot agrees to reasonably cooperate with any
Inspection activity, which includes but is not limited to attempts to obtain access and any
necessary approval to conduct Inspections on Terry Ranch.  In the event that Closing does not
occur solely due to failure of a Closing condition in Section 13.3 (Failure of Condition) within
Wingfoot’s control, then Wingfoot shall reimburse Greeley for its reasonable third party out-of-
pocket Inspection Costs.

5.3 Conditions of Access.  Greeley and its authorized agents, representatives and
consultants shall (i) comply with the terms and conditions of the Access Easement and State
Land Board Lease including but not limited to all required notices and submissions, as
applicable, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations; (ii) not interfere with the operation and
maintenance of the Terry Ranch by the Association or interfere with the business or operations of
Wingfoot; (iii) comply with all Title Documents, all Permitted Exceptions, and any reasonable
requirements imposed upon it by Wingfoot or the Association in connection with such
Inspections; (iv) not injure or otherwise cause bodily harm to Wingfoot or the Association, their
agents, contractors or employees; (v) promptly pay when due the costs of all Inspections; (vi) not
permit any liens or encumbrances to attach to Terry Ranch or any of the Assets; (vii) restore
Terry Ranch, the Property, the State Land Board Lease, and/or the Assets to substantially the
same condition in which such property was found before any such Inspections were undertaken,
and at the election of Wingfoot (in its sole discretion), Greeley shall be required to remove (at
Greeley’s sole cost and expense) any improvement that was installed, and/or reclaim any surface
disturbance, including close or seal disturbances related to below grade improvements consistent
with standard industry practice, in accordance with this Section 5.3 (or with the written approval
of Wingfoot) by Greeley during the Inspection Period in accordance with the terms of the Access
Easement or the State Land Board Lease, as the case may be, or with Wingfoot’s approval,
except that Greeley shall not be required to remove any below grade improvements associated
with test bores; and (viii) give reasonable advance notice (but no less than 24 hours) to Wingfoot
and the Association prior to any entry onto Terry Ranch, the Access Easement, the State Land
Board Lease, the Property or the AssetsWater Rights and shall permit Wingfoot to have
representatives present during all Inspections.  Upon the request of Wingfoot, Greeley shall
supply Wingfoot with copies of the results of the Inspections.

5.4 Defects Identified in Inspection.  If Greeley identifies any defect with the Assets
during its Inspection, as determined by Greeley in its good faith judgment, including but not
limited to the following items:

A. Matters disclosed in (i) the Title Documents, (ii) the Off-Record
Documents, or (iii) the Water Rights Documents;

B. Greeley’s ability to verify or obtain real property including but not
limited to adequate sites for facilities or appropriate easements for ingress, egress and utilities

14
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 325

Item No. 16.



Losses is asserted against Greeley by a third party prior to Closing, which may give rise to
Inspection Indemnification, Greeley must promptly notify Wingfoot in writing and give
Wingfoot the right to defend (or in Wingfoot’s discretion, assist in the defense of) such Claim
with counsel approved by Greeley, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed.  The Inspection Indemnification shall terminate at Closing, and no
claims for Inspection Indemnification can be made by Greeley after Closing; provided, however,
that Wingfoot must still satisfy or resolve any outstanding Claim as may exist at Closing except
to the extent caused by the negligence of Greeley or its agents.  As used in this Section 5.6,
“Claim” means any written demands, causes of action, or claims of any kind and character made
by a third party.  This Section 5.6 does not apply to any actions taken with respect to the Assets
that does not occur during the Inspection Period and does not apply to any Claim to the extent
caused by or arising from Greeley or its agents.

ARTICLE 6
CLOSING CONTINGENCIES; CLOSING

6.1 Closing Contingencies.

A. Governing Body Approval.  Greeley’s obligation to purchase the Assets
is subject to the City Council’s and the Greeley Water and Sewer Board’s (the “Governing
Bodies”) authorization to close on the purchase and the appropriation of the Purchase Price at
Closing for the acquisition of the Assets within sixty (60) days following the expiration of the
Inspection Period (“Governmental Approval Period”).  In the event that the Governing Bodies
have not authorized the closing and appropriated the Purchase Price at Closing for the
acquisition of the Assets prior to the expiration of the Governmental Approval Period (unless
extended by written agreement of the Parties), then, in such event, upon written notice by either
Party to the other, this Agreement shall terminate, whereupon the Deposit shall be returned to
Greeley pursuant to Section 13.3 (Failure of Condition) and neither Party shall have any further
obligation to the other except as provided in Section 17.9 (Survival).

B. Raw Water Dedication Policy.  Wingfoot’s obligation to convey the
Assets is subject to the Governing Bodies’ approval of the Raw Water Dedication Policy, in a
form acceptable to Wingfoot, before the expiration of the Governmental Approval Period.  In the
event that the Governing Bodies have not approved the Raw Water Dedication Policy prior to the
expiration of the Governmental Approval Period, then, in such event, upon written notice by
Wingfoot to Greeley, this Agreement shall terminate, whereupon the Deposit shall be returned to
Greeley pursuant to Section 13.3 (Failure of Condition) and neither Party shall have any further
obligation to the other except as provided in Section 17.9 (Survival).

6.2 Closing.  The closing of this transaction (the “Closing”) shall occur at 1:30 p.m.
at the Greeley Office of the Title Company, fifteen (15) days after the expiration of the
Governmental Approval Period or such other date as the Parties may mutually agree to in writing
(the “Closing Date”).  At or prior to the Closing, Greeley shall provide Wingfoot with a map of
the Service Area as of the Closing Date.

6.3 Transactions at Closing.

16
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 326

Item No. 16.



A. On or before the Closing Date, Wingfoot shall deliver or cause to be
delivered to the Title Company, acting as the escrow agent for the Closing, the following
documents duly executed and acknowledged where appropriate:

(1) The Conveyance Documents.

(2) A Certificate of non-foreign status pursuant to Section 1445 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, together with any Certificates required pursuant to
Colorado law.

(3) The Construction Escrow Agreement (defined below)

(4) The Credit Escrow Agreement (defined below).

(5) The Tenancy in Common Agreement (defined below).

(6) The General Assignment and Bill of Sale.

(7) Wingfoot’s Certification of the General Representations and
Warranties, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit J.

(8) Wingfoot’s Certification of the Environmental Representations and
Warranties, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G.

(9) Wingfoot’s Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company
Agreement, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit P.

(10) A closing statement executed by Wingfoot.

(11) Duly executed assignments of the Escrowed Credits (defined
below) to the Escrow Credit Transferee (defined below), substantially in the form attached as
Exhibit 2 (Form Transfer and Assignment of Raw Water Credits) to Exhibit E (Certificate).

(12) (11) Such other documents as may be reasonably necessary and
appropriate to complete the Closing of the transaction contemplated herein.

B. On or before the Closing Date, Greeley shall deliver to the Title
Company, acting as the Closing escrow agent, the following documents duly executed and
acknowledged where appropriate:

(1) The Closing Amount.

(2) Documentation in such form as may be satisfactory to Wingfoot
and the Title Company, evidencing (i) the Governing Bodies’ authorization of the issuance of
Twelve Thousand One Hundred Twenty-one (12,121) Raw Water Credits and (ii) Greeley’s
authority to purchase the Assets.

17
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 327

Item No. 16.



(3) The Assignment and Assumption of State Land Board Lease, in
the form attached as Exhibit D.

(4) (3) Greeley’s Certification of the General Representations and
Warranties, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit K.

(5) (4) Greeley’s Certification of the Environmental Representations
and Warranties, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit H.

(6) (5) A certified copy of the Raw Water Dedication Policy (defined
below).

(7) (6) The Construction Escrow Agreement.

(8) (7) The Credit Escrow Agreement.

(9) (8) The Tenancy in Common Agreement.

(10) (9) A closing statement executed by Greeley.

(11) (10) The CertificatesCertificate evidencing Wingfoot’s ownership
of the Initial Credits.

(12) (11) TheTwenty-five (25) Certificates, each evidencing all of the
Escrowedone hundred sixty-seven (167) Raw Water Credits (defined below), in the name of
Wingfoot.

(13) Twenty-five (25) Certificates, each evidencing one hundred sixty-
seven (167) Raw Water Credits, in the name of the Credit Escrow Transferee.

(14) (12) Such other documents as may be reasonably necessary and
appropriate to complete the Closing of the transaction contemplated herein.

Collectively, except for the Initial Credits, all other documents identified under Sections
6.3.A and 6.3.B shall be referred to as the “Closing Documents.”

C. Closing Agent.  The Title Company shall record and/or distribute the
Closing Documents and shall hold, in escrow, the Certificates evidencing Wingfoot’s ownership
of the Initial Credits until Wingfoot has satisfied its Initial Contribution obligation.  When
Wingfoot has satisfied its Initial Contribution obligation, theThe Parties shall instruct the Escrow
Agent to release such Certificates to Wingfoot simultaneous with Wingfoot’s satisfaction of its
Initial Contribution, which enables Wingfoot to satisfy its obligation to make the Initial
Contribution from the sale of the Initial Credits.

ARTICLE 7
PRORATIONS; CLOSING COSTS

18
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 328

Item No. 16.



7.1 Prorations.  All real estate taxes attributable to the Assets, if any, for the calendar
year in which the Closing occurs shall be prorated at the Closing on the basis of the most recent
mill levy, unless the actual real estate taxes for the current year are known on the Closing Date.
Wingfoot shall pay any special assessments against the Assets, if any, in full at the time of
Closing.  Prorations of taxes and assessments at Closing shall be a final settlement.  All fees and
payments for the current year due under the State Land Board Lease shall be prorated as of the
Closing Date, based on the most recent payment provided by Wingfoot to the State of Colorado,
State Board of Land Commissioners.

7.2 Closing Costs.  Greeley shall pay for the cost of recording of all of the deeds, all
title insurance endorsements and one-half (1/2) of the Title Company closing costs.  Wingfoot
shall pay the initial basic premium for the Title Policy, and one-half (1/2) of the Title Company
closing costs.  Each party shall pay its own attorneys’ fees and Greeley shall be solely
responsible for the payment of any real estate escrow fees to the Title Company.

ARTICLE 8
TENANCY IN COMMON

8.1 Tenancy in Common Agreement.  The form of Tenancy in Common Agreement is
attached hereto as Exhibit L.

8.2 Conveyance of the Tenancy in Common Interest.

A. Conveyances.  Subject to Greeley’s consent and except as otherwise
provided in this Section 8.2.A, Wingfoot may convey all or any portion of Wingfoot’s TIC
Interest to a third-party (a “Third Party Transfer”), provided that the Third Party Transfer (1)
identifies Greeley as a party to the agreement between Wingfoot and the third-party; (2) obligates
the third-party to simultaneously convey its entire interest in the PropertyWater Rights to Greeley
in exchange for a number of Raw Water Credits bearing the same proportion to the total number
of Raw Water Credits as the fractional interest conveyed in the PropertyWater Rights bears to
the entire interest in the PropertyWater Rights; (3) identifies the full cash consideration for such
portion and such amount is certified to Greeley by Wingfoot and shown in the property
declaration with respect to such Third Party Transfer; (4) shall not obligate Greeley to accept title
to any property other than the PropertyWater Rights and (5) requires conveyance to Greeley
consistent with the Tenancy in Common Conveyance Documents defined in Section 8.2.B (Form
of Conveyance).  If Wingfoot has not fully satisfied its Cash Contribution obligation on the date
of the closing of any Third Party Transfer, then Wingfoot shall deposit in the Construction
Escrow at closing the lesser of (a) its then remaining Cash Contribution obligation, or (b) ninety
percent (90%) of the Net Cash Proceeds.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Wingfoot may not
convey Wingfoot’s TIC Interest in a cashless exchange for like property.  If and when the
proposed Third Party Transfer is consistent with the conditions set forth in clauses (1) – (5) in all
material respects, then Greeley shall present the same to the Greeley Water and Sewer Board for
approval within forty-five (45) days after receipt by Greeley of a purchase and sale agreement
relating to such Third Party Transfer (the “Interim Period”).  If the Greeley Water and Sewer
Board rejects or does not approve the proposed Third Party Transfer within the Interim Period,
then within twenty (20) days after the earlier of (x) Greeley Water and Sewer Board’s rejection
of the proposed Third Party Transfer or (y) expiration of the Interim Period without Wingfoot’s

19
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 329

Item No. 16.



receipt of written approval of the proposed Third Party Transfer from Greeley, Greeley shall pay
to Wingfoot one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the sales price relating to the proposed
Third Party Transfer (the “Prohibited Transfer Fee”) and Wingfoot shall concurrently transfer to
Greeley Wingfoot’s TIC Interest identified in the proposed Third Party Transfer. No portion of
the Prohibited Transfer Fee shall be subject to the Deposit Obligation of Section 9.1.B (Source of
Funds).

B. Form of Conveyance.  Wingfoot shall convey Wingfoot’s TIC Interest,
and shall cause that portion of Wingfoot’s TIC Interest conveyed to a third-party, if any, to be
conveyed to Greeley, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances except for Permitted
Exceptions, by executing the forms attached hereto as Exhibit Q (the “Tenancy in Common
Conveyance Documents”).

8.3 Termination of the Tenancy in Common; Ten-year limit.  The Tenancy in
Common shall terminate and ownership of the PropertyWater Rights shall vest entirely in
Greeley (subject to any conveyances made by, through or under Greeley) upon the earlier of (i)
the transfer of one hundred percent (100%) of the ownership of the PropertyWater Rights to
Greeley or (ii) ten (10) years following the Closing Date, subject to Greeley’s obligations and the
other terms of this Agreement.

8.4 Use.  Subject to the terms of the Tenancy in Common Agreement and Greeley’s
compliance with the terms of this Agreement, Wingfoot agrees that, after Closing, Greeley shall
have the exclusive right to use the PropertyWater Rights, and Wingfoot shall not access or use
the PropertyWater Rights without Greeley’s written permission.

ARTICLE 9
CONSTRUCTION ESCROW

9.1 Construction Escrow.  At Closing, the Parties shall execute an escrow agreement
to manage the deposit and release of the Project Infrastructure funds substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit F (the “Construction Escrow Agreement”).  Notwithstanding the
preceding sentence, the Parties acknowledge and agree that the Construction Escrow Agreement
attached hereto may be subject to revision as may be necessary or convenient to obtain approval
from the escrow agent.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Wingfoot shall deposit a total of
One Hundred Twenty-Five Million Dollarsone hundred twenty-five million dollars
($125,000,000) (“Cash Contribution”) in an escrow account established and maintained pursuant
to the Construction Escrow Agreement (the “Construction Escrow”).  The Cash Contribution is
estimated to cover one-half of the estimated cost to plan, develop, permit and construct the
Project Infrastructure (“Project Infrastructure Costs”) and shall be funded and due as provided
below, provided that “Project Infrastructure Costs” shall not include debt service payable by
Greeley.  For federal, state and local income tax purposes, notwithstanding the funding
mechanism set forth in this Agreement, the Parties acknowledge that Wingfoot intends to treat
the Cash Contribution as a reduction in the amount realized by Wingfoot in respect of the
transfer of Wingfoot’s TIC Interest or sale of Raw Water Credits, in order to reflect the fact that
the Cash Contribution will reduce Wingfoot’s net economic gain derived from the transfer of
Wingfoot’s TIC Interest or sale of Raw Water Credits, Wingfoot does not obtain any property or
derive any separate benefit from the Cash Contribution, and the benefit of the Cash Contribution

20
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 330

Item No. 16.



inures entirely to Greeley (in the form of Project Infrastructure owned by Greeley).  For example,
if the gross purchase price of a Raw Water Credit is Thirty Thousand Dollarsthirty thousand
dollars ($30,000) and Wingfoot has not satisfied its Deposit Obligations under Section 9.2(B)
(Source of Funds), then Wingfoot shall deposit ninety percent (90%) of such purchase price
(Twenty Seven Thousand Dollarstwenty-seven thousand dollars ($27,000)) to the Construction
Escrow as a Deposit Obligation, reducing the amount realized by Wingfoot in respect to the sale
of such Raw Water Credit to Three Thousand Dollars (three thousand dollars ($3,000).  In
furtherance of the foregoing, for federal, state, and local income tax purposes, (x) Wingfoot
intends to treat the Initial Contribution (defined below) as an advance reduction in Wingfoot’s
amount realized in respect of transfers of Wingfoot’s TIC Interest, and (y) Wingfoot may
determine the extent to which a portion of the total reduction in the amount realized by Wingfoot
(i.e., the total Cash Contribution, including the Initial Contribution) shall be attributed to any
specific transfer of a portion of Wingfoot’s TIC Interest.  It is the intent of the Parties that, to the
greatest extent possible, Wingfoot shall not be treated as having an amount realized from the
transfer of a portion of Wingfoot’s TIC Interest greater than the net amount of cash retained by
Wingfoot in connection with that transfer, after the satisfaction of Wingfoot’s funding
obligations as set forth herein.  Neither Party shall take a position contrary to the positions and
statements set forth in this Section 9.1.

A. Deposits Due.  Within Ninetyninety (90) days after the Closing,
Wingfoot shall deposit Twenty-five Million Dollarstwenty-five million dollars ($25,000,000)
(“Initial Contribution”) in the Construction Escrow and provide written notice thereof to Greeley
and the Title Company.  The balance of the Cash Contributions shall be due on the earlier to
occur of (i) twenty-four (24) months after Greeley provides written notice of its intent to
construct the Project Infrastructure (“Notice to Construct”) or (ii) ten (10) years after the Closing
Date (the “Contribution Deadline”).  Greeley shall have no deadline or timeline to commence or
complete construction of the Project Infrastructure.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Greeley may
not issue the Notice to Construct sooner than two (2) years after the Closing Date unless
Wingfoot has fully satisfied its Cash Contribution obligation within such time.  Wingfoot shall
have no obligation to fund the Construction Escrow or the Project Infrastructure in excess of the
Cash Contribution and Greeley shall be solely responsible for all costs related to the Project
Infrastructure exceeding the Cash Contribution.

B. Source of Funds.  Until Wingfoot has fully satisfied its Cash
Contribution obligation, Wingfoot shall deposit or arrange for the deposit of ninety percent
(90%) of the Net Cash Proceeds received by Wingfoot (collectively, the “Deposit Obligations”).
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 9.1.B, Wingfoot shall retain one
hundred percent (100%) of the proceeds from, and the Deposit Obligations shall not include, the
sale of the Exercised Credits and the Released Credits pursuant to Article 11 (Put and Call
Options) and from the Prohibited Transfer Fee.  To track Wingfoot’s obligation under this
Section 9.1.B Wingfoot shall, promptly after each such deposit of a Deposit Obligation, provide
to Greeley (i) a settlement statement evidencing the purchase price and (ii) a statement
evidencing that ninety percent (90%) of the Net Cash Proceeds has been deposited in the
Construction Escrow, along with the surrendered Certificate(s) or a copy of the deed transferring
the PropertyWater Rights to a third-party pursuant to Section 8.2.A (Conveyance) until
Wingfoot’s obligation to fund the Cash Contribution has been fully satisfied.  If the surrendered

21
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 331

Item No. 16.



9.2 Failure to Fund.

A. Failure to Fund the Initial Contribution.  If Wingfoot fails to deposit the
Initial Contribution in the Construction Escrow within ninety (90) days of the Closing Date, then
this Agreement shall automatically terminate, and pursuant to Section 14.2.A(3) (Remedies,
General): (a) the Purchase Price shall be returned to Greeley; (b) the Initial Tenancy in Common
Interest shall be conveyed back to Wingfoot, along with a reassignment of the Ancillary Assets
and the State Land Board Lease; and (c) all documents deposited by Greeley or delivered to
Wingfoot by Greeley, including without limitation the Initial Credits, shall be immediately
returned to Greeley, if any, and all documents, deposited by Wingfoot or delivered to Greeley by
Wingfoot shall be immediately returned to Wingfoot, if any.  In addition, Greeley shall be
entitled to reimbursements from Wingfoot and Wingfoot shall be obligated to pay Greeley for all
reasonable, third party out-of-pocket costs incurred by Greeley subsequent to the Effective Date
but prior to the termination, which shall include, but not be limited to, the Inspection Costs.
Upon termination, all other rights and obligations of the Parties shall be terminated under this
Agreement, except for the covenants, agreements and monetary obligations contained in Section
17.9 (Survival) which shall survive the Terminationtermination of this Agreement to the extent
set forth in Section 17.9, for the time period(s) specified therein.

B. Failure to Fund the Cash Contribution.  If Wingfoot fails to fully satisfy
its Cash Contribution obligation by the Contribution Deadline, and Greeley has not (i) breached
any of its obligations under Section 10.5 (Material Change to Market Value); (ii) breached any of
its obligations under Section 9.1.C (Greeley’s Contributions) or Section 9.1.D (Release of
Funds); or (iii) committed a default or otherwise breached this Agreement that prevented or
interfered with or adversely affected Wingfoot’s ability to fund the Cash Contribution, then
Greeley shall provide Wingfoot with written notice of such failure to satisfy Wingfoot’s Cash
Contribution (a “Payment Default”).  If Wingfoot does not cure such Payment Default within
sixty (60) days after its receipt of written notice from Greeley of such Payment Default (not
subject to any additional cure period under Section 14.2.D (Remedies, Generally), then pursuant
to Section 14.2.A(4) (Remedies, Generally), Greeley may elect to require that Wingfoot convey
the entirety of Wingfoot’s TIC Interest to Greeley, and Wingfoot shall be obligated to effect such
conveyance, and Wingfoot shall continue to be subject to its Deposit Obligation under Section
9.1.B (Source of Funds) until Wingfoot’s Cash Contribution obligation is fully satisfied.  Other
than Raw Water Credits subject to the Put Option and Call Option as set forth in Article 11 (Put
and Call Option), Greeley shall not be required to issue any additional Raw Water Credits (other
than transfers of outstanding Raw Water Credits in the Registry) in exchange for a transfer of
Wingfoot’s TIC Interest pursuant to this Section 9.2.B.

ARTICLE 10
RAW WATER CREDITS

10.1 Raw Water Credit.

A. Authorization.  At Closing, Greeley shall authorize the issuance of
Twelve Thousand One Hundred Twenty-onetwelve thousand one hundred twenty-one (12,121)

23
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 332

Item No. 16.



credits, with each credit representing the equivalent of, but not an interest in, one (1) acre foot of
raw water (each a “Raw Water Credit”).

B. Issuance.   AfterSimultaneous with or after Wingfoot satisfies its Initial
Contribution pursuant to Section 9.1.A (Deposit Due), Wingfoot may request from Greeley the
issuance to it of up to Twelve Thousand One Hundred Twenty One (12,121seven thousand nine
hundred forty-six (7,946) Raw Water Credits (inclusive of the Initial Credits andbut less the
Escrowed Credits) at any time prior to the date which is ten (10) years after the Closing Date.
Within thirty (30) days of receipt of a request for Raw Water Credits from Wingfoot pursuant to
this Section 10.1(B), Greeley shall issue the corresponding amount of Raw Water Credits to
Wingfoot.  If any Raw Water Credits remain unissued as of the date which is ten (10) years after
the Closing Date, then all remaining unissued Raw Water Credits shall be issued to Wingfoot in
consideration of Wingfoot transferring Wingfoot’s TIC Interest to Greeley pursuant to Section
10.2 (Transfer of Tenancy in Common Interest) as of that date.

C. Form.  The issuance of all Raw Water Credits shall be documented by
the delivery of certificates in the form attached as Exhibit E (each a “Certificate”).  A single
Certificate may represent any whole number of Raw Water Credits.  Each Certificate shall
evidence the rights of the original or any subsequent Registered Owner (defined below) thereof
with respect to the Raw Water Credits evidenced thereby.

D. Redemption Period.  The form of Certificate shall provide that any
Registered Owner may redeem a Raw Water Credit from Greeley through December 31, 2099,
subject to the terms and conditions of the Certificate and the Raw Water Dedication Policy.

E. Limitations; Sales.  All Raw Water Credits issued to Wingfoot shall be
subject to Section 10.2 (Transfer of Tenancy in Common Interest).  After issuance, Wingfoot
may sell, convey, or transfer a Raw Water Credit to a third-party, subject to Section 9.1.B
(Source of Funds).  All Registered Owners, including Wingfoot, may freely sell, transfer, or
convey Raw Water Credits to third-parties subject to compliance with Section 10.3
(Administration; Tracking).

10.2 Transfer of the Tenancy in Common Interest.  Greeley’s issuance of a Raw Water
Credit to Wingfoot shall obligate Wingfoot to convey an amount of Wingfoot’s TIC Interest to
Greeley as described in this Section 10.2.  Wingfoot shall satisfy this obligation on a semiannual
basis.  On February 1 and August 1 of each year, Greeley and Wingfoot shall calculate the total
number of Raw Water Credits issued to Wingfoot and the total number of Raw Water Credits
released from the Credit Escrow pursuant to Article 11 during the preceding six months, but
excluding the amount issued to a third-party pursuant to Section 8.2A (Conveyance)
(“collectively, the “Semester Total”).  By each February 15 and August 15, Wingfoot shall
convey to Greeley a fraction of the total interests in the PropertyWater Rights (out of Wingfoot’s
TIC Interest) with the (i) numerator being equal to the Semester Total and (ii) denominator being
twelve thousand one hundred twenty-one (12,121) (i.e., the total authorized number of Raw
Water Credits).  Wingfoot shall convey any portion of Wingfoot’s TIC Interest to Greeley in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Tenancy in Common Agreement and Section
8.2.B (Form of Conveyance).  Upon the issuance of all of the Raw Water Credits available to
Wingfoot under this Agreement, Wingfoot shall convey all of Wingfoot’s TIC Interest to

24
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 333

Item No. 16.



Greeley, at which point the tenancy in common shall terminate and one hundred percent (100%)
ownership in and to the PropertyWater Rights will vest in Greeley, except to the extent that
Greeley has assigned or encumbered any of its interest in the Tenancy in Common or the
PropertyWater Rights.

10.3 Administration; Tracking.

A. Issuance.  Greeley’s Water and Sewer Department, acting on behalf of
Greeley, (the “Department”) shall establish and maintain a written record of all issued and
outstanding Certificates (the “Registry”).  The Registry shall include, but is not limited to, (i) the
name of the person or entity to whom a Certificate has been issued or transferred (“Registered
Owner”), (ii) the date of issuance or transfer, as applicable, (iii) the Registered Owner’s contact
information as of the date of the issuance or transfer, (iv) the Certificate Number affixed thereto,
and (v) the number of Raw Water Credits evidenced thereby.

B. Assignment.  A Certificate may be transferred in the Registry, in whole
or in part, but only in whole numbers of Raw Water Credits, by the Registered Owner upon
presentation of the original Certificate with the form of assignment thereon, properly executed
and acknowledged.  If Wingfoot is the Registered Owner and Wingfoot has not fully satisfied its
Cash Contribution obligation, then Wingfoot must submit documentation and deposit or arrange
for the deposit of funds as required by Section 9.1.B (Source of Funds) along with the original
Certificate and the properly executed and acknowledged assignment.  Certificates for fractional
Raw Water Credits will not be issued or accepted by Greeley. If a Registered Owner assigns only
a portion of the Raw Water Credits evidenced by a Certificate, then the Department will issue
onethe first Certificate to the assignee for the amount assigned and a second Certificate to the
assignor (i.e., the original Registered Owner) for the amount retained.  The Department shall not
be obligated to: (i) recognize any person or entity as the owner of a Certificate, or having any
interest therein, who does not appear as the Registered Owner thereof in the Registry or (ii) issue
or reissue a Certificate to a Registered Owner, including Wingfoot, who has failed to comply
with this Section 10.3 with respect to the Raw Water Credits evidenced or to be evidenced by
such Certificate, until such failure to comply is remedied or cured.

C. Redemption; Cancellation of Credit.  A Registered Owner may redeem a
Raw Water Credit in satisfaction of any cash-in-lieu fee obligation associated with the
Registered Owner’s request for water service as prescribed by the Raw Water Dedication Policy.
If a Registered Owner presents a Certificate to Greeley and redeems a Raw Water Credit in
satisfaction of the Raw Water Dedication Policy or if Wingfoot surrenders a Certificate
evidencing put or called Raw Water Credits pursuant to Section 11.5 (Release; Payment;
Cancellation of Raw Water Credits), then the Raw Water Credits so presented or acquired shall
be deemed exercised and the Certificate or Certificates evidencing the same shall be cancelled.

10.4 Audit of Registry and Sales.

A. Wingfoot’s Records.  Upon no less than ten (10) days’ written notice to
Wingfoot, Greeley may audit Wingfoot’s non-Confidential records related to the sale of Raw
Water Credits or transfer, disposition, or encumbrance of the PropertyWater Rights.  As used in
the preceding sentence, “Confidential” means any documents or other information that Wingfoot

25
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 334

Item No. 16.



believes in good faith would create a risk of financial or other injury if disclosed; provided,
however, that proposed sale price and accounting of the Net Cash Proceeds of proposed or
completed Third Party Transfers shall not be considered Confidential.  Greeley agrees that it will
not request an audit more than once in a calendar year, unless (a) an audit or investigation is
required by any governmental or regulatory authority or (b) Greeley reasonably believes that an
audit is necessary to address a potential breach of this Agreement.  If during the course of an
audit Greeley reasonably determines that Wingfoot has sold Raw Water Credits or transferred,
disposed or encumbered the PropertyWater Rights in a manner that (x) either (i) violates this
Agreement or (ii) constitutes an Event of Default by Wingfoot, and (y) individually or in the
aggregate has a Material Adverse Effect on Greeley’s interest in the Assets, then Greeley shall
provide written notice to Wingfoot and an opportunity to cure such default in accordance with
Article 14.  Upon Wingfoot’s failure to cure such default, Greeley may pursue any applicable or
available remedy under this Agreement.

B. Greeley’s Records.  Upon no less than then ten (10) days written notice
to Greeley, Wingfoot may audit the Registry and Greeley’s policies, procedures and records that
relate to the maintenance of the Registry under this Agreement to ensure accurate and complete
records consistent with Section 10.3 (Administration; Tracking).  Wingfoot agrees that it will not
request an audit more than once in a calendar year, unless (i) an audit or investigation is required
by any governmental or regulatory authority or (ii) Wingfoot reasonably believes that an audit is
necessary to address a potential breach of this Agreement.  If during the course of an audit
Wingfoot reasonably determines that the tracking of the Raw Water Credits in the Registry is
deficient or that Greeley is in default of this Agreement (each, a “Registry Default”), then
Wingfoot shall provide written notice to Greeley and an opportunity to cure such Registry
Default in accordance with Article 14.  If Greeley fails to cure such default, Wingfoot may
pursue any applicable or available remedy under this Agreement including, but not limited to, the
remedy in Section 10.4.C (Election to Require External Registrar) below.  As used in this
Section 10.4, “deficient” means that the administrator failed to (i) retain accurate records of
ownership or redemption of Raw Water Credits, or (ii) record any transfer or issuance of Raw
Water Credits within thirty (30) days of (x) receipt of the proper form of assignment, or (y) the
date of such issuance, as the case may be.

C. Election to Require External Registrar.  If, after notice and opportunity
to cure, Greeley fails to cure either (i) a Registry Default, or (ii) an Event of Default arising from
a breach of the provisions of Section 10.3 (Administration; Tracking), in each case, within thirty
(30) days of receipt of notice from Wingfoot, and the partiesParties agree that this thirty (30) day
period is the sole cure period under this Section 10.4.C  and they shall disregard the application
of any and all other cure periods set forth in this Agreement, then Wingfoot may elect to treat
this Agreement as being in full force and effect and, upon delivering written notice to Greeley,
Wingfoot may require that Greeley retain at Greeley’s cost a financial institution experienced in
maintaining similar registries to act as the registrar and administer the Registry until the earlier
of December 31, 2099, or the last day upon which any Raw Water Credits remain outstanding.

10.5 Material Change to Market Value.

A. Raw Water Dedication Policy Changes.

26
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 335

Item No. 16.



(1) Revocation. If the City revokes or rescinds the Raw Water
Dedication Policy to deny acceptance of Raw Water Credits (except as provided under Section
10.5.A. of this Agreement) prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the date the last
outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then Wingfoot may elect to terminate this
Agreement and Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) shall have the remedies provided in
either Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) or 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered Owners
Derived Solely from Certificate), or both, as applicable.

(2) Amendments.

(a) Adding New Sources. The City may amend the Raw Water
Dedication Policy to accept a New Source (defined below) in dedication and satisfaction of its
raw water requirements, provided that such amendment does not occur within ten (10) years of
the Closing Date. A “New Source” shall mean raw water taken in dedication from a source other
than water attributable to units or shares of the following: (i) Colorado Big-Thompson Project,
(ii) Greeley-Loveland Irrigation Company, (iii) Seven Lakes Reservoir Company, (iv) Loveland
and Greeley Reservoir Company, (v) Greeley Irrigation Company, and/or (vi) any other water
right used to historically irrigate lands within the Service Area, provided that the dedication of
such water rights is limited to the satisfaction of the non-potable demand and are used to
continue irrigating the historically irrigated lands. If the City amends the Raw Water Dedication
Policy to accept a New Source less than ten (10) years after the Closing Date, then Wingfoot
may terminate this Agreement and Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) shall have the
remedies provided in either Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) or 10.5.A(4) (Rights of
Registered Owners Derived Solely from Certificate), or both, as applicable.

(b) Limiting Redemption of Raw Water Credits.  As of the
Closing Date, the Raw Water Dedication Policy shall provide that a Registered Owner may
satisfy up to one hundred percent (100%) of the Registered Owner’s cash-in-lieu fee obligation
under the Raw Water Dedication Policy with Raw Water Credits.  The City may amend the Raw
Water Dedication Policy to limit a Registered Owner’s right to satisfy up to one hundred percent
(100%) of the Registered Owner’s cash-in-lieu fee obligation with Raw Water Credits, provided
that such amendment does not (i) occur on or before fifteen (15) years after the Closing Date,
and (ii) reduce the proportion of Raw Water Credits that may be redeemed in satisfaction of a
Registered Owner’s cash-in-lieu fee obligation below seventy-five percent (75%) of such
obligation. If the City (i) amends the Raw Water Dedication Policy to limit, or (ii) otherwise
reduces, a Registered Owner’s right to satisfy one hundred percent (100%) of the Registered
Owner’s cash-in-lieu fee obligation with Raw Water Credits before fifteen (15) years after the
Closing Date, then Wingfoot may terminate this Agreement and shall have the remedies
provided in Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally).  If the City (i) amends the Raw Water
Dedication Policy to limit, or (ii) otherwise reduces, a Registered Owner’s right to satisfy not
less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the Registered Owner’s cash-in-lieu fee obligation with
Raw Water Credits prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the date the last outstanding
Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then Wingfoot may terminate this Agreement and Wingfoot (and
Credit Escrow Transferee) shall have the remedies provided in either Section 14.2.B(3)
(Remedies, Generally) or 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered Owners Derived Solely from
Certificate), or both, as applicable.

27
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 336

Item No. 16.



(c) Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits.  Except as provided in
Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(i) (Permissible Policy Change) and subject to Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(ii)
(Objection to a Proposed Change), if the City amends or revises the Raw Water Dedication
Policy or enters into an agreement pursuant to Section 14.06.190 of the City’s Municipal Code
that has the effect of disadvantaging a Raw Water Credit relative to other sources or means of
satisfying the City’s raw water dedication requirements prior to the earlier of December 31,
2099, or the date the last outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then Wingfoot may elect to
terminate this Agreement and Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) shall have the remedies
provided in either Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) or 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered
Owners Derived Solely from Certificate), or both, as applicable.

(i) Permissible Policy Changes.  Notwithstanding
Section 10.5.A.(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) above and subject to Section
10.5.A(2)(c)(ii) (Objection to a Proposed Change), the City may amend or revise the Raw Water
Dedication Policy to: (i) address non-substantive administrative, clerical, or procedural changes,
including but not limited to any municipal code renumbering, that do not have the effect of
disadvantaging a Raw Water Credit relative to other sources or means of satisfying the City’s
raw water dedication requirements; (ii) reflect or address a change in water use and/or
consumption that is supported by economic or scientific analysis and is consistent with
reasonable industry practice; or (iii) to comply with applicable federal and state law (each a
“Permissible Policy Change”).  The intent of a Permissible Policy Change is to narrowly tailor
such change to minimize a reduction or adverse change in the value of the Raw Water Credits.
Subject to the process set forth in Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(ii) (Objection to a Proposed Change), if
the City amends or revises the Raw Water Dedication Policy and such amendments or revisions
do not qualify as a Permissible Policy Change prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the
date the last outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then the Registered Owner (including
Wingfoot in its capacity as a Registered Owner) shall haveWingfoot may terminate this
Agreement and Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) may exercise the remedies provided
inunder either Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) or Section 10.5.A(4) (Rights of
Registered Owners Derived Solely from Certificate), or both, as applicable.

(ii) Objection to a Proposed Change. If the City
approves an agreement pursuant to Section 14.06.190 of the Greeley Municipal Code or adopts
an amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy in a manner that is inconsistent
with or otherwise violates Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or Section
10.5.A(2)(c)(i) (Permissible Policy Changes) prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099, or the
date the last outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, then the Certificate shall provide a
means for all Registered Owners (including Wingfoot and Credit Escrow Transferee) to object to
such amendments or revisions consistent with the following process. All Registered Owners will
be deemed to have notice of any agreement approved pursuant to Section 14.06.190 or any
amendments or revisionsamendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy adopted
pursuant to such policy if the City follows its normal ordinance adoption, hearing and
publication requirements in accordance with C.R.S. §24-6-402(2)(c), Section 3-17 of the City’s
Charter, and the Raw Water Dedication Policy.  Registered Owners may object to the proposed
final approval of such agreements orany such agreement or the proposed final adoption of such
amendments or revisionsany such amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy by
providing written notice to the Department (an “Objection”), certified by a majority of the

28
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 337

Item No. 16.



Registered Owners of the then-outstanding Raw Water Credits (through a duly-appointed
“Committee Representative”, the “Registered Owner Committee”), no less than five (5) days
prior to the date of the public hearing of the ordinance approving an agreement pursuant to
Section 14.06.190 or adopting an amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy.
In accordance with Section 3-17 and the Raw Water Dedication Policy, the date of the public
hearing shall be published after the first reading and shall be set for a date no less than twenty-
eight (28) days after the first reading.  The Objection shall include the Registered Owner
Committee’s basis for the Objection and, to the extent possible, suggested modifications that
would resolve the Objection.  After receipt of such Objection, the Department shall remove the
ordinance approving the agreement or adopting the amendment or revision to the Raw Water
Dedication Policy from the City Council’s agenda. Thereafter, the Department, and the
Committee Representative shall have thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the Objection to
resolve the Objection.  If the Committee Representative does not withdraw the Objection, in
writing, thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the Objection, then the Department and the
Committee Representative shall submit the agreement or amendments or revisions, along with
each party’s respective position, to an economist or engineer, agreeable to both parties, who is a
Colorado based utility rate or policy expert, to determine whether the agreement violates Section
10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or the amendments or revisions
qualifyamendment or revision qualifies as a Permissible Policy Change.  The economist or
engineer’s findings shall be binding on Greeley and the Registered Owner Committee (acting by
and through the Committee Representative). If the economist or engineer finds that the
agreement does not violate Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or that the
amendments or revisions qualifyamendment or revision qualifies as a Permissible Policy
Change, then the Registered Owners shall not be entitled to exercise the remedy defined in
Section 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered Owners Derived Solely from Certificate) pursuant to
Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(i)
(Permissible Policy Changes), as the case may be. If the economist or engineer finds (x) either (i)
that the agreement violates Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or (ii) that
the amendments or revisions doamendment or revision does not qualify as a Permissible Policy
Change and (y) the City does not amend or reject the agreement or the ordinance amending or
revising the Raw Water Dedication Policy to resolve or otherwise satisfy the Registered Owner
Committee’s Objection, then a Registered Owner may surrender all or a portion of the Raw
Water Credits (but only in whole numbers of Raw Water Credits) held by such Registered
Owner to the Department and exercise the remedy defined in Section 10.5.A(4) (Rights of
Registered Owners Derived Solely from Certificate) pursuant to Section 10.5.A(2)(c)
(Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(i) (Permissible Policy Changes), as
the case may be. If the Registered Owner Committee, acting by and through a Committee
Representative, does not provide an Objection to the Department, five (5) days prior to the date
of the public hearing of the ordinance approving an agreement pursuant to Section 14.06.190 or
adopting an amendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy, then each Registered
Owner shall be deemed to have consented to the agreement or to have accepted the amendments
or revisionsamendment or revision to the Raw Water Dedication Policy as a Permissible Policy
Change.  Nothing in this Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(ii) shall be read to limit the Registered Owner
Committee or individual Registered Owners from participating in any public hearing on an
ordinance approving an agreement pursuant to Section 14.06.190 or amending or revising the
Raw Water Dedication Policy.  In addition to the foregoing, if Wingfoot has not conveyed one

29
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 338

Item No. 16.



hundred percent (100%) of Wingfoot’s TIC Interest when the economist or engineer finds that
(x) either (i) the agreement violates Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging Raw Water Credits) or
(ii) that the amendment or revision does not qualify as a Permissible Policy Change, and (y) the
City does not amend or reject the agreement or the ordinance amending the Raw Water
Dedication Policy to resolve or otherwise satisfy the Registered Owner Committee’s Objection,
then Wingfoot may terminate this Agreement and Wingfoot (and Credit Escrow Transferee) may
exercise the remedies under either Section 14.2.B(3) or Section 10.5.A(4) (Rights of Registered
Owners Derived Solely from Certificate), or both, as applicable.

(3) Reserved.

(4) Rights of Registered Owners Derived Solely from Certificate.  The
form of the Certificate shall include the terms of Section 10.5.A(1) (Revocations) and Section
10.5.A(2) (Amendments).  If, prior to the earlier of December 31, 2099 or the date the last
outstanding Raw Water Credit is redeemed, Greeley (i) revokes or rescinds the Raw Water
Dedication Policy pursuant to Section 10.5.A(1) (Revocation), (ii) adds a new source in violation
of Section 10.5.A(2)(a) (Adding New Sources), (iii) limits or reduces the redemption of the Raw
Water Credits or otherwise is in violation of Section 10.5.A(2)(b) (Limiting Redemption of Raw
Water Credits), (iv) enters into an agreement that violates Section 10.5.A(2)(c) (Disadvantaging
Raw Water Credits), or (v) approves an amendment or revision that does not qualify as a
Permissible Policy Change pursuant to Section 10.5.A(2)(c)(ii), then, subject to Section 17.21
(Integrated Agreement), a Registered Owner’s exclusive remedy shall be to have the option to
surrender all or a portion of the Raw Water Credits (but only in whole numbers of Raw Water
Credits) held by such Registered Owner to Greeley, and Greeley shall be obligated to buy back
the surrendered Raw Water Credits at the greater of (a) thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) per
Raw Water Credit in 2020 escalated three percent (3%) compounded annually thereafter, or (b)
the three-year trailing average of Greeley’s cash-in-lieu price, as defined by the Raw Water
Dedication Policy. The form of the Certificate shall include the foregoing remedies and the
instrument through which a Registered Owner shall exercise such rights and remedies, except
that any rights and remedies of Wingfoot or a Credit Escrow Transferee shall not be limited or
waived by this Section 10.5.A(4).

B. Cash-In-Lieu.  If Greeley’s calculated cash-in-lieu requirement, as
provided in  the Raw Water Dedication Policy, falls below thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) per
acre-foot (“Base Amount”) in any year prior to the earlier of (i) December 31, 2099 or (ii) the
date that Wingfoot transfers and assigns its last Raw Water Credit to a third-party as evidenced
by the Registry, Greeley shall compensate Wingfoot by paying the Specified Difference to
Wingfoot each year Greeley’s calculated cash-in-lieu requirement falls below the Base Amount.
The Specified Difference shall be an amount equal to the product of the number of Raw Water
Credits (including the Released Credits) sold by Wingfoot to a third-party and the difference
between the Base Amount and the cash-in-lieu requirement set for that year (“Specified
Difference”) which shall be considered liquidated damages pursuant to Section 14.2.C
(Remedies, Generally).  The Specified Difference shall be calculated one (1) year after each
reduction in cash-in-lieu requirement becomes effective and shall be due and payable to
Wingfoot thirty (30) days thereafter and shall only be payable to Wingfoot.

30
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 339

Item No. 16.



ARTICLE 11
PUT AND CALL OPTIONS

11.1 Options.

A. Call Option.  Each calendar year, beginning in 20222021 and expiring
after calendar year 2047July 15, 2045 (“Option Period”), Greeley may purchase (in its sole
discretion), and Wingfoot shall sell, up to one hundred sixty-seven (167) Raw WaterEscrowed
Credits (defined below) at the Option Price on an annual basis (“Call Option”), if Greeley timely
delivers to Wingfoot and Credit Escrow Agent (defined below) the Call Notice (defined below).
To exercise its Call Option, Greeley must provide written notice to Wingfoot and Credit Escrow
Agent on or before July 1stJune 8th of such calendar year (“Call Notice”).

B. Put Option.  Each calendar year, during the Option Period, Wingfoot
may sell (in its sole discretion), and Greeley shall purchase, up to one hundred sixty-seven (167)
Raw WaterEscrowed Credits at the Option Price on an annual basis (“Put Option”), if Wingfoot
timely delivers to Greeley and Credit Escrow Agent the Put Notice (defined below).  To exercise
its Put Option, Wingfoot must provide written notice to Greeley and Credit Escrow Agent on or
before July 15th of such calendar year (“Put Notice”).  Wingfoot may also provide notice to
Greeley and the Credit Escrow Agent at any date during the Option Period on or after June 8 of a
commitment to not exercise the Put Option in any given year (a “Release Notice”) subject to any
terms or conditions agreed by Wingfoot (or Credit Escrow Transferee) in any applicable
indenture, assignment or pledge.

11.2 Escrowed Credits.  For the purpose of reserving sufficient Raw Water Credits to
support the Put Option and the Call Option, at Closing, the Parties shall execute an escrow
agreement, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit R (the “Credit Escrow”), with an
escrow agent (the “Credit Escrow Agent”) to manage the deposit and release of twenty-five (25)
Certificates, each evidencing one hundred sixty-seven (167) Raw Water Credits (“Escrowed
Credits”) during the Option Period.  Further, the Credit Escrow Agent will manage the deposit
and release of an additional twenty-five (25) Certificates, each evidencing one hundred sixty-
seven (167) Raw Water Credits deposited pursuant to Section 6.2, which shall not be considered
Escrowed Credits for purposes of this Article 11.  Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the
Parties acknowledge and agree that the Credit Escrow attached hereto may be subject to revision
as may be necessary or convenient to obtain approval from the Credit Escrow Agent.  Escrowed
Credits held in escrow for the benefit of Wingfoot, or any duly-approved assignee hereunder
(including Credit Escrow Transferee),  shall be considered issued for all purposes.

11.3 Released Credits.  To the extent that the Put Option and/or Call Option are not
exercised in full in any calendar year with respect to all of the one hundred sixty seven (167)
annual Escrowed Credits (such non-exercised credits being referred to as the “Released
Credits”), then all Released Credits shall no longer be subject to the Put Option or the Call
Option in future years.  If neither the Put Option nor Call Option are exercised in any given
calendar year, then on the earlier to occur of (i) the Credit Escrow Agent’s receipt of a Release
Notice; or (ii) July 16 of such year, the Credit Escrow Agent shall promptly deliver a Certificate
representing all such Released Credits to Wingfoot, and, prior to the date which is ten (10) years
after the Closing Date, the same amount shall be added to the Semester Total under Section 10.2

31
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 340

Item No. 16.



(Transfer of Tenancy in Common Interest).  If the Put Option and/or Call Option are exercised in
part or in full in any calendar year, then Section 11.5 (Release; Payment; Cancellation of Raw
Water Credits) shall also apply.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Wingfoot shall retain
one hundred percent (100%) of the proceeds received by it from the sale of any Released Credits.

11.4 Contents of Notices; Acknowledgement.  Each Call Notice and Put Notice shall
contain (a) the number of Raw Water Credits to which the Call Option or Put Option is being
exercised (“Exercised Credits”), (b) the Option Price, and (c) the product of the Option Price and
Exercised Credits (the “Exercise Price”), with respect to such Call Option or Put Option being
exercised.

11.5 Release; Payment; Cancellation of Raw Water Credits.  On July 16 of each year,
in the event that the Put Option and/or Call Option is properly exercised by providing a timely
Put Notice or Call Notice, respectively (each, an “Exercise Event”), then (i) the Credit Escrow
Agent shall release one (1) Certificate evidencing one hundred sixty-seven (167) Raw Water
Credits to Greeley (the “Surrendered Certificate”) and (ii) the same amount shall be added to the
Semester Total under Section 10.2. (Transfer of Tenancy in Common Interest).  If an Exercise
Event occurs in any calendar year as described in the preceding sentence, Wingfoot shall provide
Greeley with wire transfer instructions (which may be included in the Put Notice, if applicable)
on or before August 1st.  On or before the fifth (5th) business day after receipt of both the wire
transfer instructions and the Surrendered Certificate, Greeley shall (x) pay Wingfoot the Exercise
Price under the Put Notice and/or Call Notice, as applicable, and (y) Greeley shall issue
Wingfoot a Certificate for the total Released Credits, if any, not exercised as part of any Exercise
Event.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, in addition to proceeds received from sales of
any Released Credits, Wingfoot may retain one hundred percent (100%) of the Exercise Price
and none of the Exercise Price shall be required to be put into any escrow or otherwise withheld.

11.6 Annual Limit.  The annual aggregate maximum amount of Raw Water Credits
that can be sold and purchased under the Put Option and Call Option shall be one hundred sixty-
seven (167).  Greeley shall not be obligated to purchase, and Wingfoot shall not be obligated to
sell, more than an aggregate of one hundred sixty-seven (167) Raw Water Credits in any one
year under the combined Call Option and Put Option for such calendar year.

11.7 Assignment; Transfer.  Wingfoot, or any of its duly-authorized successors or
assigns, may assign all of its rights (or remaining rights) under this Article 11 to a third-party, or
assign all of its rights under this Agreement pursuant to  Section 17.11 (Assignment) (in either
case, such third party, a “Transferee”) and the following: (i) that and the Credit Escrow (such
third party, a “Credit Escrow Transferee”), provided that the form of assignment (and any
subsequent reassignment) shall be approved by Greeley in its reasonable discretion.  On or
shortly after Closing, Wingfoot intends to assign all of its rights under this Article 11 to a third-
party directly or indirectly owned or controlled by HA I, LLC, which entity, as Credit Escrow
Transferee, intends to assign its rights, remedies and obligations under this Article 11, including
an assignment of revenues derived from the rights and/or obligations, to an indenture trustee in
connection with financing secured by Wingfoot.  In anticipation of that assignment, the Parties
have agreed that Greeley shall issue a series of twenty-five (25) Certificates in the name of
Wingfoot and a second series of twenty-five (25) Certificates, which have been duly assigned by
Wingfoot, in the name of the Credit Escrow Transferee and to deliver both series of Certificates

32
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 341

Item No. 16.



to the Credit Escrow Agent at Closing. Upon assignment of Wingfoot’s rights under this Article
11 and the Credit Escrow to a Credit Escrow Transferee, the following shall occur: (i) the Credit
Escrow Agent shall be directed to release to Greeley (for cancellation by Greeley) the twenty-
five (25) Certificates held in the name of Wingfoot, each evidencing 167 Escrowed Credits,
along with the duly executed assignment by Wingfoot to the Credit Escrow Transferee; (ii) the
Credit Escrow Agent shall be directed to continue to maintain custody of the remaining twenty-
five (25) Certificates evidencing the issued but unreleased Escrowed Credits in the name of and
for the benefit of the Credit Escrow Transferee; (iii) the total number of unreleased
EscrowedRaw Water Credits (totaling 4,175 credits) that are in the name of Wingfoot and
released to Greeley pursuant to 11.7(i) shall be added to the applicable Semester Total under
Section 10.2 (Transfer of the Tenancy in Common Interest);(iiiv) that the Credit Escrow Agent
shall be directed to release the Escrowed Credits pursuant to Section 11.5 (Release; Payment;
Cancellation of Raw Water Credits) to Greeley, instead of Wingfoot or the Transferee, with
instruction to the Registrar to authenticate and deliver a Certificate or Certificates
representingaccept notices and instructions from the Credit Escrow Transferee (including the Put
Notice, Release Notice, and rights to the Released Credits in the name of the Transferee, (iii) that
the form of assignment (and any subsequent reassignment) be approved by Greeley in its
reasonable discretion and include the Transferee’s express assumption of all obligations of
Wingfoot pursuant to such Credits or) as though it were a party (as if it was Wingfoot) to this
Agreement and (iv) thatthe Credit Escrow; and (v) Wingfoot covenantsshall covenant and
agreesagree, for itself, its successors and assigns, to indemnify, protect, defend and hold
harmless Greeley, its successors and assigns, from and against any and all damages, losses,
liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, litigation, demands, defenses, judgments, suits, actions,
proceedings, costs, disbursements and/or expenses (including without limitation reasonable
attorneys’ fees) which are imposed upon or incurred by Greeley, its successors or assigns, for
claims by theany Credit Escrow Transferee against Greeley for breaches by Wingfoot of the
assignment (described in this Section 11.7) to theany Credit Escrow Transferee.  Wingfoot
agrees that the foregoing covenants and agreements shall survive any subsequent assignment.
Wingfoot and any subsequent Transferee is prohibited from assigning only a portion of itsThe
Parties expressly acknowledge that an assignment of Wingfoot’s or Credit Escrow Transferee’s
rights, remedies and obligations under this Article 11, including an assignment of revenues
derived from the rights and/or obligations under this Article 11, to a third-party, and any
attemptan indenture trustee in connection with financing secured by Wingfoot or a
subsequentCredit Escrow Transferee to do so shall be void.shall be permitted, provided such
assignment otherwise complies with this Section 11.7.  Upon assignment of Wingfoot’s (or any
subsequent Credit Escrow Transferee’s) rights under this Article 11, the Credit Escrow
Transferee shall be shall be entitled to enforce Wingfoot’s rights and remedies pursuant to
Article 14 (Post-Closing Defaults and Remedies) and Section 10.5 (Material Change to Market
Value), as may be applicable and to the extent of the Escrowed Credits, (i) in the event of any
Greeley breach of its obligations under this Article 11, any default by Greeley under Article 14 or
as may be owed to the Credit Escrow Transferee, or (ii) to otherwise enforce the protections
applicable to the Escrowed Credits (including protections generally inuring to the benefit of the
Raw Water Credits) under this Agreement.  In addition, the Credit Escrow Transferee shall have
the rights applicable to a Registered Owner under the Escrowed Credits, and shall be treated as
the Registered Owner of the Escrowed Credits for such purpose (including, without limitation,
for purposes of enforcing its remedies under the terms of the Certificates). Following transfer or

33
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 342

Item No. 16.



assignment of Wingfoot’s obligations, rights, and remedies pursuant to this Section 11.7, all
references to Wingfoot in Article 11 shall mean and refer to Credit Escrow Transferee and its
duly authorized successors and assigns.

11.8 Termination of Article 11.  Except as otherwise provided, this Article 11 shall
terminate at expiration of the Option Period.  Upon expiration of the Option Period, all rights,
remedies, and obligations under this Article 11 shall terminate, except for such rights, remedies
and obligations that are left unperformed as of the date of the end of the Option Period.  Subject
to the preceding sentence, on termination of Article 11, Credit Escrow Transferee shall have
remedies only under the terms of the Certificates it holds as a Registered Owner and not under
this Agreement.

11.9 Treatment of Semester Total Following Assignment.  Notwithstanding anything
to the contrary in this Article 11 (including but not limited to Sections 11.3 and 11.5), exercise or
release of any Escrowed Credits under this Article 11 shall not impact the Semester Total
subsequent to Wingfoot’s transfer or assignment of this Article 11 to a Credit Escrow Transferee
pursuant to Section 11.7, the intent being that Wingfoot has transferred the amount of
Wingfoot’s TIC Interest that corresponds to the Escrowed Credits upon assignment of this
Article 11.

34
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 343

Item No. 16.



ARTICLE 12
REVENUE SHARING

12.1 Revenue Sharing.

A. Use; Outside Customers Non-Municipal.  From the Closing Date until
the earlier of December 31, 2055, or twenty-five (25) years after Greeley has certified
completion of the Project Infrastructure, Wingfoot shall be entitled to receive an amount equal to
fifty percent (50%) of the Net Revenue generated by Greeley from the sale or lease of the
untreated, raw water attributable to the Water Rights or the State Land Board Lease to non-
municipal, non-domestic customers, including but not limited to oil and gas operators and
agricultural water users.  For this purpose, “Net Revenue” means an amount equal to the net
proceeds of such sales or leases after deduction of power costs for any pumping required to
deliver such water.  Wingfoot shall also receive an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of any
revenue derived from the operation of power generation facilities constructed as part of the
Project Infrastructure for a period of twenty-five (25) years after completion of the Project
Infrastructure (“Power Revenue Interest”).  In the event power generating facilities are
completed as part of the Project Infrastructure prior to December 31, 2055, then on or before
December 31, 2055, Greeley and Wingfoot shall appoint an independent third-party expert,
agreeable to both Greeley and Wingfoot, who is an expert in power generation and valuation, to
perform a valuation of the obligation of Greeley to pay the remaining 25-year Power Revenue
Interest to Wingfoot beyond December 31, 2055 in addition to any then unpaid Power Revenue
Interests (the “Power Valuation”) and deliver a written report of the Power Valuation to Greeley
and Wingfoot.  Within thirty (30) days of receipt of such report, Greeley shall purchase the
remaining, unpaid Power Revenue Interest for the amount of the Power Valuation (the “Power
Transaction”).  Greeley shall determine in its sole discretion whether to sell or lease the
untreated, raw water attributable to the Water Rights and the State Land Board Lease, and at
what rate, and whether to install power generating capabilities.  This provision shall only apply
to the untreated, raw water attributable to the Water Rights and the State Land Board Lease, but
shall not apply to the revenue generated from the sale or lease of wholly consumable effluent
associated with Greeley’s use of the water attributable to the Water Rights and/or the State Land
Board Lease.

B. Outside Customers.  From the Closing Date until the earlier of
December 31, 2050, or twenty-five (25) years after Greeley has certified completion of the
Project Infrastructure, Wingfoot shall be entitled to receive an amount equal to fifty cents ($0.50)
per one-thousand (1,000) gallons of treated water attributable to the Water Rights and/or the
State Land Board Lease and delivered by Greeley to municipal and domestic water users located
outside of the Service Area.  Greeley shall maintain and make available to Wingfoot on request,
flow records and water rights accounting for any deliveries outside the Service Area.

ARTICLE 13
CONDITIONS OF CLOSING

13.1 Wingfoot’s Conditions.  Wingfoot’s obligation to sell, convey and assign, as
applicable, the Assets at Closing under this Agreement is subject to the satisfaction of the
following conditions precedent or conditions concurrent (the satisfaction of which may be

35
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 344

Item No. 16.



and correct in all material respects as of the Closing Date and shall not be deemed waived in the
event Greeley shall elect to close pursuant to Section 13.3.A(3) (Failure of Condition) below.

13.3 Failure of Condition.

A. Except (i) as set forth in subparagraph B below and (ii) for failure of the
condition set forth in Section 13.2.E (Greeley’s Conditions) which shall be subject to Section
6.1.A (Governing Body Approval), in the event of a failure of any condition contained in Section
13.2 (Greeley’s Conditions), Greeley may in its sole discretion:

(1) Terminate this Agreement by written notice to Wingfoot, in which
event: (a) all funds deposited by Greeley under this Agreement as of such date shall be
immediately returned to Greeley and (b) Greeley shall be entitled to reimbursements from
Wingfoot and Wingfoot shall be obligated to pay Greeley for all reasonable, out-of-pocket costs
incurred by Greeley subsequent to the Effective Date and prior to the termination arising from or
in connection with this Agreement, which shall include but is not limited to the Inspection Costs;
or

(2) Greeley may waive such default or condition and effectuate the
Closing; or

(3) If the failure of condition consists of a default by Wingfoot that
can be cured by action within the reasonable control of Wingfoot, Greeley may elect to treat this
Agreement as being in full force and effect and Greeley shall have the right to specific
performance, monetary damages arising out of such default, or both, EXCEPT THAT
GREELEY SPECIFICALLY WAIVES ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE,
SPECULATIVE OR INDIRECT DAMAGES.

B. In the event of a failure of any condition contained in Section 13.1
(Wingfoot’s Conditions) above, Wingfoot may in its sole discretion:

(1) Terminate this Agreement by written notice to Greeley, in which
event Wingfoot shall retain the Deposit, as liquidated damages pursuant to Section 13.4 (Pre-
Closing Liquidated Damages), in addition to reimbursements from Greeley of all of Wingfoot’s
reasonable, out-of-pocket costs incurred by Wingfoot subsequent to the Effective Date and prior
to the termination arising from or in connection with this Agreement; or

(2) Wingfoot may waive such default or condition and effectuate the
Closing and Wingfoot shall have the right to recover monetary damages arising out of such
default,, EXCEPT THAT WINGFOOT SPECIFICALLY WAIVES ANY SPECIAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, SPECULATIVE OR INDIRECT DAMAGES.

WINGFOOT HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHTS IT MAY HAVE TO SPECIFIC
PERFORMANCE IN THE EVENT OF A DEFAULT BY GREELEY.

13.4 Pre-Closing Liquidated Damages.  If Greeley defaults in any of its obligations
under this Agreement prior to Closing and Wingfoot does not waive the default, Wingfoot’s sole
remedy shall be to terminate this Agreement and retain the amount of the Deposit as liquidated

37
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 345

Item No. 16.



damages in addition to reimbursements from Greeley of all of Wingfoot’s reasonable, out-of-
pocket costs incurred by Wingfoot subsequent to the Effective Date and prior to the termination
arising from or in connection with this Agreement.  WINGFOOT AND GREELEY
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT WINGFOOT’S DAMAGES WOULD BE DIFFICULT TO
DETERMINE AND THAT THE DEPOSIT AND REIMBURSEMENTS IS A REASONABLE
ESTIMATE OF WINGFOOT’S DAMAGES.

ARTICLE 14
POST-CLOSING DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

14.1 Events of Default.  After Closing, each of the following shall constitute an “Event
of Default”:

A. Failure by either Party to make any payment or deposit when due.

B. Default by either Party in the due and punctual performance of any of its
covenants, conditions, agreements or other provisions contained in this Agreement on its part to
be performed, if such default continues for thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such
default and requiring the same to be remedied is given by the non-defaulting Party; provided that
if such default cannot be cured within such thirty (30) days, and during such thirty (30) day
period the defaulting Party has taken commercially reasonable efforts to remedy such default and
subsequently is diligently pursued to the completion of such performance, an Event of Default
shall not be deemed to have occurred until ninety (90) days after written notice has been
delivered.

C. Subject to the survival provisions of Section 17.9 (Survival), any of the
representations or warranties made by a Party shall prove to have been materially incorrect under
the circumstances when made.

D. The occurrence and continuation of a Credit Event with respect to either
Party.

14.2 Remedies, Generally.  Upon the occurrence and continuation of an Event of
Default, the following remedies shall be available to the Parties:

A. Except as provided in Section 14.3.A (Special Provisions for Liquidated
Damages) below, if an Event of Default by Wingfoot, Greeley may in its sole discretion:

(1) Waive such default or condition; or

(2) If the Event of Default by Wingfoot can be cured by action within
the reasonable control of Wingfoot, then Greeley may elect to treat this Agreement as being in
full force and effect and Greeley may suspend its obligation to issue, reissue, acquire or buy Raw
Water Credits, except as may be required by Article 11 (Put and Call Options) (which
obligations may not be suspended by Greeley , subject to Section 11.8 ), until the default is
cured, and shall have the right to specific performance, damages, or both, EXCEPT THAT

38
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 346

Item No. 16.



GREELEY SPECIFICALLY WAIVES ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE,
SPECULATIVE OR INDIRECT DAMAGES; or

(3) If the Event of Default by Wingfoot consists of a failure under
Section 9.1.A (Deposit Due) to deposit the Initial Contribution within ninety (90) days of the
Closing Date, then this Agreement shall automatically terminate, in which event: (a) the
Purchase Price shall be returned to Greeley; (b) the Initial Tenancy in Common Interest shall be
conveyed back to Wingfoot, along with a re-assignment of the Ancillary Assets and the State
Land Board Lease; and (c) all documents deposited by Greeley or delivered to Wingfoot by
Greeley shall be immediately returned to Greeley, if any, and all documents deposited by
Wingfoot or delivered to Greeley by Wingfoot shall be immediately returned to Wingfoot, if any.
In addition, Greeley shall be entitled to reimbursements from Wingfoot and Wingfoot shall be
obligated to pay Greeley for all reasonable, third party out-of-pocket costs incurred by Greeley
subsequent to the Effective Date but prior to the termination, which shall include but not be
limited to the Inspection Costs.  Upon termination, all other rights and obligations of the Parties
shall be terminated under this Agreement, except for the covenants, agreements and monetary
obligations contained in Section 17.9 (Survival) which shall survive the Termination of this
Agreement, for the time period(s) specified therein, and the rights and obligations of the
Registered Owners of any Certificates remaining outstanding.

(4) If the Event of Default consists of a default by Wingfoot under
Section 9.2.B (Failure to Fund the Cash Contribution) or Section 14.1.D (Credit Event) then
Greeley may elect to terminate this Agreement by delivering written notice to Wingfoot, in
which event, as Liquidated Damages pursuant to Section 14.3.A (Special Provision for
Liquidated Damages), Greeley may elect to require that Wingfoot convey the entirety of
Wingfoot’s TIC Interest to Greeley, and, in the event of a default by Wingfoot under Section
9.2.B (Failure to Fund the Cash Contribution), Wingfoot shall continue to be subject to its
Deposit Obligation under Section 9.1.B (Source of Funds) until Wingfoot’s Cash Contribution
obligation is fully satisfied (as provided in Section 9.2.B (Failure to Fund the Cash
Contribution)).  Upon termination, all other rights and obligations of the Parties shall be
terminated under this Agreement except for the covenants, agreements and monetary obligations
contained in Section 17.9 (Survival) which shall survive the Termination of this Agreement, for
the time period(s) specified therein, and the obligations, liabilities, covenants, agreements and
monetary obligations contained in following Article(s), Section(s) or term(s) which shall survive
the Termination of this Agreement: (i) Article 11 (Put and Call Options) andsubject to Section
11.8; (ii) Wingfoot’s Deposit Obligation under Section 9.1.B (Source of Funds), which shall
survive until the Cash Contribution is satisfied as provided in Section 9.1.B (Source of Funds).;
and (iii) Section 17.18 (Limited Source of Payments by Greeley), which shall survive as long as
Greeley has obligations to Wingfoot or any assignee or Credit Escrow Transferee hereunder; and
(iv) Section 10.5 (Material Change to Market Value), which shall survive (a) as long as
Wingfoot remains a Registered Owner  and (b) until Article 11 terminates pursuant to Section
11.8.

(5) If the Event of Default consists of a default by Greeley under Section
10.3 (Administration; Tracking), then Wingfoot may elect to treat this Agreement as being in full
force and effect and, upon delivering written notice to Greeley, Wingfoot may require that
Greeley retain a financial institution, reasonably acceptable to Greeley and experienced in

39
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 347

Item No. 16.



maintaining similar registries, to act as the registrar and administer the Registry until December
31, 2099 or such earlier date as the last outstanding Raw Water Credit has been redeemed.

B. If the Event of Default consists of a default by Greeley under Section
14.1.B or C (Events of Default) above, Wingfoot may in its sole discretion:

(1) Waive such default or condition; or

(2) If the default by Greeley can be cured by action within the
reasonable control of Greeley, then Wingfoot may elect to treat this Agreement as being in full
force and effect and Wingfoot shall have the right to specific performance, damages, or both,
EXCEPT THAT WINGFOOT SPECIFICALLY WAIVES ANY SPECIAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, SPECULATIVE OR INDIRECT DAMAGES.

(3) If the default consists of a default by Greeley under Section
10.5.A.(1) (Revocation) or (2) (Amendments), 17.11 (Assignment), 14.1.A. or 14.1.D (Events of
Default), then, as Liquidated Damages pursuant to Section 14.3.B (Special Provision for
Liquidated Damages), Wingfoot may elect to terminate this Agreement byAgreementby
delivering written notice to Greeley, in which event, (i) Wingfoot (or the Credit Escrow
Transferee, as the case may be) shall have the option to sell to Greeley, and Greeley shall be
obligated to purchase, all unissued Raw Water Credits includingand all current Escrowed Credits
(i.e., all Raw Water Credits remaining to be issued to Wingfoot or depositedremaining with the
Credit Escrow Agent pursuant to the Credit Escrow as of the date of such termination and
whether or not considered issued under this Agreement) at the greater of (a) a price of thirty
thousand dollars ($30,000) per Raw Water Credit in 2020 escalated three percent (3%)
compounded annually thereafter, or (b) the three-year3-year trailing average of Greeley’s cash-
in-lieu price; and (ii) Wingfoot shall be entitled to all funds remaining in the Construction
Escrow as of the date of default by Greeley.  If Wingfoot exercises such election, then upon
receipt of the full cash payment, Wingfoot shall concurrently convey its entire TIC Interest to
Greeley in accordance with Section 10.2 (Transfer of the Tenancy in Common Interest) as if the
unissued Raw Water Credits had been issued to Wingfoot and the Escrowed Credits released.
Upon termination, all other rights and obligations of the Parties shall be terminated under this
Agreement except for the covenants, agreements and monetary obligations contained in Section
17.9 (Survival) which shall survive the Termination of this Agreement for the time period(s)
specified therein.  For the avoidance of doubt, Credit Escrow Transferee may elect to terminate
that portion of this Agreement duly assigned to it pursuant to Section 11.7, and be entitled to sell
to Greeley (and obligate Greeley to purchase) such assigned, unreleased Escrowed Credits
pursuant to this Section 14.2.B(3).  For purposes of exercising its rights under this Section, a
Credit Escrow Transferee shall only have the right to terminate Article 11 of this Agreement
(and only to the extent of its assignment and assumption of such Article pursuant to the terms of
this Agreement), by delivering written notice to Greeley pursuant to this Section 14.2.B.(3), and
provided that such termination by a Credit Escrow Transferee shall (i) be without regard to
Wingfoot’s election to terminate, and (ii) not affect the rights, obligations or remedies retained
by Wingfoot pursuant to this Agreement.

(4) If the Event of Default consists of a default by Greeley under
Section 10.3 (Administration; Tracking), then Wingfoot may elect to treat this Agreement as

40
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 348

Item No. 16.



being in full force and effect and, upon delivering written notice to Greeley, Wingfoot may
require that Greeley retain a financial institution, reasonably acceptable to Greeley and
experienced in maintaining similar registries, to act as the registrar and administer the Registry
until December 31, 2099 or such earlier date as the last outstanding Raw Water Credit has been
redeemed.

C. If the Event of Default consists of a default by Greeley under Section
10.5.B (Cash-in-Lieu), then, as Liquidated Damages pursuant to Section 14.3.C (Special
Provisions for Liquidated Damages),Wingfoot may elect to treat this Agreement as being in full
force and effect and, upon delivering written notice to Greeley, Greeley shall be obligated to pay
the Specified Difference.

D. If a cure period for an Event of Default is not otherwise expressly
provided in this Agreement then, except for the giving of notices, neither party shall be deemed
in default hereunder with respect to such Event of Default unless such Party fails to cure such
default within thirty (30) days after written notice stating such default and requiring the same to
be remedied is given by the non-defaulting Party; provided that if such default cannot be cured
within such thirty (30) days, and during such thirty (30) day period the defaulting Party has taken
commercially reasonable efforts to remedy such default and subsequently is diligently pursued to
the completion of such performance (a full cure), an Event of Default shall not be deemed to
have occurred until ninety (90) days after written notice has been delivered.  If a cure period for
an Event of Default is expressly provided in this Agreement, then such express cure period will
control and be given effect.

14.3 Special Provisions for Liquidated Damages.  The following provisions shall apply
to Events of Default by either Party which result in the following liquidated damages (each
referred to as “Liquidated Damages”):

A. If Wingfoot defaults in any of its obligations under Section 9.1.A
(Deposits Due) and Greeley elects to terminate this Agreement, then Greeley’s sole remedy shall
be the terms of Section 14.2.A.(3) (Remedies, Generally).  WINGFOOT AND GREELEY
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT GREELEY’S DAMAGES WOULD BE DIFFICULT TO
DETERMINE AND THAT THE TERMS OF SECTION 14.2.A.(3) (Remedies, Generally) ARE
A REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF GREELEY’S DAMAGES.

B. If Greeley defaults in any of its obligations under Section 10.5.A(1)
(Revocation) and (2) (Amendments) of this Agreement and Wingfoot elects to terminate this
Agreement, then Wingfoot’s sole remedy shall be the terms of Section 14.2.B(3) (Remedies,
Generally).  WINGFOOT AND GREELEY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT WINGFOOT’S
DAMAGES WOULD BE DIFFICULT TO DETERMINE AND THE TERMS OF SECTION
14.2.B(3) (REMEDIES, GENERALLY) ARE A REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF
WINGFOOT’S DAMAGES.

C. If Greeley defaults in any of its obligations under Section 10.5.B (Cash-
in-Lieu) of this Agreement, Wingfoot’s sole remedy shall be to the Specified Difference as
provided in Section 10.5.B.  WINGFOOT AND GREELEY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT

41
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 349

Item No. 16.



1601 Wewatta St, Ste. 900
Denver, CO 80202
Telephone:  (303) 899-7300
Email: scot.anderson@hoganlovells.com
ana.gutierrez@hoganlovells.com
mark.heimlich@hoganlovells.com

and a copy to: Christopher P. Dietzler
Email:  cdietzler@poudrevalleycapital.com

If to Greeley: City of Greeley
Attention: Director, Water and Sewer
1001 11th Street, 2nd Floor
Greeley, CO 80631
Telephone:  (970) 350-9812
Facsimile:  (970) 350-9805
Email: Sean.Chamber@greeleygov.com
Adam.Jokerst@greeleygov.com
WSAdmin@Greeleygov.com

With a copy to: City of Greeley
Attention:  City Attorney
1100 10th Street, Ste. 401
Greeley, CO 80631
Telephone:  (970) 350-9757
Facsimile:  (970) 350-9763
Email: Douglas.Marek@Greeleygov.com
Jerrae.Swanson@Greeleygov.com
CityAttorney@Greeleygov.com

ARTICLE 17
MISCELLANEOUS

17.1 Termination.  Except as otherwise provided, this Agreement shall terminate at the
later of the end of the Option Period or the expiration of the revenue sharing obligation of
Greeley under Section 12.1 (Revenue Sharing).  Upon termination of this Agreement, all other
rights and obligations of the Parties shall be terminated under this Agreement except for the
representations, obligations, liabilities, warranties, covenants, agreements and monetary
obligations contained in following Article(s), Section(s) or term(s) which shall survive the
Termination of this Agreement in addition to those identified in Section 17.9 (Survival): (i)
Section 10.5.A(2) (Amendments); (ii) Article 11 (Put and Call Options) subject to Section 11.8;
and (iii) Section 10.5.B (Cash-In-Lieu), which shall terminate on the dates specified therein.

17.2 No Third Party Beneficiary; No Waiver of Governmental Immunity.  This
Agreement shall not create any duty of care or liability with respect to any person or entity not a
Party to this Agreement, including without limitation any Registered Owner (except for
Wingfoot), or waive any of the privileges or immunities Greeley or their officers, employees,

43
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 350

Item No. 16.



successors and assigns may present pursuant to law, including, but not limited to, the Colorado
Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. 24-10-101, et seq., as amended.

17.3 Limits on Governmental Immunity.  Greeley represents that, pursuant to C.R.S.
§24-10-106, its governmental immunity is limited to claims for injury that lie in tort or could lie
in tort.  Under existing law, Greeley is not entitled to raise the defense of sovereign immunity in
connection with any legal proceeding to enforce or collect upon contractual obligations,
including this Agreement, or any amendments or exhibits to this Agreement, including the
payment of any amounts due thereunder, provided however that no term or condition of this
Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the
privileges or immunities of Greeley or its officers, employees, successors or assigns may present
pursuant to law, including but not limited to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S.
§24-10-101 et seq., as amended.

17.4 Mediation.  If any dispute arises under this Agreement (including as to whether
any Party has breached this Agreement or whether an Event of Default has occurred), then either
Party may require that the other engage in nonbinding dispute resolution processes upon delivery
of a written notice (a “Dispute Notice”) setting forth the disputed matter.  Upon receipt by the
other party of such Dispute Notice, the Parties shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to
negotiate a resolution of the dispute for a period of thirty (30) days (the “Dispute Resolution
Period”) which may include mediation using a mediator chosen by the Parties. During the
Dispute Resolution Period, no Party may bring a claim or commence legal action related to or in
connection with the matter set forth in the Dispute Notice until the Dispute Resolution Period
ends.  This Section 17.4 shall not alter any date in this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed.

17.5 Time.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, time is of the essence as
to each provision of this Agreement and the performance of each Party’s obligations hereunder.

17.6 Attorneys’ Fees.  If any legal action or other proceeding is commenced to enforce
or interpret any provision of this Agreement, the Prevailing Party (defined below) shall be
awarded its attorneys’ fees and expenses, in addition to any other relief granted.  The phrase
“Prevailing Party” shall include a Party who receives substantially the relief desired whether by
dismissal, summary judgment, judgment or otherwise.  This provision shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

17.7 No Waiver.  No waiver by any party of the performance or satisfaction of any
covenant or condition shall be valid unless in writing and shall not be considered to be a waiver
by such party of any other covenant or condition hereunder.  Any failure of a Party to enforce any
of the provisions of this Agreement or to require compliance with any of its terms at any time
during the pendency of this Agreement shall in no way affect the validity of this Agreement, or
any part hereof, and shall not be deemed a waiver of the right of such Party thereafter to enforce
any and each such provision.

17.8 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and its Exhibits contain the entire agreement
among the partiesParties regarding the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements,

44
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 351

Item No. 16.



whether written or oral, among the partiesParties regarding the same.  This Agreement may only
be modified by mutual written agreement duly authorized and executed by the partiesParties.

17.9 Survival.  The following representations and warranties shall survive until
Closing (and they shall terminate and be of no further force and effect after Closing), unless
otherwise specified below, but if the Closing does not occur, the following representations and
warranties shall terminate upon termination of this Agreement:

A. All warranties of title set forth in this Agreement shall merge with any
deed or assignment delivered at Closing.

B. All representations and warranties contained in the General
Representations and Warranties of both partiesParties shall survive for six months from the
Closing Date, if the Closing Occurs.

C. All representations and warranties contained in the Environmental
Representations and Warranties.

D. All other representations and warranties hereunder.

All covenants and agreements (including monetary obligations) shall continue until the earlier of:
(i) performance of such covenants or agreements or (ii) this Agreement terminates (except for the
covenants and agreements contained in Article 11 (Put and Call Options),subject to Section 11.8,
Section 14.2.A(4) (Remedies, Generally), 14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally) and Section 17.18
(Limited Source of Payments by Greeley) which shall survive termination).

17.10 Successors.  Subject to Section 17.11 (Assignment), Section 8.2 (Conveyance of
Tenancy in Common Interest) and Section 11.7 (Assignment; Transfer of Put and Call) this
Agreement shall be binding upon, shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, the
Parties, their successors and permitted assigns and the partiesParties hereto and their respective
successors and permitted assigns.

17.11 Assignment.  No assignment shall  relieve either of the Parties from its respective
obligations hereunder if such obligations are not properly discharged by the assignee of such
Party.  The sale, pledge, or other disposition of greater than a fifty percent (50%) ownership
interest in Wingfoot (a “Change of Control”) to a third party not directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by HA III, LLC shall require the written consent of Greeley, which consent shall not
be unreasonably conditioned, withheld or delayed.  Except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, neither this Agreement, nor any right hereunder, may be assigned by either Party
without the prior written consent of the other Party, and any attempt to do so will be void.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, in the event that Greeley
unreasonably conditions, withholds or delays approval of any request for a Change of Control,
Wingfoot may elect to terminate this Agreement and shall have the remedies provided in Section
14.2.B(3) (Remedies, Generally).

45
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 352

Item No. 16.



17.12 Relationship of the Parties.  The partiesParties acknowledge that neither Party is
an agent for the other Party, and that neither Party shall or can bind or enter into agreements for
the other Party.

17.13 Governing Law and Construction.  This Agreement, including any instrument or
agreement required hereunder, and all matters arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement (whether in contract, tort or otherwise) shall be construed in accordance with and
governed by the laws of the State of Colorado without giving effect to any conflict of law
principles that would require the application of the laws of another jurisdiction.  The
partiesParties hereby agree that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities
are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this
Agreement or any amendments or exhibits hereto.

17.14 Joint Effort.  Preparation of this Agreement has been a joint effort of the Parties
and the resulting document shall not be construed more severely against one Party than against
any other Party.

17.15 Review by Counsel.  The partiesParties acknowledge that each Party and its legal
counsel have reviewed and approved this Agreement.

17.16 Calendar Days.  In the event any time period set forth in this Agreement
commences, expires or is determined from a date which falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal
holiday of the State of Colorado, the date of such commencement, performance, expiration or
determination shall automatically be extended to the next business day which is not a Saturday,
Sunday or legal holiday of the State of Colorado.

17.17 Counterparts; Electronic Signatures.  The Agreement may be executed in two or
more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same document.  The Agreement, including all component parts set forth
above, may be executed and delivered by electronic signature by any of the parties and all parties
consent to the use of electronic signatures.

17.18 Limited Source of Payments by Greeley.

A. This Agreement does not constitute the debt, indebtedness or multiple
fiscal year financial obligation of the City within the meaning of the constitution or laws of the
State of Colorado or the home rule Charter of the City.

B. Any obligation of Greeley for the payment of money hereunder (each a
“Payment Obligation”) shall be solely the special and limited obligations of the Enterprise.  Any
Payment Obligation shall be payable solely from the net revenues of the Water System remaining
in each year after payment of or provision for (1) all standard operation and maintenance
expenses of the Water System and the principal of, interest on and reserve requirements of its
first-lien “Parity Obligations” (as that term is defined in the Water Revenue Bond Ordinance)
issued and outstanding from time to time permitted by Ordinance No. 41, 2018 (the “Water
Revenue Bond Ordinance”), (2) a reserve for operation and maintenance expenses equal to
twenty five percent (25%) of the previous year’s operation and maintenance expenses, and (3)
reserves for depreciation and other amounts with respect to the Water System specifically

46
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 353

Item No. 16.



required by the City Charter as in effect on the Closing Date (such net revenues being referred to
herein as the “Surplus Revenues”).  Each Payment Obligation shall constitute a “Subordinate
Obligation” (as that term is defined in the Water Revenue Bond Ordinance) of the City, acting by
and through the Enterprise, provided that notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 22 and
25(c) of the Water Revenue Bond Ordinance, Greeley shall not be required in any year to apply
more than seventy percent (70%) of its Surplus Revenues to the payment of all Payment
Obligations.

C. In the event that Greeley fails to pay any Payment Obligations in full in
the year incurred, then, and without limiting Wingfoot’s other remedies under this Agreement or
applicable law, the unpaid portion of the Payment Obligation shall continue to be due and shall
be payable as provided in this Section 17.18.  Greeley shall issue to Wingfoot a subordinate
promissory note (each a “Subordinate Revenue Note”), in a principal amount equal to each such
unpaid portion. The parties agree and acknowledge that any such Subordinate Revenue Note
constitutes a “Security” as defined at C.R.S. §11-57-203(5), and is subject to the provisions of
the Supplemental Public Securities Act, C.R.S. §11-57-201 et seq. Any such Subordinate
Revenue Note shall mature not more than fifteen (15) years from issuance and shall be payable
solely from Surplus Revenues semiannually on the first day of February and the first day of
August in each year in substantially level installments of principal and interest, with simple
interest accruing on the unpaid principal amount at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum, and
shall be subject to prepayment by Greeley in whole or in part, without prepayment penalty, upon
not less than thirty (30) days’ notice.  Greeley shall set water rates during the term of any
Subordinate Revenue Note at a level to assure repayment of the Subordinate Revenue Note
within the fifteen year maturity period of the Subordinate Revenue Note.

D. Pursuant to C.R.S. §11-57-208, the Surplus Revenues are hereby
pledged as security for the Payment Obligations, if any, and this.  This pledge shall be
specifically confirmed by the City Council of the City in connection with each issuance of a
Subordinate Revenue Note.  The creation, perfection and priority of such pledge shall be
governed by such Section, this Agreement (which is, and shall be deemed to be, a security
agreement for all purposes under sections 922(d) and 928(a) of the federal Bankruptcy Code) and
the acts of issuance by the City Council taken in connection with the issuance of each
Subordinate Revenue Note.  Whether or not for whatever reason (i) a Subordinate Revenue Note
is issued to evidence any Payment Obligation or (ii) the City Council of the City confirms the
pledge, the Surplus Revenues shall immediately beare hereby subject to the lien of such pledge
without any physical delivery, filing or further act on the part of the City, the Enterprise or
Wingfoot, and such pledge shall have priority over any and all other obligations and liabilities of
Greeley, except as limited in this Section 17.18 by the Charter or by the Water Revenue Bond
Ordinance. In addition, any breach of or noncompliance with this Section 17.18 shall not limit
Wingfoot’s rights or remedies under this Agreement or applicable law.  The lien of each such
pledge shall be valid, binding, and enforceable as against all persons having claims of any kind
in tort, contract, or otherwise against the public entity irrespective of whether such persons have
notice of such liens.  Greeley agrees that it will authorize and issue all Subordinate Revenue
Notes in the manner and according to the procedures provided by its Charter and the Water
Revenue Bond Ordinance, including advertisement for public sale to the extent then required by
the Charter.

47
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 354

Item No. 16.



E. Greeley hereby represents and warrants, as of the Effective Date, that
there are no other currently outstanding Subordinate Obligations, as that term is used in the
Water Revenue Bond Ordinance.  Greeley further covenants that it shall not create, nor cause to
be created, any Subordinate Obligations other than (1) Subordinate Obligations or Subordinate
Revenue Notes owed or issued to Wingfoot; (2) Subordinate Obligations or Subordinate
Revenue Notes issued to persons other than Wingfoot for the purpose of paying or refinancing
Subordinate Revenue Notes or Subordinate Obligations held by or owed to Wingfoot; or (3)
Subordinate Obligations secured on a basis expressly junior to the Subordinate Obligations or
Subordinate Revenue Notes owed to or held by Wingfoot.

17.19 Interest.  Any Payment Obligation owed by Greeley under this Agreement and not
paid when due shall bear simple interest at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum on the unpaid
amount until paid, provided that any such amount shall be subject to prepayment at any time in
whole or in part, together with the interest accrued on the amount so prepaid.

17.20 Fiscal Contingency.  The City shall include in its budget and appropriation
measures for each fiscal year the estimated amount of revenues available for Payment
Obligations pursuant to Section 17.18 (Limited Source of Payments by Greeley) hereof.

17.21 Integrated Agreement.  This Agreement, including all exhibits referenced herein,
constitutes the complete, unseverable, unitary, integrated agreement between Greeley and
Wingfoot concerning the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement constitutes the entire
understanding between the parties hereto and supersedes and cancels all prior written and oral
agreements and understandings, including the 2020 Agreement, with respect to the subject
matter of this Agreement.  The parties hereto acknowledge that they negotiated this Agreement,
including all exhibits, as a single transaction and would not have entered into any portion of the
Agreement without the rights and obligations conferred by the Agreement as a whole.  In the
event that (i) there is a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and any exhibits, or (ii) this
Agreement provides additional or more specific rights or remedies than those described in the
exhibits (including, for purposes of an example only, those under Article 17), the terms of this
Agreement shall control; provided, however, that any such remedies shall not be cumulative.
The rights created hereunder are intended by the parties to be presently vested and fully
enforceable according to their terms.  The provisions of this Agreement  were negotiated as, and
constitute, parts of an integrated whole, and the inability of either party to enforce any of such
provisions or to consummate any of the transactions contemplated hereby due to changes in law,
whether by amendments to the State or federal constitutions, the Charter, the Code or any
applicable statute or regulation, or by regulatory or judicial action, would result in substantial
and irreparable harm to both parties and an impairment of their vested contractual rights.

17.22 Approval.  THE OBLIGATIONS OF GREELEY ARE EXPRESSLY
CONTINGENT UPON THE APPROVAL OF THIS AGREEMENT BY GREELEY CITY
COUNCIL AND WATER AND SEWER BOARD PURSUANT TO SECTION 6.1.A
(GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL) ABOVE.

17.23 Requirement of Good Faith and Reasonable Judgment.  Unless otherwise
expressly provided in this Agreement, all decisions (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any

48
\\DE - 763089/000001 - 3463543 v67 Page 355

Item No. 16.



-1- 

 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS WATER AND SEWER BOARD 

 

RESOLUTION __1__, 2021 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CLOSING OF THE TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED BY THE 

AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER PURCHASE, SALE AND RAW WATER CREDIT 

ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (TERRY RANCH) AND TAKING RELATED ACTIONS  

  

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley (“City”) is a Colorado home rule municipality 

empowered pursuant to Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution to, 

inter alia, construct, purchase, acquire, lease, add to, maintain, conduct, and operate 

water works and everything required therefor, within or without its territorial limits, for use 

of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 17-4 of the City Charter and Section 14.04.110 of the Greeley 

Municipal Code authorize and require the Water and Sewer Board (“Board”) to, inter 

alia, acquire water and sewer assets for the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City, acting by and through its Water Enterprise (the “Enterprise”), 

and pursuant to Board approval, has previously entered into a Master Purchase, Sale and 

Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch), dated June 23, 2020, with 

Wingfoot Water Resources, a Colorado limited liability company (now known as Wingfoot 

Water Resources, a Delaware limited liability company) (“Wingfoot”) for the purchase 

and sale of water rights and related property rights (the “Asset”), the consideration for 

which includes the City’s issuance and acceptance of raw water dedication credits until 

December 31, 2099 (the “Transaction”); and 

 

WHEREAS, on February 17, 2021, the Board authorized the City, acting by and 

through its Enterprise, to enter into the Amended and Restated Master Purchase, Sale 

and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch), effective June 23, 2020 

(the “Master Agreement”); and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Master Agreement, Water and Sewer staff 

and the City’s consultants have conducted and reported the findings of various surveys, 

water quality and soils tests, environmental and ecological assessments, test borings, 

engineering tests, cost evaluations, environmental audits and tests, feasibility studies and 

other inspections, investigations and analyses deemed necessary or appropriate in 

connection with the City’s intended acquisition, use and development of the Asset 

(“Inspection”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the results of the Inspection and is satisfied 

with the condition of the Asset; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 6.1.A of the Master Agreement requires, as a condition of 

closing, that the Board and City Council authorize closing on the Asset after the 

Inspection has been completed; and  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 05D0FCCD-A0E4-4E6A-B5FB-98DD31152763

Page 356

Item No. 16.



-2- 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that closing on the Asset is in the best interest of the 

citizens of Greeley; and  

 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 18-8-308, Colorado Revised Statutes (“C.R.S.”), all 

known potential conflicting interests, if any, with respect to the Transaction have been 

disclosed to the Board and to the Colorado Secretary of State.  No member of the Board 

has a personal or private interest, as such terms are used in Section 24-18-109, C.R.S., in 

the Transaction or any other subject matter of this resolution. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WATER AND SEWER BOARD OF GREELEY, 

COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS. 

 

1. The Board hereby approves and authorizes the closing of the Transaction 

and recommends that City Council approve and authorize the same. 

 

2. All actions previously taken by the City, City Council, the Board, and 

officers, agents and employees of the City directed toward the undertaking of the 

Transaction are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

 

3. The officers, employees and agents of the City are hereby authorized and 

directed to take all necessary or appropriate action to effectuate the provisions of this 

Resolution, including, without limitation, the preparation and delivery of the documents 

required for closing pursuant to the Master Agreement. 

 

4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

signature. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS __17th__ DAY OF FEBRUARY 

2021. 

 

 

ATTEST CITY OF GREELEY 

 WATER AND SEWER BOARD 

 

 

______________________________________ ______________________________________ 

Roy Otto  Harold Evans 

Secretary to the Board Chairman, Water and Sewer Board 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 05D0FCCD-A0E4-4E6A-B5FB-98DD31152763

Page 357

Item No. 16.



-1- 

 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS WATER AND SEWER BOARD 

 

RESOLUTION __2__, 2021 

 

A RESOLUTION REPEALING WATER AND SEWER BOARD RESOLUTION 14, 2014 (CONCERNING 

THE CRITERIA AND STANDARDS TO BE FOLLOWED BY THE WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT 

IN ACCEPTANCE OF RAW WATER FOR DEVELOPMENT); WATER AND SEWER BOARD 

RESOLUTION 2, 2016 (CONCERNING THE RESIDENTIAL RAW WATER CALCULATION METHOD); 

WATER AND SEWER BOARD RESOLUTION 1, 2019 (CONCERNING YIELD VALUES OF GREELEY-

LOVELAND SYSTEM WATER RIGHT YIELDS); AND WATER AND SEWER BOARD RESOLUTION 3, 

2020 (CONCERNING THE ACCEPTANCE OF GREELEY IRRIGATION COMPANY WATER RIGHT 

AND DEDICATION REQUIREMENTS) 

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley (“City”) is a Colorado home rule municipality 

empowered pursuant to Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution to, 

inter alia, construct, purchase, acquire, lease, add to, maintain, conduct, and operate 

water works and everything required therefor, within or without its territorial limits, for use 

of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 17-4(c) of the Greeley City Charter and Section 14.04.110 of the 

Greeley Municipal Code authorize the Greeley Water and Sewer Board (the “Board”) to 

acquire, develop, convey, lease and protect the water and sewer assets, supplies and 

facilities needed to fully use the water supplies decreed, adjudicated or contracted for 

the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 14.06 (Water Service) of the Greeley Municipal Code sets forth 

certain requirements related to the initiation of water service from the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board has previously established, by resolution, certain raw water 

dedication requirements for water service, including but not limited to, identifying water 

rights suitable for potable and non-potable use within the City’s water system and the 

yield of certain water rights (“Raw Water Dedication Policy”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City, acting by and through its Water Enterprise (the “Enterprise”), 

and pursuant to Board approval, has previously entered into a Master Purchase, Sale and 

Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch), dated June 23, 2020, with 

Wingfoot Water Resources, a Colorado limited liability company (now known as Wingfoot 

Water Resources, a Delaware limited liability company) (“Wingfoot”) for the purchase 

and sale of water rights and related property rights (the “Asset”), the consideration for 

which includes the City’s issuance and acceptance of raw water dedication credits until 

December 31, 2099 (the “Transaction”); and 

 

WHEREAS, on February 17, 2021, the Board authorized the City, acting by and 

through its Enterprise, to enter into the Amended and Restated Master Purchase, Sale 

and Raw Water Credit Administration Agreement (Terry Ranch), effective June 23, 2020 

(the “Master Agreement”); and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 05D0FCCD-A0E4-4E6A-B5FB-98DD31152763

Page 358

Item No. 16.



-2- 

 

 

WHEREAS, in order to comply with certain provision under the Master Agreement, 

the City must incorporate the Raw Water Dedication Policy into Chapter 14.06 of the 

Greeley Municipal Code; and  

 

WHEREAS, on January 20, 2021, Water and Sewer staff presented a near final 

version of the proposed amendments to Chapter 14.06, attached hereto as Appendix A 

(the “Amended Chapter 14.06”), incorporating the Raw Water Dedication Policy; and 

 

WHEREAS, Water and Sewer staff has recommended that City Council adopt the 

Amended Chapter 14.06 in satisfaction of the Master Agreement and to consolidate the 

Raw Water Dedication Policy within Chapter 14.06 of the Greeley Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, Water and Sewer staff recommends that, upon the effective date of 

the Amended Chapter 14.06, the Raw Water Dedication Policy be repealed. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WATER AND SEWER BOARD OF GREELEY, 

COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS. 

 

1. The Board hereby recommends that City Council approve and adopt the 

Amended Chapter 14.06, attached hereto as Appendix A. 

 

2. Upon the effective date of the Amended Chapter 14.06, the following 

Board Resolutions shall be repealed:  

 

a. RESOLUTION 14, 2014, A RESOLUTION OF THE GREELEY WATER AND SEWER 

BOARD AMENDING AND RESTATING THE CRITERIA AND STANDARDS TO 

BE FOLLOWED BY THE WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT ( "DEPARTMENT ") 

IN ACCEPTANCE OF RAW WATER FOR DEVELOPMENT, AND THE 

DEPARTMENT' S AUTHORITY TO ACCEPT PAYMENTS OF CASH -IN -LIEU OF 

RAW WATER  

 

b. RESOLUTION 2, 2016, RESIDENTIAL RAW WATER CALCULATION METHOD 

 

c. RESOLUTION 1, 2019, A RESOLUTION AMENDING YIELD VALUES FOR 

GREELEY-LOVELAND SYSTEM WATER RIGHTS TRANSFERRED TO THE CITY IN 

SATISFACTION OF RAW WATER DEDICATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

d. RESOLUTION 3, 2020, A RESOLUTION CONCERNING ACCEPTANCE OF 

GREELEY IRRIGATION COMPANY WATER RIGHTS IN SATISFACTION OF 

RAW WATER DEDICATION REQUIREMENTS (RESCINDING AND REPLACING 

RESOLUTION 8, 1998) 

 

3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

signature. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 05D0FCCD-A0E4-4E6A-B5FB-98DD31152763

Page 359

Item No. 16.



-3- 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS _17___ DAY OF FEBRUARY 

2021. 

 

 

ATTEST CITY OF GREELEY 

 WATER AND SEWER BOARD 

 

 

______________________________________ ______________________________________ 

Roy Otto  Harold Evans 

Secretary to the Board Chairman, Water and Sewer Board 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 05D0FCCD-A0E4-4E6A-B5FB-98DD31152763

Page 360

Item No. 16.



 

 

Written Citizen Comments in the order they 

were received as of  

1 p.m. on February 26, 2021. 

Page 361

Item No. 16.



Page 362

Item No. 16.



1

Jessica Diagana

From: CityClerks
Sent: Wednesday, February 24, 2021 8:25 AM
To: Jessica Diagana
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Support for Terry Ranch Project

 
 

From: mlarson356  
Sent: Wednesday, February 24, 2021 8:12 AM 
To: CityClerks  
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Support for Terry Ranch Project 

 
 
City Council,  
I am writing in support of the Terry Ranch project. I have listened to presentations and read the articles in 
the Tribune. I think the research has been done and the questions have been answered. Thank you for your 
transparency. This project will continue the legacy of Northern Colorado's water history well into the future . 
 
Mark Larson  
 
 
Sent from Samsung Galaxy smartphone. 
 

 
CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 

attachments. 
 

Page 363

Item No. 16.



1

Jessica Diagana

From: billjerke@aol.com
Sent: Tuesday, February 23, 2021 1:44 PM
To: CityClerks
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Terry Ranch Project

Mr. Mayor and City Council,  
 
Thanks for your service. 
 
You have to opportunity to approved a massive water project for the city of Greeley that would be the largest water project in 
Colorado-even larger than Blue Mesa Reservoir! Unlike Blue Mesa, Terry Ranch doesn't evaporate or require as much federal 
approval as surface projects, doesn't serve others in other states and doesn't take a drop from current users like farmers or east 
vs. west issues. 
 
You can add some water to it in great water years, yes there will be great water years again soon! Greeley can use this as a 
supplemental source for decades. The science is already good with respect to removal of any metals or contaminants. I believe 
that the science and techniques, if required, will only get better. 
 
This is a WD Farr kind of project, in my opinion. One with vision. 
 
The only question you really need to answer is: Do I have the kind of vision possessed by other Great Greeley Water 
professionals through the years? Yes to Water Storage for Greeley's future, or no to fear? 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Bill Jerke, past Chair of the South Platte Water Roundtable 
 
970-371-2532 
 
ps. I am not a Greeley resident but own several properties in Greeley and spend money in Greeley nearly every day!  

 
CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 

attachments. 
 

Page 364

Item No. 16.



1

Jessica Diagana

From: Sean Chambers
Sent: Tuesday, February 23, 2021 3:01 PM
To: Jessica Diagana
Subject: FW: NoCo HBA Supports Terry Ranch

Jessica, 
Can you please add the below email to the Council packet public comment regarding the Terry Ranch resolution? 
Thank you.  
Sean 
 

From: Nikki Giordano  
Sent: Wednesday, February 17, 2021 11:08 AM 
To: Shannon Metcalf  
Cc: Sean Chambers  
Subject: NoCo HBA Supports Terry Ranch 
 
Attn: Water Board Chairman 
 
My name is Nikki Giordano and I’m the Executive Officer of the Home Builders Association of Northern Colorado. I am writing on 
behalf of 300 member companies which equates to 20,000 individuals representing the Northern Colorado home building 
industry. We are in support of the Terry Ranch Project. 
 
This project is environmentally sustainable, reliable and affordable. As you know the cost of water continues to increase each 
year which in turn drives up the cost of housing. NoCo HBA’s mission is to provide safe and attainable housing for all Coloradans. 
With the Terry Ranch Project being built over time this will help keep water rates down. It will also lower water acquisition costs 
and permitting costs than other surface reservoir alternatives.  
 
NoCo is in full support of the Terry Ranch Project.  
 
Feel free to call 970‐686‐2798 with any questions.  
 
Thank you for your time.  
 
 
 

Nikki Giordano  
Executive Officer 
HBA of Northern Colorado  
1907 N Boise Ave, Unit 1 | Loveland, CO 80538 
Office: 970‐686‐2798 | Cell: 907‐830‐9139 

Page 365

Item No. 16.



1

Jessica Diagana

From: CityClerks
Sent: Wednesday, February 24, 2021 8:25 AM
To: Jessica Diagana
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Terry Ranch aquifer acquisition

 
 

From: Anissa Hollingshead  
Sent: Tuesday, February 23, 2021 5:17 PM 
To: CityClerks  
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Terry Ranch aquifer acquisition 
 
 
 

From: Norm Dean <ndean@qwestoffice.net>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 23, 2021 3:35 PM 
To: Anissa Hollingshead <Anissa.Hollingshead@Greeleygov.com> 
Cc: TENLLC@comcast.net 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Terry Ranch aquifer acquisition 
 
Anissa, while this message is being sent to you, I would ask you to distribute it to the members of the Greeley Council before they 
have their discussion and vote regarding the above. 
 
As a fifteen‐year veteran of the Water and Sewer Board, I strongly recommend the purchase of the Terry Ranch acquifer by the 
City of Greeley.  
 
As a result of forward thinking on the part of our predecessors, the citizens of Greeley have benefited from an ample supply of 
clean, fresh water. In addition, this water has allowed the community to grow in terms of population and to have an adequate 
foundation for solid economic development. This purchase provides for a continuation of planned growth and development for 
the community. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Norm Dean 
 
 

 

 

Virus-free. www.avg.com  

 
CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 

attachments. 
 

Page 366

Item No. 16.



1

Jessica Diagana

From: CityClerks
Sent: Wednesday, February 24, 2021 8:25 AM
To: Jessica Diagana
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Terry Ranch / Wingfoot Deal

 
 
From: Lois Pringle  
Sent: Wednesday, February 24, 2021 5:26 AM 
To: CityClerks  
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Terry Ranch / Wingfoot Deal 

 

Letter to Mayor and Council. Honorable Mayor and Council, 
It is my understanding that most, if not all, of you will vote to approve the Terry Ranch/Wingfoot deal on March 2. I 
don’t understand how you can approve this, knowing the feeling of a large portion of the community about taking on 
such a risk. This will not secure our water future. Greeley does not need this at this time, or ever. We have adequate 
stores of water in the Poudre and elsewhere to provide for a bright future, even without expanding Milton Seaman 
Reservoir.  
In my opinion, this decision is more about securing Fort Collins’ clean water future than Greeley’s. We will no longer 
be a competitor to Fort Collins for that clean water once we commit Greeley to using ground water. Expect a big 
exodus of the Greeley population to Fort Collins if Terry Ranch becomes part of Greeley’s water inventory.  
It is easy to say that we will treat the uranium in the ground water to 0. It is another thing, and about $20 million dollars 
a year, to do it. But uranium is not the only threat to the Terry Ranch ground water. There is the threat due to fracking, 
sewage sludge on the recharge area, and the TCE spill identified and being monitored by the USACE which could 
become a Superfund Site. USACE has enlarged its monitoring area south to the northern border of Terry Ranch. The 
aquifer below the Terry Ranch extends into Wyoming. Aquifers are not like having a concrete reservoir with rebar to 
hold it together. They are full of fissures and lenses and different types of rock with different porosities. The water can 
go wherever it wants. You cannot contain it to just to the area you prefer.  
I know that the staff and water board have made light of all of these concerns of the citizens. They reference their 
consultants who have also dismissed these concerns. These same consultants wouldn’t also have a financial interest in 
seeing that this project gets done would they? And some of you who are voting to approve this deal…you wouldn’t be 
setting yourselves up to receive cheap water credits from Wingfoot would you?  
This whole deal just smells bad. The council hasn’t even read the financial agreement, and undoubtedly wouldn’t 
understand it if they did. I don’t think you would sign a deal like this if your personal finances were involved. I bet 
most of you have children. How can you even conceive of doing this to our future generations? 
Please don’t do this to Greeley! We love our city. The reason many of us live in Colorado, and specifically Greeley, is 
for its clean water. And I don’t care what you may believe or say about this Terry Ranch deal, it will forever change the 
public’s perception of Greeley, in a negative way. You think the odor problem was bad, this will be so much worse. At 
least we could move the dairies out of town. What will you do when Terry Ranch proves to be much more 
contaminated than you ever imagined?  
This will all be on you council. You will be wearing the albatross. Don’t even bother blaming the staff. They will all be 
gone by then. But you will live in the history books forever! 
Please keep Greeley’s water clean. Please vote no on Terry Ranch!! 

 
CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 

attachments. 
Page 367

Item No. 16.



Mayor John Gates and Greeley City Council  
 

Another Drought Back‐up System? 
Even working under the premise that the main and long‐term benefit of the City of Greeley to 
purchasing the Terry Ranch Aquifer is to provide drought protection, it is imperative to have at 
least a ballpark purchase price as to determine its benefit to Greeley. Wingfoot gets at least 
12,120 water credits backed up by Greeley’s inventory of water to sell for development in 
Greeley. There is a huge expense to build all the infrastructure and to add a third water 
treatment plant and to maintain a State water lease. Not sure what that total will be, but it has 
to over a billion dollars.  What the Water Department wants to gain is a third layer of drought 
protection. The first layer being the newly updated drought water use plan that the City Council 
just enacted. (Most Cities use this system as their only drought protection plan.) The second 
drought action being taken by the Water Department is by devaluing all existing and new water 
purchases rights to drought yield levels. The water board tell us they do this so that when a 
drought occurs, Greeley will have enough water to get though the drought without restrictions. 
Now the water department desires to provide a third layer of drought protection for Greeley 
residents with another billion dollar investment that will set idle most of the time like the 
treatment Plant at Boyd Lake.  
 
If you really analyze, this transaction, the Water Department is putting up for sale our existing 
water rights to be sold to developers with the money going to Wingfoot to purchase a 
redundant‐redundant and redundant drought protection scheme.  Wingfoot is giving a kick 
back to Greeley of $125 million to help push this deal through. And Wingfoot only owns roughly 
half the aquifer with the other half being owned by State of Colorado. (The assumed State lease 
cost a minimum $100,000 annually to keep it force and if raw water is removed it is on a cost 
sharing basis with additional rent fees for use of any above ground structures.)   Wingfoot is the 
only winner in this deal with very little investment and a windfall return.  I can reassure you 
that W D Farr would not consider this transaction is needed for drought protection and 
consider it a cost saving to Greeley as does current leadership. 
 
One last point is that these questionable water policies coming out of our water department 
are a hindrance to Greeley ever having low‐cost housing developments. When the water 
department decided to base water dedication on arbitrary firm yields rather than use historical 
averages it nearly doubled the amount of raw water needed to develop in Greeley. (Firm yields 
are derived from a mathematical drought formula to help determine how much raw water to 
expect during prolonged drought periods.) Our water department and board likes using firm 
yields rather than historical averages for dedication because it gives them an added safety 
factor. This ultra conservative approach to deal with potential droughts is not cost effective and 
does not help in a competitive growth market.  
 
From just a handful of people I shared this information with, the reaction was overwhelming 
not to proceed. 
 
Best regards, Jack Schneider 

Page 368

Item No. 16.



Mayor and Councilmembers: 
 
As a former Greeley City Councilmember, during my service, I was very interested in 
our water history, issues, acquisition, rate pricing, storage, sewer, and storm water.  
Therefore, the Terry Ranch Water Aquifer Acquisition Project is important to me today. 
 
Water – what are our first thoughts when we think about water?  I will share my 
thoughts.  When I am thirsty, I want to turn on the faucet to get a drink of good, clean 
water from the sink, frig, or drinking fountain at the mall or park.  I want to get a 
shower or soak in a bathtub, not to mention, flush my toilet and wash my hands often.  
Vegetables grown in my garden and a pretty green lawn at my house are things 
important to me.   Clean clothes from my washing machine is a priority for our family.  
We need water to extinguish a potential fire at my house or yours, or in our forests or 
grasslands.   I also really like going to restaurants and eating out.  Swimming pools, 
splash parks, hot tubs, fishing and boating are recreational activities enjoyed by 
thousands of people that all involve water.  And let’s not forget our water and sewer 
bills, keeping them reasonable.  There are countless water usages, some absolutely 
necessary and some luxuries, of course. 
 
But, do we think about where that water comes from and how it gets to our homes 
when we turn on the faucet?  No, probably not, or for some folks, never.  But we 
should.   Most of the time we don’t even think about it unless it isn’t there.  I am glad 
that there are skilled, knowledgeable, professional planners, technicians, engineers, 
attorneys and leaders who do think about our water all the time.  Greeley has 
positioned itself extremely well through our history of strong visionaries securing 
water resources for Greeley, yesterday, today and for the foreseeable future.  But, 
what about 100+ years from now (and, no, that is not an exaggeration)?  I want to be 
assured that the same opportunities for safe clean water, with nationally recognized 
quality that I enjoy today, are available to my children, grandchildren and for all our 
generations to come for many years into the future.  
 
Terry Ranch Water Aquifer Acquisition Project enters the scene now as a potential 
water source and storage for our future.  That is a huge issue and, in my opinion, THE 
most important decision for you, ever, in your Council service and in reality, yours and 
all of our lifetimes.  Is the Terry Ranch aquifer perfect – no.  Are Milton Seaman and 
Joe Wright Reservoirs perfect – no.  Is anything perfect – no.   Do we need to plan for 
and provide safe, quality water for generations to come with the projected population 
growth – yes.  
 

Page 369

Item No. 16.



I have read through all of the agendas and meeting minutes of both the Water and 
Sewer Board, and the Greeley City Council related to Terry Ranch; watched all the 
available website videos, social media information, newspaper articles and 
commentaries and webinars; and asked numerous questions of all involved, and have 
received responsive and satisfactory answers.  I have talked with numerous people in 
support AND opposed to this project.  I have read all the information in opposition, as 
well.  I appreciate all the information available and respect the care for and passion of 
everyone in support and opposed to the Terry Ranch Project.   
 
Will there be surprises and perhaps challenges in the future with the Terry Ranch 
Aquifer Project, maybe and perhaps probably.  Obviously we don’t know what those 
precisely might be, but on‐going testing and modeling has and will continue to provide 
some reassurances and skill in response to any potential future occurrences.  
 
I could go extremely techno here, but I won’t, you all have total access to all of that 
detailed information.  In my opinion, the staff, consultants, attorneys, professionals 
and Water and Sewer Board have done their demanded and expected, in‐depth and 
detailed due‐diligence on this project, and I believe acquisition of this water aquifer 
and the water storage and water source it provides for our water future is in the very 
best interest of the residents of Greeley today and well into the future.  I am 
completely confident that the safety and quality of this water is priority one for all. 
 
Mayor and Councilmembers, thank you for the opportunity to provide my input on this 
project.  You have a fiduciary responsibility, both financially and operationally, to the 
residents of Greeley, therefore I support Council voting in favor of the Terry Ranch 
Water Aquifer Acquisition and move forward with the vision of our forefathers, to 
continue providing us a legacy of the safe, clean and abundant quality water resources 
we have today. 
 
Debbie Pilch 
Former Greeley City Council Member 
301 N. 43rd Avenue 
Greeley, CO  80634 
970‐356‐8520 
 
 
 

Page 370

Item No. 16.



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

February 24, 2021  
  
  
The Honorable John Gates  
Mayor  
City of Greeley  
1000 10th Street   
Greeley, Colorado 80631  
  
  
Dear Mayor Gates and Members of the City of Greeley City Council, 
  
I write to offer my support of the Terry Ranch Project as Greeley seeks to establish the 
security of the water supply to the city for future generations. And, I urge the members 
of the City of Greeley City Council to vote to approve this project.   
   
The health and strength of any college or university is only as good as that of its 
hometown. Greeley’s long history of investing in its resources to provide for residents 
and local businesses has helped to ensure that our community is a great place to live 
and work -- and importantly for the University of Northern Colorado’s mission and the 
future success of families across the city, our region, and the state --  a great place to 
learn. Efforts today to plan to meet Greeley’s water needs for decades to come will 
make it possible for our city and UNC to continue to thrive as partners invested in the 
success of our people.   
   
The University of Northern Colorado was founded in 1889 as a normal school in 
response to this community’s desire to ensure future generations had access to 
excellent teachers and a first class education. As its President, I am deeply committed 
not just to maintaining, but building upon our university’s partnerships with the City of 
Greeley, Greeley-Evans School District 6, Aims Community College, local businesses, 
community organizations, and residents. The Terry Ranch Project is an important part 
of ensuring we all succeed with a healthy, sustainable water supply well into the future.   
   
Rowing, Not Drifting,   
  

      

Andy Feinstein  
President, University of Northern Colorado  

 

Office of the President  

501 20th Street | Carter Hall 4005 | Campus Box 59 | Greeley, CO 80639-0119 

970-351-2121 | unco.edu/pres 

 
 

Page 371

Item No. 16.



Page 372

Item No. 16.



1

Jessica Diagana

From: Colleen W <cwetteland51@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 23, 2021 9:52 AM
To: Roy Otto
Subject: [EXTERNAL] letter to Mayor and rest of city council

I did not write this letter but I agree with it. Put it to a vote of the people!  
 
Honorable Mayor and Council, It is my understanding that most, if not all, of you will vote to approve the Terry 
Ranch/Wingfoot deal on March 2. I don’t understand how you can approve this, knowing the feeling of a large portion 
of the community about taking on such a risk. This will not secure our water future. Greeley does not need this at this 
time, or ever. We have adequate stores of water in the Poudre and elsewhere to provide for a bright future, even without 
expanding Milton Seaman Reservoir. In my opinion, this decision is more about securing Fort Collins’ clean water 
future than Greeley’s. We will no longer be a competitor to Fort Collins for that clean water once we commit Greeley 
to using groundwater. Expect a big exodus of the Greeley population to Fort Collins if Terry Ranch becomes part of 
Greeley’s water inventory. It is easy to say that we will treat the uranium in the groundwater to 0. It is another thing, 
and about $20 million dollars a year, to do it. But uranium is not the only threat to the Terry Ranch groundwater. There 
is the threat due to fracking, sewage sludge on the recharge area, and the TCE spill identified and being monitored by 
the USACE which could become a Superfund Site. USACE has enlarged its monitoring area south to the northern 
border of Terry Ranch. The aquifer below the Terry Ranch extends into Wyoming. Aquifers are not like having a 
concrete reservoir with rebar to hold it together. They are full of fissures and lenses and different types of rock with 
different porosities. The water can go wherever it wants. You cannot contain it to just to the area you prefer. I know 
that the staff and water board have made light of all of these concerns of the citizens. They reference their consultants 
who have also dismissed these concerns. These same consultants wouldn’t also have a financial interest in seeing that 
this project gets done would they? And some of you who are voting to approve this deal…you wouldn’t be setting 
yourselves up to receive cheap water credits from Wingfoot would you? This whole deal just smells bad. The council 
hasn’t even read the financial agreement, and undoubtedly wouldn’t understand it if they did. I don’t think you would 
sign a deal like this if your personal finances were involved. I bet most of you have children. How can you even 
conceive of doing this to our future generations? Please don’t do this to Greeley! We love our city. The reason many of 
us live in Colorado, and specifically Greeley, is for its clean water. And I don’t care what you may believe or say about 
this Terry Ranch deal, it will forever change the public’s perception of Greeley, in a negative way. You think the odor 
problem was bad, this will be so much worse. At least we could move the dairies out of town. What will you do when 
Terry Ranch proves to be much more contaminated than you ever imagined? This will all be on you, council. You will 
be wearing the albatross. Don’t even bother blaming the staff. They will all be gone by then. But you will live in the 
history books forever! Please keep Greeley’s water clean. Please vote no on Terry Ranch!! 
 

 
CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 

attachments. 
 

Page 373

Item No. 16.



1

Jessica Diagana

From: Roy Otto
Sent: Thursday, February 25, 2021 1:55 PM
To: Jessica Diagana
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Vote on March 2 Terry Ranch

 
 

 
Roy H. Otto 
City Manager 
City Manager’s Office 
1000 10th Street, Greeley Colorado 
Office: (970) 350‐9750 | Cell: (970) 397‐8796 |roy.otto@greeleygov.com 
www.greeleygov.com 

 
From: John Gates <John.Gates@Greeleygov.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 23, 2021 9:42 AM 
To: Roy Otto <Roy.Otto@Greeleygov.com>; Sean Chambers <Sean.Chambers@Greeleygov.com>; Adam Jokerst 
<Adam.Jokerst@Greeleygov.com>; Harold Evans <harold@evansmanagement.com> 
Subject: Fwd: [EXTERNAL] Vote on March 2 Terry Ranch 

 
FYI 

John Gates 
Mayor 
City of Greeley 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Mary Gauthiere <gauthierem@comcast.net> 
Date: February 23, 2021 at 9:20:53 AM MST 
To: John Gates <John.Gates@greeleygov.com>, Thomas Butler <Tommy.Butler@greeleygov.com>, 
Brett Payton <Brett.Payton@greeleygov.com>, Michael Fitzsimmons 
<Michael.Fitzsimmons@greeleygov.com>, Edward Clark <Ed.Clark@greeleygov.com>, Kristin Zasada 
<Kristin.Zasada@greeleygov.com>, Dale Hall <Dale.Hall@greeleygov.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Vote on March 2 Terry Ranch 

  

Honorable Mayor and Council, 

It is my understanding that most, if not all, of you will vote to approve the Terry Ranch/Wingfoot deal 
on March 2.  I don’t understand how you can approve this, knowing the feeling of a large portion of the 
community about taking on such a risk.  This will not secure our water future.  Greeley does not need Page 374

Item No. 16.



2

this at this time, or ever.  We have adequate stores of water in the Poudre and elsewhere to provide for a 
bright future, even without expanding Milton Seaman Reservoir.   

In my opinion, this decision is more about securing Fort Collins’ clean water future than Greeley’s.  We 
will no longer be a competitor to Fort Collins for that clean water once we commit Greeley to using 
ground water.  Expect a big exodus of the Greeley population to Fort Collins if Terry Ranch becomes 
part of Greeley’s water inventory.   

It is easy to say that we will treat the uranium in the ground water to 0. It is another thing, and about $20 
million dollars a year, to do it.  But uranium is not the only threat to the Terry Ranch ground 
water.  There is the threat due to fracking, sewage sludge on the recharge area, and the trichloroethylene 
(TCE) spill identified and being monitored by the USACE which could become a Superfund 
Site.  USACE has enlarged its monitoring area south to the northern border of Terry Ranch.  The aquifer 
below the Terry Ranch extends into Wyoming.  Aquifers are not like having a concrete reservoir with 
rebar to hold it together.  They are full of fissures and lenses and different types of rock with different 
porosities.  The water can go wherever it wants.  You cannot contain it to just to the area you prefer.   

I know that the staff and water board have made light of all of these concerns of the citizens.  They 
reference their consultants who have also dismissed these concerns.  These same consultants wouldn’t 
also have a financial interest in seeing that this project gets done would they?  And some of you who are 
voting to approve this deal…you wouldn’t be setting yourselves up to receive cheap water credits from 
Wingfoot would you?   

This whole deal just smells bad.  The council hasn’t even read the financial agreement, and, 
undoubtedly, wouldn’t understand it if they did.  I don’t think you would sign a deal like this if your 
personal finances were involved.  I bet most of you have children.  How can you even conceive of doing 
this to our future generations? 

Please don’t do this to Greeley!  We love our city.  The reason many of us live in Colorado, and 
specifically Greeley, is for its clean water.  And I don’t care what you may believe or say about this 
Terry Ranch deal, it will forever change the public’s perception of Greeley, in a negative way.  You 
think the odor problem was bad, this will be so much worse.  At least we could move the dairies out of 
town.  What will you do when Terry Ranch proves to be much more contaminated than you ever 
imagined?  

This will all be on you council.  You will be wearing the albatross.  Don’t even bother blaming the 
staff.  They will all be gone by then.  But you will live in the history books forever! 

Please keep Greeley’s water clean.  Please vote no on Terry Ranch!! 

 
 

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 
attachments. 

 

Page 375

Item No. 16.



February 24th, 2021 

 

To: 

Honorable Mayor Gates 
Council Member Tommy Butler, Ward I  
Council Member Brett Payton, Ward II 
Council Member Michael Fitzsimmons, Ward III 
Council Member Dale Hall, Ward IV 
Council Member Kristin Zasada, At Large 
Council Member Ed Clark, At Large 
Roy Otto, City Manager of Greeley, Colorado 
 
Greetings, 
It is with heartfelt sincerity, that I add my support to the proposed Terry Ranch Project! 
 
I am very grateful that our Waterboard as well as you all, for completing your diligence on investigating if this is indeed a 
viable project.  
 
I think this is a very appealing alternative to our Milton Seaman project.  To think back, even when I was on city Council, 
there would be one issue after another with the Corps. of Engineers wanting us to complete or mitigate something. (I 
think in my time it was the endangered jumping mouse).  Time and time again they would come back with something we 
needed to complete for us to receive our permit. After the tune of millions of dollars.., in my heart, I firmly believe they 
will never issue us a permit, even though we went through the proper channels of Process. 
 

• I find the Terry Ranch Project attractive because it is exclusively for Greeley! 

• Uranium will be removed for usage, just as it is currently being done for our drinking water currently 

• No “water rights” are sold (please note “credits” for economic development is different) 

• There are no active oil wells in area & a very low impact on our environment. 

• Being a NON-tributary, this is not hydraulically connected to any surface streams 

• This project will help keep citizens water rates low. 

• I’m very impressed with the transparency and the willingness to answer any question that comes to mind by the 
citizens of Greeley. 

• This project is done is stages, if re-evaluating needs to take place 

• Aquifer storage is thinking ahead much like W.D. Farr did in his time to ensure water for future generations, now 
it is our turn to ensure it for our children’s children. 

 
 
In my morning meditation, it was coincidental, it took me to Genesis, that Joseph had a dream to store food for an 
upcoming famine.  We to must “store” water for future, Greeleyites to thrive on.   
 
 
With great respect and appreciation for looking after your constituent’s future, 
 
 
Sandi Elder 
Former Greeley City Council Member 
Community Advocate 
 
Please feel free to contact me if needed. 
(970) 810-2802 office 
(970) 310-8652  cell  Page 376

Item No. 16.



 

 

February 17, 2021 

 

Subject: NoCo HBA supports the Terry Ranch Project  

 

Dear Mayor Gates:  

My name is Nikki Giordano, and I am the Executive Officer of the Home Builders Association of Northern 

Colorado. I am writing on behalf of 300 member companies which equates to 20,000 individuals 

representing the Northern Colorado home building industry. We are in support of the Terry Ranch 

Project. 

 

This project is more environmentally sustainable, more reliable and more affordable. As you know the 

cost of water continues to increase each year which in turn drives up the cost of housing. NoCo HBA’s 

mission is to provide safe and attainable housing for all Coloradans. With the Terry Ranch Project being 

built over time this will help keep water rates down. It will also lower water acquisition costs and 

permitting costs than other surface reservoir alternatives.  

 

NoCo is in full support of the Terry Ranch Project.  

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 907-830-9139.  

 

Thank you for your time,  

 

Nikki Giordano  

Executive Officer  

 

cc: Greeley City Council  

 

 

Home Builders Association of Northern Colorado  

1907 N Boise Ave., Unit 1 

Loveland, CO 80538 

Page 377

Item No. 16.



 
 
 

3 3 1 0 5  C O U N T Y  R O A D  3 3  

G R E E L E Y ,  C O  8 0 6 3 1  

P   9 7 0 . 3 5 3 . 0 4 0 7  X 6 0 1 5  

F   9 7 0 . 3 5 3 . 0 9 6 1  

 

February 25, 2021 
 
Members of the Greeley City Council & Mayor John Gates 
City Clerk’s Office 
1000 10th Street 
Greeley, CO 80631 
 
Subject – Support for the City of Greeley’s Terry Ranch Project 
 
Dear Council Members & Mayor Gates: 
 
On behalf of HighPoint Resources, I am writing to express our support for the Terry Ranch 
Project.  Greeley has long been recognized for its foresight and innovation in securing water 
resources to meet the City’s needs, and the Terry Ranch Project is just the latest expression 
of this spirit of innovation.  This project will allow Greeley to continue to provide the water 
needed for residents and industry alike while keeping the water rates low and ensuring 
reliable back-up supply needed during drought years. 
 
As a proud member of the greater Greeley-area business community, HighPoint Resources 
recognizes the critical role that abundant and inexpensive water will continue to play in growth 
of businesses and residences throughout the area.  We commend the City of Greeley for 
pursuing an innovative project such as this and whole-heartedly support the Terry Ranch 
Project. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 970-270-2853 or ddennison@hpres.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Doug Dennison 
Director of Community Affairs 
 
 

Page 378

Item No. 16.



Feb. 26, 2021 
 
 
Members, Greeley City Council 
1000 10th St. 
Greeley, CO  80631 
 
Dear Members:   
  
What a wonderful opportunity awaits you next week, to make a historic investment in 
this city’s security and growth, not unlike the legacy of your forebears, who successfully 
engineered a practical way to divert high country water to the Great American Desert. 
 
I write as chair of the Greeley Area Chamber’s Local Government and Business Affairs 
Committee, which has followed the Terry Ranch project for months; find convincing the 
financial, environmental, and political arguments in its favor; and consequently, 
recommended its approval to the Chamber Board.  Council has heard from several of 
our members independently, bringing valuable, relevant business perspective to your 
deliberation.  Now we are eager to see it through. 
 
At your public hearing Tuesday night, March 2, you will hear from skeptical, fearful 
voices warning you of grave consequences of this new venture into aquifer storage and 
recovery that, while common in the west, was “too quickly” or “too thoughtlessly” or “too 
conveniently” brought to the table to stand scrutiny.  With all due respect, ladies and 
gentlemen, they are wrong.   
 
In fact, our advisory group of experienced, deliberative, collaborative volunteers are 
mightily impressed by the sustained due diligence demonstrated by city staff, outside 
consultants, and your Water and Sewer Board.  Further we acknowledge the deep and 
unflagging sense of personal responsibility demonstrated by City Manager Roy Otto, 
Major John Gates, and Water Board Chair Harold Evans.  LGBAC, as the Chamber 
Board of Directors, is not only satisfied by, but deeply grateful, for the critical thinking, 
problem solving, and evident professionalism that underlies the opportunity before you 
now. 
 
Terry Ranch is a once in a generation, if not lifetime, opportunity to secure the City of 
Greeley’s investment in a precious natural resource that can accommodate current 
users and projected users safely, efficiently, and affordably for decades to come.  Thank 
you for allowing us to be part of this proud, historic exercise of public stewardship. 
 
Cordially, 
 
Lou Cartier 
Chair, Local Government and Business Affairs Committee 
Greeley Area Chamber of Commerce 

Page 379

Item No. 16.



1

Jessica Diagana

From: CityClerks
Sent: Thursday, February 25, 2021 4:22 PM
To: Jessica Diagana
Subject: FW: Support of Terry Ranch Project

 
 

From: Verniece Thomas <Verniece@unitedway‐weld.org>  
Sent: Thursday, February 25, 2021 8:44 AM 
To: CityClerks <CityClerks@Greeleygov.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Support of Terry Ranch Project 
 
Greeley City Council members – 
  
This email is to confirm my support of the Terry Ranch project. 
  
Verniece Thomas 
Vice‐chair, Local Government Business Affairs Committee 
  
Embrace the day! 
  
Verniece Thomas | Donor Engagement Manager 
verniece@unitedway-weld.org 
  
United Way of Weld County 
970-304-6171 (direct) | 970-396-4127 (cell) | 970-353-4300 (main) 
814 9th Street | PO Box 1944 | Greeley, CO 80632  
www.UnitedWay-Weld.org | Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn 
  
  

 
  
  
  

 

Disclaimer 

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and others 
authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in 
relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. 
 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software 

Page 380

Item No. 16.



2

as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, 
archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here. 

 
CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 

attachments. 
 

Page 381

Item No. 16.



Page 382

Item No. 16.



Page 383

Item No. 16.



Mayor John Gates and City Council  
 

Filling Lake Loveland could eliminate need for Terry Ranch water 
 
The Greeley Tribune article of February 24, 2021 regarding Lake Loveland water levels is very 
timely and illustrates why the Boyd Lake treatment plant needs to be upgraded to year around 
use now. As explained in the article, there needs to be a year around user to meet new State 
regulations.  All that Greeley needs to do is upgrade the Boyd Lake treatment plant for year 
around use and problem is solved. By making the Greeley/Loveland irrigation water a reliable 
source of potable drinking water it would help multiple communities out by putting their Water 
to beneficial use. First, Greeley would have enough water to fully develop its potential without 
having to invest in Terry Ranch as a backup system. City of Evans’ water portfolio would now 
easily satisfy their current needs as they own a substantial amount Greeley/Loveland water that 
is being totally under utilized (as does Greeley). City of Milliken would benefit as well from year 
around use as they also own shares of Greeley/Loveland Irrigation water. Loveland would 
benefit from a fuller reservoir. It would take some type of joint venture between them to make 
this work. Loveland could help by keeping contaminated street water from their streets out of 
Lake Loveland Boyd lake and/or paying some of the treatment costs and Evans and Milliken 
assist with cost of plant changes.  
 
Our water department will need the encouragement of City Council to implement such a plan 
as the Water Department has been unwilling to do so recently. I believe the citizens of Greeley 
would prefer a plan like this over the redundant drought protection of Terry Ranch. This would 
be money well spent to benefit of many with almost immediate results.  
 
I could see W D Farr supporting this approach to Greeley’s water issues. 
 
Jack Schneider 
 

Page 384

Item No. 16.



GREELEY 

February 18, 2021 

Mayor Gates & City Council Members 
1000 10th Street 
Greeley, CO 80631 

RE: Terry Ranch Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 

Dear Mayor Gates and City Council Members: 

The Greeley Downtown Development Authority (DDA) Board appreciates the recent presentation from 
City Water Department staff regarding the proposed Terry Ranch project. We found the information to 
be thorough, insightful and transparent. Many of the questions we had were answered with confident 
assurance both in the due diligence in exploring this project and in the commitment to maintaining a 
high level of water quality in our city. 

The DDA Board agrees with the State Demographer's growth projections and knows that adequate 
infrastructure, and water resources are essential to the sustainable growth of Greeley. We understand 
that the project offers drought proof diversity to the city's water portfolio. It will ensure that Greeley 
has reliable, resilient water assets, ample for serving our city long into the future. We know that water is 
scarce and expensive in Northern Colorado, as we have learned from recent residential redevelopment 
projects in our district. 

Notwithstanding the benefits, the DDA Board is aware of the low levels of natural uranium in the Terry 
Ranch water but feel confident in the professional engineering reports and pilot project demonstration 
that uranium can be removed far below the EPA requirements to below the limits of detection after 
treatment. The city's current treatment process of all sources of water for a variety of pathogens, metals 
and other contaminants before the water is safe for our community gives us confidence that this 
process will be no different. 

The DDA appreciates the scalable nature of the project as proposed and the ability to minimize rate 
impacts to our residents and businesses. The fact that this project can be permitted, constructed and 
developed in phases as the demand for its water and storage grow is a real attribute that will serve our 
community's best interests. Further, we are excited to hear that this project does not replace our 
existing rights or systems but adds to them and makes use of existing infrastructure. Our stakeholders 
are proud of Greeley's water history and heritage and remain optimistic about how the Terry Ranch 
aquifer storage and supply project could build upon that legacy. 

On Behalf of the DDA Board, 

UJ) G, -
Phil Grizzle, ~Chairman 

Greeley Downtown Development Authority 
802 9th Street, Ste. 100, Greeley CO 80631 

(970) 356-6775//www.greeleydowntown.com 
Page 385

Item No. 16.



John A. Kolanz 
221North55th Avenue 

Greeley, Colorado 80634 

February 26, 2021 

Mayor Gates and City Councilmembers 
1000 1 0th Street 
Greeley, Colorado 80631 
cityclerks@greeleygov.com 

RE: Terry Ranch Project 

Honorable Mayor Gates and Councilmembers: 

Via Email 

As former legal counsel to the Water and Sewer Department, I was directly involved for 
years with efforts to secure high-quality reliable water sources to meet Greeley's future water 
needs. I understand the challenges presented by the intense competition for water in the region, 
and the difficulties in taking an infrastructure project through local, state, and federal permitting 
processes. 

Terry Ranch appears to be an implementable and cost-effective project that can meet 
Greeley's water needs for the foreseeable future. It is essentially a storage vessel the size of Blue 
Mesa Reservoir that comes pre-filled. It also presents far less of a permitting burden than most 
storage projects of this magnitude. I am confident that the thorough diligence process overseen by 
the Water and Sewer Board and Department staff will ensure that the project functions as 
anticipated, and reliably produces water of the quality that Greeley citizens have come to expect. 

I urge the Council to vote in favor of this project. It will help ensure a prosperous future 
for the City and reaffirm Greeley's leadership in the Colorado water community. 

?7rely, kc 
G/~olg. ~O 

cc: Roy H. Otto, City Manager (via email) 
Harold G. Evans, Chairman, Water & Sewer Board 

Page 386

Item No. 16.



February 22, 2021


Terry Ranch


I just finished reviewing the staff’s and consultant’s report on the Terry Ranch project. I was 
very encouraged to see we are still thinking outside the box. 


One of the greatest treasures Greeley has is our Water Board with years of experience and 
highly dedicated individuals. Having served on the Greeley City Council for nine years I have 
the greatest respect for our Water Board. They are all highly respected community 
professionals with years of experience and dedication to our community. W D Farr gets much 
deserved credit for foresight of our water development, but he passed the torch to some 
incredibly talented individuals who share his vision for our future growth. With a population that 
is likely to double by the year 2060, we need to continue to meet our water needs. The Greeley 
Water Board does not get paid for their service, they just have a great love and dedication for 
the community they live in.


Over the past 20 years, Greeley has spent over $20,000,000 in permitting fees trying to expand 
our reservoir  capacity with little progress. Working with federal and state bureaucracies  is like 
trying to coax water uphill, or so it seems.

The Terry Ranch Project seems like an incredible opportunity to meet water requirements for 
generations to come. It is obvious to me that the Water Board and Staff did their homework on 
this Project. As a community we should thank everyone involve for their dedication.

On the surface, this looks like the greatest water improvement  since the Big Thompson  
Project.


In my opinion, it would be a mistake for the Greeley City Council not to approve this project.


Sincerely.


Mike Finn

Page 387

Item No. 16.



February 24, 2021 

 

Greeley City Council 

1000 10th Street  

Greeley, Colorado 80631 

RE: Letter of Support for the Terry Ranch Project 

  

Dear City of Greeley Council Members: 

 

I am writing this letter to voice my support for the Terry Ranch Project.  There are many reasons for my support, 

including the continuance of Greeley’s legacy of being the leading innovators of water protection and supply, good 

stewards of the citizen’s financial resources and keeping our efforts local.  Greeley’s water supply management is a 

crown jewel for us and has left us in a position where we can continue to plan smartly and thoroughly. Rather than being 

forced to make rash decisions that cost significantly more, produce poor results, and relies on other entities with 

conflicting interests, our leaders have found a better way.  By approving the Terry Ranch Project, Greeley’s future 

generations will continue to say these things about our era’s innovative approach to acquisition and storage. 

 

The ability to acquire the 1.2 million acre feet is a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity that I do not think people can really 

wrap their minds around.  This amount of water ensures Greeley’s water supply for many, many generations to come.  

Almost as important and impressive is the fact that this water is stored within an isolated aquifer.  This not only protects 

the available water, but also eliminates loss due to evaporation.  This saving of the evaporative loss combined with the 

innovative purchase method is truly remarkable and honors Greeley’s legacy while taking care to protect its citizen’s 

resources.  

 

The essentially, “pay as you go” financial agreement is one that is quite creative and looks out for the citizens of Greeley.  

Unfortunately, Greeley has been dragged through the wringer trying to permit the expansion of Milton Seaman 

Reservoir over the years.  The continued studies, evaluations, legal battles etc.… have cost the City millions to no avail.  

The Terry Ranch Project is something that should be looked at as environmentally friendly and with the water laws 

applying differently to this source than surface water laws, the time and cost to put into operation will be dramatically 

reduced.  The project’s elevation is higher than that of Greeley’s which will allow gravity flows into town. Much better 

than having to pump it most of the way. The lines from the project are also all within Weld County borders which is a 

very significant thing. 

 

As seen in countless news articles, the city in the Denver Metro area that has been buying Northern Colorado farms in 

order get the water that comes with them, has been having a heck of a time getting easements from the county with 

different interest from their own.  This project keeps it local. The City of Greeley and Weld County have common 

interests lending itself to true cooperation. 

 

This opportunity is so unique, impactful and unprecedented, I cannot think of a reason why one could appose it.  I 

understand Colorado water rights can be confusing which could leave many to write it off as “too expensive”.  However, 

to pass this opportunity by would be hundreds of times more costly.  Another opportunity like this will not come again.  I 

strongly urge you to vote in support of this project and keep Greeley in position to grow sensibly and safely. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Tim Pike 
Page 388

Item No. 16.



1

Jessica Diagana

From: CityClerks
Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 8:04 AM
To: Jessica Diagana
Subject: FW: Terry Ranch Project

 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Randy Watkins <watkinsrl@outlook.com>  
Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 6:03 AM 
To: CityClerks <CityClerks@Greeleygov.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Terry Ranch Project 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council for Greeley, Colorado,  
 
Good morning and thank you for taking the time to read my note.  I believe that you are scheduled on Tuesday, March 2, to vote 
whether to move forward with the Terry Ranch Project.  As a Greeley native, born in Weld County General Hospital, and a 
lifelong resident of this great city, I have appreciated the great lengths our city leaders have taken in the past to ensure we, as 
citizens, have reliable and safe (and tasty) water.   
 
I have taken the time to understand as much as I am able about the pros and cons, and the positive and potentially negative 
outcomes of this project.  Based on everything I have read, and have learned from the videos and discussions with others, I can 
see no potentially negative outcome, or con, to this project that would even remotely out way the long‐term positive impact this 
will have on our current and future community.   
 
I have two young daughters, who will no doubt witness the great things to come to Greeley in the future.  I believe we will see 
unimaginable growth, in a positive way, and this source of water and water storage will ensure that my girls, and their future 
families, will have the safe, reliable and tasty water that I’ve enjoyed for my 44 years.   
 
I just wanted you all to know that I support you in your decision to vote to move forward with the Terry Ranch Project, and 
would be happy to publicly declare that as well.   
 
Again, I genuinely appreciate your consideration of my thoughts.  
 
Sincerely,  
Randy Watkins 
Greeley Resident 
1869 40th Avenue 
Greeley, Colorado 
(970) 576‐9175   
 
Sent from my iPad 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or attachments. 

Page 389

Item No. 16.



 
 
 
 

February 26, 2021 

To:  City of Greeley Honorable Mayor and Council 
 
Subject:  Terry Ranch - New Water Source  
 
Greetings: 
 
I am a Registered Professional Engineer in Colorado, Texas and Wyoming with Degrees in 

Civil Engineering and Environmental Science.  I have approximately 50 years of experience 

in the water industry and was the City of Greeley Water Department's Chief Engineer for 22 

years between 1979 and 2001.  During my time at the Greeley Water & Sewer Department I 

acquired permits for and rehabilitated all of the City's High Mountain Dams, managed the 

purchase of millions of dollars of water rights, managed the operations of and improvements 

to the supply system, water treatment plants, approximately 700 miles of transmission and 

distribution system and administered and planed the Department's budget, including setting 

water rates.  In addition, I managed all engineering and construction for the department. 

 

The City of Greeley is on the verge of changing the quality, cost, and perception of 

Greeley’s drinking water forever.  This will happen if the City Council approves an 

agreement, signed by the City of Greeley Water & Sewer Board and Wingfoot Water 

Resources, LLC dated June 17, 2020.  

 

Attached are some exhibits and discussions, including the body of a letter previously sent to 

your Honor Mayor and the Council, which I think would highlight some my concerns 

regarding the Terry Ranch groundwater purchase.   

 

Cost of Uranium Removal from Poudre River Water in Comparison to Terry Ranch 

groundwater 

See the attached uranium graph comparison of the Poudre River vs Terry Ranch 

groundwater.  The average uranium concentration in the Poudre River is 0.85 ug/L. The cost 

of treating uranium out of the Poudre is incidental to the normal treatment process. The total 

cost of treating Poudre River water for all contaminates is $0.27 per 1000 gallons. 

What is the approximate cost to treat uranium out of the Terry Ranch? 

Based on Terry Ranch's most productive well, the uranium concentration is 43 ug/L. The 

cost of uranium removal to non-detectable level is approximately $4.50 per 1000 gallons as 

stated in City Staff presentation to the Water & Sewer Board during the Sept 2019 meeting 

(executive session). The cost of uranium removal was determined also in a study in 

Jefferson County ,Co (Jelinek, R. T., R. L. Clemmer, AND F. J. Johns. URANIUM 

REMOVAL FROM DRINKING WATER USING A SMALL FULL-SCALE SYSTEM. U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency, Washington, D.C., EPA/600/2-89/012 (NTIS 89-169890), 

1989.) to be $4.30/1000 gallons. 

 

Gauthiere 
Engineering, Inc. 

John G. Gauthiere, P.E. 
2157 Buena Vista Drive 
Greeley, Colorado 80634 

Phone (970) 330-0855 
Cell (970) 302-0039 
E-Mail john@gauthiere-engineering.com 
 

Page 390

Item No. 16.



The cost to remove uranium from either source for the same amount of water, 12,121 acre-

feet per year is: 

Poudre River - $1,066,330 per year   

Terry Ranch - $17,772,000 per year 

 

Trichloroethylene Ground Water Pollution Heading for Terry Ranch 

I have included a couple of maps showing the Trichloroethylene (TCE) groundwater 

pollution plume resulting from the Atlas D Site 4 Missile Silo in Wyoming and a discussion 

regarding TCE plume's significance to the Terry Ranch groundwater.  the TCE plume is 12 

miles long and 3 miles wide and is the largest in the Nation.  TCE is a known carcinogen 

and causes birth defects.  The missile site is 18 miles from Terry Ranch.  The TCE plume 

has advanced 12 miles of the 18 miles in 60 years.  It is now 6 miles from Terry Ranch's 

highest production water well.  The US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) has been 

monitoring the plume and has increased the monitoring area to the Northern border of Terry 

Ranch.  Because of the complexity of the underground geology USACE is unable to 

accurately model the direction and speed the plume will take.  See the attached dialogue for 

the map of the TCE plume.  I believe the City Staff and their consultants are irresponsibly 

ignoring or dismissing a massive risk to the health and financial wellbeing of Greeley 

Citizens as well as those who will be consuming and paying the real cost of the Terry Ranch 

Project including residents in Evans, Milliken, and Windsor.   

 

Oil and Gas Drilling on Terry Ranch 

See the attached Oil Gas Well Map.   I have shown the Colorado Oil and Gas Commission 

Interactive Map data on a map of Terry Ranch.  It shows many plugged and abandoned 

wells, pending wells and horizontal boring (fracking) patterns proposed for the site.  I have 

not included the oil and gas drilling map for Wyoming, but it is similar to Colorado 

activity.  All those existing oil and gas well casings, as well as all the product pipelines 

crossing Terry Ranch pose significant hazard to the groundwater aquifer that is intended to 

be a permanent municipal water supply.   

 

City of Fort Collins Sewage Sludge Disposal on Terry Ranch Groundwater Recharge 

Area 

See any of the attached maps.  The maps show the Meadow Springs Ranch, which is just 

West of Terry Ranch.   The City of Fort Collins disposes of over 2,000 metric tons of sewage 

sludge per year on the Terry Ranch aquifer recharge area which is on the Meadow Springs 

Ranch. While this disposal method was all the fad in past years, recent discovery of 

chemicals other than nutrients have been ruining ground water aquifers thought the 

USA.  The chemicals of concern include perfluoroalkyl substances.  Perfluoroalkyl 

substances (PFAS) are known as “forever chemicals” because once released into the 

environment they do not break down, and they build up in our blood and organs. Exposure 

to Perfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) increases the risk of cancer, harms the development of 

the fetus and causes other health problems.  The sewage sludge can also contaminate 

groundwater with pharmaceuticals breakdown products and pseudo-estrogen compounds.   

 

Summary  

Greeley is in the enviable position of having the best  drinking water in the nation.  This 

water supply is from the snow melt in the high mountains.  Greeley still has the opportunity 

Page 391

Item No. 16.



to obtain more high-quality water from the mountains through the enlargement of Milton 

Seaman Reservoir.  Greeley currently owns 15,000 acre-feet of conditional water rights 

intended to be captured in an enlarged Milton Seaman Reservoir.  Despite the City Staff's 

current claims that permitting the Milton Seaman Reservoir Enlargement is too difficult for 

them to accomplish and more expensive than Terry Ranch, I believe that the Milton Seaman 

Reservoir Enlargement project can be accomplished.  (See the  attached EIS Milestones 

Table)   The table shows the progress of the City of Greeley in comparison to the City of Fort 

Collins in obtaining the required US Army Corps of Engineers Permit.  Because of the many 

personnel changes, poor city management, and no diligent and determined effort, the City 

has made no progress in obtaining a permit.  The City of Greeley's progress stopped in 

2006.  While the City Staff claims to have spent $19,000,000 on permitting, I have yet to see 

a detailed accounting of that number.  In contrast the City of Fort Collins has made 

reasonable progress with their Halligan Reservoir Enlargement Project.  I also believe that 

the cost of Milton Seaman Reservoir has been exaggerated to support a preconceived goal 

to close on the deal with Wingfoot, LLC.  When members of our Save Greeley's Water group 

requested detailed cost estimate with quantities, unit costs and assumptions for the MSR 

enlargement through the Colorado Open Records Act, the City responded with a $3,600 

bill  for supplying the detailed estimate.  SGW is an volunteer group of concerned citizens.  I 

think we have already paid for the requested records though our monthly water bills.  If 

these reports and estimates are up to date, then they should be in pdf format and available 

to the public in a digital library. 

 

At least one other thing should be considered.  That one thing is the perception of Greeley 

when it changes its water supply from award winning mountain snow melt, to what could be 

considered a potential Super Fund Site.  Greeley will become a less desirable place to live 

and home values could plummet.  At that point future development may be unnecessary.    

 

The top level of the Water Department, who are pushing Terry Ranch, do not live in 

Greeley.  They do not understand what our clean mountain drinking water means to us.  To 

them, this is just a business deal. 

 

Thank you for taking the time to investigate this issue.  Please vote no to reject the Terry 

Ranch/Wingfoot purchase agreement. 

 

Thank you. 

 
If you have any questions, please give me a call at (970) 330-0855 or (970) 302-0039 or 
email john@gauthiere-engineering.com.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
John G. Gauthiere, P.E. 
 
 

Page 392

Item No. 16.



Page 393

Item No. 16.



Page 394

Item No. 16.



The Atlas D Missile Site 4 trichloroethylene (TCE) plume is the largest TCE plume in the nation. 

Trichloroethylene is a known carcinogen and is a cause of  birth defects.  

This dialogue is intended to explain the map of the trichloroethylene (TCE) plume which originated at the 

Atlas D Missile Site 4 eighteen miles west of Cheyenne, Wyoming.  It is important to understand the 

location of the Atlas D Missile Site 4 Trichloroethylene ground water contamination plume in relation to 

Terry Ranch.       

The Atlas D Missile Site 4 is just South of I-80.  The (TCE) plume emanating from it is now 12 miles long and 

3 miles wide, according to the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality.  Atlas Site 4’s TCE 

concentrations in the groundwater exceeds 240,000 parts per billion, well above Safe Drinking Act limit of 5 

parts per billion.1  As a matter of fact, the TCE at the site is 48,000 times the safe drinking water limit.  

It is quite possible that the TCE plume will turn South and follow the Lone Tree Creek geology to Terry 

Ranch and its Upper Laramie aquifer recharge area . The TCE plume has advanced 12 miles in 60 years 

towards the Ranch.  The TCE plume is within 6 miles of the Northern border of Terry Ranch and the highest 

capacity water producing well on the Ranch.  Judging from the historic rate of travel it could take 30 years, 

plus or minus, to get to Terry Ranch.   

As a practical matter, the geology in the area is complex, and the presence, location, nature, and extent of  

lenses of highly permeable material, fractures and solution holes are never completely understood. 

However, buried paleo-drainages that generally mimic the surface topography exist, such as the drainage 

pattern of Lone Tree Creek. These paleo-drainages represent preferential groundwater flow pathways.2   

If this is true, then the TCE plume would likely follow the Lone Tree Creek pathway and travel to the Terry 

Ranch.  While the City of Greeley’s staff considers the Brule Member of the White River geologic formation 

a confining impermeable geologic formation that might impede downward seepage of the TCE plume into 

the Upper Laramie (Terry Ranch) formation, it would be a mistake to do so. It would likely be incorrect, 

however, to simply consider the Brule a confining unit throughout the Site 4 study area.3   

The US Corps of Engineers (USACE) has been trying to model the trajectory of the TCE plume but is having 

difficulty producing a reliable model because of the complexity of the geological formations. Note the 

USACE Expanded Study area which covers the area between the East end of the plume and the Northern 

border of Terry Ranch.  The expanded study area indicates that USACE believes the plume could possible 

head south to Terry Ranch.  It is hard to ignore the US Corps of Engineers’ good judgement.  However, 

1 STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE JOHN BARRASSO, A UNITED STATES SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF WYOMING, 
Cleaning Up Our Nation's Cold War Legacy Sites, Homeland Security digital Library March 29, 2017, page 4 
2 US Army Corps of Engineers, Final Area-Wide Remedial Investigation Report Former Atlas D Missile Site 4, P XIV 
3 US Army Corps of Engineers, Final Area-Wide Remedial Investigation Report Former Atlas D Missile Site 4, P 5 

ATLAS D MISSILE SITE 4 TRICHLOROETHYLENE MAP DIALOGUE

Page 395

Item No. 16.



Adam Jokerst, Deputy Director of the Greeley Water Department, seems more than willing to ignore this 

good judgment. 

Considering the interesting surprises that lurk in underground geology, the City of Greeley should not 

invest in or depend on the Terry Ranch as its future source of water for Greeley Citizens.  Greeley Citizens 

deserve the right to vote on this most important issue. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 396

Item No. 16.



WYOMING 

CO ORADO 

19 

LEGEND 

TERRY RANCH 
WATER WELLS 

- - TERRY RANCH BOUNDARY 

t I I I I I I 
RAILROAD TRACKS 

---ROADS 

APPROVED & PENDING WELLS 

@ ABANDONED LOCATION 

-®- DRY & ABANDONED 

6,000 3,000 0 6,000 

SCALE IN FEET 

Data Source: Colorado Oil & Gas Commission Website 

Date of Data: January 23, 2021 

Compiled and Drawn By:  John G. Gauthiere, P.E.

28 

--$- PLUGGED & ABANDONED 

@ PERMITIED 

WATER WELLS 

12,000 18,000 

25 

6 

TERRY RANCH 
BOUNDARY��......-����++++++++tt 

11 

23 
WWR-4 

26 

��0s12 

11 

25 

@ 

19 20 

@ 

30 29 

SAVE GREELEY'S WATER 

TERRY RANCH OIL, GAS RISK MAP 

SCALE: 1 "=6000' PAGE 1 OF 1 

Page 397

Item No. 16.



Terry Ranch Aquifer Contamination Risk Map 

This map is intended to give a sense of the potential aquifer contamination sources in the vicinity of the 
Terry Ranch aquifer.  The potential for groundwater contamination is directly related to the intensity 
and type of land use above the aquifer or in the aquifer's off-site recharge areas or upstream drainage 
areas such as the Meadow Spring Ranch or in Wyoming.  Some of the potential aquifer contamination 
sources would include spills or leaks from oil, gas and mining operations, railway accidents and highway 
(I-25) accidents.  The area contains many abandoned oil and gas well sites as well as approved and 
pending well sites which will be drilled in the future.  Note the intensity of approved and pending 
horizontal well bores.  Also note the Meadow Springs Ranch which is part of the recharge area for the 
Terry Ranch aquifer.  The Meadow Springs Ranch is owned and utilized by the City of Fort Collins for 
disposal of their municipal sewage sludge. 

Not shown on the map are potential sources of contamination from activities in Wyoming.  For example, 
the upstream drainage area for Terry Ranch in Wyoming to the northwest includes groundwater 
contamination from Atlas D Missile Site 4 located in Laramie County.  The groundwater at Atlas D Missile 
Site 4 is contaminated with trichloroethylene (TCE), a solvent used to clean defense equipment.  The    
U. S. Army Corps of Engineers is aware of the TCE groundwater contamination.  TCE is a known human 
carcinogen.  The TCE groundwater contamination plume seems to be moving southwesterly toward 
Terry Ranch.  We are currently investigating the TCE groundwater contamination  issue and other issues 
yet to be investigated by the City of Greeley and its consultants.  We will provide this information as 
soon as it becomes available.   

The City of Greeley's investigation of the area upstream of Terry Ranch in Wyoming seems to have 
escaped their pre-purchase diligence efforts. 

 

Page 398

Item No. 16.



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

U
R
A
N
IU
M
  C

O
N
C
E
N
TR

A
TI
O
N
  U

G
/L

DATE

POUDRE RIVER VS. TERRY RANCH 
URANIUM CONCENTRATION

Poudre River Terry Ranch EPA Limit

NOTES:

1. PRESENT EPA MAXIMUM CONTAMINANT LEVEL (MCL)  FOR URANIUM = 30 UG/L
2. EPA MAXIMUM CONTAMINANT LEVEL GOAL (MCLG)  FOR URANIUM = 0  UG/L
3. POUDRE RIVER DATA SHOWN IS FOR UNTREATED WATER
4. TERRY RANCH DATA IS FOR WELL #1 WHICH IS THE HIGHEST OUTPUT CAPACITY WELL
5. DATA SOURCE IS CITY OF GREELEY WATER & SEWER DEPARTMENT 

Page 399

Item No. 16.



Terry Ranch

2/26/2021, 2:21 PM

Page 400

Item No. 16.



 

U. S. Army Corps of Engineers Permitting Status 

EIS Milestones Completed 

Greeley  
Milton Seaman 

Enlargement 
Project 

Fort Collins 
Halligan 

Enlargement 
Project 

Publish Notice of Intent to Prepare Draft EIS Feb 1,2006 Feb 1, 2006 
Hold Public Scoping Meeting May 30,2006 May 30,2006 
Publish Notice of Availability and Issue Draft EIS Not Complete Nov 22,2019 
Publish Notice of Public Hearing Not Complete Nov 22,2019 
Draft EIS  Not Complete Nov 22,2019 
Draft EIS Comments Due Not Complete Feb 26,2020 
Public Hearing Held Not Complete Jan 13,2020 
Final EIS  Pending 
Corps Permit Decision  Pending 

Page 401

Item No. 16.

https://www.federalregister.gov/articles/2006/02/01/06-933/intent-to-prepare-an-environmental-impact-statement-for-the-proposed-halligan-seaman-water
https://usace.contentdm.oclc.org/digital/collection/p16021coll7/id/12799


Terry Ranch Project
Greeley City Council 

March 2, 2021

Page 402

Item No. 16.



Agenda

2

Tonight’s agenda includes two
items concerning Terry Ranch: 

1. Resolution authorizing 

closing and related actions

2. Ordinance amending 

Municipal Code to allow 

acceptance of Raw Water 

Credits
2

Page 403

Item No. 16.



Outreach

3

City Boards & Commissions – Planning Commission and many others

Social Media – Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, NextDoor

Community Open Houses - December 2 and February 10

City Council Meetings - October 13, January 12, February 16, March 2

Media – KFKA, Tribune, BizWest, CBS4, Denver Channel 7, KUNC

Monthly Water & Sewer Board Meetings – Project Investigation Reports

25+ Community Organizations, Boards & Commissions

City Chats, City Scoop, W&S Newsletter

Website – www.greeleygov.com/terryranch
Page 404

Item No. 16.

http://www.greeleygov.com/terryranch


Background & Overview

4

Page 405

Item No. 16.



• Cortney Brand, P.G. – President and CEO of LRE 

Water. Mr. Brand is a recognized expert in 

hydrogeology, aquifer recharge and aquifer storage 

and recovery systems.

• Adam Jokerst, P.E. – Deputy Dir. of Water Resources  

Mr. Jokerst has oversight of Greeley’s long range 

water supply planning, conservation program and 

water acquisition.  Adam holds bachelors and 

masters degrees in Civil Engineering.  He is a 

registered professional engineer in Colorado.

Presenting Information

Page 406

Item No. 16.



Planning for Growth

6

260,000+ people by 2065

Current supply not enough to meet future needs

Must develop new water sources while maintaining  
affordable water rates

Growing 
population

Supply

6

Page 407

Item No. 16.



Milton Seaman 
Enlargement

 Large impacts to wetlands, streams, 

and habitat

 Inundation of Forest Service, State, 

Larimer County, and Fort Collins lands

Many federal, state, & local permits 

needed - 15 years and $19M to date

Unlikely that Greeley would ever 

receive necessary permits

Evaluated hundreds of alternatives
7

Page 408

Item No. 16.



Terry Ranch Project

8

“Non-tributary” Aquifer

1,200,000 acre-feet 

Underground water storage

Drought supply – supplements 

surface water system 

Could meet Greeley’s water 

needs for generations to come
Page 409

Item No. 16.



Terry Ranch Project

9

“Non-tributary” Aquifer

1,200,000 acre-feet 

Underground water storage

Drought supply – supplements 

surface water system 

Could meet Greeley’s water 

needs for generations to come

Withdrawal

Page 410

Item No. 16.



Terry Ranch Project

10

“Non-tributary” Aquifer

1,200,000 acre-feet 

Underground water storage

Drought supply – supplements 

surface water system 

Could meet Greeley’s water 

needs for generations to come

Injection

Page 411

Item No. 16.



Underground Storage

New to Greeley but 

common throughout 

U.S. 

PRO: few 

environmental impacts, 

no evaporation

CON: requires 

treatment & pumping
Page 412

Item No. 16.



Purchase Agreement

12

Page 413

Item No. 16.



Unique Transaction

13

Purchase with raw water “credits” rather than cash

 Credits redeemable to meet Greeley’s water dedication 

requirements

 Raw water dedication is payment in form of water rights or 

cash required to receive city water service

 12,121 Credits, each Credit = 1 acre-foot dedication

 Wingfoot sells Credits to developers or other 3rd parties

 Adds third source of raw water dedication

 Greeley sets Credit price ceiling with cash-in-lieu rate
Page 414

Item No. 16.



Unique Transaction 

Greeley foregoes future cash-in-lieu revenue, revenue that would 

have been spent on a water project

Greeley receives assets upfront and $125M towards building 

infrastructure

Typical water projects: large upfront bond, rely on fees from new 

growth to pay off debt – Risky

Terry Ranch: seller takes on risk of new growth – Reduces 

Greeley’s Risk
Page 415

Item No. 16.



Transaction Recap

15

Wingfoot Receives:

1. 12,121 Credits 

2. Revenue sharing for 

water sold outside 

Greeley & hydropower

3. Option to sell Credits to 

Greeley

Greeley Receives:

1. Non-tributary Decree

2. Access easement

3. State Land Board lease

4. Five existing wells

5. $125M towards infrastructure

6. Option to buy back Credits

Master Agreement negotiated with input from Water & Sewer Board (monthly) 

and City Council (two Executive Sessions)
Page 416

Item No. 16.



Transaction Recap

16

Agreement DOES NOT

Give Wingfoot control

Benefit any other city

Sacrifice existing water

Restrict buying other water

Create any obligation to Wingfoot 

other than to accept & not devalue 

credits
Page 417

Item No. 16.



Policy Changes

17

 Credit value affected by raw water dedication policy

 Greeley defaults if it enacts certain policy changes

 Disallowing Credit redemption

 Disadvantaging Credits relative to other sources

 Adding new sources of dedication within 10-years

 Can address changes in usage based on 

consumption data and best practice
Page 418

Item No. 16.



Due Diligence

18

Page 419

Item No. 16.



Inspection Studies

1. Water quality sampling & analysis

2. Drilled/tested two monitoring wells 

3. Spectral gamma logging

4. Hydrophysical logging and depth-specific 

sampling/analysis

5. Treatment evaluation

6. 30-day pilot treatment test

7. Distribution system corrosion, metal 

release, and disinfection study

8. Bench-scale testing (water-rock column 

tests)

9. Geochemical modeling

10. Aquifer storage and recovery pilot testing

11. Water compatibility testing (physical 

mixing tests)

12. Mineralogical characterization and trace 

metal analysis

13. Groundwater contamination vulnerability 

assessment

14. Concept infrastructure design

15. Capital and operational cost estimates

16. Environmental assessment

17. Ecological and cultural resources 

evaluations

18. Peer reviews
Page 420

Item No. 16.



Inspection Results

20

 All diligence reports 
available on project 
website

 Preliminary findings 
shared with City 
Council on Oct. 13 
and Jan 12 

 Final findings 
presented to W&S 
Board on Feb. 17; 
video provided

Page 421

Item No. 16.



Key Findings

21

Extensive water quality study: over 7,000 

data points & 575 compounds from 7 wells

 Overall water quality is excellent

 Uranium is present but can be removed by 

proven treatment (ion exchange)

 Greeley customers will not receive water 

with measurable uranium

Injection will not mobilize metals

Water is compatible with existing supplies

Pipe corrosion/metal release not expectedPage 422

Item No. 16.



22

Contamination Risk

Risk of groundwater contamination 

is low

 Groundwater is generally deep and 

isolated

 Groundwater flow rates are low (10-12 

ft/yr or ~1 mile in 500 years)

 No producing oil & gas wells 

 Apparently low oil & gas potential
Page 423

Item No. 16.



23

Contamination Risk

Surface Use Above Terry Ranch/                                   

Upper Laramie Aquifer 

Surface Use Above Denver Basin Aquifers

Courtesy: The Denver Channel 7

Contrast in land surface between the Denver Basin Aquifers and Upper Laramie Aquifer Page 424

Item No. 16.



24

Trichloroethylene (TCE) Risk
 Investigated TCE plume from Atlas D missile site

 TCE plume is in a different geologic formation (Ogallala and Brule Member of White River Formation)

 Terry Ranch aquifer is protected by the claystone/shale layers in the White River Formation 

 Plume is migrating East-Northeast towards Cheyenne, not towards Terry Ranch

 Plume is well-characterized and actively being remediated by the USACE

 Edge of the plume has very low TCE concentrations (5 to 10 ppb)

EastWest

Upper Laramie Protected by 

the White River Formation, 

100’s of feet thick in northern 

portion of Terry Ranch

Source: USACE Area-Wide 

Remedial Investigation Report 

Former Atlas D Missile Site 4 

Laramie County, Wyoming 

Contract No. W9128F-13-D-

0004, 0001. August 2020

Geologic cross-section 

West to East through the 

axis of the plume

Page 425

Item No. 16.



25

TCE Risk

TCE is not a risk to Terry 

Ranch groundwater

TCE is treatable

 Cheyenne uses groundwater 

within plume area for drinking 

water

 Treated below detection by air-

stripping

 Paid for by Army Corps 

TCE can be remediated
Source: USACE Area-Wide Remedial Investigation Report Former 

Atlas D Missile Site 4 Laramie County, Wyoming Contract No. 

W9128F-13-D-0004, 0001. August 2020

Page 426

Item No. 16.



Peer Review

26

Independent, third-party peer review

 City performed adequate testing and diligence 

followed established professional guidelines

 Terry Ranch is a high quality potable water source

 Treatment can remove uranium and provide safe 

water supply

 Concur with conceptual design

 Additional testing to refine operations and cost Page 427

Item No. 16.



Costs

27

Page 428

Item No. 16.



Cost Comparison

28*Costs presented as 2020 net present values using 5% construction escalation and 3% discount rate.  Timeline assumed.

 Terry Ranch 

construction will 

be phased 

Milton 

Seaman/other 

reservoirs cannot

Phasing lowers 

water rates
Page 429

Item No. 16.



Operational Costs

29
*2016-2019 Boyd & Bellvue Averages

 Terry Ranch will be 

more expensive to 

operate than existing 

treatment plants

 Higher operational 

costs are vastly 

outweighed by lower 

construction costs

 Avg. 2065 operational 

costs: $530,000/year 

($810,000/year with 

injection)
Page 430

Item No. 16.



Rate Comparison

30Rates calculated with future, escalated project costs.

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035 2037 2039

Annual Rate Impacts

MS Expansion - 21K AF

MS Expansion - 48K AF

Terry Ranch

2021 CIP

Page 431

Item No. 16.



Recommendations

31

Page 432

Item No. 16.



Additional water supplies and storage are needed to 

support a growing city

Developing new water projects is extremely difficult in 

today’s regulatory environment and highly competitive 

water market 

Terry Ranch is least costly and most certain among 

hundreds of alternatives evaluated 

Terry Ranch will be a safe and reliable water supply

Staff Recommendations

Page 433

Item No. 16.



Water & Sewer Board Recommendations

Closely guided project development 

and negotiations over last two years

Received monthly diligence updates 

since June 2020

Approved closing and related actions 

on February 17, 2021
Page 434

Item No. 16.



Staff and the Water & Sewer Board recommends City 
Council authorize the closing and related actions for 
acquisition of Terry Ranch water rights and storage

34

Page 435

Item No. 16.



More information at:
greeleygov.com/terryranch

35

Page 436

Item No. 16.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
March 2, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Roy Otto, City Manager, 970-350-9750 

  

Title:  

COVID-19 Update 

Summary: 
 

There will be a brief update to Council regarding COVID-19. 

 

 

Page 437

Item No. 17.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021  

 

Title 

Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting the City Manager or City Council may review the 

attached Council Calendar or Worksession Schedule regarding any upcoming 

meetings or events. 

 

Attachments 

Council Meeting/Worksession Schedule 

Council Meetings/Other Events Calendar 
                                 

Page 438

Item No. 18.



Date Description Sponsor Placement/Time
Keep Greeley Moving Renewal ‐ Move1 Paul Fetherston 1.00

COVID‐19 Update Roy Otto 0.25

Residential Infill Strategies Brad Mueller 0.75

Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Municipal Code Recodification Anissa Hollingshead Consent

Resolution ‐ IGA with State for SBDC Contract Ben Snow Consent

Resolution ‐ Assignment of 2021 PAB to CHFA Ben Snow Consent

HUD/CDBG CAPER Review  Ben Snow Regular

COVID‐19 Update Roy Otto Regular

Boards & Commissions Appointments Anissa Hollingshead Regular

COVID‐19 Update Roy Otto 0.25

Initiative Update re: new commission Raymond Lee 0.25

CCO Council Protocol Review and Portal Functionality Discussion  Anissa Hollingshead 0.50

Fiscal Year 2020 Year End Financial Update John Karner 0.5

Development Code ‐ Chapters 1 & 2 ‐ General Provisions and Procedures Brad Mueller 0.50

March 23, 2021 

Worksession Meeting

City Council Meeting Scheduling
Current as of 02/26/2021

This schedule is subject to change

March 9, 2021 

Worksession Meeting

March 16, 2021 Council 

Meeting

Page 439

Item No. 18.



1 2/24/2021 9:50 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

March 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

April 2021March 1, 2021 - 
March 7, 2021
Monday, March 1

Wednesday, March 3

Friday, March 5

Tuesday, March 2
6:00pm -  City Council Meeting - Council Master Calendar

Thursday, March 4
3:30pm -  IG Adv. Board (Butler)
6:00pm -  MPO (Gates/Payton)

Saturday, March 6

Sunday, March 7

Page 440

Item No. 18.



2 2/24/2021 9:50 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

March 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

April 2021March 8, 2021 - 
March 14, 2021
Monday, March 8

Wednesday, March 10

Friday, March 12

Tuesday, March 9
6:00pm -  City Council Worksession Meeting - Council Master 
Calendar

Thursday, March 11
7:30am -  Poudre River Trail (Hall)

Saturday, March 13

Sunday, March 14

Page 441

Item No. 18.



3 2/24/2021 9:50 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

March 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

April 2021March 15, 2021 - 
March 21, 2021
Monday, March 15

Wednesday, March 17
2:00pm - 5:00pm Water & Sewer Board (Gates)

Friday, March 19

Tuesday, March 16
6:00pm -  City Council Meeting - Council Master Calendar

Thursday, March 18
7:30am - 8:30am DDA (Zasada/Butler)
3:30pm - 4:30pm Airport Authority (Clark/Payton)

Saturday, March 20

Sunday, March 21

Page 442

Item No. 18.



4 2/24/2021 9:50 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

March 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

April 2021March 22, 2021 - 
March 28, 2021
Monday, March 22

11:30am - 12:30pm Greeley Chamber of Commerce (Hall)
6:00pm - 7:00pm Youth Commission (Butler)

Wednesday, March 24

Friday, March 26

Tuesday, March 23
6:00pm -  City Council Worksession Meeting - Council Master 
Calendar

Thursday, March 25
7:30am -  Poudre River Trail (Hall)

Saturday, March 27

Sunday, March 28

Page 443

Item No. 18.



5 2/24/2021 9:50 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

March 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

April 2021March 29, 2021 - 
April 4, 2021
Monday, March 29

Wednesday, March 31
7:00am - 8:00am Upstate Colorado Economic Development 
(Gates/Hall) (Upstate Colorado Conference Room) - Council Master 
Calendar

Friday, April 2

Tuesday, March 30

Thursday, April 1
3:30pm -  IG Adv. Board (Butler)
6:00pm -  MPO (Gates/Payton)

Saturday, April 3

Sunday, April 4

Page 444

Item No. 18.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021  

 

Title 

Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 

resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at 

this meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk 

to sign all such resolutions, agreements and ordinances 

Council’s Recommended Action 

A motion to approve the above authorizations. 

                                 

Page 445

Item No. 19.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 2, 2021  

 

Title 

Adjournment 

                                 

Page 446

Item No. 20.


	Alert Page
	Agenda Index
	Item No. 1.	Call to Order
	Call to Order

	Item No. 2.	Pledge of Allegiance
	Pledge of Allegiance

	Item No. 3.	Roll Call
	Roll Call

	Item No. 4.	Recognitions and Proclamations
	Recognitions &amp; Proclamations
	3.2.21 Whats Great Hall
	Youth Art Month Proclamation

	Item No. 5.	Citizen Input
	Citizen Input

	Item No. 6.	Approval of the Agenda
	Final Approval of the Agenda

	Item No. 7.	Reports from Mayor and Council
	Reports Mayor and Council

	Item No. 8.	Initiatives from Mayor and Council
	Initiatives from Mayor and Council
	Status Report of Council Initiatives (1)

	Consent Agenda - Item Nos. 9 - 13
	Item No. 9.	Worksession Minutes
	Worksession Minutes
	February 9 2021 Worksession

	Item No. 10.	Council Minutes
	Council Minutes
	City Council Proceedings February 16, 2021 - Draft

	Item No. 11.	Greeley Weld Airport 2021 AIP Transfer
	2021 AIP Airport Transfer Agenda Summary 
	Transfer of Airport Improvement Entitlement Funds (1)
	FAA 2021 Transfer of Entitlements Airport Agreement
	2021 Entitlements Transfer Airport Letter

	Item No. 12.	Cache IGA
	Agenda Summary - Cache IGA
	IGA - Cache Metro District Nos. 2-8
	Attachment #2 IGA with City of Greeley Cache MD Nos. 1-8 (SIGNED)

	Item No. 13.	Settlement Agreement
	ITEM-Staff-d5f0bb81c74e432a8f4548118a4e6d2c
	Settlement Agreement - Lopez Flores
	Lopez Flores Release

	Item No. 14.	Pulled Consent
	Pulled Consent Agenda Items

	Item No. 15.	Raw Water Dedication Ordinance
	Agenda Summary Raw Water Dediction
	2021.02.05. Ordinance Amending Chapter 6 Title 14 (Raw Water Dedication)
	2021.02.11. Appendix A - Chapter 14.06 Water Dedication Policy Revisions
	Final CC_RawWaterDedication_2021-02-24

	Item No. 16.	Terry Ranch Resolution
	Agenda Summary
	Terry Ranch Master Purchase Agreement Authorization
	Final Terry Ranch
	Water & Sewer Board Resolution
	Written Citizen Comments
	PPT

	Item No. 17.	COVID-19 Update
	COVID - 19 Update

	Item No. 18.	Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events
	Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events
	Council Meeting and Worksession Schedule
	Council Calendar

	Item No. 19.	Consideration of a motion..
	Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this meeting

	Item No. 20.	Adjournment
	Adjournment

	Bottom



